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Pearson at a glance

Finanaalkighlights

Sales

£4.5bn
-5%

IMAGE REMOVED

Adyjusled operating profit

£723m
-3%

IMAGE REMOVED

Average annual growth in
headline terms 2010-2015

Adjusted earnings per share
1.9%
- - 0

Operating cash flow IMAGE REMOVED IMAGE REMOVED

-16.3%

+6.1%

@ To read about our KPIs go to pid

Throughout this report growth rates are stated on a constant exchange rate (CER) basis unless otherwise stated Where quoted, underfying
growth rates exclude both currenty movements and portfollo changes




Section T Our business

AboutPearson

Strategicreport

n

Pearson is the world’s learning company, with
global capabilities in educational courseware

and assessment, based on a strong portfolio of
products and services, powered by technology.

We believe that our strategy of combining
these core capabilities with services enable our

partners to scale online, reach more people and

ensure better learning outcomes, providing
Pearson with a larger market opportunity, a

sharper focus on the fastest-growing education

markets and stronger financial returns.

Our mission is to help people make progress
through access to better learning. We believe
that learning opens up opportunities, creating
fulfilling careers and better lives.

This strategic report 1s formed of three sections ‘Our business’,
Qur performance’ and ‘Social impact’, {p02-67), and was approved
forissue by the board on 4 March 2016 and signed onits behalfby
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Chairman’s introduction

Sidney Taurel
Chairman

IMAGE REMOVED

“My focus will be on helping
guide Pearson back to growth,
supporting the management
team and all of our employees
in our mission: to help more
people make progress in their
lives through learning.”

Dear shareholders,
1 arn proud to introduce our annuat report for the first
time as Pearson’s chairman

My predecessor, Glen Moreno, made a major
contribution to Pearson during his fong and successful
tenure as chairman 1am sure my fellow shareholders
will join me 1n thanking Glen and wishing him all the
best for the future

This 1s an important time to be joining Pearson
Our 2015 performance was not what we would
have wanted, and we now have a plann place to
return the company to growth

The company has a strong purpose atits heart, and has
made great strides in focusing on education My own
focus will be on helping guide Pearson back to growth,
supporting the management team and all of our
employees in our mission to help more people make
progress in thewr hives through learning

Qur immediate priotities

This Is a challenging time for businesses in global
education, with rapid changes taking place in the sector
Digital technology s revolutionising educatton just asit
has all other aspects of the way we work, communicate
and do business Inan era of constrained spending,
there s a ig productivity challenge, as governments
and education leaders seek to achieve better outcomes

atthe same or lower cost The value of a university
degree continues to grow, but many students and
institutions face cost pressures These changes offer
big opportunities for Pearson, but also present risks
and transitionsthat we will need to manage In some
of our traditionally strong businesses

With these factors in mind, my immediate prionities
are clear

> will be supporting our management team to
ensure that we stay focused on our biggest strategic
growth objectives

> hwill offer guidance to help them to make further
progress on simphfying and integrating the business
We need to make sure that Pearson is better able to
leverage our assets, skills, and technology platforms
in order to deploy our products globally

> will be supporting the team to ensure that capital
is allocated in away that provides better returns for
shareholders, ulimately creating a better, maore
sustainabte company for the future

We will engage transparently with shareholders on
our capital allocation plans and progress against our
strategic goals, aswell as on all important issues

We plan to hold our dividend at the 2015 level while we
rebuild cover, reflecting the board's confidence in the
medim-term outlook for our business, and we are
commuitted to increasing total shareholder returns

These priorities require strong leadership,
dedication and hard work from me, the board,
and the management team

Our leadership team

We have continued to enhance the strength and depth

of our board, including the appointment of Coram Willlams
as our chief financial officer Coram has a decade’s
expenence working directly for Pearson and helped to
lead our joint venture, Penguin Random House, through
a successful company integration as its first CFO

Like me, Lincaln Wallen joined the board on 1 January
2016 Lincoln 1schieftechnology officer for DreamWorks
Animation, and his appointment further strengthens
our digital capabiiies Like thousands of Pearson
employees across the globe, he also has a background
in education and teaching

We have an experienced executive team, and commutted
employees around the world | look forward to warking with
Jjohn Fallon and the executive team to deliver our agenda

Read more about our board on pages 72-73 €
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Share price performance
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Seurce Datastream to 31 December 2015

Total sharehoider return(TSR)

seepta @

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

Source Datastream to 31 December 2015

Building a company for the future

tled Eh Lilly, a businessin the global heaith sector, as
CEQ and Chair for ten years | see some clear parallels
between health and education that | believe provide
opportunities for Pearson

Like health, education affects every citizen of the world
In a deep and personalway Both sectors have seen
dramatic increases in the use of digital technologies
for the benefit of users - in our case, teachers and
students For us, this means personalised, adaptive
learning, with the ability to measure and improve
outcornes at anindividual leve!

S0 we are continuing at pace on our mission te become
moredigital and service-driven, and a simpler, better
integrated business, with efficacy at the heart of
everything wedo Read more onourongoing
commitment to efficacy on pages 46-53 @

Pearson's future

1would like ta thank you for your continued support

of Pearson [t has been atough 2015, and there are
undoubtedly challenges ahead Pearson is a company
with strong market positions, real competitive
advantage and a significant medium-term market
opportunity The board beiteves thatthe plans we are
enacting wili help to build on these strengths and enjoy
sustained growth

I see an exaiting future ahead for Pearson - as with
my experience in the health sector, } aminspired by
working in a company with a strong sense of purpose
As chairman | am fully focused on helping the
management team develop our strategy and deliver
long-term value for our students, customers and you,
our shareholders

IMAGE REMOVED

Sidney Taurel
Chairman

Read our full Governance section

Governance overview p70-11 @
Leadership & effectiveness prz-81Q
Accountability pB2-89 °
Engagement p90-93§)
Report on directors’ remuneration p94-117 Q)

Additionai disclosures pl1s-123Q
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Chief executive’s strategic overview

John Fallon
Chief executive

IMAGE REMOVED

“2015 was a year of change
and challenge at Pearson,
which ultimately will leave
us better placed to meet
the huge unmet demands
in global education.”

Our strategy

Dear shareholders,

2015 was a year of change and challenge at Pearson,
which ultimately will leave us better placed to meet
the huge unmet demands in global education

The biggest change was that, with the sale of the
Financtal Times Group and our stake in The Economist,
we completed Pearson's exit from the financal news
and information market We thought long and hard
about these disposals, Itis not easy to partwith such
globally respected brands, which have been an
important part of Pearson for many years After
careful consideranion, the board concluded that these
transactions made strateglc sense, achleved a good
financial return for shareholders, and were in the best
long-term interest of both The Economist and the
Financial Times

The pace of disruptive change in new technology ~

in particular, the growth of mobile and social media -
poses & direct challenge to how leading news
organisations produce and sell their journalism

The best way to ensure continuing success Is to be part
of a global, digital news organtsation that 1s completely
focused on the business of journalism We concluded
that new owners with strong track records in media
would help growthe FT and The Economist’s giobal
reach and reputationin a digital age, just as we
secured Penguin's creative and commercial future by
combining it with Random House to create the world’s
largest consumer publisher, Penguin Random House
That business, of which we own a 47% stake, continues
to perform well, as you can read on page 33

Short-term priorities Strategic growth drivers

Dehver transformation

Simplify our business

Stronger cash generation

A growing company

Digital & services

Build on our global strength
n educanonal courseware
and assessmentwith
leading digial products
and services, where we see
the greatest potential for
growth, scalabiity and
impact oniearner progress

Market presence

Our strategy to buiid onour
leading presence in developed
markets, and the opportunity
to meet growing global demand
for education
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Challengesin 2015

A clear strategy

These disposals enable us to focus more fully on our
education business, which was where we faced our
higgest challenge lastyear The cyclical and policy
retated headwinds we face in our major education
markets - which we have described in previous years
and which we cover later in this report - are persisung
for longer than we anticipated They are also having a
more pronounced impact an our profitabiity than we
expected, reducing our annual operating profit by
approximately £230m from its peak These headwinds
are largely cychcal and, over the next two years, they
should finally abate

This means that, aithough operating profit and earnings

per share were only down marginally in underlying
terms on the previous year, they fell short of the goals
we set at the start of the year

Our strong competitive performance

Pearson's competitive performance remains strong
We held or increased our market share in higher
education courseware, school courseware, and in UK
general qualifications in professional testing, virtual
schooling, online higher education and other areas
we increased our capabilities, our reach and our
commercial success substantially You can read more
about our operating performance on pages 16-33

We are also confident that education remains an
attractive mvestment opportunity with the growth
potential to enable Us to serve more students around
the world and dehver good, sustainable returnsto
our shareholders

Qur strategy to capitahise on this oppartunity is clear
As the world's learming cornpany, Pearson has world-
class capabilities and products in educational
courseware and assessment, powered by learning
technology By combining these capabihities with
teaching and learming services, we help schools,
universities and others to scale online, reach more
people and ensure better learning outcomes Aswe
do so, we provide Pearsonwith alarger market
opporturity, a sharper focus an the fastest-growing
education markets and stronger financial returns

This approach recognises that education 1s undergoing

a number of structural changes The economic value
of an education remains large Inthe US, forexample,

the earnings premium of a university degree has never
been lugher However, the cost of education is going up
faster thaninflation - and public funding for aducation

1s under real pressure This preserts our customers -
university presidents, scheol superintendents,
teachers and faculty, students and their parents -
with a real challenge

It 1s compounded by the fact that rising costs have
not brought any real Increases in learmng outcomes ~
which remain uneven and variable - and there is an
alarming mismatch between the expectations of
educators and employers For example, according to
Gallup research from 2014, 96% of chief academic
officers in the US rate their institution as somewhat
or very effective at preparing students for the world
ofwork Yet only 11% of business [eaders agree

Measurable outcomes

Qur efficacy programme is our

long term commitment to delivering
measurable impact 1tinforms all
strategic deciston making across
Pearson, including our product

and services strategy Wewili

begin reportng formally on this
impact from 2018

Our constant goals

Generate sustainable returns by

Dehvenng fong-tertn growth

Extending our global presence
and reach

Building on our leading
education position

To deliver measurable impact
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Chief executive’s strategic overview continued

Helping teachers to be more effective
and students more successful

We know that technology can help to address these
chaltenges, by making learning more accesstble,
flexible, personal and affordable For example, we
are drawing on the latest digital advances to develop
products which further customise and personalise
learning So we are embedding learning analytics in
our new courseware offerings, such as Revel, to help
teachers use data to teach students more effectively

For students themselves, we are using adaptive
learning technologtes to focus their studieson
concepts which reguire more time and attention

We are developing new quabfications and certifications
that help students to translate educatton Into
employment by assessing career-relevant knowledge
and skills, providing quality assurance to schoals,
universities and employers For example, last year we
ran rearly 50 mithon practice or actual assessments
for students on digital devices in the U5 using our
TestNav application, aligning these new tests to

higher standards for career and college readiness

Online degree and virtual online school programmes
represent 10% of Pearson today, from nothing five
years ago - and are growing at double-digit rates each
year With asolid platform and market position in the
US, we are now growing these businesses globally
With the global online programme management
market set to double in the next five years, there will
be many more opportunities for Pearson to partner
with universities to improve learning

This opportunity 1s mghlighted through our long-
standing partnership with Arizona State University,
where we are helping to recruit, retain and teach
several thousand onhne students As more and more
universities and students embrace the possibilities
for improving access and success th education using
technology, there will be many more opportunities for
Pearson to partner with institutions on course design,
student recruitment and online tuition

All of our new products and services are underpinned
by our efficacy approach, launched three years ago,
which is designed to ensure that we help teachers to
be more effective, and students to be more successful
We are committed to reporting on the learming impact
of our indmidual products fram 2018 onwards, through
independently audited evidence and reports We are
making good progress towards this target, as you can
read later in this report{pages 46-53)

Qur success in helping our customers address these
structural changes in education should enable Pearson

to increase our average revenue per customer, and access
larger markets as we provide educational services far
broader than just stand-alone content or assessment To
make the most of the opportunity, we are making Pearson
a simpler, better integrated, more cost-effictent company

Sharpening the future

InjJanuary we announced a series of actions that will
help us to achieve this goal

We are creating a single global product organisation,
combining our three previously separate ines of business
We are integrating our school, clinical and professional
assessment operations in North America Weare
reducing our exposure to large, direct delivery operations
to focus on onling, virtual, and blended servicesin a
much maore scalable, and profitable way Eachof these
changes wilt help us invest in fewer, bigger opportunities,
and ensure that our worid-class capabihties can be scafed
to customersaround the globe

We are also making productivity improvemertts across
all our enabling functions hke Technology, HR and
Ftnance - as our product offering and customer and
employee support becomes more digital We planto
rationalise our property portfolio and consolidate rmajor
supplier agreements to drive greater cost efficiency

As a result of these changes, we expect to reduce
Pearson's global workforce by around 4,000 roles,

109 of our headcount These are decisions that we never
take hghtly and we are committed to supporting our
colieagues during the transition These actions will be
complete by the end of 2016, and will reduce our annual
running costs by around £350m tmportantly, they will
also create a more focused, Integrated business, better
able to create and sell products across our markets to
rmprove learning outcomes This restructunng witl give
us the ymproved operational and financial flexibility to
investin growth areas and underpin shareholder returns

Our reach and impact

Big changes in the education landscape will create big
opporturnties for Pearson to grow our reach and impact

There are huge unmet demands in global education that
need to be addressed

in higher education, the number of students going to
university worldwide is expected to increase by more

than 50 miliion to 260 million by 2025 Every one of those
students wants a degree thatis more affardable, more
accesstbie and more likely to lead to a goodjob One billion
peopte will soon be learning English warldwide School
students and teachersincreasingly expect to learn digitally
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Sowe plan to increase access to high quality ecucation,
ensure the success of all ur learners agamnst
measurable qutcomes, and to help mare peaple
around the world make progress in their lives - giving
them the ability to secure a better job and a better life

Aswell as measuring the impact of individual products,
we should also be measuring Pearson's total impact on
learning We are committed to ambitious goals to
expand our reach and impact over the next decade

We currently reach around 75 million learners each year
By 2025, our aspiratton is to reach 200 muflien fearners
each year ~ more than doubling our reach These
ambitious goals will contribute not only to Pearson's
success, butto the socleties of which we are a part

In 2015 Pearson joined other businesses and world
leaders in commuitting to the UN's Sustainable
Development Goals (SDGs) The SDGs represent globat
challenges, many of which can be alleviated through
better iteracy and better educatton ln particuiar,

Goal 4 of the SDGs, to ‘ensure inclusive and equitable
quality education and promote lifelong opportunities for
alf', 1s'central to the work of every Pearson employee
and the milions of teachers and students we work with
around the world each year

To help maximise our contribution towards these goals,
1n 2015 we continued our strong commitment to
sustainability, built new relabonships with partners

like Save the Children and supported a new coalition
called Project Literacy (Read more about Pearson's
social impact on pages 54-67)

We also invested in the Pearson brand in 2015 and
itcontinues as an area of focus in the year ahead
Buillding a stronger brand will give us a better platform
to reach more students and teachers, and act as a mark
of quality as we develop and deliver new services across
education We have introduced a new visual brand
capturing the curlosity and excitement of learning,
which will unify Pearson's portfolic of products and
services over time The new brand s represented in

this annual report for the first time

My executive team

Our long-term opportunity

It's clear that 2016 will be a tough year as we work
through the substantial change programme outhined
above Our plan focuses on operational execution,
ughtcost management and a sharperstrategy to
return to growth We will be faster, leaner and more
agite as a result of the changes we are making

We expect our business to stabilise into 2017 and
return to growth in 2018

We remain comimutted to the long-term opportunity
for Pearson to provide high quality, affordable and
accessible education that leads to a better job and
abetterlife For many people, fearning is the route to
a job to support thelr family or to acquiring the skills
to help them progress intheir career For others, it's
simply a passion for discovery that enriches their ives
All over the world, we hear parents say the same thing
they want to see a greater return on their investment
in education, so that thew children can gain skills, get
better Jobs and succeed in their ves That remains
avery compelling and exciting opporiunity

This powerful motivating purpose Is what drives
Pearson's business, which carrieswith it great
responsibilities to learners as well as to you, our
shareholders In 2016, we are focused on delivering
these responsibiliies, and the plans faid out inthis
report exptain how they wili be achieved We are
confident that they wali ulimately make Pearson
asimpler, stronger company, and that they setthe
company up for a sustained period of growth

We'll keep you updated on our progress

Thank you for your ongoing support

IMAGE REMOVED

John Fallon
Chief executive

Coram Willlams Chief Financial Officer

Michael Barber Chief Education Advisor

Tim Bozik President Global Product

Rod Bristow President Core Markets

Giovanm Giovannelh President Growth Markets

Albert Hitchcock Chief Technology and Operations Officer
Kate james Chief Corporate Affairs Officer

Don Kilburn President North America

Bob Whelan President Pearson Assessments

Melinda Woife Chief Hurman Resources Cfficer
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Our business model

Creating value by developing products and services that
meet learner needs most effectively

At the heart of this is our efficacy strategy which over the
long-term provides insight and data on the full impact of
our products and services.

From 2018 our efficacy programme will be reporting on this.

How our strategy aligns with value creation

Digital & services
Plan and develop

We combine our insights
into market need with our
global educauon expertise
This perspective informs

the planning and
development of all our
teaching and iearning
products and services,
driven by technology,
and shapes those where
we place the greatest
investment

Market presence
Market, sell and serve
Qur leading positionn
educational courseware
and assessment enables
us to build our capabilities
in fast-growing related
services We use our
experience and expertlse
across the business

to develop scalable,
successful products

and services, always
mesting learner needs

Measurable outcomes
Assessand

provide nsight

We measure and assess
thempact of our products
and services onlearner
outcomes This feeds

into our global insights
capabllities, enabling

us to build a deep
understanding of learners’
and customers’ needs,
and develop warld-class
products and services

See a summary of our strategy on p04-05 o
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Captureinsight
Exploring customer
and tearner needs to
identify opportunities

Develop strategy & plan
Major product divisions
\ntegrated with geographic
markets to set strategic
prigrities

Develop product
Developed with Insight from
geographies to address
specific local needs

IMAGE REMOVED

Assess impact

Measuring efficacy and
understanding the learner
informs all deaisions made
through the cycle

Serve

Customer service and
supportls ashared
responsibiity with different
owners at different stages

Market & sell

Sales activity supported
with gutdance from global
brand and marketing

$S3aUISNg INQ

uewsopad Ing

edw [enos inp

QURIIGAOS ‘

SIUBLNEL)S [BPuRUS




0 Pearson plc Annual report and accounts 2015

Financial overview

Coram Wtliams
Chief financial officer

Business performance

Headline CER Underlying
£millions 2015 2014 growth  growth growth
Sales 4,468 4,540 {219 (5)% {2)%
IMAGE REMOVED
Adjusted
operating
profit 723 722 - {3)% (2%
Adjusted
earnings
per share 703p 667p 5%
Operating
13 b}
In 2015, Pearson’s sales cash fiow 435 649 Y%
i Netdebt 4) {1,639 60%
decreased by £72m in etde (654) (1639)
headline terms to £.4.5bn. Statutory results
hd . Headline CER Underlying
T()tal ad]usted Operatlng £millions 2015 20%¢  growth growth growth
1]
profitrose £1m to £723m. sales 4460 9510 o
Operating
(toss)/profit (404) 348
{Loss)/profit
Sales [at CER) before tax (433) 255
0O Profit for
—5 (o) theyear 823 470 75%
Basic earnings
pershare 1012p 5S81p 74%
Adjusted earnings per share Cash
0 generated
+ O from
operations 518 704  (26)%
Dividend
Operating cash flow per share 52p 51p 2%
0
—33 0 a} Growth rates arestated on a constant exchange rate {CER) basis
unless otherwlsestated Where quoted underlying growth rates
exclude both turrency movements and portfollo changes Unless
otherwise stated, sales exclude FT Group, while total adjusted
Dnidend per share operating profitsinclude FTGroup Continulng operations exclude

+2%

£T Group

b) The‘business performance’ measures are non-GAAP measures and
reconcillations to the equivalent statutory heading under (FRS are
Included in notes to the consoldated financlal statements 2,6, 7,8
and 32, and the corporate and cperating measures
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Profit and loss statement

Return oninvested caprtal

In 2015, Pearson’s sales decreased by £72min headline
terms to £4 5bn Total adjusted operating profitrose
£imto £723m (2014 £722m)

Currency movements, primartly from the depreciation
of sterhng against the US dollar during the pertod,
increased sales by £137m and operating profits

by £22m

At constant exchange rates (1 e stripping out the
impact of those currency movements), our sales fell
by 5% primanly due to a change in revenue model at
Connections Education which now records revenues
charged at cost on a net basis, and adjusted operating
profit fell by 3% due to revenue mix and an operating
loss in our Growth segment

The net effect of acquisitions, disposals and revenue
model adjustments reduced sales by £129m and
operating profits by £9m

Stripping out the impact of portfeiio changes and
currency moverments, revenues were down 2%
inunderdying terms while adjusted aperating profit
fell 2%

Net interest payable [n 2015 was £46m, compared
to£64m in 2014 Qurtaxratein 2015was 15 5%
compared to 17 9%n 2014 The decrease in both
Interest and tax was primarily due to agreement
on historical tax positions and the release of
associated accrued interest

Adjusted earnings per share were 70 3p (2014 66 7p)

Cash generation

Headline operating cash flow decreased by £214m to
£435m as a result of chatlenging trading and disposals
Operating cash conversion fell from 90% in 2014 to 60%
n 2015 due to a mismatch between cash and accrued
ncentive compensation as a result of lower incentive
compensation awards for 2015 when compared to
2014, capital expenditure greater than depreciation
due to investments tn our enabling function technology
designed to lower administrative costs, an increase

in US Higher Education textbook returns, and pension
top-up payments as a result of a triennial valuation
These factors were partly offset by an increased
dividend payment from Penguin Random House

Our return on average invested capital was 5 8% (2014
5 6%) primarily due to lower operating cash tax paid

Statutory results

Qur statutory results showed a profit for the year
after tax of £823m, including gains on the disposal

of the financaial Times Group, The Economist Group
and PowerSchool of £1,214m and an impairment of
goodwill and intangibles of £849m, primarily reflecting
trading pressures in our Growth and North Amenca
bustnesses Included within the netgain on disposal

15 a £70m balance sheet write down on the disposal

of PowerSchool, related to the reduced market
opportunity for software (such as Pearson System

of Courses and Schoolnet) which was to be integrated
with PowerSchool and the recogniton that adoption
of such software in US Schools 1s now unlikely to occur
at the rate originally envisaged

Balance sheet

SS2UISNG NG

axuewlopad InQ

Qur netdebt decreased to £654m (2014 £1,639m)
pnmanly reflecting the disposals of the Financial Times,
The Economist Group and PowerSchocl and an
increased dividend from Penguin Random House,
offset by the strengthening of the US dollar relative to
sterling, a higher group dividend and higher working
capital Pearson’s net debt/EB{TDA ratro decreased
from 1 % 2014 to 0 8x in 2015 and our interest cover
increased from 11 3xto 15 7x

Dvidend

Pedun [e0S INQ

The Board 1s proposing a flat final dvidend of 34p,
which results in a 2% increase in the overall 2015
dividend to 52p, subjectto shareholder approval
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Financaial overview contimued

2016 outlook

In 2016, we expect to report adjusted operating profit
before restructuring costs of between £580m and
£620m This reflects the tmpact of the in-year benefits
from restructuring offset by the loss of operating profit
from disposals made in 2015, ongoing chatlenging
conditions In our largest markets, the reinstatemnent
of the employee incentive pool and other operational
factors (inctuding duai running costs as we rationalise
our technology infrastructure, costinflation and
increased pre-publicatton amortisation relating to
new product launches)

We expect adjusted earmings per share to be between
50p and S5p, after a normalised interest charge of
approximately £60m and a tax rate of approximately
19% In 2016, we are excluding the one-off cost of our
major restructuring from adjusted operating profit and
earrungs per share to better reflect the underlying
earnings potential of the business Operating profit
after restructuring charges ts expected to be inthe
£260m to £300m range This guidance 1s based onour
current portfolio of businesses and exchange rates on
31 December 2015

The major factors behind ttus guidance are as follows

Trading conditions

While we expect to achieve continued good growthin
areas such as virtual schools and online programme
management, we anticipate trading conditions to
remain chaflenging in our major markets in 2016

North America

in North America, our largest market, we anticipate US
college enroiments will be flat given forecast madest
improvements Ih US employment, a smaller adoption
market in K-12 learming services and lower partiapation
rate partally offset by growth in open territonies driven
by new products, reduced testing revenues in North
America reflecting State and National Assessment
contract losses worth approximately £100m announced
n 2015, and growth in chinical assessments and
professional certfication

Core

In our Core markets (which include the UK, Italy and
Australia), we expect dechnes invocational course
registrations in UK schools, ongoing pressure iInour
various learning services businesses, partally offset
by growth in managed services in Australia and the
UK At VUE, we will cease to deliver the contract to
administer the UK Driving Theory test for the DVSA
tn September 2016

Growth

In our Growth markets (which include 8razil, China,
india and South Africa), we expect continued pressure
1n South Africa on government spending on textbooks
and lower enrclments in CTI, macro-economic
pressures in emerging markets, speafically China

and Brazil, affset by growth from new products such
as our Wall Street English new student experience

Penguin Random House

In Penguin Random House, we anticipate that
addittional benefits from the ongoing integration

of the business will be broadly offset by reduced
demand for ebooks, followtng industry-wide changes
In terms in 2015
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Portfolio changes

We completed the sale of PowerSchoo! on 31 july
2015 for £222m, the sale of the Financial Times on

30 November 2015 for £858m, and substantially
completed the sale of our 50% stake in The Economist
Group on 16 October 2015 for £469m In addition

we disposed of Fronter and a number of print
textbook lists in the US Total disposals contributed
approximately £20m to 2015 operating profitwhich
wili not recurin 2016

Other operational factors

Dual runrung costs from technology implementations,
Increased investment amortisation from new product
launches and cost inflation will increase costs by
approximately £90m (in 2016 when compared to 2015

Incentive compensation

Group incentive compensation was zero in 2015
reflecting the weakness of performance versus budget
The incentive pool will be reinstated to £110mn 2016
to ensure our workforce Is incentivised to sustamn its
strong competitive performance and to implement a
significant programme of change within the company

Restructuring

Building on the work we have done over the last three
years, we are taking further action to simplify our
business, reduce our costs and position Pearson far
growth in our major markets Wewll create asingle
courseware product organisation, integrate our North
America assessment operations, reduce our exposure
to large scale direct delivery and focus an more scalable
onling, virtual, and blended services, implement major
efficiency improvements across all our enabhing
functions - technolegy, finance, HR, and rationalise our
property portfolio and renegotiate and consolidate
major suppller agreements

To implement this programme, we will incur costs of
approximately £320min 2016 and expect to generate
annualised savings of approxtmately £350m, with
approximately £250m of savingsin 2016 and a
further £100m of savings in 2017 We have already
implemented a number of sigrificant associated
actions since announcing the programme I january

Currency movements

In 2015, Pearson generated approximately 63% of its
sales inthe US, 6% 1n Greater China, 5% 1n the Eurozone,
3% in Brazil, 2%1n Canada, 2% in Australia, 2% 1n South
Africa and 1% inindia and our guldance 1s based on
exchange rates at 31 December 2015

Interest and tax

We expect our interest charge ta be approximately
£60m, with lower average net debt levels offset by
the absence of released accrued interest payments
following agreement on historical tax positions

We expect a tax rate of approximately 19% on our
total profit before tax {which includes the post-tax
contribution from Penguin Random House)

IMAGE REMOQVED

Coram Williams
Chief financial officer
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Key performance indicators

Fve-year performance

Financial objectives

KPt

Performance

Maintain
long-term
growth

Sales

Sales fell 5% at CERn 2015 and have grown over the last five years at an average
annual rate of over 1%, reflecting good fang-term growth in digital and services
buslnesses and acquisitions in the global education market, partially offset by

a shift to subscription revenues, recent Cychcal and policy factors and adverse
exchange rate movements in emergmg markets

+1.2%

Total adjusted cperating profit

Total adjusted operating profit fell 3% in 2015 at CER and has fallen ata compound
annual rate of 5 1% since 2010 reflecting good long-term growth in digitai and
services offset by the sale of businesses, recent cyclical and policy factors and
adverse exchange rate movements in emerging markets

-5.1%

Delwer
sustainable
returns

Total adjusted earnings

Total adjusted earnings per share Is up 5% year-on-year in 2015, reflecting portfolio
changes, exchange rate movements and a lower tax rate Over five years EPS has
dechined at an average annual rate of 1 9% refiecung good long-term growth in our
digital and services businesses offset by declines in pnint, portfoho changes, cyclical
and policy factors and adverse exchange rate movements in emerging markets

-1.9%

Return oninvested capital

ROIC grew 0 2% to S 8% 1n 2015 and was affected by alower tax charge ROIChas
fallen from 10 2% in 2010 We expect ROIC to improve as we deliver the plans for
simphfication and growth that we announced in January and make progress
towards our 2018 goals

-4.4

percentage points

Total shareholder return

TSR In 2015 was -36% which compares to a -1% return on the FTSE 100 Index of large
UK isted companies Over five years, Pearson has returned approximately -119%, well
behind the return on the FTSE 100 Index of 27% over the same penod Our recent
shareprice performance has been disappointing but we are confident that the plans
and strategy fald out in this report wili make Pearson a simpler, stronger company,
and that they set the company up for a sustained penod of growth and value creation

-11.2%

Dwvidends per share

we increased dividends in companson to 2014 by 29 to 52p, our 24th straight year
of increasing our dividend abave the rate of inflation Pearson plans to hold its
dividend at the 2015 level whilst It rebuilds cover, reflecting the Board's confidence
in the medium term outlook

+6.1%

Manage our
cash position
effectively

Operating cash flow

Operating cash Aow fell to £435rm in 2015, reflecting an increase in capital
investment m new simplified systems, higher returns in our Us igher education
business due to de-stocking at one maor retailer, weaker trading and pension
top-ups partly offset by anincreased dwvidend from Penguln Random House
Over five years operating cash flow has declined atan averageannual rate of
over 16% per annum, reflecting good tong-term growth in our digital and services
businesses offset by declines in print, portfolic changes, recent cyclical and
policy factors and adverse exchange rate movernents

-16.3% |
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Data/Progress Strategic objectives Data/Progress
Transform Digital and services revenue share
to digital and 2010 46 5% 2015 65 0%
IMAGE REMOVED services £ 2 9‘b
£2.1bn Jhn
Grow prescncee Emerging markets revenue share
I emerging 2010 11 3% 2015 16 4%
market m £734
IMAGE REMOVED £475 m
Deliver » Reporting programme on track for 2018
measurable » Growth and impact goals set for 2025
mpact Productimprovements identified by efficacy reviews
are being impfemented on track with plans
IMAGE REMOVED (Efficacy) (y
95%
See strateglc growth drivers on p0a-05 @
Non-ftnancial measures
IMAGE REMOVED Delwver Gender diversity
gender balance Men Women
Board 7 70% 3 30%
Senior managers
{excl executive
board directors) 68 66% 35 34%
IMAGE REMOVED Allemployees 16,781 41% 24,260 59%
Reduce our Global Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emlsstons
carbon foot prmt Metric tonnes COje
2015
110,724 s
IMAGE REMOVED ’ ’
2014
129,742
Maintain
community
mvestment
IMAGE REMOVED IMAGE REMOVED

See Our social Impact section on p54-67 €
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IMAGE REMOVED

Operating
performance
overview

Developing for access,
delivering for outcomes

Education is a sector with large growth opportunities
for Pearson The rise of digital and the need for effective
learming which better equips students for therr future
careers are trends which will benefit us in the long term

Pearson has world class capabilities and products in
educational courseware and assessment, powered by
learming technology By combining these capabilities with
digital teaching and learning services, we help schools,
universities and others to scale onling, reach more people
and ensure better learning outcomes

Our primary segmenits for management reporting are
Geographies (North America, Core and Growth), as this
1s how we drive business performance Thisis how we
reach learners, through content and digital services in
mndividual classrooms, through broad partnerships with
public and private education institutions and, in certain
markets, by directly expanding capacity through our
own schools and colleges
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Operating performance

Geography

IMAGE REMOVED

North
America

Sales Adjusted operating profit

£29bn  £480m

Revenues grew 1% 1n headline terms,

due to the depreciation of sterhing agamst
the US dollar, but fell by 5% at CER and 1%
mn underlying terms

In School, strong enroiment growth in Connections
Education, good growth in clinical assessment and
market share galnsn courseware were offset by the
impact of a smalter textbook adoptions market and
weakness In the open terntories in K-12 courseware,
and a change in revenue model at Connections
Education which records revenue for services
charged at cost on anetbasis

In Higher Education, market share gains in
courseware were offset by lower enrolments (total
US college enrolments felf 1 7%, with combined
two-year public and four-year for-profit enrolments
declining 4 4%, affected by a nsing employment rate
and regulatory change affecting the for-profit and
developmental learmng sectors), higher textbook
returns and st sales Strong enrolment growth at
Pearson online services was offset by lower revenues
from Learnmg Studto, a mgher education learning
management system that we are retiring, and the
impact of a change in revenue model

In Professional, revenues grew strongly at VUE

due to hugher volumes of professionat certification
assessments Adjusted operating profits rose 8% in
headiine terms due to currency movements, fell 1%
at CER and were up 1% in underlying terms, with
contractfossesin school assessment and an adverse
revenue mix offset by tight cost control and the profit
onsale of lists

Read about Tremayne and the
General Education Degree on p20 °
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Operating performance continued

North America
conlinued

School

Connections Education, our virtual school business
served over 68,000 full time equivalent students
through full-me virtuat and blended schoot
programmes in 2015, up 1% from 2014 as aresult

of underlying growth and a new statewide school in
North Carolina Connections manages 30 virtual public
schools with three new, full-time state-wide virtual
public schocls approved for the 2016-17 school year

to serve students in Arkansas, Washington and New
Mexico Inits annual Parent Satisfaction Survey, 93% of
parents of students enrolled in full-time online partner
schoals “reccrmmend” Connections to other farmilies

In courseware, revenue declined year-on-year despite
strong market share performance, primarily due to a
smaller overall adoption market as compared to 2014
Overall market share increased shghtly driven by a
strong performance in new adoption markets where
we won 31% (2014 25%) of new adoptions competed
for, ar 29% (2014 25%) of the total new adoption market

of $730mn 2015(2014 $910m)}, led by a strong
performance in Grades K-6 Social Studies in Texas
and Indiana, and in Grades K-6 Science in Oklahoma
We expanded iLit, our digital reading intervention
programme, covering a broader range of students
including English language learners Research studies
show that students using iLit gain two or more years
of reading growth in a year using this tablet-based
programme (hitp /pear sn/PErhf} We launched
ReadyGEN, a K-6 reading series and enVisionMATH2 0,
the newaest offering in the highly successful
enVisionMATH K-6 maths programme

In State and National Assessments, revenues for the

full year dechned due to contract losses High-stakes
online test volumes grew strongly, up 130% on 2014 to
26 4 milhon, as customers transitioned to computer-
based testing Paper-based high-stakes test volumes
grew 3% to 32 7million Pearson successfully delivered
Enghsh Language, Arts and Math PARCC assessments to
51 million students across ten states and the District of

IMAGE REMOVED IMAGE REMOVED

Tremayne, General Education Degree graduate, US

Living in Maryland m the United States, Tremayne was

19 years old when he realised that drepping out of high
school was a big mistake “I reahsed thatwithoutathigh
school drploma or GED no ane would hire me” He knew he
needed a change, so he turned to the GED Testing Service
to help hin and found the MyGED portal fitwell with us
lifestyle, "having the GED portal enline was very convenient,
very quick lused to accessiton my phone*

Tremayne successfully passed the test and s logking forward
to exciting new opportunities, “when  recerved my diploma,
iwas so proud of myself~

“Twasn’'t used to accomphshing much in
Iife and 1calised that I could do anylhing
[putmv mindto”

He's been accepted inte a local community ¢ollege in
Maryland and plans to transfer to a four-year school to
study engineering He hopes one day to start his own
construction business
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Columbtia ACT Aspire delivered Common Core aligned
college and career readiness assessments to 1 3 million
students up 67% from 2014 and was chosen for three
new state-wide deploymentsin 2016 The states of
Arkansas, Mississipp: and Ohio wlll discontinue PARCC
assessments in 2016 We were awarded contracts to
deliver the indiana Statewide Test of Educational
Progress (ISTEP), renewed the Puerto Rican Tests

, of Academic Achievement (PPAA) and parts of the
assessments contract awarded by the Texas Education
Agency, and extended our contracts to admitnister the
Mississippl Sclence Test and Mississippi Subject Area
Testing Program We ceased to administer the majonity
ofthe current Texas STAAR contract in September 2015
Pearson extended its parthership with the College
Board for the SAT assessment with the award of a five-
year contract for processing of the redesigned SAT and
PSAT assessments Pearson will continue to provide the
essay-scoring component for the SAT untit March 2016

Climical assessment grew well, benefiting from
continued growth of the fifth edition of the Wechsler
intefligence Scafe for Children (WISC-V), strong growth in
Behavior Assessment for Children 3e (BASC) and rapid
growth in Q-Interactive, Pearson's digital solution for
chinical assessment administration with geographic
expanston and continued strong growth in active
users to over 9,000 from 4,000 in 2014 with test
admimstrations up over 400% to 1 3 million sub-tests

IMAGE REMOVED

Bradford, High school student, US

Bradford attends Hart-Ransom Academic Charter High
School, anindependent-study high school, which uses
Connections Learnung for its online learning curricutum
Now inthe 11th grade, Bradford likes the online
curriculur’s rigour, and has taken advantage of
Connections Learning's flexibility and self-paced fearning
to accelerate his education

“It defimitely challenges me academically,
and thanks to the online learning,
1 can pace myself exactly how I need
to be paced”

Bradford appreclates the personalattention he's

received from his online tearning teachers, Itke his Spanish
teacher, who he talks to on the phone, and his Maths
teacher, who meets him virtually inthe LiveLesson

room "irezlly lke how involved the teachers are with

the students ”

+11%

Connections Education served

over 68,000 Full Time Equivalent

IMAGE REMOVED students through full-time virtual

and biended school programmes

1 2015, up 11% from 2014
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Operanng performance continued

North America
continued

IMAGE
REMOVED

Sterling, University student, US

Sterling 1s currently a junior in the business schaol at Texas
A& M University and is majoring In marketing Tofulfita
prerequisite for upper-level business classes, Steriing took
a State government course online last summer, using
REVEL, Pearson's interactive learning programme for the
humanities and soclal sciences i learned so muchinthe
course because it wasn't the same thing every time you
flipped the page,” Sterfing explained *Therewould be a
graph, then a video, and then a picture And you could get
involved with some of the animations *

“I really loved that it was so interactive,
because it influenced how well I learned
and how quickly I picked up the material ™

IMAGE REMOVED

1Im

in North America, digital registrations
grew 3% to almost 11 milhonwith
good growth n Science, Business &
Economics, Statistics, REVEL and skills
applications like Pearson Writer

IMAGE
REMOVED

Higher Education

Gross courseware revenues fell 1 5% (compared to
industry gross revenue declines of 2 7%), due to lower
college enrolments offset by market share gains

Net revenues declined 5 7% (compared toindustry
net declines of 7 5%) reflecting the impact of ugher
returns Our market share in courseware benefited
from strong performance from key titles including
Hubbard Economics 5e, Hibbeler Engineering Mechanics
14e and Marieb Human Anatomy & Physiology 10e

Global digital registrations of MyLab and related
products grew 3% to nearly 13 mullion In North
America, digital registrations grew 3% to almost

11 milhion with good growth in Science, Business &
Economucs, Statistics, REVEL and skills applications
like Pearson Writer, offset by softness in
developmental Mathematics Faculty-generated case
studies indicate that the use of MylLab programmes,
as part of a broader course redesign, can support
improvements in student test scores and fower
institutional cost (http //pear sn/IZxLE) We launched
a suite of features that include Adaptive Practice

in our MyLabs to personalise subjects including
Mathematics and Nursing practice, Predictive
Analytics Early Alerts in Mastering to help saience
Instructors support at-nsk students, gamification
features n Business and rich learming analytics
dashboards in numerous products that offer

deep insight Into students’ progress, performance
and engagement
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In Pearson online services, our higher education
Online Program Management {OPM) business, course
enrolments grew strongly, up 25% to over 265,000,
boosted by strong growth in Anzona State University
Gnline where we renewed our partnership at the start
of 2015 We extended our collaboration with Maryville
University to launch a Bachelor and Master’sin
Cybersecunty and a Doctorate in Leadership Ohio
University 1s partnering with Pearson to launch a
Master's in Financial Economics and Public Relations
Umiversity of Nevada Reno 1s partnering to increase
access to the Master of Social Work degree
programme cnline Pearson launched a new
managed programmes service model with Cincinnati
State Technical and Community College, adapting
traditional OPM services to the Community College
market signing a landmark ten-year agreement

to provide marketing, recruiting, admission and
retention services both to online and ground-based
programmes

In enterprise solutions, Pearson signed significant
large-scale, enterprise adoptions of cross-discipline
digital content, where contentis purchased via an
upfront course fee and integrated with university
ITsystems, with Jones County College, Natsonal
Unversity, Algonquin College and the Umiversity of
Missour system We signed an expanded strategic
partnership agreement with Southern New
Hampshire University's (SNHU) College of Online

and Continuing Education (COCE) Pearsonwill
suppert curniculum development, online tutoring,
enterprise-wide content and data integration, ebooks
with a print-on-demand option and data and analytics
services, which will provide greater vistbiltty into
students’ achtevemnent of iearning outcomes

The Charles A Dana Center at The Unwersity of
Texas at Austin is collaborating with Pearson to
provide webbased course resources to community
colleges across Texas thatdramatically shorten the
time It takes for students to earn college creditin
mathematics as part of the New Mathways Profect
Three courses were launched 1n 2015 Foundations
Mathematica! Reasoning, Statistics Reasoning and
Quantitative Reasoning, with maore planned in 2016

Pearsonwas named as the premier US Green Bulding
Councll Education Partner and will offer curriculum
and course servicas to universities, associations,
training companies, corporations, and workforce
education and apprenticeship programmes We are
partnering with Broward Collegeto launch new
competency-based workforce certfication pathways
focused on [T and Healthcare Pearson will support
Broward's strategy by providing 12 industry
certifications with existing workforce education
courseware, as well as curriculum development
services to bulld new courses towards certification
and the Acclaim badging platform

Professional

In professional certification, VUE global test volurnes
grew 11% year-on-year to 14 2 million, boosted by
continued growth in IT, Professional and GED,

with increased volumes from Microsoft Certified
Professional {MCP) Program globatly, National

Council of State Boards of Nursing and US teacher
certification programmes VUE renewed the Certiport
Microsoft Office Speaialists and Microsoft Technology
Asscciate programmes for an additional year and
extended our partnership with Cisco Systems for
three and a half years
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Operating performance continued

Geography

core

Sales Adjusted operating profit

£836m £114m

Revenues declined by 8% 1n headline terms,
5% at CER and in underlying terms

Growthin Pearson online services In Australia, Wall
Street Enghsh In Italy, Clinical Assessmentin Germany
and the Pearson Test of English in Australia was more
than offset by revenue declines in UK qualifications
as the business nears the end of a penod of policy
change, revenue dechines at VUE, phasing and market
weakness in Austrahan higher education courseware
and the focusing of our UK school courseware on
products that directly support Pearson Qualifications
Adjusted operating profit (excluding the FT, The
Economist and Mergermarket) declined 2% in
underlying terms due to lower revenue offset by
tight cost control

IMAGE REMOVED
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Read about Sarah and Pearson College on p26 °

IMAGE REMOVED
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Operating performance continued

Core
continued

School

In assessment, UK qualifications have beenimpacted

by government policy, where changes to accountability

measures have led to a further 20% decline1in BTEC

registrations in 2015 GCSE and GCE entries for summer

2015 grew modestly compared with 2014, resulting
from increases Jn GCSE registrations in Sport, {CT and

Bustness and strength in IGCSE entries We successfully

delivered the National Curriculum Test for 2015,
marking 4 milhion scripts from 1 7 mullion students and
successfully transitioned the marking of the testto an
online-only model

in courseware, UK School revenue fell with growth
in primary school more than offset by declines in
secondary, as the vocational market contracted and
our upper secondary revenues were impacted by
lower market participation as we focus on products

that directly support cur qualifications More than
5,400 UK schools now subscribe to at least one Bug
Club service, our primary school blended reading
programme, representing growth of nearly 16%1n
the year There are over 1 8 milhon pupils, more than
9,000 schools and 152,000 teachers currently using a
service on Activelearn Primary ltaly revenues dechined
shightly with market share gains in pnimary offset

by market weakness and a lower share tn upper
secondary Australia revenues deciined, with growth
and increased market share in primary more than
offset by a weaker secondary market

Chinical assessment grew well wath Germany benefiting
from strong growth In Kaufman Assessment Battery for
Children {(K-ABC), partly offset by dechines in Australa,
after a strong year in 2014 driven by the release of
Wechsler Primary and Preschool Scale of Intelhigence IV

IMAGE - IMAGE
REMOVED REMOVED

IMAGE IMAGE
REMOVED REMOVED

Sarah, Pearson College Landon student, UK

Sarah works in the marketing team at Nestlé, having
graduated frorm Pearson College London last September
She says “Education gave me the confidence to take a step
back from a career path that | was unhappy with and find a
newdirection Itgave me the flexibility to study afull degree
In two years which enabled me to get back on my career
ladder as soon as possible *

“Pearson College London gave me the skilis
to umpress at interview the knowledge to
succeed in my new role and the confidence
to apply tn the first place”

“Through the dégree, and the environment, | was able

to understand what | wanted from a career and find
the right move for me ”

Noel, Pearson VUE customer, UK

The Chartered Institute of Management Accountants {CIMA)
has worked in partnership with Pearson VUE to transform
its partfolio of professional-leve! exams from pen and
paper to computer-based testing Noel Tagoe, Executive
Director of CIMA, says “By maximising the opportuniies
offered through technological advances in computerised
assessment, we can access a wide range of testing methods
assass avariety of skilis and competencies at different
levels, and offer much greater flexibility for where and when
examinations are taken Afl of which will be of tremendous
benefit to both students and, importantly, employers

These changes will take full advantage of tha role that
technology plays in the lives of the younger generation,

and reflect the evolution in the workplace
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Hrgher Education

Professional

In courseware, UK revenues declined, primarily due
to a weak market [n Australia, revenues dechned
significantly due to phasing and market weakness

In online services, our Australian University
Partnerships business grew strongly with combined
course enrolments of nearly 4,000, up 380% from 2014
The growth of our partnershup with Monash University
was led by the Graduate Diploma in Psychology, which
15 now one of Monash's largest postgraduate courses
Our new partnership with Griffith University started
very strongly, seeing conststent demand for the MBA
programme and the launch of two further courses
Kings College London partnered with Pearsonto launch
online postgraduate degree programmes in Psychology
and Law

Total enrolled students at Pearson College doubled
to 232

The Pearson Test of English Academic (PTEA) saw
strong growth in test volumes and revenues after
gainng approval from the Australtan Department
of Immigration and Border Protection to administer
a broad range of language tests linked to visa
applications

Wall Street English revenues fell slightly with strong
growthn |taly offset by dechnes in Germany

IMAGE
REMOVED

Stephanie, Winner of Qutstanding BTEC Student of the Year
Award 2015, UK

Stephanie studied a Level 3 Diplomain Health and Social Care
at Penwith College in the UK She Is passionate about helpsng
others and her outstanding achleverments in college and in
the local community marked her out to the BTEC Award
Judges as truly outstanding

Stephamie supported herself financially with paid
employment as a community carer alengside her BTEC

She juggled long working hours with her studies, yet still
far exceeded the 100-hour work experience requirements
of her course, completing a range of placements in hospital
wards, care homes and day care centres Shealso
participated 1in many local voluntary projects working with
individuals in her community who are Isolated and lonely

IMAGE
REMOVED
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Operating performance continued

Geography

Growth

Sales Adjusted aperating loss

£692m -£12m

Revenues tell 4% in headline terms, were flat
at CER and fell 1% 1n underlying terms

In China, revenues grew modestly reflecting strong
sales of premium services In aur direct delivery
Enghsh Language Learning businesses offset by list
disposals tn Brazi, revenues were stable with good
grawth in private sistemas and language schools,
offset by declines in government funded sistemas and
language schools In South Afnica, revenues declined
significantly due to a smaller textbook adoption cycle
and lower enrolments at CT, due to a reduction in
the number of quahfied students graduating from
high school and tightening consumer credit affecting
re-enrolment rates {nthe Middle East, our business
was impacted by the withdrawat frorn the Saud
Arabian Colleges of Excellence

Adjusted operating profit decreased £44mto a loss
of £12m due to the strengtheming of Sterling against
key Emerging Market currencies, revenue declines

in South Africa, a contract termination charge arising
from the transition of our three Saud: Colleges to new
providers, cost inflation and additional investment in
China, partially offset by the benefits of restructuring
and integration in Brazil

Read about Mpho and MGl on p30 °
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Operating performance contunued

Growth
continued

School

In South Africa, there was continued pressure on
Government spending on textbooks due to budget
pressures, which resulted in the value of the textbook
market falling 60% from a peak of R2 9bnin2013

to an estimated R1 15bn1n 2015 We continued to
perform well competitively and maintained aleading
market share

In Brazil, sistemas revenues grew well with strong
growth in private sistemas partly offset by declines in
NAME, our public sistema, following the cancellation

of alarge contractas a result of government spending
cuts Overall sistema enrolments fell 7% to nearly
449,000 with declines in NAME partly offset by growth
in our three private sistemas, led by our largest sistema,
COC More than half of COC schools that participated in
the High School Nationaf Exam (ENEM) ranked among
the top three schools In their municipalities

IMAGE
REMOQVED

IMAGE
REMOVED

Mpho, MGl graduate, South Africa

Mpho Nethengwe is a 28 year-old MGI graduate who
is now a Writing and Comunication Skills and English
Lecturer ather alma mater In Midrand She says

“The skills I acquired at MGl made 1t
easler for me to step into my role m the
working world 1am able to take on every
challenge as 1t comes, to 1eflect on,
evaluate and improve on whatto don
order to remain productive ”
Mpho has ambitions of putting heriearning and experience

into practice, even exploring a possible future career in
communications at Pearson We think she'd be areal asset

In India, enrolments at our managed schools grew
14% to nearly 27,000 students and we launched a
pitot in more than 60 schools of MyPedia, an inside
service ‘sistema’ solution for schools compnsing
print and digital content, assessment and academic
support services

Middle East school courseware and professional .
development revenues grew strongly onimproved
distribution

Higher Education

In South Africa, after strong growth over a number of
years, student enrolments at CTl universities fell by 16%
to 11,300 driven by a 13% decline i qualified graduating
high school students and tightening consumer credit
affecting re-enrolment rates

In Mexico, our fully accredited onhine university
partnership, UTEL, increased the number of students
enrciied by 34% to nearly 12,600

+14%

Enrolments at our
manaped schools
inInd:a grew 14%

IMAGE REMOVED
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Inincha, Higher Education courseware revenues grew
strongly Cornell University partnered with Pearson

to launch the Cornell-ILR Expenenced Managers
Programme 1n India, with a blended learning approach
combtning online and in-person instrucuon

In the Middle East, our three-year partnership with
Tatbah University in Saudi Arabia, to enable its
transformation to a fully blended and personalised
learning model, 1s progressing with over 4,000 students
enrolled m our solution 1n 2015 Qur partnership
with the Preparatory Year Deanship at Um Al Qura
University (PYP-UQU), to provide cnhine learning and
assessment technology has delivered 13,000
MyMathLab, MyITLab and MasteringPhysics licences
We withdrew from an agreement to run three Saud
Arabian Colleges of Excellence, with the colleges
transitioning to new providers from 30 June 2015
This resulted in a termination charge

+34%

In Mexico, our fully
accredited anline
university partnership,

IMAGE REMOVED

UTEL, increased the
number of students
enrolled by 34%

IMAGE
REMOVED

Alvir, English student, Brazil

Alviris a 17 year-old who has been studying at Wizard for
threeyears Inthe beginning, studying English wasonlya
way to remember his father, whe used to love the language
But studying evolved into something bigger and helped him
to achteve his goals, he got his first job as an assistant teacher
at Wizard, and took the TOEIC exam, achieving the maximum
990 points Alvir says that English has helped him to meet
new people and now his geal 1sto live abroad some day

IMAGE REMOVED
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Operating performance continued

Growth
continued

Professional

In Pearson English, good growth in direct deiveryin
China, private expenditure inlanguage schools in Brazil,
and Enghsh Language Teaching (ELT) was partly offset
by the iImpact of lower public expenditure inlanguage
schools in Brazil

In China, Wall Street English (WSE) achieved strong
revenue growth, reflecting success in the premium
sepment and the growth in VIP branded offerings
Overall enrolments grew modestly to over 67,000 with
new enrolments growing strongly We launched the
New Student Experience (NSE) in six pilot centres during
December 2015 The NSE delivers a major upgrade

to the Wali Street English service with adaptive,
personatised fearming incorporating Pearson’s Global
Scale of Enghsh

Global Education achleved moderate revenue growth
as the market shifted to more iIntensive premium
courses with smaller class sizes and hew products,
which resulted in enrolments declining 6 5%to 85,110

We launched around 30 new MyEnghshLab products
including Top Notch 3e and Progress MyTOEFLLab and
the second edition of MylELTSLab successfully launched
in China in WSE and Global Education Global student
registrations for MyEnghshLab and other ELT digital
courseware grew 14% to 739,000 Pearson Test of
English grew strongly in India

Grupo Multt in Brazel saw strang revenue growth

at Wizard, our consumer-facing franchised English
{anguage learning business, but this was offset

by dechnes in government orders due to pubkc
spending cuts We opened 40 new schogl-in-school
units for Mult) English franchises m K-12 sistemas
partner schools

IMAGE
REMOVED

Angelina, Wall Street English graduate, China

Angelina runs a wedding planning company tn Shenzhen,
China Learming English with Wall Street Enghish has
enabled her to attract more international chents Sheis
now gualified with a top weddIng planning institutionIn
North America and 1s realising her dream of glving couples
their perfect wedding memories

IMAGE REMOVED
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Penguin Random House

Pearson owns 47% of Penguin Random House, the
first truly global consumer book publishing company

Penguin Randam House had a strong performance in
2015, boosted by publication of hundreds of Adult and
Children’s bestsellers across its territories, including
the fiction mega-successes of Grey and The Girl on the
Train, which each sold over 7 milion copies worldwide

The US business pubhshed S84 New York Times print
and ebook bestsellersin 2015 (2014 760, based on
abroader New York Times title count than 2015)

The diviston benefited from the multi-million copy
successes of Grey by E L James and the Adult debut
novel The Girl on the Tramn by Paula Hawkins
Chuldren's authors who extended their outstanding
salesin 2015 include Dr Seuss, John Green, R}
Palacio, James Dashner, Rick Yancey, Drew Daywalt,
and Oliver jeffers Additional notable Aduit titles
include The Life-Changing Magic of Tidying Up by Marte
Kondo, Rogue Lawyer by John Gnisham, Lost Ocean
by Johanna Basford, Between The World and Me by
Ta-Nehisi Coates, and the movie tie-tn paperback
The Martian by Andy Weir

The UK business published 201 titles an the Sunday
Times bestseller ists (2014 206) The dvision enjoyed
outstanding sales for Grey and The Girf on the Tram,
which each sold more than 2 million UK copies, and
for Harper Lee's Go Set A Watchman and Jamie Oliver’s
Everyday Super Food Great demand continued for
Jeff Kinney's Diary of o Wimpy Krd and John Green's
tittes, and for DK Publishing’s Star Wars publications

Penguin Random House's promising 2016 publishing
hists include new titles from Lisa Brennan-jobs, Biil
Bryson, Lee Child, Harfan Coben, Phil Colfins, Janet
Evanowich, Ina Garten, John Grisham, Jazz Jenntngs,
leff Kinney, Marie Kondo, john le Carré, Jojo Moyes,
Jamie Oliver, James Patterson, Nathaniel Philbrick,
Pope Francis, Nora Roberts, John Sandford, Daryelle
Steel and Star Wars

Pengumn Random House completed the sale of

Author Solutions, its supported self-publishing
services company, to an affihate of Najafi Compantes,
an International private-Investment firm, on

31 December, and sold its Australian onlhine bookseller
Bookwaorld to online retailer Booktopia in August

The integration of Penguin and Random House
continued to provide net benefits through
organisational alignments and systems, and
warehouse cembinations in 2015, as well as for 2016
and thereafter The North Americawarehouse
consolidation was completed in February 2015, and
in December, the UK bustness announced it will be
gradually closing its Rugby distribution centre and
relocating its inventory to two other locations

The integraticn in Spain and Latin America of
Santiflana with Grupo Editorial Penguin Random
House remains on course
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Other financial information

Net finance costs

All figures in £ millions 2015 2014
{46) (64)

Netinterest payable

Finance income i respect of

employee benefit plans 4 1
Other net finance costs 13 (30}
Net finance costs {29) (93)

Netinterest payable in 2015 was £46m, compared to
£64m in 2014 The majority of the movementin net
Interest payable s due to the release of accrued interest
following agreement of histarical tax positions For our
debt portfolio, our fixed rate policy reduces the impact
of changes m market interest rates, however we were
still able to benefit from low average US dollar interest
rates during the year as the majority of the Group’s debt
is US dollar denominated Year-on-year, average three-
month US dallar LIBOR rose by 0 1% to 0 3% This slight
Increase in fioating market interest rates, along with
the impact of changes In our debt portfolio, foreign
exchange translation and the effect of shightly lower
levels of average net debt in the period led to httfe
change in the year-on-year interest charge ondebt
Interest recesvable on cash balances held overseas
was reduced from the prior year due mamnly to the
weakening of emerging market currencies agamnst
sterling The Group's average net debt fell by £6Im,
largely as a result of disposals i the fourth quarter of
2015 offsetting the transtation of our predominantly
US dollar debt These combined factors contributed

to the overall decrease in the Group’s average net
interest payable from 3 6%to 2 7%

Finanice income and costs relating to retirement
benefits have been excluded from our adjusted
earmngs as we believe the income statement
presentatton does not reflect the economic substance
of the underlying assets and habilities Also induded
the statutory definition of net finance costs (but notin
our adjusted measure) are finance costs for deferred
consideration associated with acquisitions, foreign

exchange and other gains and losses Finance costs for
deferred consideration are excluded from adjusted
earnings as they relate to the future potential
acquisition of non-controlling interests and do not
reflect cash expended Foreign exchange and other
gains and losses are excluded from adjusted earmings
asthey represent short-term fluctuations in market
value and are subject to significant volatility Other
gams and losses may not be realised in due course
asitis normally the intention to hold the related
instrurnents to maturity

In 2015, the total of these itemns excluded from adjusted
earmings was a gain of £17m compared to aloss of
£29min 2014 Both the gainin 2015 and the loss in
2014 marnly relate to foreign exchange differences

on unhedged cash and cash equivalents and other
financial instruments

Funding positien and liquid resources

The Group finances its operations by a mixture of cash
flows from operations, short-term borrowings from
banks and commercial paper markets, and longer-term
ioans from banks and capital markets Cur objective

1s to secure continuity of funding at a reasonable cost
from dwverse sources and with varying matunties

The Group does not use off-balance sheet special
purpose entities as a source of iquidity or for any

other financing purposes The net debt position of

the Group s set out below

all igures in £ millions 2015 2014
Cash and cash equivalents 1,703 530
Marketable secunties 28 16
Net dervative financial instruments {55} 40
Bonds (2,284) (2,173}
Bank loans and overdrafts (38) (42)
Finance leases (8) (10}
Net debt (654) (1.63%
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The largest contributors to the decrease in net debt
are the receipt of disposal proceeds, offset by changes
in the value of gross debt due to exchange rates and

a decrease 1n the value of our derivative portfolio
Reflecting the geographical and currency split of

our business, a large proportion of our debtis
denommated in US dollars (see note 19 for our policy)
The strengthening of sterling against the US dollar
during 2015 (from $1 56 to $1 47 £1) increases the
sterling equivalent value of our reported net debt

At the year end, the fong-term ratings were Baal from
Moody's and BBB+ from Standard and Poor’s, and

the short-term ratings were P2 and A2 respectively
Both long-term ratings were on negative outlook at the
year end InMarch 2016, Standard & Poor's changed
Pearson's long-term rating from BBB+ {(Negative)} to
BBB (Stable) The short-term ratings from Moody's and
Standard & Poor's remain unchanged at P2 and A2

tn April 2015, the Group accessed the capital markets,
rarsing €500m through the sale of notes matunng in
May 2025 and bearing interest at 1 375% The notes
were swapped to floating rate in US dollars to conform
with the policy described in note 19 The Group has a
$1,750m commutted revolving credit facility During
the year, the maturity of the facility was extended by
one year The facility now matures in August 2020

At 31 December 2015 this facility was undrawn The
revolving credit facility 1s used for short-term drawings
and providing refinancing capabilities, including acting
as a back-up for our US commeraal paper programme
This programme 1s primarily used to finance our US
working capital requirements, tn particular our US
educational businesses which have a peak borrowing
requirement in July At 31 December 2015, no
commercial paper was outstanding The Group also
maintains other committed and uncommitted facilities
to finance short-term working capital requirements in
the ordinary course of business Further details ofthe
Group's approach to the management of financraf risks
are set out in note 19 to the financial statements

Taxation

The effective tax rate on adjusted earnings in 2015 was
15 5% compared to an effective rate of 17 9% 2014
Our overseas profits, which arise mainly in the US, are
largely subject to tax at higher rates than that in the UX
{which had an effective statutory rate of 20 25% 1n 2015
and 21 5% n 2014) These higher tax rates were largely
offset by amortisation-related tax deductions and by
ad)ustments arising from agreement of historical tax
positions Both these items were more significant in
2015 than they had beenin 2014

The reported tax benefit on a statutory basis in 2015
was £81m (18 7%) compared to a charge of £56m

(22 0%)n 2014 The statutory tax benefitin 20151s
mainly due to benefits arising enthe increase in
intangible charges Operating tax paid in 2015 was
£129m compared to £163m in 2014

Discontinued operations

Discontinued operations in 2015 relate to the sale of
the Financial Times and the Group's 50% interestin
The Economust The Economist sale was substantially
completed on 16 Gctober 2015 andrealised a gain of
£473m before tax The sale of the Financial Times
completed on 30 November 2015 and realised a gain of
£711m before tax We expect both ofthese transactions
to qualify for substantial shareholder exemption sn the
UK The gains onthese transactions and the results for
both 2014 and 2015 to the respective sale dates have
been included in discontinued operations

The sale of Mergermarket to BC Partners, completed on
4 February 2014, resulted in a gain of £244m before tax
The gain on sale and the results for 2014 to the date of
sale have been included in discontinued operations
Alsoinduded in discontinued cperations in 2014 1sa
gain of £29m relating to adjustments to liabilities arising
on the formation of the Penguin Random House group
Although this transaction completed in 2013 there

were subseguent adjustments relating to the potential
transfer of pension habilities and tax
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Other financial information continued

Other comprehensive iIncome

Post-retirement benefits

Included tn other comprehensive income are the

net exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations The gain on translation of £175m in 2014
compares to a loss in 2015 of £69m and s principally
due to movements in the US doflar A sigrificant
proportion of the Group's operations are based in the
US and the US dollar strengthened in 2015from an
opening rate of £1 $1 56 to a closing rate atthe end

of 2015 of £1 $1 47 However at the same time other
currengies have weakened compared to stering and
this effect was more than enough to offset gains on
the US dollar Atthe end of 2014 the US daollar had
also strengthened tn comparison to the opening rate
moving from £1 $1 66 to £1 $1 56 and other currencies
did not weaken to the same extent as they have done
in 20t5

Alse included tn other comprehensive income in 2015
is an actuarial gain of £118m (Including a £8m gain in
respect of associates) in relation to pension and other
postretirement plans This gaimn manly arises from

a higher discount rate used to value the habiities

The gain compares to an actuanal gainin 2014 of
£8m (induding a £15m loss in respect of associates)

Divtdends

The dividend accounted for in our 2015 financlal
statements totalling £423m represents the final
dividend in respect of 2014 (34 0Op) and the interrm
dividend for 2015 (18 Op) We are proposing a final
dividend for 2015 of 34 Op, bringing the total paid and
payable in respect of 2015 to 52 0p, a 2% increase on
2014 Ths final 2015 dvidend which was approved by
the bhoard in February 2016, 1s subject to approval at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and will be
charged against 2016 profits For 2015, the dividend
is covered 1 4 times by adjusted earnings Weplanto
hold our future dmdend at the 2015 level whife we
rebuild cover

Pearson operates a variety of penision and post-
retirement plans Cur UK Group pension plan has by
far the largest defined benefit section We have some
smaller defined benefit sections in the US and Canada
but, outside the UK, most of our compantes operate
defined contribution plans tn addition to pension plans
we also operate post-retirement medical benefit plans
(PRMBs), the most significant of which ism the US In
2014 we amended the eligibility cniteria for the US PRMB
plan This amendment resulted in a curtaiiment gain
and a reduction in the ongoing service cost of the plan

The charge to profitin respect of worldwlide pensicns
and retirement benefits for continuing cperations
amounted to £81m m 2015 (2014 £70m)ofwhicha
charge of £85m (2014 £71m}was reportedin adjusted
operating profitand anincome of £4m (2014 £1m)
was reported against other net finarice costs The
increase chargein 2015 is in part due to the US PRMB
curtallment gain taken in 2014 and anincrease in costs
relating to our defined contrnibution plans

The overall surplus on the UK Group pension plan of
£190m at the end of 2014 has increased to a surplus of
£337m at the end of 2015 The movement has arisen
prinaipally due to continuing asset returns, deficit
funding and favourable movements in the assumptions
used to value the habilities in total, our worldwide

net surplus inrespect of pensions and other post-
retirement benefits increased from a net asset of

£27m at the end of 2014 to a net asset of £198m at

the end of 2015

Goodwill and Intangible assets

Fallowing significant economic and market
deterioration tnthe Group's operationsin emerging
markets and ongoing cyclical and policy related
pressures in the Group's mature market aperations,
management’s expectations of future returns were
revised down inthe course of 2015 Itwas determined
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duning the goodwilhimpairment review that the fair
value less costs of disposal of the Growth, North
America and Core cash generating unuts (CGUs) no
longer supported the carrying value of the goodwill
Anmmpairment of £507m was booked in respect of the
Group's Growth operations, representing impairments
of £269m inthe Brazil CGU, £181m in the China CGL,
£48m in the South Africa CGU and £9m in the Other
Growth CGU, thereby bringing the carrying value of
goodwillin those CGUs down to £nil Impairments of
£10m and £13m were also booked in respect of other
acquired intangibles in the South Africa and Other
Growth CGUs respectively, bringing therr carrying value
downto £ni] Imparments of £282m and £37mwere
also booked in respect of the North America and Core
CGUs respectively, bringing the carrying value of the
goodwill in those CGUs down to fair value less costs

of disposal

in 2014 following detenioration in the market conditions
for the Group’s online tutoring business based In India,
it was determined in the course of the sympatrment
review that the value in use of the India CGU no longer
supported the carrying value of the goodwill in that
CGU An imparment of £67mwas booked, thereby
bringing the carrying value of goodwiil in the India CGU
down to £nil Animparrment of £10m was also booked
inrespect of other acquired tntangibles in that CGU,
bringing ther carrying value to £nil Further details
ontheseimpairments are included in note 11 of the
financial statements

Acquistions and disposals

There were no significant acquisitionsin 20615 The
acquisition of Grupo Mult, Brazil's leading adult English
language training company, for £437m {pius £49mn
net debt assumed) was announced in December 2013
and completed on 11 February 2014

During 2015 the Group disposed of its interestin the
FT Group including its 50% share of The Economist
The Financral Times sale to Nikkei was completed on
30 November 2015 for consideration of £858m and
reahised a gain onsale of £711m before a tax charge
of £49m The sale of our 50% share of The Econemist
Group to EXOR was substantially completed on

16 October 2015 The value of the investment in The
Economist on Pearson's books was not significant
and there was no tax on the transaction with the
result that the gan on sale of £473m largely reflects
the proceeds received Also, in July 2015, the

Group disposed of its interest in PowerSchool for
consrderation of £222m realising & pre-tax gain of £30m
net of a £70m write down of related software assets

The sale of the Mergermarket group of companies
In 2014, as noted above, realised a profit before tax
of £244m In addition, in 2014, our North America
business disposed of its joint venture Interests in
Safari Books Online and CourseSmart, realising

a profit before tax of £40m, and ttsinvestmentin
Nook Media realising aloss before tax of £38m

Return on invested capital (ROIC)

Our ROIC 1s calculated as total adjusted operating profit
less cash tax, expressed as a percentage of average
gross invested capital ROIC increased from S 6% 1n
201405 8% in 2015 Reduced tax paymentswere the
main reason for the movement

Related party transactions

Transactions with related parties are shown in note 35
ofthe financial statements

Post-balance sheet avents

Injanuary 2016, Pearscn announced that we are
embarking on a restructuring programme to simphfy
the business, reduce costs and position the company
for growth in its major markets The majonity of the
programme s expected to be complete by mid-year
2016 and will involve implementation costs 1n 2016 of
approximately £320m
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Risk management

The board has carred out a robust assessment of the
prinapal risks facing the company, including those
that would threaten 1ts business model, future
performance, soivency or hquidity Our prinaipal nisks
and uncertainties are outlined below, alongwith a
description of how they are being managed

See pages 82 to 89 In ‘Governance’ for details on the
beard and audit committee's risk oversight during
2015, their ongoing monitoring of risks, including
deep dives into selected prinapal risks and the annual
effectiveness review @

The goal of our risk management approach s to
support Pearson i meeting its strategic and
operational objectives of growth and simplification
as set out in the chief executive's averview on pages
4to 7, so that the key business risks are identified,
assessed and mitigated Our awm is to manage risks,
understanding that many risks are externalin nature
and cannot therefore be fully controlied

How we manage risk

We assessed our risk management maturity In 2014
and made improvements in 2015 towards our 2017
target The diagram ‘how we manage risk’ shows our
approach to embedding a Pearson-wide risk culture
This framewaork is being used to drive improvements in

risk management across Pearson, taking a pragmatic
approach that assists in eliminating inefficiencies and
identifying and closing gaps Qur Enterprise Risk
Management (ERM) framework has been developed
to be aligned with International standards (COSO and
1S031000) and it aids aur comphance with the Financial
Reporting Councll's (FRC) UK Corporate Governance
Code guwidance Risk identificabon and assessment
waere also included in the 2015 strategic planning

and acquisition processes, te further embed risk
management in deciston making

Identifying and assessing risk

The board 15 ultimately responsible for the oversight of
risk management, assisted by the assurance the audit
cemmittee provides with regard to the procedures for
the identification, assessment and reporting of risk

Throughout the year (twice as a rmnimum), the
identification of principat nisks is mformed using a
bottom up and top down approach through discussions
with each business area, identifying new risks as

well as re-assessing those already being monitored

To aid in the identfication of risks and development of
associated mitigating actions, nsks are categorised inte
four main areas strategy and change, operational,
financial, and legal and comphance

How we manage sk

Risk management

Risk management

Risk management

third-parties

Learn more 1n the Governance section on pages 82to 89 O

Foundations Process Culture
Governance
and oversight
. ‘ € ! Communication
ramework, polt
and procedzre:y Training, education
IMAGE REMOVED and awareness
Roles and
responsibilities dE"'I‘bEdd'“gk‘i"
ecision-makin
Appetite and Continugus ’
talerance
improvement
working with




Section 2 Our performance 39

The probabthity of a risk materialising and the potential
impact of each risk across multiple parameters 1s rated
based on existing controls, then the adequacy of action
plans to address any remaining contrel gaps is also
assessed Those risks which have a higher probabtlity
and significant impact on strategy, reputation or
operations, or a financialimpact greater than £50m
aredentified as principat nsks

Pearson executives have oversight of risks relevant to
their areas of responsibility, which were included in
their 2015 obiectives Management i1s responsible for
executing appropriate actions to mitigate risks where
required and whenever possible 1tis not possibie to
identify every risk that could affect our businesses, and
the actions taken to mitigate the risks described betow
cannot provide absolute assurance that a nsk will not
matenahse and/or adversely affect our business or
financiat performance

The outputs of the nsk assessments described above
and below are reparted to the audit committee and
board in detail In addition to the cornpany-wide risks,
this includes risk maps for our main Pearson business
areas and geographies

Risk appetite

Risk appetite is the target leve! of risk the board finds
appropriate to accept in order to achieve Pearson’s
strategy and goals Further work wasdonein 2015 to
define the nsk appetite for each of our principal risks,
working with the Pearson executive Recommendations
are made annually to the board, as part of the board’s
oversight of sk management {see page 88 in
‘Governance’ for more on the board's governance

of nsk management)

The serm-annual risk assessment revtews take into
accountthe current level of nisk compared to appetite
A consideration of target risk appetite 1s now Included
1in key business decisions, such as acquisitions and
strategic planming

There are certain risk areas where we have avery low
appetite, such as complying with all applicable laws,
including those on anti-bnbery and corruption or the
safety and security of learners This means that we take
actions to try to avoid or eiminate this risk as far as
possible tn other areas, such as strategy and change,
we recognise the importance of managed risk-taking

mn order te achieve bustness objectives and goals

Our principal risks {as of 31 December 2015)

Qutlined here are our most significant nsks that may affect
our future We assess the probabllity of the risk materialising
and the impact of the risk The nisks with greatest potential
severity are ldentified as princlpal risks

-

©

Business transformation and change

Digital and services evolution and
market forces

Talent

Political and regulatory nisk

STRATEGY AND CHANGE
RISXS

Acquisitions, divestments and Vs

)
(%) o

ob

IMPACT
(Financial Reputational Swrategic, Operational)

PROBABILITY ——————m—>

Testing faiture
Safety and secunty

Customer facing systems

QPERATIONAL
RISKS

Safeguarding and protection
Business continuity (new risk)

Tax

RISKS

Treasury (new risk)
Data privacy and information security

Intellectual property

RISKS

Competition faw (newrisk)

Anti-bribery and corruption

LEGAL AND COMPLIANCE  |FINANCIAL

006060 0000000000 00

Data quahity and integrity {new risk}
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Risk management continued

Key changes to Pearson risks in 2015

The key themes arising from company-wide risk
discussions i 2015 reflect those of our strategic goals -
simphfication and growth, underpinned by business
transformation and change to enable these As
highlighted in the chief executtive’s strategic overview
on page 4, 2015 was a year of change for Pearson

The theme of change is reflected in the relatively high
probability of our principal risks, as shown in the map
The level of change increases risk short term, however in
the medium ta longer term it will enhance our controls
for many of our nisks, aswelt as enabling Pearsonto
achieve its goal of becoming more efficlent, smphfying
the way we work for our customers and learners

More robust risk assessments in 2015 have improved
our understanding of the nature and scale of risks, such
as data privacy and infarmation security (highlighted

in the audit commuttee chair's statement on page 83)
where external threats continue to Increase and we
have programmes of worl to close identified gaps

Gaod progress has been made inimplementing
mitigation plans, especially for those risks with lower
target risk appetite, such as for ABC and 1 our direct
delivery businesses, where risks such as the safety and
security of both our learners and staff have new roles
and defined plans underway (both highlightedin the
audit committee chair's statement on page 83)

Risk assessment of prospects and viability

This section should be read together with the full
viabriity statermenton page 118 ©

Pearson's pnncipal risks and our ability te manage them
as outhned in this section are finked to our wiability as a
company Theserisks have therefore been takeninto
accountwhen preparing the viability statement

The board assessed the prospects of the company over a
three-year period, longer than the munimum 12 months
of the annual going concern review The three-year
period corresponds with Pearson’s strategic planning
process and represents the time over which the
company can reasonably predict market dynamics and
the fikely impact of additions to the product portfolio

The beard discusses the company’s strategic plan on
an annual basis taking account of a range of factors
including market conditions, the principal risks to the
company, product and capital investment levels as well
as available funding Pearson's strategy and business
model are discussed in more detail on pages 2to 9

In assessing the company’s viability for the three years
to December 2018, the board overlaid a 'severe but

Key assumptions

The key assumptians which underpin our three-year
strategic plan to December 2018 are as follows

1 The key cychcal and policy factors that have recently hurt
Pearson (US college enrolments and UK qualifications)
should stablilise by the end of 2017 and improve modestly
thereafter, helped by new product launches

2 Pearson rmakes modest market share gainsin
North America lugher education subjects where
next generation courseware 1s being launched

3 US state testing revenues contlnue to decline through
2017, as current contracts unwind, before stabilising
n 208

4 Professional certificatlon and chinical assessment
revenues continue to grow

5 Pearson businesses in China and Brazd benefit from
the launch of new products, including the Wail Street
English New Student Experience

& Pearson's services businesses {for exampie, online
programme management, virtual schools, blended
learning 1n English} continue to grow as new
platforrns and products come to market and capitalise
on market growth

7 The benefits of the company’s restructuring plan
are dellvered In full, with minimal disruption to
sales, market share and operations from this major
programme of change

plausibie’ downside scenario onto base case strategic
plan for the group, focusing on the impact of the
follow:ng assumptions and key risks

> Further revenue shortfalls i US assessments

» Further revenue shortfalls in higher education
courseware assuming enrolments remain flat.

» Additional revenue shortfalls in growth markets
(principally South Afnica, Brazil and China) driven
by weaker local econemic conditions

» Business transformation and change execution nsk
associated with tmely delivery of the restructuning
programme in 2016 causing the benefits to be delayed
or notfully realised

The board also stress tested the Impact on our
liquidity of all the principal risks histed above occurring
together Although this s not regarded as a plausible
scenario the test showed that the company would stli
have liquid resources subject to a imited number of
management actions

The board's confirmation of Pearson's viability for the
three years to 2018 ts included alongside the going
concern statement on page 118
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Strategic and change risks

Risk 2015 actlvitles 2016 plans
Business transformation 2015 was a year of change for Pearson  Anumber of major Al the end of 2015 we undertook
and change transformational change programmes commenced in 2015 including  arigorous, bottom up review

the Enabling Programme - a programme of work to deliver a single of our markets, cperations

The pace and scope of our Pearson-wide solution te integrate our data, systems and processes  and financlal plans The chlef

business transformation

inltiatves increase the across HR, Finance, Procurement and Supply Chain} OneCRM and executive's strategic overview
Technology Delivery Centre (TDC) and these continue inte 2016 onpages4to7 describes our
execution risk that
benefits may not be full The Enabling Programme runs until 2018 and will deliver sustainable  plans for transforming Pearson
Y Y improvements in finance human resources and operations In 2016 we wili further simplify

realised, costs of these
thanges may Increase or  tnaddition to usual good practices in place for project and change
that our business as usual management, there s enhanced governance monitoring and

our business, reduce our costs
and position purselves for growth

activities donotperform  reporting in place lor these most significant change initiatives in our majer markets

inllne with our plans or The success of the restrugtuning
our lavel of custorner planis a key assumption
service may not meet underptnning achleving our
expectatians goals by 2018 showing how

criticaltisthat this riskis
effectively managed

Digital and services Our global education strategy will drive a faster move to digrtal and Turning this nskInto an
o evolution and market services, recognising that this is a significant oppertunity for Pearson, opportunity - successfully
forces as well as a potential risk We are transforming eur products and Investing in and delivering the
services for the digital environment aiong with managing our print right products and services - 15

Failure to invest

successfully n and Inventerles The 2015 strategic planning process took a more key to our strategy for returning

deliver the rlght in-depth review and chalienge of areas for future investment and to growth by 2018

products and services re-nvestment Inthe chief executive’s strategic
As indicated in the sectron above on risk assessment of our prospects  overview onpages 4te 7, we have
and viability, we take into account cychical market factors m our {aid out a strategy for returning to
strategle planning process growth We are combining our

lines of business for courseware
into asingle product organisation,
as well as rationalising and

The Global Product Lifecyde continued to be embedded across Pearson
and won an award for Bestinnovation Programme at the Corporate

Entrepreneur Awards.

ntegrating our product
You tan read maore about the Product Lifecycle and Its governance development capabifities to fotus
on page 61 in the 'Soaal Impact’ section on more adaptive, persenalised

‘next generation’ courseware and
we are [ncreasing our assessment
focus.an more adaptive and
personahsed online services
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Strategrc and change risks

Risk

2015 actlvities

2016 plans

e Talent
Falture to attract, retain

and develop staff
including adapting 1o
new skill sets required
to runthe business

Throughout 2015 we have been successful In promoting our best
internal talent and recruiting indnduals who are global leaders In
their specific field Globally consistent performance assessment,
and talent and succession managemnent approaches areinplace,
and the annual engagement survey shows consistent scores overall
from the prior year

See pages 59 to 63 In*Socialimpact for more detad onkey findings
from the engagement survey, aswell as informatron about our
approach tolearning and development

As we are golng into & perlod of
change and transformation, we
will focuson a number of areas
that are keyto mitigating talent
risk including clear employee
objectives and development plans,
an all employee engagement
survey with action plans as
appropriate, succession planning
and talent management, an
internal managementand
leadership development
programme supporting ‘learning
for all' The employee incentive
pool will also be reinstated

Polltical and

o regulatary risk
Changes [n policy
and/or regulations
have the potential to
Impact business model
and/or declsions across
allmarkets

We are expanding our global public affairs capabdity with aspecific
focus on cootdinated international government relatlons across our
key markets Bullding deeper government relatsons, Including working
with business and industry associations policy research organisations
and other advocaty groups, we can more proactively identfy and
mitigate international political and regulatory risk as wellasbring
greater coordinatton, clarity and consistency to ourwork globally

In the US we actively monitor changes through participation inadvisory
boards and representation on standard settlng committees Our
tustomer relationship teams have detailed knowledge of each state
market, We work with our Industrytrade assoclations including the
Assoclation of Amenican Publishers and have launched athree year
campaign with America’s Promise Alllance to raise high school
graduation rates to 90% and to support state led fnnovatlons

In the UK we maintainrelationships with those government
departments and agencies that are responsible for policy and funding.
Wework proactively with them to ensure our programmes meet
existing and new government ohjectives at the right guality leved

Across all of our other markets, thera [s a government relations
programme to support our intemational markets

2015 prionties to continue to be
actively driven in 2016, with a
specific focus on laveraging our
resourcesin the US and UK to buitd
global political and regulatory
relationships and partnerships, to
elevate our internatlonal political
profile, and to better understand
future international political and
regulatory trends, increasingly
uslng trade assoclations and
agencles to inform our decislons
and actions

Bullding a strong brand and
reputation in the US remalns
apriority

Acquisitions

o divestments and Vs
Farllure to meet financial
and cperational targets
of acquisitions Failure to
successfully manage Vs
and divestmentsiniine
with plans

We perform pre-transaction due diligence and closely moniltor
actual performance against operational and finanoial targets Any
divergence from these plans will result in management action to
improve performance and mininise the risk of any impairments
Executive management and the board recetve regular reports on the
status of acquisitions and mergers, with a formal review once ayear

During 2015, transitional supportservices to Penguin ended and we
completed the salesof the FT Pearson's stake in The Economist and
Powerschool

Transitionat support services to
the FTwill end In 2016

Our continued priorities for use

ofcashare

-Maintalning a strong
balance sheet

- Qrganicinvestment

- Sustalning our dividend and
maintaining the commitment
to our creditrating

- Acquisitions In educationwith
a strong ROIC potential
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Operational risks

Rlsk

2015 activitles

2016 plans

Testing fallure

A control breakdown or
service failure in our
school assessment and
qualifications businesses
could resutt in finanaial
loss and reputational
damage

Wessek to minimise the risk of a breakdown In our student marking
systems with the use of robust quality assurance procedures and
controls and oversight of contract performance combinedwith

our Investment In technology, project management and skills
devetopment of our people, including software secunty controls,
system monitoring, pre deployment testing, change controls and
the use of root cause analysis procedures to learn frominctdents
and prevent recurrence

In addItion to the internal business protedures and controls
Impiemented to ensure we successfully deliver on our contractual
commitments, we also seek to develop and maintain good
relationships with our customers ta minimise risks

Cross Pearsonteam formed to
establish standards for testing
risk factors, identify any gaps
apalnst standards and
implement improvements

Safety and security*

Risk to safety and security
due to increasing local
and global threats

The health and safety policy was updated and refeased 1n 2015
Management review processes have been established with
key leadershlp groups and incident datais collected every

slx months globally

An implementation plan has been developed, with the oblective
of delivering a pragmatic corporate secunty function which
supports our learners and employees within a safe and secure
learning and working environment

The key health and safety focus
wlll be onexecuting a three year
strategy We continue toimprove
risk assessmentin the due
ditigenceprocess with mergers
and acquisitions, aswell as inour
ex/sting and future operations
Ongoing engagement with
Pearson leadership ensures that
health and safetyis Integrated Into
businessagendas

Security activity will be prioritised
based upon an assessment of risk
which is constantly evaluated

Customer facing
systems

Failure to maintain and
support customer facing
services, systems, and
platforms, including
addressing qualityIssues
and executionontime

of new products and
enhancements.

Effective project management disciplines are in place to ensure that
enhancements and new products meet the required standards
Real-time monltoring and reportng of operational performance
are used to identify any issues and direct appropriate responses

The Quatity Task Force, established in 2014 Lo improve customers'
back-to-school experience, is now part of business as usual in 2015,
this inltiative delwered significant improvements with fewer
incidents overall, less unplanned downtime, faster resofution of
issues better protectson aganst denial of service attacks

2016 willlfocus on the next tier of
priority praducts and fully
embedding the guality Inltlative In
businessasusual Plans include
movre thaorough testing, easier
onboarding and greater access to
self service plus more proactive
monitoring and further upgrades
to the network and securlty
Other longer term Initiatlves are
underwaytofurther improve the
custormer experience

Safeguarding and
protection

Failure to adequately
protect children and

learners, particularly
Inour direct delivery
businesses

We continue Lo take safeguarding as a fundamental obligation and
high priority

There is increased understanding and reporting of safeguarding
concerns in marty of the countries where we deliver services

See page 61 in the*Soalimpact’ section for more on eur
relationships with learners and customers

Activitieswill focus on continuing to
addressrisk inthedirect delivery
businesses, with a focus onthose
inless regulated countries The
Implermentationof a safeguarding
self assessment tool and Incident
reporting system will assistin
developing metrics

10/

Business continuity
{new risk}

Falture to have plansin
place or plans are not
property executed
Crisls management and
technology disaster
recovery plans may

not be comprehensive

Praviously reported as a companent of otherrisks, this Is now being
reported as a separate risk to provide greater clarity

Pearson's business continuity policy has beenrefreshed In 2015,
identifying our exposure and risk as they refate to key products,
sites, services and supply chaln Thiswill be Implemented in 2016

Technology incidents are dealt with reactively and proactive
closure of known disaster recovery gapsls prioritised based
upon the importance of products and systems An annual
thsaster recovery schedulessin place for testing data centres

The new business continuity policy
will be mptemented in 2016,
including addItional tools and
software to support a standard
global approach 1o business
continuty planning

The new crisis management
frarmework will be embedded
through testing and scenarlos
The resilience of technoiogy
platforms and systems will be
further reviewed and improved
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Financial nisks

Risk

2015 activities

2016 plans

Tax

Riskthat changes In tax
law or perceptions on
tax planning strategles
lead to higher effective
taxrate or negative
reputational impact.

Our tax strategy reflects our business strategy and the locatlensand
financing needs of our operations In commonwith many companies,
we seek to manage our tax affalrs to protect value for our shareholders,
In kne with our broader fidutary duties We are commuitted to complying
with all statutory obligations, to undertake full disclosure totax
authorlties and to follow agreed policies and procedures withregard

to tax planning and strategy

Oversight of tax strategy 1s within the remitof the audit committee,
which receves a report on this topic at least onte ayear All ofthe
audit committee members are independent non-executive drectors
The chief financial officer s responsible for tax strategy, the conduct
of our tax affalrs and the management of tax risk are delegatedto a
global team of tax professionals

See page 145 for details of tax accounting policy

There 15 now known legislative
change inthe UK an tax reporting
requirements In 2016 and almost
certaln change an tax treatment
of inancing structures Achange
to US legislation 1s possible

Work has been performedte
prepare systems for the increased
tax disclosure requirements
relating to country by country
reporting

Treasury (new risk)

Inability to mitlgate
treasury financlal risks,
intluding the fallure

to secure adequate
committed funding,
the fallure te manage
exposures to flnancial
counterpartles and

the fallure to manage
exposures to markes rlsk
such asinterest and
forelgn exchange rates

The treasury risk is now being reported as a principal risk due
to currency and financial market volatility, as well as the recent
changes to our creditrating

Our approach to the mitigation of treasury financlat risk Inctuding
funding risk financlal counterparty risk and exposures to interest
and foreign exchange rates 1s covered in more detall in note 19,
starting on page 181

in 2016, we wili continue to operate
Inline with our treasury pellicy
More onthis can be foundin

note 19, starting on page 181

Legal and compliance risks

weakness In Information
security, including a
fallure to preventor
detect a mallclous attack
onour systems, could
resuitinamajordata
privacy breach causing
reputational damage
and financlafloss

menitor regulation changes to assess the impact on existing
pracesses and programmes The data privacy office is working with
those Jumted parts of the business atfected by the Safe Harbor
declslon to transfer them to model contract clauses

Annual training on data security and privacy was Introduced in 2015 for

all employees Inaddition, all Pearson statfwho deal with US student
data are required to take educational data protection training.

Information security Pearson has an established global security
organlsational model, and standard-based informatlon security
controls and practices Security policies have all been updated in
2015 We have established a global security operatlons centre that
provides ongoing monitonng of potentlal malicious attacks onour
Infrastructure and systems

Risk 2615 activities 2016 plans
Data privacy and pataprivacy Adataprivacy office has been established anda2015-  The data privacy and information
information security 2016 data privacy strategy developed Theimplementation of the security improvement
strategy Is overseen by the data privacy governance board which programmes will continue

mz:;‘;: :f?t:;r; cla: re has operated throughout 2015 We test and re-evaluate our data through 2016 into 2017 and will
to comply with data security procedures and controls across 2ll our businesses with the implement critical processesto

jva pre ulations and aim of ensuring personal data is secured, and we seek to comply drive bestpractices
sptran d? rds?a nd/ora with relevant legislation and contractual requirements We regularly




Section 2 Our performance

45

Legal and comphance risks

Risk

2015 activities

2016 plans

@ Inteliectual property

Ifwe do not adequately
protect our intellectual
property and proprietary
tights our competitive
pesition and profits may
be adversely afferted and
fimitour abitityto grow

We seek to mitigate these risks by belng generatly vigilant and
deploying policies and internal and external resources Lo manage
and protect our intellectual property We co-operate and advocate
through trade assoclatlons monitor advances in technology and law
and, when appropriate, take legal or collective enforcement actions
with other publishers to secure our rights We have In place a patent
programme to establish enfarceable patent rights to protect our
technology innovations and promote appropriate confidentlality
and trade secretprotocols Qurglobal IPlegal function also helps
usciear and protect our key brands and patentable innovations

we will continue to streamline our
portfolles procure and register
expandedrightssn our highvalue
IF glebally, monitor activities and
regulations, and proactively
enfarce currights, taking
necessarylegal actlon

Competition law
(new risk)
Fallure to comply with

ant: trust and competition
legislation

In October 2015, a lawyer specialising in competitlon law was
appolnted to ensure we are fully compllant with all laws and
regulations Aplanhasbeen putinplace to perform a futl risk
assessment given the evolving complexity of leglsiation and
regulation in this area This evolving complexity is why this risk
has now beenincluded In the principal risks

Based uponthe completed risk
assessment, we will develop and
Implement actlons, prlortising key
risk areas

Anti briberyand
corruptten (ABC)
Fallure to effectively
manage risks assoclated

with compliance to global
and local ABC leglslatlon

We have arisk-based programme of training (online and face-to-
face), with code of conduct certification Including a clear statement
of ABC policy The policy was rewised in 2015, with ne change to
Pearson's ‘zero tolerance’ principle In2015 the Business Partner
Code of Conduct launched, which wilhelp to mitigate third-party
ABCrisk

See page 60 In the ‘Social impact’ section for more detall onwhatis
covered by the Code of Conduct

Tralning and awareness (n 2016 wil}
focus on the revised ABC policy for
higher risk countries and activities

Third party due diligence will
continue tobe enhanced taking
into account the benefits from
business transformation
implementations suchasthe
Enabling Programme

Data quallty and Integrity
{new risk)

Unavailabllity of timely,
complete and accurate
data lrmits informed
dedsion-making and
Increased risk of non-
compliance with legal,
regulatory and reporting
requiremnents.

Data quality and integnty is now belng reported as a princapal risk
dueto itsimportance in supparting business change Initiatives,
such as the Enabling Programme and OneCRM (as highlighted risk 1,
business transformation and change} Datals key to their success

A Pearson Data Services team has been created and a data
governance target operating model agreed which defines data
ownership accountability at executive level to ensure that data
inhiatives alsgn to business strategy, pnenties and mitlatives

The primary focusis on the
Enabling Programme which will,
n time, celiver significant
improvements in data quality
and facilitate better informed
decfsion making

The 2016 roll-outs require the
migraton of asignificant number
of datasets
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Targeting growth through efficacy

The road to empowering the
lives of 200 million learners
annually by 2025

Intraduction

Over the last few years, we have been progressively
measuring and increasing our tmpact on learner
outcomes We are already helping milhiens of learners
progress in their lives, to become more Iiterate and
numerate, move from school to college, learn a new
language, or secure a new career which offers better
prospects for them and thelr families

To advance Pearson's reach and impact and to position
the company for sustainable growth, we have
embarked on an ambitious efficacy programme

which has evolved the way we manage our business,
our approach to product development and our
relationships with customers

In 2013, our drve to build a company centred around
‘whatworks' in education led to a commitment to
publicly report on the learner autcomes delivered

by our products in 2018

In 2014, Pearson started embedding the efficacy
framework and approach at the centre of our business
madel, conducting efficacy reviews and using those
insights to rmprove our products and how we serve
our customers In preparation for 2018 we started the
process of publicly reporting on efficacy, profiling the
progress of five key products

In 2015, we expanded the focus of our work, gathering
evidence for more products and services We are seelng
increased interest in our efficacy approach from our
customers and it has become a bigger factor in sales
decisions We are reporting publicly on the efficacy of
many more products alongside this report

Key achievements in 2015

2014 first wave products

. IMAGE
Gathering REMOVED
evidence

For all first wave’ products {products chosen based on
strategic importance, market position and revenue)
we have worked with customers to refine their learner
outcomes, are now gathering evidence of their
impact, and have been completing efficacy-led
product tmprovernents

We made great progress m 2015, achieving the following mulestones.

2015 second wave products IMAGE
Defined learner REMOVED
outcomes

We have also defined iearner outcomes and metrics for
all 'second wave' products (products representing a wider
range of geographies in our portfolio), In addition to
evaluating existing evidence and implementing plans to
gather more evidence of impact. Going forward we will
continue to build an evidence base for these products and
make Improvements

IMAGE
REMOVED

Competitive edge

Importantly, we are increasingly seetng our Sales and
Markeung teams worklng with our Efficacy teams to
provide a competitive edge to Pearson’s proposals Our
commitment to build more effective praducts has already
resulted in Increased customer demand for such products
and, therefore, increased revenue We look forward to
seeing this trend continue inte 2016 and beyond
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In 2016, we continue to make progress evaluating and
improving the efficacy of our products Efficacy has
become central ta our growth strategy Cur knowledge
and capabihties are maturing Both our current
portfolio and the way we 1dentify future acquisitions
are grounded m a commitment to demonstrating
effective learner cutcomes We are delivering on our
commitment to report an these too

Cur efficacy journey

“Hold us accountable for our tmpacl [fwe

fail, we fail as a business "
John Fallan, Chief executive officer

Building on last year's reports, this year our public
efficacy reports reflect what we've learnt since 2013
They include more detail on the impact each product is
having, improvements made to date, future product
research and improvement plans and, importantly,
stories from our customers Highlights of this work
follow, but to read the full reports, please visit

efficacy pearson com

Today we continue to refine our efficacy practice, and,
although our knowledge has matured, we remain
proneers We continue to encourage everyone, from
our customers, to learners, to policymakers, to
investors, to join in and challenge us, to tell us how we
canimprove our approach and un turn our products
and services

Efficacy leading to product improvement

The efficacy review process has been designed to

help teams identify areas of improvement in product,
customer relationships and internal capacity to deliver
The productimprovement process Is specifically
designed to ensure that the product will benefit
learners and customers, eventually making it more
commercially successful Exampies of these
improvements are iflustrated below

Efficacy approach and activities

Define intended learner e Review products to e Conduct researchto o Support custorners to
oLEtcomes ensure they are positioned measure the efficacy of effectively implement the
to deliver cnthose products and feed insights products to get the best
outcomes, and put in place back into product outcomes possible
efficacy improvernent development
programmes
Product Improvement

| Wall Street
Enghsh

>Launch of algorithm identifying students at nsk of dropping out, providing insights for effective
interventions Improves iearner outcomes as well as centre profitability

3 Class-level analytics to demonstrate that students perform equally, whether they are using print
or digital manuals, another change that will improve centre efficiency

to improve schoolleadership

New student
experience > Optimising duration of language videos will increase learner engagement and encourage them
P not to break their study rbythm
_l;_earson Schools > Augmentation of teacher numbers and quality as a direct result of the efficacy review
India >Improved data systems, which now provide teachers with data at a concept and studentievel,
aiming for 48-hour turnaround time

> Adoption of Big Enghsh, an English language learning product, to Increase student Enghsh
proficency, teachers also being supported to improve thelr own Enghsh skills where required

yMore teacher-to-teacher collaboration and interventions driven by efficacy Qur School
Management Improvement Framewark, as well as a new Professional Devefopment programme
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Targeting growth through efficacy continued

2015 efficacy reports:
product highlights

Selected examples of our

efficacy reports are included below
The remainder of the reportscan

be found at efficacy pearson com @)

IMAGE REMOVED

In the last decade, the number of college
students majoring in STEM fields -
science, technology, engineering, and
mathematics - has increased rapidly

Between 2007 and 2011, STEM majors in the US increased
by 48% Today, approximately 40% of male college
graduates and 29% offemnale college graduates earn a
degree mone of the STEM disciplines These areas of
study offer students practical and applicable skills upon
entering the professional world and also create significant
eccnomlic opportunity

MastermgChemstry s an online tutorial and problem-
solving too! for students to practse and reinforce their
understanding of college-level chemistry — a vital tool for
any successful STEM degree The productiaunchedin 2004
and today reaches about 350,000 students inthe United
States, and 50,000 more in 6¢ countnes around the world
MasteringChemlstry uses personalised instruction to
improve competency in chemistry and prepare students
for success in chemistry courses Leamners benefit frem
self-paced tuterals featunng specific, wrong-answer
feedback and hints that emulate the tutor New content
features have been added teincrease student achlevement
and retentton For example, there are addrtional adaptive
opportunittes through new Dynamic Study Modules,

which are designed to help students study on therrown
more effectively, using adaptive algorithms that adjust

the content based on each student’s understanding of

the concepts

For detal on the efficacy of this productgo to
efficacy pearson com §)

Alongstde this annual report, we are publishing
several reports to share our efficacy progress
and the outcomes achieved by some of our most
powerful products and services We will continue
to develop the capability to report transparently
on the efficacy of products across our portfolio

IMAGE REMOVED
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IMAGE
REMOVED

IMAGE
REMOVED

Connections Acadermy schools are
accredited, turtion-free, online public
schools for K-12 students, providing
apersonalised approach to learning,
supported by certified teachers and
acustom curriculum

Since thae first Connections Academy opened in 2002, the
schools have been establishedin 26 US states and have served
nearly 270,000 students who - for academuc, personal or

professional reasons -may be better suited to online rather
than bricks-and-mortar education

Connections believes that all students perform better
when they receive Indrvidual attention 1n asafe, nurturing
environment -what Connections calls Personalised
Performance Learning® Students are able to accelerate
learnmg in areas of strength ar recelve extra attention In
areas of weakness Indvidualised learming does not mean
learning alone - students meetregularly In online LiveLesson
sessions and have opportunities to share eas and
axperiences, while having fun learrung together in-persan
events, clubs, activities, and field trips help students stay
connected and make friends Parents, as Learning Coaches,
are closelyinvoived in their children's education

For detail on the efficacy of this productgo to
efficacy pearson com )

IMAGE
REMOVED

CTI Education Group (CT1)}1s an
wnstitute of higher education that
serves approximately 11,000 students
across 12 campuses 1n South Africa

Thenstitute focuses on arming students with real-life
career skills, training them to succeed as employable
graduates in a compettive 21st-century economy

Because career-readiness 1s such a steadfast prionty for
the institute, CT1 has developed a number of strategies
designed to ensure that all of its graduates are well
prepared for a highly demandmg employment market For
example, avirtual employabiity centre will openin 2016 to
serve as arescurce hub for students looking to enter the
Jobmarket The virtual hub will be followed by six physical
employability centres to prowide personalised, face-to-face
Job coaching Finally, employability competencies are firmly
embedded into the CT1 currleulum, which focuses prirmariy
on information technology, commerce and law

For detall on the efficacy of this product goto
efficacy pearson com o

iIMAGE REMOVED
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Targeting growth through efficacy continued

IMAGE REMOVED

The path towards audited efficacy statements

IMAGE REMOVED

wilh 85% of young rullennials in the US
owning smartphones in 2014 according
to Nielsen, education innavalors have
come to understand that hardcover
textbooks are no longer 1n line with
students’ primary consumption habits

REVEL |5 a digital resource that offers students online
and mabile access to humanities and social sciences
course materials The programme Includes embedded
assessments, interactive components and videos
integrated within the narrative content to reinforce key
concepts REVEL provides Instructors an assignment
calendar, which allows them to indicate to studenits when
waork must be completed with reminders and study tips
to help students stay on track throughout the course

REVEL was launched in 2014 to foster independent
self-initiated learning outswe the classroom, se that
students and educators are better prepared inside the
classroom REVEL allows students to access ther learning
anytime, anywhere, with an engaging experience that
encourages class participation and course completion

REVEL helps instructors address a particularly thorny
challenge they face in the humanities and social sciences -
that studenis don'tdo thelrassigned reading and come to
class under-prepared REVEL provides spedalised toolsto
allow Instructorsto plan for and address this challenge

For Detall on the efficacy of this preductgo to
efficacy pearsan com @

Auditing efficacy

From the start of our efficacy work we planned to have
our efficacy statements audited in the same way as our
financials each year In order for our focus onlearner
outcermnes to transform our business, it1s essential that
our customers trust any efficacy statements that we
make We are pleased to announce that this works
underway This year we began work with an external
auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers {PwC), to ensure that
any efficacy statements we make stand up to audit

We have now published 13 product reports PwCwill
collaborate with us during 2016 to continue to strengthen
our reparting process

10 2016 PwC will work with us to
s> Standardise and stabilise our efficacy reporting processas

> Further align our evidence to support product efficacy
statements

3 Run a mock audit of a sample of efficacy statements in the
2016 annual reportn preparation for 2018
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Our plans for 2016

Expand the evidence of impact With efficacy processes
tn place for our ‘first wave' and ‘second wave' products,
we will expand the breadth of evidence we are
collecting across even maore Pearson products, further
demonstrating their impact on learner outcomes

Leverage efficacy to develop models of product
improvemnent While all products engagedin the efficacy
pracess undergo an improvement cycle, in 2016 we will
deepen our efficacy focus on several products that
span our business modeis (e g managed services,
courseware) to estabhsh a ‘gold standard’ medel of how
our efficacy process leads to product improvement

Further embed efficacy into our organisation and
portfolio More product teams around the company will
embrace the efficacy approach Efficacy will be better
embedded in internal processes such as acquisition and
strategic planming

Share our efficacy story with the world Lead a global
conversatton across the education sector about the
impact of Pearson's efficacy work, demonstrating how
effective education products and services deliver
enhanced learner outcomes and positioning Pearson
atthe forefront of the industry

The remaining education challenge

Education matters more than ever Itisthe most
important factor in driving econonuc and socal
progress Research shows that better education helps
individuals, families and countries prosper, improves
health outcomes and builds coheswve societies There
are huge challenges to overcome, as noted inthe
adjacent diagram

There 1s growing consensus that addressing these
pressing educational and global developmentissues
and thereby meeting the needs of learners, employers
and governments will require everyone involved in
education to work tegether and focus on solutions
which can be shown to make a difference

In 2015 we joined world leaders at the United Nations in
committing to the UN World Sustainable Development
Goals (SDGs) to make the world a better place by 2030
These goals represent global chaltenges across both the
developed and developing world and all of Pearson’s
major markets Pearsonwilluse these goals toinform
our own sustainability plan We wiltleverage our
investment in efficacy and our growth strategy to fuel
the financiaf success of Pearson, demonstrate progress
In achieving our mission, and be a global leader in
addressing Goal 4 of the SDGs, “to ensure inclusive

and equitable quality education and promote hfelong
opportunities for alf "

Through efficacy we are capturing our impact on
learner outcomes at a product level, thereby providing
customers with products and services that are effective
learming tools, and, as aresult, expanding our reach

We now have the opportunity to measure the collective
reach and impact of all of ur products, and to report
on our growth in new ways

In the next ten years, we at Pearson believe that the
world should be a place where far more people are
making much more progress in their ives through
learning - and we are making an ambitious planto
getthere

Access to high quality education

58m

primary-aged children IMAGE
ara not in schoof

250 milllen children REMOVED
worldwide are in school

but are not learning

Literacy and numeracy skills

750m pvve
aduits, globally, are Hliterate In REMOVED

developed countries, 200 million
young people stlll have not mastered
basic literacy and numeracy skills

Employability and Enghsh language skills

206m

adults are unempleyed 230 million
young people are out of work
Meanwhile 40% of empioyers are
unable to find qualified candidates
to fill vacancles

IMAGE
REMOVED

1 UNESCO Policy Paper June 2014 {58m children notinschool

2 UNESCO Education For All Monitonng Report, Apnl 2013
{250m Inschoot but not learning)

3 LHS Fact Sheet, Sept. 2015 (750m literate)

4 International Labour Or Global Emph
2012 (206m sdult unemployed}

& The Economist, Apnil 2013 (290myoung people cut ofwork)
6 The Economist April 2013 (40% unable to find qualified candidates)

Trends,
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Targeting growth through efficacy continued

The Plan

By 2025, Pearson commits to empower the lives of 200 million learners annually, more than doubling our current
reach and doing it through the delivery of more effective products and services

primary and secondary
learners annually access
high quality education

We are bullding on our yWe will help 2 million post-

eTizz::?k;OtSEt secondary learners annualfy
our mbitous access high quality education
growthtargets

learners annually

>We will help 50 million
learners annually gain
the knowledge and skills
required for study and
employment

»We will help advance the
English language skills of
75 midlion learners annually

Access Success Progress
Our goals Enhance access Help more learners Help more people
to high quality gain the knowledge make measurable
e educalion that leads and skills required progress in their
Tomeet our commitment
10 empower the lives of to meaningful for life and career life and career
200 milllon learners outcomes success m the through learning
annually, we have set 215l century
three goals
2025 targets »yWe will help 10 mdlion »we will help increase hteracy »We will help 25 milhon
and numeracy for 50 muliton learners annually transition

into the workforce after
further ar tugher education

»We willhelp 20 mithon
learners advance their
career prospects annually

Online degree and virtual schoal
programmescanimprove
learner access to quality primary

Strategic
alignment

Our products that suppart aduft
English language learning can
provide learners with the skills
required for success ina global
workforce Products suchas
MyEnglishLab and many others
alow us to help advance the
Enghsh lanzuage skilsof

30 millionlearners annually

By 2025 we aim to help

75 million learners annually

Ourworkforce readiness
products supportlearnersto
make measurable progress
n their Iives and careers
Products such as MylTLab
help approximately 15 million
‘leamerstotransition inta the
warkforce annually By 2025
we aim to help 25 million
learners annualfy transition
into theworkforce after igher
erfurther education

and secondary education,
Our goals and targets currently those programsmes
align with our core are helping 1 8millioniearners
strategic priorities teannually access quahity
education By 2025, we alm
For more see strategic to help 10 million
overview on p04 &)
From 2016 to 2025

While our efficacy work continues, we will sharpen the
focus of our portfolio, Investments, partnerships, and

In 2016, we will

» Define company-wide trajectories and set product-level

targets and trajectories

> Tie KPIs to the targets across Pearson, measuring the
performance of our business leaders and executives by
their contributions to these goals

campaigns ta meet the goat of reaching, and positively
impacting, 200 mihon learners with increasingly
effective products This approachwill eventually be
embedded into every area of our business so thatwe

st ble of trackin
are positiened for growth » Develop and implement a system capable of tracking

our progress towards these goals

> Agree upon processes for determining new acquisitions
and investments in our current and future portfollo
based on their contribution to our goals
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Timefmne
2013 2016 2018 2025
Public launch of our Bulld on efficacy commitment First major public reporting Meet ourimpact and
efficacy commitment to set targets for our impact on efficacy progress and reach targets
and ourreach progress againstourimpact
and reach targets

Setting the targets

Pearson’s ambitious research programme

»Our targets are derived from the key educational
challenges facing learners, market realities and
apportunities identified by our business leaders
where Pearson has opportunity to grow

»Our product portfoho was evaluated to determine
the areas where Pearson can measurably have the
greatest impact on global education

>The targets are set based on current reach and
market trends Choasing these targets will help
organise and measure our energy to grow
the company

We are at a critical juncture inour history and the
education sector s at a critical juncture in 1ts evolution
With far greater data being made available on learners’
performance and more willingness to use that data to
improve education, we have a singular opportunity to
have greater impact with our products as well as reach
maore people

Our targets to increase our reach and impact will drive
us towards commercial success and our mission to help
pecple make progress i their lives through learning

The number of learners reached by Pearson

200m

By 2025,
Pearson aspires IMAGE
tc empower the REMOVED

lives of 260 million
learners annually

World-leading research continues to be a priority for
Pearson We work with the best minds in education to
bring their diverse and independent insights to a wider
audience Thesenciude two reports published in 2015
with world-renowned educationalist Professer John
Hattle, What Doesn't Work in Education the Politics of
Distraction, and What Works Bestin Education the
Politics of Collaborative Expertise

These papers have been read 70,000 ttimes via our
website and have redefined our ambition for the glebal
reach of Pearson's thought leadership They have
formed the basis of engagements with government
officials, stakeholders and academia in key markets
across the world

In 2016, we look forward to building on this momentum
with releases on criical topics including adaptive
learnming, aruficalintelligence in education, and bulding
efficacy into learning technologies
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Our social
impact

Learning is the means by which people
progress in their lives.

At Pearson, our commercial success and delivering on our
social purpose are mutually reinforcing Our amis to help
people flourish and make progress in their lives through
education and learning

Our promise 1s progress for the milllons who learn with us and
efficacy (p46} 1s the key mechanism by which we will deliver
This means a clear focus on developing products and services
that have a measurable impact on improving students’lives
through learning

This year, we have gone further by setting clear goals on
the number of learners we will support through our products
and services

Purpose reinforces success in a number of ways — it attracts
and helps us retain talent, something we knowto be true
from the results of our engagement survey, it nspires our
customers, bullds confidence, drives performance and helps
foster mnovation

Our strategy 1s focused on extending and deepening our
impact, but we also know that ‘how’ we deliver s central

to our purpose Acting responsibly helps us todeliver better
outcomes and to meet the expectations of our stakeholders

Qur social Impact strategy

Sustainability Impact Innovation
We investin our people, We contnbute to significant  Weactively partner and
our communitres and social and environmental  investin new models of
work to reduce our campaigns learning to help find

sclutions to the biggest

environmental footprnt.
unmet educational needs
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Overview

1. Sustainability

Pearson has an active role

Lo play in finding solutions
to our global sustainability
challenges, which is integral

to our business strategy

and how we reporl on our

most material issues.

1 Sustamability ps6-55 @
2 Our values and behaviours p59-60€)
3 Our relationships p61-63 6P
4_ Our planet ps3-64
5 Impact campaigns p65-66 Q)
Project Literacy
Employee engagement
p67 @)

6 Social iInnovation

Frem june 2016 we will report in more detail

1n our 2015 Sustainability Report avallable on

pearson com/secal-impact

Towards a newstrategy

During 2015 we began a review of our sustainability
practice, to ensure that our strategy, activities and
reporting effarts

> Reflect best practice in sustanability

s Are fit for purpose in araptdly changing business chmate
» Align with current business and stakeholder priorities

> Match our amhition and business strategy

s Reflect how our business model canlink to the UN's
Sustainable Development Goals

Pearson has a broad definition of responsible business
and has established a set of commitments across a range
of social, community and human rights principles to

Ensure that our products and services are inclusive,
appropnate in content to the age, location and ability
of thelearner, and are easy and safe to use and access

Respect and protect howwe use and share data
entrusted to us by learners and our customers

Inform, supportand equip colleagues to work
collaboratively

Encourage and reward high performance, nurturing
talent and creating a culture where all are able to realise
their individual potential

Provide a safe and healthy warkplace for our employees
and the learnerswe serve

Extend our commitments on fabour standards, human
nghts and environmental responsibihity to include our
suppliers and business partners This includes a concern
across the value chain for ensuring our activities are free
from slavery, servitude, forced or compulsory labour and
human traffickng

Provide opportunities for Pearson people to be good
atizens and to get involved in thelrfocal communities

Deliver against our targets on cur response to climate
change and to make more efficient use of resources

Pearson has In place policies to support recogmised
human rights principles These include health and safety,
safeguarding, non-ciscrimination and a right to quality
education As a founder signatory to the UN Globat
Compact, we have also made a series of commitments

to the Universal Declaration of Human Rights, the iLO
declarations on fundamental principles and rights at work,
the Rto Declaration on Environment and Development
and to reflect a zero tolerance approach to bribery

and corruption

The approach we've taken for our sustainabiiity review
and the resulting sustainabiity map are opposite on p57
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Pearson sustainabiity review - five key phases

Assess Conduct 9 Define, Create Devise
current state materiality ambitions, implementation reporting
analysis visions and roadmap strategy
goals

We have complatad a third-party review of policies and
reporting, a benchmark against competitors and leaders,
aswell as Internal intervlews with Pearson executives
Anewsustainability map captures our most materlal issues.

Pearson sustainability map

This has been reviewed by internal experts and, to date, nearly
40 Pearson executives have been consulted This willbe
finalised in 2016 and form partof our sustainabiity reporting
Detalled belows our current thinking

Misstan Help people make progress in their lives
through access to better learning
Alignment
d educed Qurfi k
:.::':a?r,\: ble 4 Scli'jilatann E:::on:nv::o;oa\::lh 10 i?\eqt:fae!lttes lnlr;:rer;r:;reavs\:,{odrresses
development the other 14 goals
goals IMAGE IMAGE IMAGE
REMOVED REMOVED REMOVED
b
Ambition Be a trusted partner Reach more learners Create the future
operate responsibly be mnclusive of education lead n
product innovation
IMAGE IMAGE
REMOVED REMOVED
Strategic Operate responsibly Maximise social impact by reaching Lead in product Innevation and
tntent new markets and expanding access excellence to create education that
to our products meets sodety's future needs
v v v

>Value ourlearners,
custormers and partners

>Respectand progress
our empioyees

}Promote stewardship in our
everyday operations

YActively contribute to the
communities where we work

> Deliver productswhich give
learmng outcomes we promise

»Produce products which Improve
the way education Is dehvered

»Advance the skills, competencies,
and qualifications needed forlife
and workinthe 215t century

»Empower learners tobe
globalcitizens

»Reachmore of the people who need
abetter educationthe most

>Make our products accessible to
every type of learner

> Consider the affordability of
our preducts inrelation to the
type of market and its customers’
income fevels

S59UISNG NG

uewaopadIng

weduw| (enosinD

FIUBLIBAOD |

SIS [eoueUld



58 Pearson plc Annual report and accounts 2015

1 Sustainability continued

IMAGE REMOVED

Pearsan and the UN sustainable development goals

Governance

In 2015 we joined world leaders at the United Nations
In committing to the UN sustainable development
goals {SDGs) setting out their ambition for 2 more
peaceful and prospercus world These goals
represent global challenges that Impact education
acrossthe world Goal 415 particularlyimportant
for Pearson -“to ensure inclusive and equitable
quality education and promote lifelong learning
opportunities for all "We are playing our partmn
contributing to this goal, through contributing
educational expertise, knowledge and resources
to help address these pressing challenges

We are also working in partnership with others
to make a difference

»We are supporang Project Everyone —an
organisation with a simple but mighty ambition
- to share the giobal goals with all 7 bilion people
onthe planet

»We have joined the Global Citlzen movement
- an organisation dedicated to creating change
and taking action to address the world's
biggest challenges

Corporate responsibility cannot be separated from

our business and reputation The reputationand
responsibility committee, a formal committee of the
board, provides ongoing oversight, scrutiny and
challenge across the entire responsible business agenda
Learn more on p90

The Pearson executive drives the implementation of
business strategy, including our response to the key
issues and opportunittes we face The responsible
bustness teadership councit oversees the development
and imptementation of our responsible business
strategy on behalf of the board Itischalred by our chief
corporate affairs officer and compnises sentor executives
from across the global business

Stakeholders

Public and private sector customers regularly seek
mformation on how we go about our business, while
many learners and employees want to understand our
approach to sustamability Soaially responsible investors
and non-governmental arganisations ook atissues such
as supply chain standards and ethics

Our approach to responstble business 1s informed
by the priorities and views of our many stakeholders
A prionity for uswill be tasting our new sustainability
framework withstakeholders as part of a continuing
focus on identifying, engaging and inspinng our
priority audrences
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2. Our values and behaviours

Employee engagement

Our orgamisational structure continues to evolve to
better deliver on our business strategy and to position
the campany for growth We continue to invest In our
single operating model, and in particular in standardising
systems and a smaller number of global platforms

Atthe same time, we are accelerating our shift and
investment in digital products

Change canbe inspiring but alsc brings operational risk
The link between employee engagement and business
performance 1s well established, and our 2014 employee
engagement survey had some key lessons for us

> Qur purpose to improve hives throughiearmng is clear
and compelling

> Our focus on efficacy 1s improving our products
and services

»Values and behaviours are critical to our success,
but need to he more clearly articulated

3 In this time of change, our ieaders and managers
need to communicate more often and more clearly
their expectations of working together in a more
Jjoined-up way

>More work is needed to clarify to employees how our
new structure works and how it helps deliver outcomes
forlearners

Based on this, we set the following agenda for the work around our vatues in 2015 and beyond

Prioritles in 2015 and beyond Activitiesin 2015

the behavioursrequired forus ta
be successful

»Many of our leaders have wrltten, spoken or tweeted about our values in 2015, and the

> Following consultation and research, we introduced ‘accountable’ as a fourth value,
alongside our current values of brave, imaginative and decent, to provide positive
tension and Increase our focus on responsibitity and delivery

Employees see evidence of the values
driving the right behaviours across the
organisation

»We created aclear set of behavioural expectations against each of the values, and
defined high, expected and low performance for each behavtour, for all employees as
well as for more sentor leaders Clear behavioural expectatyons provide more darityin

Leaders mare consistently model
values themselves have been integrated Into business processes and communication
> terms of what the values look like day-to-day

challenge where our values are not
being lived

i & performance review

»The values and behaviours were used to help shape the revised Pearson Code of
Conduct, with a particular focus on speaking up and challenging behaviour that is
not consistent with our values

People feelsafe to speakoutand > >In 2015, we provided much clearer guidance on howto assess values and behaviours

ourvalues, Employee Value Proposition

Candidates are attracted to Pearson by
and culture

sWe created and launched a range of simpie but powerful toolkits to help leaders,
managers and teams explore and understand what the values and behaviours look
like in thelr own context

Evidence that our values drive
performance, engagement and

retention of key talent high recall of the values, and strong identification wath them, as evidenced i our 2015

engagement survey (see below)

> s Welcomne ta Pearson, our award-winning global onboarding tool, has been updated to

ensure that all new hires are farmiliar with the values from dayone We continue to have

The 2015 engagement survey found that 89% of employees agree that ‘Pearson’s values are important to me’ - aven
higher than in 2014 (84%) The survey also indicated that behaviour consistent with cur values was significantly more

visible to employees, and that all four values are more prevalent withun most parts of our company As part of our work

on culture, we found that the way Pearson's colleagues treat ene another and the values themselves are factors in the
decision to jon and stay at Pearson
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2 Out values and behaviours continued

QOurvalues

Brave
Takes bold and decisive action
to deliver ambitious outcomes

\

Decent.

Listens, encourages and
respects difference, treats

and champions a culture of all pecple fairly, with
high performance IMAGE REMOVED honesty and transparency
THE
LEARMNER

Imagmative
Looks beyond ther Accountable
immediate job both inside Drives results by owning
and outside of Pearson and the solution, getting the
mtroduces new ways of right peaple Involved and
seelng, thinking and waorking delivering on promises
Qur behaviours

Brave ] | Imaginative I IBecent I I Accountable ]

Assesses complex tssues
from mukiple angles and

Shows determmnation
and courage in the face

of obstacles and setbacks addresses problems that
Offersid don't have clear solutigns
ers ldeas or opinions or outcomes

without fear of cntiasm or

Offers creative ideas and
innovative sofutions to

professional risk

Se;s h:ﬁh ss'tanc::rds forown . o1ve problemsand address

and others’ performance opportunities
Takes a broad perspective
to identify opporturities
and solutions

Code of conduct

Is honest, transparent and Takes ownership of

strafghtforward when own work and drives to
working with others successful completion
and clesure

Builds trusting relationships
with a broad range of
people inside and outside
Pearson

idenufies and involves
others to accomphish
indivtdual and group
outcomes

Looks for and includes
diverse viewpomts angd
talents of others

Follows through
oncammitments

Raising concerns

Qur values are reinforced by our code of conduct

which covers, among other things, individual conduct,
safeguarding of learners, employee nghts and
responsibilities, community involvement, the
environment and our social obligations We make sure
everyone 1s aware of the Code and this forms part of the
onboarding process This year, we completed amaterlal
review and rewrite of the Code including detatled
additional guidance and case study support The Code
was circulated early in 2015 to every Pearson employee
and theywere asked to confirm they had readit,
understood it and to affirm that they would comply with
it Over 99% of employees have signed up to the Code

We operate a free, confidential telephone helpline and
website for anyone who wants ta raise a concern and we
have a clear non-retaliation policy in place to encourage
people to share the issues they have 1n 2015, we had

119 concerns (112 in 2014} raised through the ethics
reporting process These were investigated and, where
possible, the outcome shared with the whistleblower
This year, as in most years, the majority of the concerns
related to HR practices Material concerns raised are
reported to the Pearson audit committee
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Learners and customers

Our people

Our primary responstbiiity to learners 1s to ensure that
every product or service we sell can be measured by
what it helps them to achieve itis also the primary
contribution we can make to society Our section on
efficacy describes the commitments and progress we
have made

Last year, we adopted the Pearson product lifecycle
framework for managing our products, services and
platforms This introduced a untfied product strategy
that brought a single global approach to shape how

we invest, develop, market and deliver our products

We have identified a number of prionty products far
investment, selected for their potential to generate

the most business value and deltver the greatest
learner outcomes at scale These arethe focus of our
commitments Our products are increasingly digital,
offering opportunities to talor and personalise fearning
around individual needs At the same time, many people
have concerns over the security and privacy of data

We have established a governance body within Pearson
to oversee our global approach to these issues

Product development s part of a wider approach to
better understanding product and customer experience
Last year, we introduced the Net Promoter Score {(NPS})
system into Pearson This 1s one of the most recognised
methods of measuring customner loyalty and to date over
150,000 of our customers have shared thetr comments
Corporately, we have also invested in abrand tracker -
seeking the views of learners, parents and educators on
Pearson in our largest markets

One area i which we can do more is to integrate our
approach to managing customer relationships We are
now implementing a single global platform - Salesforce -
for our marketinig, sales and service functions Starting
with our businesses In South Africa and the Higher
Education sales teams in the United States, we wifl be
adding new markets, geographies and capabihties i
2016 Asingle customer view will help improve our
responsiveness to customear needs

As we grow through operating and owning learning
Institutions, we have new responsibilities to safeguard
and protectiearners through providing a safe, age-
appropriate learning environment, whetherina
classroom oronline Our new head of safeguarding has
spearheaded our work in this area through assigning
local bustness leads, establishing common reporting
frameworks, launching a new safeguarding online
learning module and training strategy, as well as piloting
anew approach to incident prevention

Highhghts duning the year include

» Reinforcing our single global approach to performance
assessment introduced in 2014 and refined 1n 2015, this
is designed to help our employees agree expectations
for the year and to motivate peopie to act consistently
with our values and business strategy

» A continuing commitmenit to internal learmng and
development Pearson has a single global platform - Milo
—for learmng and development Employees completed
approximately 200,000 courses retevant to employee
development during 2015 Through Milo, we delivered
aglobal employee induction module called ‘Welcome
to Pearson' and a suite of management modules on
ways of working Employees and managers use Milo to
record their individual goals, monltor their progress,
and assess their performance Pearson also began the
implementation of a single global recruitment process,
which will allow all employees access to job openmgs
around the world and introduces a consistent approach
to internal movement

> Ensunng our employees and the learners we serve are
safe, resilient and productive Our goal is to achieve zero
harm for our employees, contractors and learners,
working to prevent incidents before they occur 102013,
we launched a revised Global Health & Safety Policy
which included 39 minimum performance standards for
implementation at alt of our focations in the warld In
June 2015, Pearson secured the RoSPA Bronze Award for
health and safety performance for our global operations
Ahealth and safety strategic planisn place for 201517
with 11 focus areas, eachwith clear accountability and
measures of performance

>Helping employees understand howwe are doing as a
conpany, iIncluding how world and sector trends might
affect them and thew business We provide
comprehensive and refevant information on our
performance mcluding presentations, small group
discussions, messages and webinars Senior leaders also
use technology to reach all areas of Pearson, through
imitiatives such as virtual town halls The chref executive
hosts a regular call to update allemployees on strategy
and to share new innovations from across the company
In the UK, we have set up an employee engagement
group invoheing members elected bystaff aswellas
trade union represenitatives
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3 Ow relationships continued

Diversity and Inclusion

At Pearson, we value the power of difference Itdrives
innovation, productivity and engagement, helping create a
culture of opporturity, where every employee and learner
isvalued That's whywe're committed to ensuring thatthe
core principles of diversity and inclusion are embedded

across our entire business, 5o that we reflect our
customers and learners, and where our people canbe
themselves and contribute fully to our mission toimprove
lwes through learming

The three pillars of our approach are

Equahty Diversity Inclusion

Champion fair Celebrate what Create asingie

treatment, makes us different, | globalworking

respectandequal | ourindividualand | enwironmentand

opportunity for organisational culture, where all

all our people culture, work our people can
stytes, valuas, bring their full
beliefs, selves towork,
experiences, arevalued for their
backgrounds, differences and
preferences and can contribute fully
behaviours to our campany

purpose

We are committed to attracting, retanung, engaging and
developing the best people We know that creating and
sustalning an inclusive work environment 1s critically
inportant from the boardroom down, regardless of race,
gender, gender identity or reassignment, age, disabikty,
religion or sexual onentation

Highlights of our actwities include
> We have 30% female board members, ahead of the

25% by 2015 target set by Lord Davies for the UK's

350 largest companies

>We rernain an enthusiastic member of the 30% Club which
brings together chairs and CEOs to work togetheron
gender balance We participate in their cross~company
menteoning programme which helps the development of
talented mid-career women

» Raising awareness about the impact of unconscious bias
on key people management deasions To date, over 4,000
employees have completed our interactive training on

the topic

sIn the UK, we aremermnbers of the Stonewall Diversity
Champtons programme and partiapate in the Stonewall
Workplace Equality Index, benchmarking howwe perform
as an LGBT-fnendly employer agamnst over 400 UK
organisations Inthe United States, Pearson again
recorded a perfect score of 100% m the 2015 Corporate
Equality Index run by LGBT advocacy organisation,
the Human Rights Campaign

>We have tnvolved over 3,000 employees in global
employee resources groups Networks include Women
in Learmtng and Leadership (WILL) which currently has
15 chapters, Pearson Spectrum for LGBT cofleagues and
allies, Pearson Parents, Pearson Able for colleagues with
disabilities and accessibility advocates, Pearson Veterans
for military families and veterans, and the Pearson Latino
Network, dedicated to addressing the needs of Hispanic
and Lating employees andlearners

» Disability 1s an important part of ourwider commitment
to diversity andinclusion We work to ensure that
appropriate procedures, traming and supportarein
place for peoplewth disabilities to ensure fair access to
career and progression opporturnties Our Able network
of employeeswill help us improve practice

Women in Pearson (%) Q

Boardof directors  Senworleadership*  Allemployees

33% 2% 34% 59%

2005 1116 2015 2015
30% 2014 35% 2014 58%2014
22% 2013 31%2013 57%2013

* Two reporting lines from chlef executive

All employees (number})

Board of directors  Senior leadership*  Allemployees™**

6 1.0 68 O Bl J

men 1116
3 Q 35 Q 24260 Q

* Two reportmglmes from chief executive

** Derved from HR systerns and ncludes the FT
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4. Our planet

Supply chain and partners

Pearson purchases goods and senvices valued at around
£1 5bn eachyear Thus totalincludes our investmentin
research and developmentof new digital products and
services

Spedfic dauses relating to our comrnitments made

under the UN Global Compact are anintegrat partof our
contracts for key supphers These standardsinclude the
rejection of forced and compulsory fabour, a respect for
diversity, a rinimum age to work on Pearson projects and
comphance with employment faws and regulations

This year, we reviewed our approach to franchise
partners and introduced a common contract template
governing our responsibilities on health and safety,
{abour standards, combatting corruptton, safeguarding
and the envtronment

Communities

In 2015, our community investment was £10 7rm, or 1 5% of
pre-tax profits In 2014, Pearson adopted a new strategy
which established increasing literacy rates worldwide as
our anchor social impact campaign sssue, afongwith a
focus on employee engagement incommunities Read
more on pages 65-66

We are commutted to playing an active role in helping
shape and inform the globat debate around education

and learning policy A major milestone this yearwasthe
faunch of the UN Sustainable Development Goals and,
with others, we successfully advocated for the inclusion of
education as a core goal We also contributed to the debate
duningthe UN General Assemblyin September aswell as
to Project Everyone to spread theword on the goals

We are a board member representing the private sector
onthe Global Partnership for Education, having been
one of the first companies tojon the initiative GPE
brings together over 50 developing countries, donor
governments, international organisattons, the private
sector, teachers, and cvil society/NGO groups to support
developing countries with their education sector plans
through financial assistance and technical expertise
www globafpartnership org

We also believe that the wider private sector hasan
important contribution to make in developing education
and [earning policy We helped establish, and continue
to support, the Global Business Coalition for Education,
helping facus the wider business community onthe
challenges faced by developing countries to promote
learruing http /gbe-education org/about-us

We believe that we have aresponsibility to piay our partin
protecting the natural resources enwhich we all depend

Climate change

Pearson maintained our cimate neutral status for our
directly controlled operations - a commitment we first
achieved in 2009 We do this through carbon reduction,
purchase of renewable energy, renewable energy
generation at our sites and the purchase of carbon
offsets

Highlights of our activities include

» Pearson retamns global certification against the Carbon
Trust Standard We were the second ever organisation
to secure the standard which recognises leadership
In measuring, managing and reducing year-on-year
carbon emissions

> Pearson completed ourwork to build a carbon footprint
analysis teol for our book publishing inthe US and UK
This will help us target the most effective reductions

»We maintained our record of purchasing 100% of the
electricity we use from green power representing over
141,000 MWh of electricity in 2015 During COP21in
Pans, Pearson announced that we had signed up to
RE100, joining over 50 companies helping build the
market for renewable electricity

>We continue to generate renewable electriaity at
five sites and have 2 6 MW of wind and solar assets
instalied

» Pearsoniis certified against 15014001, the environmental
managementstandard in the UK and Australa During
2015, Pearson completed the work to become certified
against 1ISO 50001, the energy management standard

» Qur River Street offices in Hoboken, New Jersey, became
the latest to secure LEED certification, an intemationally
recognised mark of environmental excellence in facilities
management Pearson occuples 840,000 square feet
1n LEED certified buldings induding our offices at
330 Hudson Streetin New York

Our approach to managing other materally important
emissions - such as embedded carbon dioxide in
purchased raw materials as well as bustness travel by
air —are detailed in our 2015 Environment report

This will be published inJune 2016

Targets

25% 100%

reductlon in operational To maintain our record of
emissions by the end of purchasing 100% of the
2015, based ona 2009 base  electricty we use from
year We achieved 30% green power Achieved
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4 Our planet continued

Global Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions data (Metric tonnes of CO,e)

Calendaryear Calandaryear

Calendaryear Calendaryear

Emisslons from 204 2015 Intensity ratios 2014 2015
Combustion of fuel and operation Scopes 1and 2 {tornes CO,e)/

of faciities (GHG Protocol scope 1) 25,027 22,343 sales revenue £ (millions) 266 248
Electricity, heat, steam and cooling Scopes 1and 2 {tonnes CO,e)/+TE 317 270

purchased for own use (GHG
Protoce! scope 2} 104,715 88,381

Total 129,742 110,724

Carbonermussions The scope 1 and scope 2 carbon ernissions are calculated according to Tha Greenhouse Gas Protocal Corporate Accounting
and Reporting Standard (Revised Edition) together with the fatest emission factors from recognised sources induding, but not limited to DEFRA,
the International Energy Agency, and the US Environmental ProtectionAgency No material scope 1 or scope 2 emissions have beenexciuded

framthe reported GHG ermissions

Material use Forests

When purchasing paper for our books, security and
sustainability of supply are very important to us
Paper use remains a priorty environmental issue
and we continue to focus on sustainability sourang
and being more efficientin how we use paper We

* First adopted and publicly disclosed our environmental
sourcing policy for paperin 2003

» Collect and map data onthe forest of ongin, certification
systemns applicable and recycled content for the papers
we purchase

> Talk about cur gurdelines with our key paper suppliers
when we meet and as part of our contract negotiations

> Discuss our approach to paper purchasing with
customers, environmental groups, Investor analysts
and other interested stakeholders

Qur performance: Our social impact rankings

»Signed up to the WWF Save Forests campaign and added
our voice for the inclusion of printed materlal within the
scope of the EU Timber Regulation

»Hold Forest Stewardship Councll (FSC) chain of custody
certification, allowing books to carry the FSClabel for our
businesses in North America and in the UK

> Are members of industry bodies dedicated to responsible
forest management We have been members of the WWF
forest and trade network for over adecade andarea
founder member of PREPS - the publishers database for
responsible environmental paper sourcing -whichwe use
across our global bustness

rinvest in forest-based carbon offsets for any partof our
chimate footpnnt we cannot reduce or avoid through
other means Since 2009, this programme has seen over
1,300 hectares of forest protected in Canada, Colombia,
Costa Rica, the US and the UK

Visit pearson com/environment to {earn more é

One way we assess how we are doing as a responsible business is to maintain our position in key indices

and benchmarks of social responsibility

Index/year 20m 2012 2013 2014 2015

Dow jones Sustainabllity Indices* Global Gold Sitver Bronze Bronze

Sectorleader Class Class Class Class

BITC Corporate Responsibility index Platinum Platinum Platinum Platinum 954**
{retained) {retained)

Inclusionin FTSE4Goad Yes Yes Yes Yes Yas

Yes Yes

Corporate Knights index of the Global 100
mast sustainable corporations

* Forthe lastdecade, we have been Included in the DjSiworld Index
whichincludes only the top 10% of companies in each industry
assessed for sustalnabllity performance

** BITCintroduced a new rating system In 2015

We welcome feedback on this aspect of the
company as we do on any other Please e-mail
amanda gardiner@pearson com with any questions
orideas you may have




5. Impact campaigns
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Pearson has changed its approach to community
mnvestment We believe that we can make more of
adifference to people’sives through focusing on
asmall number of campaigns and 1ssues, where
working together with others can accelerate the
impact of learning

As the world's learning company, Pearson has alot to
offer beyond tradihonal cash donations - we can also
bring the expertise and enthusiasm of cur peapte, as
well as awealth of relevant products and services

This approach also delivers value for the company

By getting involved in social campargns, our employees
can develop new skilis, insight and energy and apply
this to their work at Pearson Our social impact
campaigns also rarse Pearson's profile, differentiate us,
and mcrease awareness of issues that inhibit access

to better learning outcomes

In 2015, our prmary focus has been on developing our
flagshup camipaign, Project Literacy Alongside this, we
have also offered employees a range of new ways to get
involved i worthy causes and their local communities

Project Literacy

literacy remains a huge challenge One inten people
worldwide, or over 750 mullion adults, are literate, two-
thirds of whom are women Thisis a staggerting number
of people

We also know that being literate i1s fundamental
to bullding a world in which everyone has the chance
tolearn

Literacy Is an i1ssue where we believe that Pearson can
make a substantial contribution, buts far from sufficient
onits own This 1s why we launched Project Literacy -
amovement with a shared vision to put literacy within
everyone’s reach, unlocking the potentia of pecple,
commiunities and whole economies To date,

40 organisations have joined the campaign

Project Literacy - headlines

To shape our campaign strategy and focus, we
researched the views of the public, the private sector
and hiteracy charities to understand hoth the current
fandscape and to benchmark awareness of diiteracy
as an urgent 1ssue We found that

a) Ititeracy 1s not viewed as a major global or
national issue However, when iliteracy I1s connected
to social and economic challenges such as poverty,
interestrises

b) The vast maerity of funding is for child hteracy
leaving adult, and in particular women's, iteracy
under-funded

<) More tnvestment 1s needed to support families to
help their children develop literacy skills before
starting school

Based onthese insights, Project Literacy refinedits
focus and strategy as a five-year campaign dedrcated
to building a movement and partnerships thatwill act
together to close the global lteracy gap

Building partnerships Partnerships are crittcal to the
success of Project Literacy Our partnership selection
processis based on a theory of change developed in
collaboration wath the Pearson Efficacy team and

Results for Development (R4D), a US non-profit that
speaalises in monitoring and evaluation for international
development programmes

Engaging employees in socal impact

Our people are our best ambassadors and advocates
One way we support themis to provide opportunities
to give ime and money to invest intheir comimunities
We use Project Literacy as a lever, butwe also support
our employees to make animpact oncauses they care
about through opportunities to volunteer, donate and
tosharetheir soclalimpact stories Over the course of
2015, 30% of employees participated In social impact
activities at Pearson

969m

peopie reached through
media, soclal reach and

IMAGE events

REMOVED 11,460

people have sought
volunteering opportunities
with our Project Literacy
partners

Celebnties and mfluencers

supporting the campalgn
IMAGE Richard Branson, Chelsea
REMOVED Chiriton and Piers Morgan

Events marked by
449,477 Project Literacy”
views of Project Literacy ;Vorr:j ?00":333". ’;-"jr!r:gia
articles pubbshed by GOOD Day' Intematmnal LC;:U
Magazine, asocial purpose D:ﬁ' JNE(;:EW‘::: iteracy
media company international Human Rights

Day, and Giving Tuesday
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The three pillars of our theory of change that guide our partnership investment deaisions are

Advancmg
best practice

We partner with organisations
implementing proven iteracy
interventions to help them grow
Why? Because there are some
things that we already know work
toimprove iteracy, and we need
more of them

'
National Literacy Trust{NLT}

Innovating
new solutions

We partner with organisations
to design, build and ngorously
test new approaches to tackhing
tiiteracy Why? Because new
solutions will be needed to
reach the most marginalised
and achueve scale

w
Worldreader

Rawsing awareness and
mobihsing action

We are bullding a network to
advocate collectively for greater
investment in and attenton to
literacy Why? Because the extent of
the problem and its potentialimpact
15 huge, we'll need everyone united
toclose the literacy gap

v
Unsigned petition

ProjectLiteracy and NLT are
partnering together to rephcate Early
Words Together, atargeted Eteracy
peer education programrme for
families with chidren aged 2to 5,

n 30 schools across the London
metropolitan area As an Integral
component of the programme,
Pearson and commurity volunteers
are recruited and tralned to help
parentsimprove their home learning
erwvironment and adopt behawours
that support iteracy using evidence-
based approaches and materials

Project Literacy and Worldreader are
partnering together on a mobile
technology pilot projectin India~
Mobile Reading to Chitdren-to
empower parents to talk more

and read mare to therr chudren,
specifically through the use of mobile
devices With the Warldreader mobile
app, which is available on feature
phones and smartphones, we will

be providing arich bank of locally
relevant content at low cost for
200,000 low-income parentsin
Delhlwho have children aged 6 and
younger Additionat partners nclude
ftesults for Development, Center for
Knowledge Societles, Soclety for All
flound Development, Katha, and
Heatth and Family Planning
Organization

Giving

In September 2015, 16 Project
Literacy partners joined forces to
sign an open fetter to world leaders
meeting at the United Nations
General Assembly (UNGA), calling
onthemto make |iteracy a key part
of the sustainable development
agenda The letter was published

in The New York Times and The
Guardian This letter, combined with
the faunch of our global‘Unsigned
Patiton’, reached 410 million people
through social media The petition
1s our major call to action for 2015
and 2016, serwang as a striking and
visual reminder of the global scale
of illiteracy and the 750 million
peopleworldwide who cannot sign
for themselves

Volunteering

We now have formal! volunteering programmes in place
inthe US and the UK with Project Literacy partners
including Reading Partners, jJumpstart and the National
Literacy Trust In 2015, our employees volunteered
over 10,000 hours with 40% of those linked to iteracy
For one programme — Read for the Record run by
Jumpstart - our employees contributed approximately
1,000 volunteering hours and helped 7,000 chvidren

sharing

Pearson employees helped inspire others by
contributing more than 1,400 stories about fiteracy
volunteening or donating, either on social media or
onh our tnternal community engagement hub

Pearson has teamed up with Kwa, the world's largest
micro-lending platform, to provide micro-loans to people
around the world who are locked out of traditiona!
banking systems To date, employees have made maore
than $600,000 of loans to Kiva entrepreneurs, making
Pearson third globally for total amount loaned by a
business onKiva

In September, we launched a matching gifts campaign
to mark the faunch of the Globa! Goals and Project
Literacy presence at UNGA Throughoutthe entire
month, employees across Pearsonwho gave to chanties
receved a 4 1 match from Pearson The campaign raised
over $430,000 Over the course of the year, employees
supported more than 1,100 charities



6. Social innovation
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Lack of access to quality education for low-income and
marginalised families 1s a global challenge that impacts
both developing and developed economtes

Central to our approach is a belief that commercial
solutions can accelerate access to guality, affordable
education, whtle presenting new business opporturuties
for Pearson Uncovering. developing and scaling
salutions, especiaily in places where education
standards fatl well behind the best inthe world, can
reguire us to challenge the way we think about our
business We invest in new technology as well as test
innovative partnerships for our products to reach

these markets

IMAGE REMOVED

Social Innovation in practice - the Pearsen
Affordable Learring Fund

The Fund launched in 2012 and has a maximum cormmitment
level of $65min capital Its ambition s to reach millions of
students frorm low tncome famifles by 2020, allowing access
to high quahity affordable education Integratto its approach
Is to set improvements in learning outcomes and market-
based returns as conditions of continued investment The
Fund hasinvested n nnovative education start-ups in Scuth
Africa, Nigeria, Ghana, India and the Philippmes The Fund
goes far beyond financial backing in that it contributes to
good governance, and operational supportto education
entrepreneurs The Fund enables nnovation from which
both Pearson and governments can fearn, the cost per
student in the schools in the fund portfoho is on paror
lower than the per pupil costin the public sector

One example 1s Every Child Learning - sur partnership
with Save the Children Qursharedwsionstowork
together to find sustainable ways for the education
system in jordan to copewith the influx of displaced
Syrianrefugee children We have donated £500,000
to fund the establishment of two Save the Children
education centres i Amman, which are supporting
Syran refugees and host community children (5to 13
years old) ta get a quality education We have made

a further £1m commitment to work jountly with Save
the Childrento scope, research, design.and develop
new education sclutions That means gotng beyond
traditional philanthropy to leverage the full potential
of Pearson’s global operaticns, networks and people

IMAGE REMOVED

Every Child Learning

Providing education for children in conflict and emergency
sefiings presents many unique challenges Asthe conflictin
Syria enters its sieth year, over two mithon Syrian children are
no fongerin schocl and even more are vulnerable to the risks
of child labour, early marriage and recrutrment mto milia
groups To address this critical issue we have jomed forces
with the international organisation Save the Children to
launch Every Child Learning The three-year partnership
worth £1 Smwallincrease educational opportunities for
Syrian refugees and hostcommunities, and innovate new
solutiens to help improve the delivery of education in
emergency and conflict-affected settings
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Governance overview

From Vivienne Cox, Senior independent director

Vivienne Cox
Senior independent director

IMAGE REMOVED

During times of change, good
governance is paramount. As a
board we organise our work around
four major themes where we helieve
we can add value: governance,
strategy, performance and people.

In this Governance section

teadership & effectiveness p72-81Q
Accountability pa2-39 @
Engagement p90-93
Remuneration p94-117°
Additional disclosures p118-123Q

Dear shareholders

The past year has seen some notable changes at
Pearson, In terms of both personnel and portfolto,
and as senior independent director, the board feltit
was appropriate for me to set out these changes for
you In greater detait

After tenyears at Pearson, during which our business
and the wider economy tn which we operate have
transformed markedly, Glen Moreno stepped down as
chairman at the end of 2015 Whilstthe last few months
of 2015 were challenging for Pearson, Glen's legacy to the
company can be seen in the well balanced and forward-
thinking board of directors he has assembled whichis
workmg hard tosteer Pearson backto growth Having
worked alongside Glen for the past four yearson the
board, and on behalf of Pearson as awhole, | would like
to thank hum for his deep commitment to Pearson and
its mission and wish him the very best for the future

Glen's successor as Pearson chawrman, Sidney Taurel,
officially took up his postin january 2016 and we are
confident that his expenence and decication will help
guide Pearson towards successful delivery of its key
prionties Read more about Chairman succession

on p79°

Governance principles

During times of change, good governance is paramount.
The board was dosely irwolved with the strategic
deasions to sell Pearson’s interests in the Financal
Tines, The Economist and PowerSchool, providing mput
and challenge as matters progressed We will continue
to do sa throughout the current phase of change

Our role and activities As a board we organise our work
around four major themes where we believe we can add
value governance,strategy, performance and people
Qur board calendar and agenda provide ample time

to focus on these themes and we have set out some
examples of the business considered by the board, as
well as the governance practices to which we adhere, on
the pages that follow Learn more about Board meetings
and activities en p7s ©

UK Corporate Governance Code This year, for the first
time, we are reporting against the 2014 edition of the
UK Corporate Governance Code (the Code) The board
beheves that during 2015 the company was i full
comphiance with all relevant provisions of the Code
Adetailed account of the provisions of the Code can be
found onthe FRC's website at www frc org uk and we
encourage readers to view our compliance schedule on
the company website at www pearson com/governance
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Board and management

Engagement See full section on p90-93 @)

The Pearson board consists of sentor executive
management alongside a strong team of non-executive
directors drawn from successful international
businesses and education tnstitutions with experience
of corporate strategy, education, emerging markets,
technology and consumer marketing

Board changes Asis best practice, we continually

assess and refresh the board to ensure we maintain

an appropniate balance and diversity of skills and
experience In April 2015 we also bid fareweli to David
Arculus and Ken Hydon, who each served on the board
for nine years, as remuneration and audit committee
chairmen respectively In addition to our new chairman,
we have also welcomed two other directors to our board
stnce our lastreport to shareholders Coram Wilhams -
along-tme Pearson and Penguin Random House
colleague - joined the board on 1 August 2015, assuming
the role of chief financial officer following Robin
Freestone's departure, and in January 2016, Lincoln
Wallen joined the board as a non-executive director
bringing with him a weaith of digitai and technology
experience We welcome Coram and Lincolnto the
board, where they are already making valuable
contrtbutions to our governance and deliberations
Learn more about our Board of directors on p72-73 °

Board and executlve structure and balance Our board
consists primarily of non-executive directors, who

bring a strong independent viewpoint, complementing
the executive perspectives of John Fallon and Coram
Williams In addition, we invite members of the Pearson
executive to attend a number of the board's sessions to
bring insights and thoughts frem across the business,
such as atthe board's overseas strategy sessions in Palo
Alto, Caltfornia and New Dethy, India Learn more about
the Overseas strategy sessions on p93 O

Accountability Seefull sectton on p82-89 ©

Akey element of the board and audit committee’s work
each year 1s consideratton of Pearson's risk appetite and
the review of our principal risks The 2014 edition of the
Code introduced a requirement for the board to assess
the company’s prospects taking into account the current
position and principal rnsks, and to make a viability
staternent on this basis The audit committee supporied
the board in this process by examining the analysis

and assumptions underfying the viability statement,
considering the required inputs and evaluating the
proposed disclosures resulting from the process

Learn more about Risk management on p38-40

and read the Viability statement on p118 ©

Engagementwith shareholders and society as awhole 15
key to Pearsony's misston to help people make progress
1n therr lives through access to better learning We have
announced important partnerships during the pastyear,
such as Project Literacy and our parthership with Save
the Children, and the launch of the UN's Sustainable
Development Goals has presented an opportunity for
Pearson to become engaged with a wide sectron of
stakeholders Asaresult, our reputation & responsibihity
committee continues to expand its areas of focus, with
increased sight of Pearson's socialimpact imibatives,
soclal and traditional med:a engagement activity, and
employee engagement matters We also welcomed a
number of shareholders to our Annual General Meeting
{AGM) which, as always, was a valuable opportunity

for our board and senior management to respond to
shareholders'views and gquestions

Remuneration Seefull section on p94-117 [+ ]

This year's directors’ remuneration report refers to
further incremental changes we have made In line

with policy i 2015 to better align executive director
compensation with the mterests of our shareholders
and how this policy was operated n 2015 To putour
reportinto context, we have included a summary of the
approved directors' remuneration policy report from
2013 which 1s not subject to a vote Qur remuneration
policy was reviewed In 2013 to alignwith the company's
strategy and orgarusation and was approved by
shareholders at the 2014 AGM We continue to operate
executive remuneration in ine with the approved pohicy
and at presentdo not anticipate seeking shareholder
approval for our policy again until required todo so at
the 2017 AGM

Conclusion

I hope this report clearly sets out how your company is
run, and how we afign governance and our board agenda
with the strategic direction of Pearson We always
welcome questions or comments from shareholders,
either via our website (www pearson com) or in person
at our Annual General Meeting

IMAGE REMOVED

Vivienne Cox
Senior independent director
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Board of directors

Chairman

Executive directors

e®

IMAGE REMOVED

Stdney Taurel Chawrman
aged 67, appointed 1 January 2016

IMAGE REMOVED

John Fallon Chief executive
aged 53, appointed 3 October 2072

IMAGE REMOVED

Coram Williams Chief finanaal officer
aged 42, appotnted 1 August 2015

Sidney has over 40 years of experience in
business and finance, and s currently a board
director and chairman of the Compensation
Committee atiBM Corporation Hessalsoa
director at McGraw Hill Financial Inc, a role
from which he will step down during 2018
Sidney is senlor advisor at glebal investment
bank Moelis & Co and an advssory board
member at pharmaceutical firms Takeda
Pharmaceutical and Alrmrall He was chief
executive officer of global pharmateutical
firm Eli Lillyand Company from 1958 until
2008, charman of the bustness from 1999
until 2008, and has been chairman emeritus
since 2009 Sidney has recewved three US
presidential appointments to the Homeland
Secunty Advisory Councll the President's
Export Councitand the Adwisory Commitiee
for Trade Policy and Negotations, andss an
officer of the French Legion of Honaour

Key to committees

Johnbecame Pearson's chiefexecutive on

1 january 2013 Since 2008 he had been
responsible for the company's education
businesses outside North America and
amember of the Pearsonmanagement
committee Hejeined Pearsen in 1997

as director of communications and was
appointed president of Pearson Inc , 1 2000
in 2003, he was appointed CEQ of Pearsan’s
educaticnal publishing businesses for Eurape,
Middre East and Africa Priortojoining
Pearson, John was director of corporate affairs
at Powergen plc, and was also a member

of the company’s executlve committee
Eartler In his career, john held senior public
policyand cormmunications retes in Wi local
government Heis an adwisory board member
of the Giobal Business Coalitlon for Educaticn
and amernber of the Councli ¢fthe Unlversity
of Hult

Non-executive directors

Coram jained Pearsonin 2003 and has helda
nunber of senior positions including finance
and operatlons director for Pearson's English
Language Teaching business inEurope,
Middle East & Africa, interim president of
Pearson Education italla and head of financial
planning and analysis for Pearson In2008
Corambecame CFQ of The Penguin Group
and was latterly appointed CFQ of Penguin
RandosmHouse in 2013 Coramwas trained at
Arthur Andersen, and subsequently worked
in both the auditing and consulting practices
ofthefirm

© O

Audit Committee
Committee  Chalr

L] (2]
Nomination Remuneration
Committee  Committee
-]

Reputation &

Responsibility

=11

IMAGE REMOVED

Linda Lonmer Non-executive director
aged 63, appointed 1 jufy 2013

o1

IMAGE REMOVED

Harish Manwant Non-executive directar
aged 62, appointed 1 October 2013

unda has a deep background in education
strategy. administration and public affars
She fssenfor counsellor to the presidentand
provostof Yale University and untli recently
served as vice president for Globai & Strateglc
Inltiatives at Yale, where her dutles included
oversight of Yale's Office of International
Affairs and Office of Digital Dissemination
Overa30 year career In igher education,
she hasbeen responsibie for many of

Yale's administrative services Including

the univers:ty’s public communications,
alumnirelations and Office of Sustainabshity
Previousty, Linda served as president of
Randoiph-tacon Woman's College in Virgimia
and was chair of the board of the Association
of American Colieges and Universitles She
also served on the boards of severaf public
companies including as presiding director

of the McGraw-Hill Companies

Harish hasan extensive background in
emerging markets and senlor experience

in asuccessful global organsation He

was previausly chief operating officer of
consumer products company Unltever, having
Jomed the company in 1976 asa marketing
management trainee in India, and held
sepior managermentroles around the world,
including North Amernica, Latin America,
Europe, Africa and Asia He is non-executive
chairman of Hindustan Unilever Limited in
India, and serves on the boards of Whirlpoa!
Corporation, Qualcomnm Inc and Nielsen
Holdings Heis alsoonthe board ofthe
indhan School of Business and the Econormic
Development Board (EDB) of Singapare, and
Is global executive adwvisor at Blackstone
Private Equrty
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Non-executive directors

=1

IMAGE REMOVED

Ehzabeth Corley, CBE
Non-executlve director
aged 59, appointed 1 May 2014

060@

IMAGE REMOVED

Vivienne Cox, CBE
Senmor independent director
aged 56, appointed 1 jJanuary 2012

Elizabeth s non executwe vice chair

of Allanz Global Investors where she

was chzef executive officer from 2005 to

2016 She was previously at Merrill Lynch
Investment Managers {formerly Mercury
Asset Management) and Coopers & Lybrand
Elizaheth is acting chair of the FICC Markets
Standards Board a member of the ESMA
stakeholder group and an advisory counal
member of TheCltylJK Sheisanon-
executive director of BAE Systems plc and

the Financial Reporting Councll In addition,
she s amember of FEAM's management
committee, the CFA Future of Finance Coungtl,
the Supervisory Board of Euler SA, a council
member of the City of London IRSGand a
mnember of the Committee of 200 Shelsa
fellow of the CFA and the Royal Soclety of Arts
andis also a crime fictton author

Non-executive directors

Vivienne has wide experience in energy,
natural resources and business innovation
shewerked for BP plc for 28 years, InBritain
and Contlnental Europe In postsincluding
executive vice president and chief executive
of BP's gas, power and renewables business
and its alternative energy unit. She ls non-
executive director of Stena International
and chalrman of the supervisory board of
vallourec which supphes tubular systems
for the energy Industry Shels alsolead
Independent director atthe LK Department
for International Development Vivienne was
appointed Commander of the Order of the
British Empire (CBE} In the 2016 New Year
Honours for services to the UK Ecanofmy
and Sustainabliity

008

IMAGE REMOVED

Josh Lewis Mon executive director
aged 53, appointed 1 March 2011

Joshrs experience spans finance, education
and the development of digltal enterprises
He is the founder of Salmon River Capital
LLC, aNew York-based private equity/
venture capitat firmfocused on technology-
enabled businessesin educatlon, financial
services and othersectors Overa 25-year
careerin active, principal investing, he has
been invohved iny 4 broad range of successful
companles, Including several ploneering
enterprises in the education sector In
addltion, he has long been active Inthe non-
profit education sector with asseciations
including New Leaders, New Classroommns,
and the Bill & Mefinda Gates Foundation

He 15 also 2 non-executive director of several
enterprises in the fin-tech/data, education
and cther sectors

=115

IMAGE REMOVED

Tim Score Non-executive director
aged 55, appointed 1 January 2015
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IMAGE REMOVED

Lincoin Wallen Non-executive director
aged 55, appointed 1 January 2016

Tim has extensive experience of the
technology sector in both developed and
emerging markets, having served aschlef
financial officer of ARM Holdings pic, the
world's leading semliconductor iP company
aposition he heldfor 13 years Helsan
experienced non-executive director and
currently sits on the boards of The British
Land Company plc and HM Treasury He
served onthe board of Mational Express
Group plc from 2005 to 2014, including time as
interim chairman and sixyears 25 the senior
Independentdirector Earfier In his career Tim
held senior finance roles with Rebus Group,
willlam Baird, BTR pic and others

Lincein is chueftechnology officer for
DreamWorks Animation, the global famlly
entertainment company, a position he has
held since 2012 having jomned the company
as head of research and developmentin
2008 Priorto this, Lincoln served as chief
technalogy officer for the mobile business
of Electronic Arts, Inc , aleading interactive
entertainment software company Hehas
held serwor positions at Criterion Software,
MathEngine plcandis a non-executlve
director of the Smith fnstitute for Industrial
Mathematics & System Engineering Lincoln
is also an advisory board member of Hewlett
Packard Enterprise and amember of the
STEM Advisory Committee of the National
Acaderny foundation Lincolnwas formerly
alecturer and reader in computation at the
Unwersity of Oxford

Pearson board
members bring a wide
range ol experience,
skills and backgrounds
which complement

our strategy.

Experience of chairman and
non-executive directors

Digital/technology

experience IMAGE

6 3% REMOVED

Emerging market

experence IMAGE

3 8% REMOVED

Education/learning

sector experience IMAGE

6 3% REMOVED
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Board governance and activities

Board of directors

Composition of the board The board currentiy consists
of the chairman, Sidney Taurel, two executive directors
inctuding the chief executive, john Fallon, and seven
Independent non-executive directors

Chairman and chief executive There s a defined split
of responsibtlities between the chairman and the chief
executive Theroles and responsibilities of the chairman
and chief executive are clearly defined, set outmwriting
and reviewed and agreed by the board annually

Chairman’s significant commitments There were no
changes to the chairman’s significant commitments
between his appointment to the Pearson board on
1January 2016 and the date of this report Mr Taurel
has announced that he will step down from the board
of McGraw Hill Financal, Inc atits 2016 annual
shareholders' meeting

Independence of chairman Sidney Taurel was
considered to be independent upon his appomntment
ascharrmanon January 2016

Independence of directors All of the non-executive
directors who served during 2015 were considered by
the board to be ndependent for the purposes of the
Code Lincoln Wallen was considered to be independent
upon his appointmeant to the board on § January 2016
The hoard reviews the independence of each of the
non-executive directars annually This includes
reviewing their external appointments and any potent:al
conflicts of interest as weil as assessing their indmdual
crcumstances inorder to ensure thatthereare no
relationships or matters ikely to affect thefr character
orjudgement In addition to this review, each of the
non-executive directors is asked annualiy to complete
anindependence questionnaire to satisfy requirements
ansing from Pearson's US bsting

Keyroles
Role Name Responsibiity
Chairman Sidney Taurel The chairman s pnmarily responsible for the leadership of the board and ensuning Its

effectiveness The charman sets the board's agenda and promotes open, constructive
debate of all agenda items and effective deasion-making He also ensures that the views
of shareholders are communicated to the board

Chiefexecutive John Fallon

The chigfexecutive 1s responsible for the operational management of the business and for

the development and implementation of the company’s strategy as agreed by the board
and management He ts responsible for developing operational proposals and policies for
approval by the board, and promotes Pearson's culture and standards

Senior Vivienne Cox The senior iIndependent director's role includes meeting regularly with the chairman and
independent chief exacutive to discuss specificissues, as welt as being avallable to shareholders generally
director should they have concerns that have not been addressed through the normal channels
Committee Tim Score, Elizabeth  The committee chairmen are responsible for leading the board committees and ensuring
chairmen Corley, Vivienne Cox  thelr effectiveness They setthe committees' agendas, in consultation with the company’s
and Sidney Taurel management, and report to the board on committee proceedings
Company Stephen jones The compary secretary acts as secretary to the board and its committees, ensunng
secretary compliance with beard procedures and advising on governance matters He s responsible,

under the directlon of the chairman, for ensuring the board recerves accurate, timely and
clear nformation The campany secretary orgarnises newdirectorinductions and ongolng

directer tralning

Gender split of board

Length of tenure of non-executive directors

o*Men 7

&Women 3

Figures as a4 March 2016

IMAGE
REMOQVED

® Under 3years 5
®3toGyears 2
Figures as at 4 March 2016
IMAGE
REMOVED
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Conflicts of iInterest Under the Companies Act 2006

{the Act), directors have a statutory duty to avoid
conflicts of interest with the company The company's
articles of association (Articles) aliow the directors to
authorise conflicts of interest The company has
established a procedure to identify actual and potential
conflicts of interest, including all directorships or other
appointments to, or relationships with, companies which
are not part of the Pearson group and which could give
rise to actual or patential conflicts of interest Once
notified to the chairman or company secretary, such
potential conflicts are considered for authonsation by
the board at its next scheduled meeting The relevant
director cannot vote on an authorisation resolution, or
be counted n the quarum, in relation to the resolution
relating to hisfher conflict or potential conflict The board
reviews any autherisations granted on an annual basis

Board meeting focus during the year 2015

Board meetings

The board held stx scheduled meetings in 2015, with
discussions and debates focused on the key strategic
1ssues facing the company Majoritems covered by the
board in 2015 are showninthe table below in addition
to the six formal meetings, the board met by telephone
injanuary 2015 to consider the January trading update
to be issued to the market, and by telephone in October
2015 to conslder the market's reaction to Pearson's
Qctober trading update and to begin to plan the
proposed strategic course of action

The role and business of the board

The board is deeply engaged in developtng and
measuring the company’s long-term strategy,
performance and value We believethatitaddsa
valuable and diverse set of external perspectives and
that robust, open debate about significant business
issues brings an additional discipline to major decisions

Toplc Activity

Annual review of authorised conflicts of intergst

Focuson forthcoming AGMand review of

Governance

|

chairman and chief executve

Review of division of responsibilities between

shareholder |ssues

Shareholder activism and defence plan

Appointment of company secretary

Treasury policy approval

Update on Pearson System of Courses (P5oC)
including hands-on demenstration of courseware

South African Black Economitc Empowerment
{BEE} overview

Supply chaln eutseurcing arrangements

Risk appetite

Approval of committee terms of reference

Enterprise risk management review Read more
onp3s

Approval of schedule of authority limits

Sira

Operating and strategic plan updates

Brand strategy Read more on p7

Regular product demonstrations

Considaration of propesed corporate transactions
incfuding sales of PowerSchoot the Financial Times
and The Economist

Offsite strategy meeting in Califorma focusing on
digltal disruption In education

QOffsite strategy meeting in New Delhi focusing on
Brazl, China, indla and South Africa Read more
onps2 @

Performance

2014 preliminary results and annual report and
accounts

Review of investor retations strategy and share
price performance

Interim results and trading updates

Balance sheetstrategy

Triennial pensionvaluation

Final and interim dividend proposals

Monthly management reports

Draft 2016 operaung plan and three-year financials

People

ont

Overviewof The Summit’ - Pearson's senior
leadership conference

Ristng Stars breakfast at overseas strategy meetings

indiakey talent andleadership team dinner at
New Dethl strategy meeting
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Board governance and activitics continued

A schedule of formal matters reserved for the board's
decision and approval 15 available on our website, at
WWW pearson com/governance

The board receives timely, regular and necessary
finanaal, management and other information to fulfitits
duties Comprehensive board papers are circulated to
the board and committee members at least one weekin
advance of each meeting and the board receives regular
reports fram the chief executive In addition to meeting
papers, a hbrary of current and historic corporate
infermation 1s made available to directors electronically
to support the board’s decision-making process
Cirectors can obtain independent professional advice,
atthe company’s expense, in the performance of thetr
duties as directors All directors have access tothe advice
and services of the company secretary

Non-executive directors meet with local senlor
management every time board meetings are held at the
locations of operating companies, such as during the
board's 2015 visits to Palo Alto, Califorrua and New Delhi,
India This allows the non-executive directors to share
their experience and expertise with senior managers as
weli as allowing them to better understand the abtitttes
and motivations of senior management, which in turn
will help therm assess the company's prospects and plans
for successton

Standing committee

A standing committee of the board was established

to approve certain ordinary course of business items
such as banking matters, guarantees, intra-group
transactions and to make routine approvals relating to
employee share pians

The committee has written terms of reference, reviewed
and approved eachyear, which clearly set outits
authonty and duhes These can be found on the
company website at www pearson com/governance

Culture and values of the board

As evidenced dunng its externally faclitated evaluation
tn 2014, as awhole and at an individual level, the board
feels wholly commutted to Pearson's values and mission
The reputation & responsibility committee’s remit
includes oversight of Pearson's values and culture,

and it has continued to monitor work in these areas
throughout the year

Board attendance

The following table sets out the attendance of the
company's directors at scheduled board meetings
dunng 2015

8oard
meetings
attended
Chairman
Glen Morena 6/6
Executive directors
John Fallon 6/6
Robin Freestcne (note 1} 474
Coram Williams (note 2) 272
Non-executive directors
Dawvid Arculus (note 3) 272
Ehzabeth Corley 6/6
Vivienne Cox 6/6
Ken Hydon (note 4} 172
Josh Lews 6/6
Linda Lorimer 6/6
Harish Manwani 6/6
Tim Scare 6/6

Note1 Stood down on 1 August 2015
Nate 2, Appointed on 1 August 2015

Note3 Stood down on 24 April 2015

Noted Stood down on 24 April 2015. Unable to attend one meeting due in
personat reasons.

Succession planning

The board considers oversight of succession planning -
nctonly at board and executive management level but
for alt key posttions throughout the business - as one of
its prime responsibilities At board level, the primary
focus during the year was to identify suitable candidates
for the role of chairman

The company has formal contingency plansin place for
temporary absence of the chief executive for health or
other reasons The matter of chief executive succession
1s astanding ttem for discussion and review by the
chairman and chief executive annually Succession
planning for the board and chair 1s considered annually,
and as part of the recent restructuring programme,
there has been a review of key positions at executive
management fevel
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Board evaluation

As reported last year, towards the end of 2014, an
externally facilitated board effectiveness review was
conducted by external evaluater, JCA Group tn addition
to faciitating this review, JCA Group used the information
and insight they had gieaned from the individual
members of the board to help them form abrief and an
overview of the characteristics that Pearson would be
{ooking for in a new chairman JCA then used this insight
to inform the chairman search whnch took place during
2015, and resulted in the eventual appointment of Sidney
Taurel as Pearson chalrman See p79 for a full review of
chairman succession at Pearson @

The board evaluation for 20715 was conducted onan
internal basis With the forthcoming departure of

Glen Moreno, the armwval of a new chairman, together
with the appointment of a new CFO and the Imminent
appointment of a new company secretary, it was agreed
that the 2015 review should foecus mainly on the support
and information that the board and commuttees receive
in order to ensure that the existing processes are
sufficient and fit for purpose To thatend, Stephen jones,
Pearson's company secretary, interviewed each of the
non-executive directors to understand their thinking

on a number of board and committee-related support
activittes

Process and recommendations

The review focused on the scheduling, arrangements
andiogistics for all board and committee meetings, the
quality and usefulness of the regular information flow
to the board and committees, including the use of
electronic board papers, regular CEQ and CFO updates
and other infarmation, board induction and training,
the payment of non-executives’ fees and expenses

and any other items or suggestions for improvements
The exercise proved very useful as an oppertunity to
take stock of current practice, to test whether the board
views that as appropriate, and to think about those areas
where improvements could be made As a result of these
discussions, we are re-thinking the schedute of board
and committee meetings during the course of the year,
tncluding the topics to be considered at those meetings
and their venues In addition, we are refining some of
the information that the board receives in order that the
non-executives be able to be more effective We heard
that more could be done by management to ‘curate’
some of the information that 1s sent to non-executives
and to make clear to them what 15 key information

and what s usefulto know We are also refining the
regular CEO and CFO updates to the board, in order

to ensure they provide exactly the information that the

board requires to help it track progress against a number
of key milestones This i1san ongoing process, and we will
continue to moniter the effectiveness of our internal
processes and to compare what we do against others

Personal objectives

In addition to the evaluation of the board as awhole,
executives are also evaluated eachyear ontheir
performance against personal objectives under the
company’s annual incentive plan

The non-executive directors, fed bythe senior
independent director, also conduct a review of the
chairman’s performance

Commuttee evaluation

in addition to the review of the hoard, committees and
indrvidual directors described above, the audit and
remuneration committees each undertook a further
evaluation process to review their performance and
effectiveness, as they do each year

The process invoives distribution of questionnaires to
audit and remuneration committee members, as well as
key stakeholders in each committee, seeking views on
matters including committee roles and responsibiliies,
quakty and timeliness of meeting materials, opporturity
for discussion and debate, dialogue with management
and access to independent advice Responses are then
evaluated and presented to the respective committee at
ascheduled meeting, with key themes bemng drawn cut
for discussion

Directors’ traiming and induction

Directors recetve a significant bespoke induction
programme and a range ofinformation about Pearson
whenthey Join the board This includes background
information on Pearson and detalls of board procedures,
drectors’ responsibilites and various governance-
refated issues, ncluding procedures for dealing in
Pearson shares and their legal obligations as directors
The induction also typically ncludes a series of meetings
with members of the board, the Pearson executive and
senlor management, presentations regarding the
business from senior executives and a bnefingon
Pearson's investor refations programme Theinduction
programme for Lincoln Wallen 1s ongoing, tailored to

hs speaific areas of focus, such as ime with Pearson’s
technology leaders, and relevant to the board
comrmittees he has joined Read about the induction
programme for Pearson's new chairman, Sidney Taurel

onp7e @
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Board governance and activities continued

All directors receive training in the form of presentattons
about the company's operations, through board
meetings held at operational locations and by
encouraging the directors to wisit local facilities and
management as and when thewr schedule allows,
including if they are travelling to a country orregion on
non-Pearson business The company secretary and
general counsel, in conjunction with Pearson's advisers,
monitor legal and governance developments and update
the board on such matters as agreed with the chairman
Directors can also make use of external courses

Directors’ indemnities

A qualifying third party indemnity (QTPl), as permitted
by the Articles and sections 232 and 234 of the Act, has
been granted by the company to each of its directors
Under the provisions of the QTPI the company
undertakes to indermmify each director against liabthity
to third parties {excluding cnimenal and regulatory
penalties) and to pay directors’ costs asincurred,
provided that they are reimbursed to the company
ifthe director Is found guilty, the court refuses to

grant the rehef sought or, in an action brought by the

More committee iInformation

Auditcommittee p82°
Norn:nation committee p0
Remuneration committee p94Q
Reputation & responsibillty committee pao
Standing commilttee 76

The committees focus ontheir own areas of expertise,
enabling the board meetings to focus on governance,
strategy, performance and people, thereby making the
best use of the board's time together as a whole The
commttee chairmen reportto the full board at each
meeting Immediately following their sesstons, ensuring
agood comrmunication flow whilst retaining the ability to
escalate items to the full board's agenda if appropriate

Board committee attendance

The foltowing table shows attendance by directors
atcommittee meetings throughout 2015

Reputation &
Audit Remuneration Nomination responsibility

company, jJudgment!s given agamst the director Glen Moreno - 4/4 6/6 -
The indemnity has beenin force for the finandal year David Arculus

ended 31 Decernber 2015 and is currently in force (note 1) 212 2/2 2/2 -
The company has purchased and maintains directors’ HizabethCorley - 414 6/6 -
and officers’ insurance cover against certain legal Vivienne Cox 414 4/4 6/6 3/3
habilities and costs for claims in connection with any Ken Hydon

actor omussion by such directors and officers inthe {note 2) 22 12 12 -
execution of their duties Josh Lewns _ 4 6/6 _
Board committees Undalorimer  4/4 - 6/6 33
The board has established four formal committees HarishManwani - - 6/6 3/3
audit, norminaticn, remuneratron, and reputation & Tim Score

responsibility The chairmen and members of these {note 3) 4/4 1171 6/6 -

committees are appointed by the board on the
recommendation {where appropnate) of the nomination
committee and in consultaton with each relevant
commuttee charrman Inaddition to these formal board
committees, the standing committee also operates

with board level input

Note 1 Stood down on 24 April 2015

Note 2. Stood down on 24 Apnl 2015. Unable to attend one remuneration commuttee
and one nomination committee T gdustop reasons

Note3 Joined remuneration comimittee on 2 Detober 2015




Chairman’s succession
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Commencing the search

Foflowing Glen Moreno's anncuncement at the 2015
AGM that he was planning to step down as chairman by
the end of the year, Pearson commenced i1ts search for
asuitable successor The selection process was led by
Vivienne Cox, our senior independent director, and an
external search firm, JCA Group, was engaged to assist
and adwise Pearson on the search and appointment
process

Taking the finchngs from the 2014 board effectiveness
review as a starting point, and in consultation with the
norrenation committee and the chief executive, JCA
designed a specification for the desired candidate which
included the following key attributes

»Highly experienced leader of large global businesses,
wdeally with a proven track record as a chairman

»Truly global player in outlook, approach and
understanding with deep knowledge of and expenence
In Pearson's key geographic markets

» Genuine interest in embracing digital technology to
benefit the customer and the company

In agreeing the specfication, the board emphasised the
inportance of finding someone who was excited by and
demonstrated empathy with Pearson's mission, values,
goals and peopie

Choosing a successor

Candidate profiles were prepared by JCA for
consideration by Ms Cox, who then consulted the
nemination commuttee and chief executive to agree a
shartlist of strong candidates She held iniial meetings
with the shortlisted candidates, and recommended a
number of them to progress through to the next stage,
where they met with the chief executive, following
which a search sub-committee was formed, comprising
Linda Lorimer and Tim Score, who each metwith the
strongest candidates

Ms Cox reported regularly to the nomination committee
throughout the search and interview stages, and
following consideration of interview feedback itbecame
clear to the hoard and the nomination committee that
Sidney Taurel was the most suitable candidate to
succeed Glen Moreno as charman Agreement

having been reached, the nomination commuttee
recommended that the final decision be delegated

to a standing commuttee of the board to formaiise

Mr Taurel's appointment once the necessary checks

had been satisfactorily completed

Chairman's selection process

JCA Group was engaged with a clear set of criterfa tofind
a highly expenienced global business leader, with proven
abllity to lead an industry through a perlod of change,

of which technology s a key part, and in dealing witha
complexregulatory envirgnment

1 Identify Using the agreed brief, JCA and the senior
independent director considered and refined a list of
potential candidates, seeking input from the nomination
committee on which candidates should be appreached

2 Interview The senlor Independent director led a serles
of Interviews with the shortlisted candldates Preferred
candldates then met with the chief executive and with the
two mermbers of the search cornmlttee, following which the
nomination committee met to discuss feedback

3 Select After further meetings, including with Glen
Moreno, Sidney Taure! was recommended for appointment
He was sefected having successfully led aglobal
multinational company, operating in some of the most
challenging pohtical and regulatory environments, and
having lived and worked all over the world, including the US,
UK and Brazil - three of Pearson's most important markets

4 Appowint Sidney's appeintment as chairman was
approved and annaunced in October 2015 to take effect
on 1 )January 2016, the date of his formai appointment to
the Pearson board

Appointment and induction

Pearson approved and announced the appointment of
Sidney Tauref on 26 October 2015, and he joined the
board on 1 January 2016, assuming the role of chairman
immedtately upon appointment

Mr Tauret met the iIndependence requirements set outin
the Code on appeintment and has confirmed he is able
to dedicate the reguisite tme to the role

A comprehensive iInduction programme was put in
place for Sidney during the three months following the
announcement of his appointment Aseries of one to
one meetings was held with members of the Pearson
executive to enable Stdney to understand all aspects
of Pearson's global business, the challenges faclng the
enabiing functions such as technology, HR and corporate
affairs, and the wider trends in education Swdney also
met with Pearson's brokers, corporate advisers and
lawyers to understand broader regulatory matters
and obligations During his US-based induction, Sidney
attended Pearson’s national sales conference focusing
onissues and hot topics in the US business, and spent
time in Washungton, DCwith the corporate affairs and
government relations team
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Nomination committee report

Chairman of nommatton committee
Sidney Taurel

Members Elizabeth Corley,

Vivienne Cox, Josh Lewis, IMAGE
Linda Lorimer, Harlsh Manwani, v
Tim Score, Sidney Taurel REMOVED

and Lincoln Wallen

“As chairman of the nomination
committee, one of Glen Moreno’s
outstanding legacies to Pearson
was his ability to attract first-rate
non-executives to the Pearson
board. I look forward to chairing
this committee as we work to
continually refresh the board,
its committees and to think about
succession planning at senior levels.

»

Committee responsibilittes mnclude

1 Appointments ldentifying and nominating candidates for
board vacancies

2 Balance Ensuring that the board and its committees have
the appropriate balance of skills, experience, independence,
diversity and knowledpe to operate effectively

3 Succession planning Reviewing the company's leadership
needs with a view to ensuring the continued ability of the
orgarusation to compete effectivelyin the marketplace

Key activities in 2015

Objectives Actions

Succession process and Appointment of Sidney Taurel
appointrnent of new as chairman

chairman of the board

Identify and appoint Appointment of Lincoln
additional non-executive wallen as non-executive
director with digital director with expenence
technology experrence n digital technology
Complete search process Appointment of

for new chief financiat Coram Willlams as
officer chief financial officer

For nomination committee attendance
see overview table on p78 @

Nemination committee role and composition

The committee primardy monitors the composition and
balance of the board and its committees, and ilentifies
and recommends to the board the appointment of

new directors and/or committee members The
chairman of the board atso chalirs the nomination
committee, and all non-executive directors serve as
members of the committee The chief executive attends
committee meetings by invitation

Chairmanrocle

Although the chairman of the board chairs the
nomnation committee, he 1s not permitted to chair
meetings when the appointment of his successor is
being consldered or during a discussion regarding his
performance Atsuch times, the senlor independent
director will chair the meetings, such as during the
search pracess for Glen Mareno's replacement during
2015 when Vivienne Cox chaired the commmittee's
mestings Learnmore about Chairman succession

on p79°

Committee meetings and appointments

The nomination committee meets at least once a year
and at other times as and when required During 2015,
the committee met six times with its primary focus being
to discuss the search critena, prepare role descriptions
and constider suitable candidates for the role of chairman
ofthe board and for an additional non-executive director
with particular expenience in digital technology to
complermnent our strategy The non-executive search
cuiminated in the successful appointment of Lincoln
Wallen to the board with effect fromt 1 January 2016

Terms of reference

Tha committee has written terms of reference which
clearly set out Its authority and dutles These are reviewed
annuafly and can be found en the company website at
www pearson com/governance €
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Pearson uses a number of leading firms 1 ts board
and executive search activities JCA Group was engaged
to assist with the recruitment of Sidney Taurel In
addition to board search activity, JCA Group facihtated
Pearson's board evaluation in 2014 JCA Group has ho
other connection to Pearson apart from in relation to
search activity and the external facthtatron of the 2014
board evaluation An external search consultancy,
Spencer Stuart, was used during the recruitment process
for Lincoln Wallen Spencer Stuart does not have any
other connection to Pearson apart from as a search
consultancy

Learn more about the Board of directors on p72-73 [+ ]
Diversity

The board embraces the Code's underlying principles
with regard to beard balance and diversity, including
gender diversity The nomination committee ensures
that the directors of Pearsan demonstrate a broad
balance of skills, experlence and nationalities, to support
Pearson’s strategic developrment and reflect the global
nature of our business

The nomination committee and the board always
take account of diversity inits broadest sense when
considering board appointments whilst ensuring that
appotntments are made based on mertt and refevant
experience We beheve the global backgrounds of our
board members contribute to dversity of expenence
and thought

in 2011, Lord Davies set FTSE 100 companies atarget
of having 25% female representation on their boards
by 2015 Pearson s proud of the gender diversity of
its board, having exceeded Lord Davies’ target with
309 female representation on the hoard, and notes
Lord Davies’ recommended next steps for continued
improvement indiversity on boards, including the
extension of good diversity practices to the layers of
executive management below the board

Immediately below board level, the Pearson executive,
not incuding the chief executive and chief financial
officer who are main beard directors, has two female
members out of a total of uine (representing 22%)

Qur senlor leadership team, up to and including two
reporting levels from the chief executive, shows a strong
plpeline of female talent with women representing 34%
of our senicr leaders

Pearson considers diversity as animportant issue across
the company, not Just at board level One of the key aims
of Pearson's diversity policy Is to increase the number

of teaders coming from adiverse background, such

as through our range of networks and advancement
programmes for employees Learn more about

Diversity and inclusion throughout Pearson on p62 (]

IMAGE REMOVED

Sidney Taurel
Chairman of nomination committee
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Audit committee report

Chairman of audit committee

Tim Score

Members Vivienne Cox,

Linda Lerimer, Tim Score IMAGE
and Lincoln Wallen REMOVED

“Durmng 2015, the committee
conducted a number of deep dives
into selected principal risks, and
as chairman of the commttee,

I work closely with Coram Williams
to ensurc Pearson’s finance
function is well-placed to support
the global business eftectively.”

Committee responsibihities include oversight of

T Reporting The quality and integrity of financial reporting
and statements and related disclosure

2 Policy Group policies, including accounting polictes
and practices

3 External audit External audtt, mcluding the appointment,
qualification, ndependence and the performance of the
external auditor

4 Risk and internal control Risk management systems and
nternal control environmentincluding the performance of
the internal audit function

5 Compliance Compliance with fegal and reguiatory
requirements Inrelation to financal reporting and
accounting matters

For audit committee meeting attendance
see overviewtable on p78°

Terms of reference

The committee has written terms of reference which
clearly set out its authonty and duties These are reviewed
annually and can be found on the company website at
www pearson com/governance @

Audit committee role

The committee has been established by the board
primarily for the purpose of overseeing the accounting,
financial reporting, internal control and risk
management processes of the company and the audit
of the financial statements of the company Asa
committee, we are responsible for assisting the board's
oversight of the quality and integrity of the company’s
external financial reporting and statements and the
company’s accounting pohicies and practices

Pearson’s internal auditor has a dual reporting kne to the
chief financial officer and to me, and external auditors
have direct access to the committee to ralse any matters
of concern and to report onthe results of work directed
by the committee As audit committee chairman, {report
to the full board at every board meeting immediately
following a committee meeting As acommittee, we

also review the independence of the external auditors,
including the provision of non-audit services (further
details of which can be found on page 119 and note 4

to the financial statements), ensure that thereisan
appropriate audit relationship and that auditor
objectivity and independence are upheld

Audit committee changes

2015 saw the retirement from Pearson of Ken Hydon,
who had been chalrman of the commuttee for nine years,
and Dawid Arculus, also along-serving member of the
commuttee |took aver from Ken as committee chairman
in Apni, and have since worked with Coram Willlams
leoking closely at Pearson’s finance function to ensure it
1s well-placed to support the global business effectively
In March 2016 Lincoin Wallen joined the commuttee,
brnnging extensive technology experience, and together
we have a good balance of skifls and knowledge on the
committee with experience covering all aspects ofthe
sector inwhich Pearson operates

Farr, balanced and understandable reporting

We are mindful of the Code's provision C 11 relating to
famr, balanced and understandable reporting and we
build sufficient tme into our annual report timetable to
ensure that the full board receives sufficient opportunity
to review, consider and comment on the report asit
progresses Learn more about Fair, balanced and
understandable reporting on pi19 ©

Risk assessment, assurance and integrity

Akey role of the commiitee Is to provide oversight and
reassurance to the boardwith regard to the integnty
of the company's financial reporting, internal control
policies, and pracedures for the identification,
assessment and reporting of risk During 2015 we
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conducted a number of deep dives into selected
principal risks Learnmore about Principal nsks and
uncertainties an pa1-45 ]

Data secunty and data privacy

Recognising particular sensitivities around the schools
and assessment data held on our systems, the
committee undertook deep dives in each of these risk
areas, and updates from the chief information secunty
officer and newly-appointed chuef privacy officer feature
as regular items on the commuttee's agenda To ensure
adequate visibility of data security and privacy protocols
throughoutthe company, new polictes and procedures
were developed during theyear, including the
introduction of mandatory data secunty and privacy
training for employees

Focusing on data security, the committee considered
progress made to date and reviewed the roadmap

for the next two years, Including the aim of continuing
to increase Pearson's data secunty risk maturity

Key to developing this matunty has been the shift

of data secunty from a purely technicalnsk to a
business critical one

The risk management framewaork around data privacy
needs to take Pearson's global footprint into account
Challenges exist in North America due to the large
number of federal and state laws on data privacy,
which are coupled with a changing picture globally
as jurisdictions update their laws in a fast moving
environment. Data privacy has been identfied as

a global strategic risk for Pearson, leading to the
appointment of a chief privacy officer at the start of
2015 Meantngful progress has been made since that
appomntment, including the development of a new
governance framework to address data pnvacy nisks

Business transformation

Ongoing bustness transformaton, the next wave of
which was announced in January 2016, 1s another of
Pearson's key risks and opporturities The committee
recewves regular updates on the transformation as a
whole and during the year carried out a deep dive into
The Enabhng Program Asan important operational
simplification project, The Enabling Program will feature
as astanding item on the committee’s agenda in 2016
as work progresses Learn more about The Enabling
Program on p6 and 41 °

Update on previous areas of focus

Last year, we highlighted health and safety (H&S) and
anti-bribery and corruption {ABC) as areas to which the
committee had paid particular attention During 2015,
the commuttee continued to monitor those areas,
reviewing progress made and audit results

The commuttee reviewed the overall H&S5 landscape at
Pearson, in particular evaluating the progress made
since the launch of the global H&S policy in December
2013 i noted that continued iImprovements are being
implemented in standards, facihtated by the support
of H&S coordinators, and was satisfied with the
developments in relation to safeguarding and the
progress that the safeguarding officer has made since
appointmentin August 2014

The committee reviewed the ongoing implementation of
ABC policies, where progress to date has been good, and
noted that a more comprehensive and risk-based ABC
tralning programme would continue to be rolled outin
2016 We also considered how the compliance and legal
functions were working together to ensure appropriate
stancesn eachjunsdiction, while maintaining Pearson’s
zerotolerance approachto ABC

Audit committee meetings and activities

The committee met four times dunng the year with
the following Inattendance the chieffinancial officer,
general counsel, SVP internal auditand compliance,
members of the senior management tearn, and the
external auditors Additionally, the chief executive and
chairman peradically attended committee meetings
One of the internat audit directors and the VP compliance
and risk assurance also attend meetings, giving the
committee direct contactwith keyleadership in those
areas The committee also met regularly in private
with the external audrtors and the SVP internal audit
and compliance

Atevery meeting, the committee considered reports

on the activities of the internal audit and comphance
functions, mcluding the resuits of internal audits, nsk
reviews, project assurance reviews and fraud and
whistieblowing reports The committee also momtored
the company’s financial reporting, internal controls and
nsk management procedures, reviewed the non-audit
services provided by PwC and considered any significant
legal claims and regulatory issuesin the context of their
Iimpact on financial reporting

Learn more about the Key activities of the audeit
commuttee on p84 €

IMAGE REMOVED

Tim Score
Chairman of audit committee
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Audit committee report continued

Audit committee meeting focus during 2015

external auditors

Confirmation of auditor
Independence

2015 external audit plan

Accounting and technical updates  The 2014 annual report Form 20 Fand related disclosures
Reporhng and accounts preliminary including the annuat Sarbanes
Impactof legal claims and announcement, financlal Oxley Act section 404 attestation of
regutatory issues on financial statements and income statenent  finanelal reporting Internal controls
reporting
Revlew ofinterim results and
trading updates
Actounting matiers and Analysis supporting viability Annual review of treasury
Polxcy Greup accounting pelicies statement Read more on p40 policy and strategy
Annual review and approval of
external auditor pelicy
Provislon of non audit Receipt of the external auditors’ Rermuneration and engagement
External audit services by PwC reporton the Form 20-Fand {atter of the external auditors
ontheyear end audit
Review aplnion oninterim results
Reappointment of the
PR Review of the effectiveness

of the external auditors

Risk and
nternal controt

internal audit activity reports
and review of key findings

Enterprise Fisk management
Read moreon p38 Q)

2016internal audi plan

Assessment of the effectiveness of
theintarnal control emvironment
and risk managernent systems

Review of internal auditterms
of reference

Riskdeep dives data security,
data privacy, health & safety,
lega! risks and legal function,
anti bribery and corruption,
tax

Data security incidents reporting

Treasury sk review

Complance
and governance

Fraud, whistleblowing reports
2nd Code of Conductmatters

Compliance with the UK
Corporate Governance Code

Review of the committee’s
terms of reference

Revlew of The Enabling Program
as |t proceeded

Compliance with SECand
NYSE requirements including
Sarbanes-Onley Act

Revlew of the effectiveness of
the committee and the group
Internal audit function

Members

Audit commiitee meetigs dunng 2015

All of the audit committee members are iIndependent
non-executive directors and have financiat and/or
related business experience due te the semor posittons
they hold or have held 1n other listed or publicly traded
companies and/or sumilar pubiic orgamisations Tim

Score, who assumed the charmanship of the commuttee

in April 2015, 1s the company's designated financial

expert, having recent and relevant financial expenence,

and1s an Assoclate Chartered Accountant He also
serves as audit committee chairman for The 8ritish
tand Company plc and until 2014 was audit committee
chairman at National Express Group plc

The quahlfications and relevant experience of the other
committee members are detailed on p72-73@)

During the year, the matters considered by the
committee included those shown in the table above

In February 2016, the committee also considered
the 2015 annual report and accounts, including the
prelimunary announcement, financial statements,
strategic report, directors report and corporate
governance compliance staternent
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External audit

The committee reviews and approves the appointment
of the external auditors, taking account of the views

of management Thecommittee reviewed the
effectiveness and independence of the external
auditors during 2015, as 1t does every year, and

remains satisfied that the auditors provide effective
mndependent challenge to management.

In 2015, the external auditor review was conducted by
distributing & questionnaire tokey audit stakehotders
ncluding members of the audit commuttee, the chief
executive, chief financial officer, company secretary,
SVP internal audit and compliance, SVP finance for

each Geography and Line of Business and other heads
of corporate functions Overall, responses to the
questionnatre were very positive, indicating an effective
external audit process As part of the follow-upto

the review, the lead audit partner explained to the
committee how PwC were monitoring and evaluating
each area highlighted in the review and confirmed that
they woutid consider how to adapt their approach in ight
of specific comments recerved

inaddition, in accordance with Pearson’s external
auditor pohcy, internal audit performs an annual
assessment of audit fees, services and independence
which forms the basis of a recommendation by the
commuttee to the board in respect of the appointment
and compensation of the external auditors

The commuittee will continue to review the performance
ofthe external auditors on an annual basis and will
consider their ndependence and objectvity, taking
account of all appropriate guidelines There are no
contractual obligations restricting the comsmuttee's
chaice of external auditors. In any event, the externat
audstors are required to rotate the audit partner
responstble for the Pearson audit every five years

The current tead audit partner rotated cnto Pearson’s
auditin 2013

Pearson's last audit tenderwas in respect of the 1996
year end, and resulted in the appomntment of Price
Waterhouse as auditors Developments at an EU level
regarding mandatory audit rotation for listed companies
have changed the UK landscape on audit tendering and
rotation The committee has reviewed the timetable
for tendering and has taken mto account all relevant
regulation and guidance New EU regulations and the
rufing by the Competition and Markets Authonity (CMA)
has imposed mandatory tendering and rotation
requirements from 2016

In considering the appropriate audit tender timetable for
Pearson In ight of these requirements, the committee
has also taken account of the significant business change
being experienced by the Group and iIs monitoring the
extent to which the Group is drawing upon the services
of other accounting firms The Group has commenced

a sertes of programmes to Implement major effioency
improvements across all our enabling functions -
technology, finance, HR -to bring the general and
admunistrative costs of running Pearson more inline
with global best practice, these include a major

finance transformation programme, including the
implementatton of new financial systems and changes
to our transaction processing and control activities, that
we expect to continue through 2016, 2017 and inte 2018
The Group Is supported in these changes, and more
broadly, by external advisers including accounting firms

Itis the commuittee's intention to appropriately manage
auditor independence and rotation, firstly, to ensure
that atender has the right level of suitably quahfied and
independent firms competing, induding atlowing for a
planned transition and, secendly, toundertake thisina
way that does not unnecessanly disrupt the business
changes underway and provides consistency of
independent oversight from external auditors through
those changes

Notwithstanding that the above EU mandatory rotation
rules require a new auditor to be appomnted no later
than for the 2024 year end, 1t1s the current expectation
of the committee that an audit tender process will be
conducted 1n 2018 in order for the auditor selected as a
result of the tender to be appointed for the financal year
ending 31 December 2018 Forthereascns outhined
above, the committee considers thistiming to be in the
best interests of the Group's members and will continue
to monitor this annually in light of the effectiveness and
independence of the current auditors

Once the next audit tender occurs, the Group will adopt a
policy of putting the audit contract outto tender at least
every tenyears

Comphance with the CMA Order

Pearson confirms that itwas in comphance with the
provisions of The Statutory Audit Services for Large
Companies Market Investigation {(Mandatory Use of
Competitive Tender Processes and Audit Committee
Responsibiiities) Order 2014 during the finanaal year
ended 31 December 2015 Learn more about Auditors’
independence and non-audit services on p119 o
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Audit committee report continued

Significant issues

Areaoffocus

Issue

Actlon taken by audit committee

Outrome

Impaiment
18vVIews

Read morein note 11
onp1c4+ )

Pearson carries significant
goodwill Intangible asset
balances Therets Judgement
exercised In the identification
of CGUs and the process

of allocating goodwill to
CGUsand aggregate CGUs
and in the assumptions
underlying tha impairment
review In 2015 Pearson made
significant impalrments
goodwilil and intangible
assetsincertaln CGUs

The committee considered the results of the Graup's
annuat goodwill impairmant review and the key
assumnptions which are cansldered to be the cash
flows derived from strategic and operating plans,
long term growth rates and the weighted average
cost of capital The committee considered the
sensltivities to changes in assumptions and the related
disclosures required by 1AS 36 impairment of Assets®
The committee noted that significant Impairments
had arisen primarily as a result of deterlorationin
expected cash flow over the strateglc plan period
and considered sensltivity 1o assumptionsin relation
to other businesses

Annual impairment
review finahised with
confirmation of an
Impairmentin China,
Brazll, North America
and cther Growth and
Core territories, and
sufficlent headroom
inother CGUs

Revenue
tecognition

Pearson has a number of
revenue streams where
revanue recognition practices
are complex and management
assumptions and estimates
arenecessary

The committee regularly reviews revenue recognition
practice and the underlying assumptions and
estimates Inaddltion the committee has vislbillty of
internat audit findings relating to revenue recognition
controis and processes and routinaly moniters the
views of external auditors on revenue recognition
issues During the year the committee reviewed
revenue recognition inrespectof services provided
to charter schools through Pearson’s Connectlons
buslness, and onerous contracts The committee alse
continued to monitor the tmparct of the new revenue

recognition standard, IFRS 15 Revenue from Contratts

with Customers' and noted thatalthough the standard
wauld not be adopted by Pearson until 2018 the

committee would need to understand the implications

aof the change well before thatdate

Assumptlons
underlying revenue
recognition were
reviewed and
challenged and
considered to be
approgpriate

There are anumber oflssues
in different countries where
managementjudgements and
assumptions are made as (o
the correct tax treatment.

The comrmittee considered Pearson's approach to tax
prowisioning. Pearson operatesin a large number of
countries and accordingly, its earnings are subject to
taxnmany junsdicions The judgement in relation to
tax provisioning is a combination of the committee’s
assessment of the specific open tax issues and also
areview of the time perieds Inwhich Pearson's tax
affalrs are open to enquiry by local tax inspectors In
jurisdictions where it has a larger taxabie presence
The committee addressed this matter through the
presentation of a management report on Pearson’s
tax affalrs by the head of group tax and through a
presentation of the external auditors assessment

of the company’s tax provisioning

The committee

was satisfied with
Pearson's approach
to tax provisioning
taking accountofthe
views of management
and the assessment
of the external
auditors

Disposal
accounting

Pearson disposed of Its
Interestin The Financtal
Times The Ecanomist
and PowerSchool

The committee reviewed the disposal accounting
and disclosure and considered the main judgements
relating to tax treatments, andsmpairment of related
assets on the PowerSchool disposal

Accounting
treatments and
valuations confirmed
as appropriate
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Sigruficant 1ssues continued

During the year, the committee discussed the planning,
conduct and conclusions of the external audit as
it proceeded

At the July 2015 audit committee meeting, the committee
discussed and approved the external audit plan and
reviewed the key risks of misstaternent of Pearson's
financial statements, which were updated at the
December 2015 committee meeting

The table opposite sets out the significantissues
considered by the audit committee together with
detalls of how these items have been addressed The
committee discussed these issues with the auditors at
the time of their review of the half-year intenim financial
statementsin July 2015 and again at the conclusion of
thew audit of the financial statements for the full year
in February 2016

All the significant issues were areas of focus for the
auditors Learn morein the Independent auditors’
report on p126@)

In December 2015, the committee discussed with the
auditors the status of thetr work, focusing in particular
on internal controls and Sarbanes-Oxley testing, and
covenng the significant issues outlined above

As the auditors concluded thetr audit, they explained to
the commuttee

» The work they had conducted overrevenue, working
alongside management to assess several complex
revenue contracts

» The work they had done to understand Pearson’s tax
strategy and identify business and legislative nisks, to
evaluate key underlying assumptions and assess the
recoverability of deferred tax assets

> Their evaluation of the recoverability of digital platforms
and pre-publication assets

» Their focus an segments, CGUs and goodwill impalrment
and the impact of Pearson's transformation on those

» The results of their controls testing for Sarbanes-Oxley
Act section 404 reparting purposes and in support of
therr financial statements audit

> The results of the company’s ‘going concerny and viability
statement reports

The auditors also reported to the commuttee the
misstatements that they had foundin the course of
therr work, which were insignificant, and the committee
confirmed that there were no matenal iterns remaining
unadjusted in these financial statements

Audit committee training

The committee recewves regular technical updates as well
as spealfic or personal traming as appropnate

Comrmittee members also meet with local management
on an ongoing basis, such as when traveting for overseas
board meetings, tin order to gain a better understanding
of how Pearson’s policies are embedded in operations
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Risk governance and control

Controlenvironment

The board of directors has overall responsibility for
Pearson’s systems of internal control and risk
management, which are designed to manage, and
where possible mitigate, the rnisks faang Pearson,
safeguard assets and provide reascnabie, but not
absolute, assurance against matenal financal
misstatement or loss The directors confirm they have
conducted a review of the effectiveness of Pearson’s
systems of risk management and internal controlin
accordance with provision C 2 3 of the Code and the
FRC's Code Gurdance These systems have been
operating throughout the year and to the date of
this report

Responsibility for monitoring the effectiveness of the
company's risk management and internal control
systems has heen delegated to the audit committee

by the board At each meeting, the audit committee
considers reports from management, Internal audit
and the external auditars, with the aim of reviewing
the effectiveness of the internal financial and operating
controtenvironment

Each business area, including the corporate centre,
maintains internal controls and procedures appropriate
tots structure, business environment and risk
assessment, while complying with company-wide
policies, standards and guidelines

Internal control and risk management

Qur internal controls and risk aversight have been
reviewed as a result of the FRC Guidance and changes
made to ensure compliance These changes include
more robust executive ownership and assessment of
controls and PLC risks as well as the preparation of a
viability staternent

The board, assisted by the assurance the audit
committee provides, oversees the enterprise nsk
management {ERM) framework, risk appetite validation
and viability statement verification processes outhned
in the Prinaipal Risks and Uncertanties section on pdi
Day-to-day enterprise risk management 1s undertaken
by a dedicated team, accountable to the board and
audit committee The board vahdates the nisk appetite
for each principal risk {as recommended by executive
management) early in the year The identfication

and mitigatton of signrficant business nsksis the
responsibility of sentor management and leadership
teams for each business area

The results of risk assessments and reviews are reported
to the Pearson executive, the board and the audit
committee For example, in 2015, allidentified Pearson-
wide top risks were reviewed by executive management,
then by the board and audit commuttee on a semi-annual
basis In addltion, throughout the year, the audit
comrmittee considered the oversight of speafic selected
principal risks, through a senes of risk deep dives The
internal audit plan 1s also aligned to our greatest areas of
risk and the audit committee considers issuies and risks
arising from internal audits

The risk assessment and reporting criteria are designed
to provide the board with a consistent, Pearson-wide
perspective of the key risks The reports to the board,
which are submitted twice per year, include an
assessment of the prabahility and impact of risks
materiahsing, aswel! as risk mitigation Inittatives and
their effectiveness

Learn more about our risk management process, the
principal risks and rrutigating factors on p38-45 ©

Financial management and reporting

There 1s a comprehensive strategic planning, budgeting
and forecasting system with an annuat operaung plan
approved by the board of directors Monthly financial
information, including trading results, balance sheets,
cash flow statements, capital expenditures and
indebtedness, is reported against the corresponding
figures for the plan and pnor years, with corrective
action outlined by the appropriate senior executive
Pearson’s senior management meet periodically with
business area management to review their business
and financiai performance aganst plan and forecast
Major nsks relevant to each business area as weflas
perfermance against the stated financial and strategic
objectives are reviewed in these meetings

We have an ongoing process to monitor the risks and
effectiveness of contrals in relation to the financal
reporting and consolidation process including the
related informatian systems This includes up-to-date
Pearson financal policies, formal requirements for
finance functions, consolidation reviews and analysis

of material variances, finance technical reviews, and
review and sign-off by senior finance managers The PLC
finance function also monitors and assesses these
processes, through a finance comphiance function
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These controfs include those over external financial
reporting which are documented and tested in
accordance with the requirements of section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act, which Is relevant to our US listing
Cne key controlin this area is the disclosure committee,
which submits reports ta the audit committee This
committee s chaired by the SVP Internal audit and
compliance, and members include the chief financial
officer, general counsel, SVP investor relations, company
secretary as well as senlor members of financial
management The primary responsibility of this
comumittee Is to review Pearson’s public reporting and
disclosures to ensure that information provided to
shareholders is complete, accurate and compliant

with all applicable iegistation and listing regulations

The effectiveness of key financiat controls is subject
to management review and self-certificatton and
independent evaluation by the external auditors

internal audit

The mternal audit function 1s responsible for providing
Independent assurance to management and the audit
committee on the design and effectiveness of internal
controls to miigate strategic, financial, operational and
compliance risks The nisk-based annual internal audit
plan 1sapproved by the audit committee Management
action plans to improve internal controls and to mitigate
risks, or both, are agreed with each business area after
each audit Formal management self-assessments ailow
internal auditto monitor business areas’ progress in
implementing management action plans agreed as part
of internal audits to resalve any control deficiencies
Progress of management action plans s reported to the
audit committee at each meeting, Internal audit has a
formal collaboration process in place waththe external
auditors to ensure efficient coverage of internal controfs
Regular reports on the work of internal audit are
provided to executive management and, via the audit
committee, to the board

The SVP Internal audit and compliance oversees
compliance with our Code of Conduct and workswith
senior legal and human resources personnel to
investrgate any reported incidents including ethical,
corruption and fraud aillegations The audit committee
15 provided with an update of all significant matters
received through our whistieblowing reporting system,
together with an annual review of the effectiveness of
this systermn The Pearson anti-bribery and corruption
programme provides the framework to support our
compliance with varicus anti-bribery and corruption
regulations such as the UX Bribery Act 2010 and the US
Foreign Corrupt Practices Act

Treasury management

The treasury department operates within policies
approved by the board and its transactions and
pracedures are subject to regular internal audit Major
transactions are authornised outside the department
atthe requisite level, and there is an appropriate
segregation of duties Frequent reporis are madeto the
chief financial officer and regular reports are prepared
for the audit committee and the board The treasury
policy 1s described in more detailin note 19 to the
finanoial statements

Insurance

Pearsonreviews its risk financing options regularly to
determine how the company’s Insurable risk exposures
are managed and protected Pearson purchases
comprehensive insurance cover and annuaily reviews
coverage, Insurers and premium spend, ensuring the
programme Is fit for purpose and cost-effective

Pearson's insurance subsidiary, Spear Insurance
Company Limited, Is used to leverage Pearson's risk
retention capabihity and to achieve a balance between
retaining insurance risk and transfernng it to external
nsurers
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Reputation & responsibility committee report

Charrman

Vivienne Cox

Members Vivienne Cox,

Josh Lewls, Linda Lorimer, IMAGE
Harish Manwani REMOVED

“Throughout the year, the committee
provided oversight and input as
Pearson continued to develop its
sustainability practices, including
the launch of Project Literacy and
progress towards efficacy reporting.
Qur priority is to ensure Pearson’s
activities and policies align
with our business strategy and
stakeholder priorities.”

Progress against 2015 targets

Reputation & responsibility commuttee role

Having been formalised in 2014, the remit of the
reputation & responsibility commuttee expanded during
2015, reflecting Pearson's continuing commutment and
ambition around its corporate reputation, our belief

in the importance of fuifilling our obligations to the
communities inwhich we work, and maximising
Pearson's positive impact on society

The commuttee's work is closely abgned with the
company's sustainable business initiatives and our
meetings are now preceded by meetings of Pearson's
responsible business leadership council - an internal
governance group - ensuring that we are able to provide
the necessary scrutiny and chaltenge to the council as
our sustainability strategy is developed and integrated
into the business Read more about Secialimpact

on p55-67

Terms of reference

The committee has written terms of reference which
clearly set outits authority and duties Theseare
reviewed annually and can be found on the company
webslte at www pearsaon com/governance

At the start of 2015, we set out to achieve a number of ambitious goals during our first full year as a formal board

committee You canread more about our progress below

Areasof focus

Progress

Oversee dellvery of our strategy for managing our
reputatlon and maximising our contribution to sotiety
within the organisation

This was aregular feature of our meetings throughout the year as
Pearson bullds its reputation management capabilities through an
Increassngly proactive approach [n particular we have exploredin
depth the work being done in our US market to proactively manage
Pearson's reputation

We also developed and adopted a new process for managing global
reputation risk, which takes into account our expanded activity and
exposurein growth markets, as well as our presence in certain high-
risk countries

Monitor Integratlon of social impact Into Pearson's
business following the closure of the Pearson
Charitable Foundation

The committee provided input into a number of soclal impact
projects established and accelerated in 2015, particularly high-profile
Initlatives such as Project Literacy and our Every Child Learning
partnership with Save the Children

Review progress towards 2018 efficacy commitments

Through focused sessions at two committee meetings, we reviewed
progress toward meeting our efficacy commitment, and made
recommendations for improving the efficaty measurement,
reporting and audting processes Learn mare about Efficacy
onp46-53 @
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Key activittes in 2015

Commuttee aims for 2016

Key areas of focus for the committee were the launch

of Project Literacy, our progress towards external
efficacy reporung, plans to knk the UN's sustamnable
development goals to our bustness model, and the
ongoing work around Pearson's brand and culture

in all of these areas, our priority IS to ensure Pearson’s
activittes and policies align with our business strategy
and stakeholder prionities, white reflecting best practice

In addition, Pearson has formahsed a process for its
reputational risk management, involving husiness
leaders and corporate affairs representatives, and the
committee now receives a reputational risk reportat
everymeeting The committee also conducts deep dives

In 2016 the committee will continue to maintain a clear
focus on reputational managementn the US - our
largest, and most reputationally high-profile market

We will oversee Pearson’s continugus progress in
embedding social impact into our strategy and business
maodel, continue to monitor our corporate culture,
ensuring employee engagement and values remain
strong to help ensure Pearson s in good shape for the
future, and we will undertake a review of the ethical
business priortties identified in 2015

IMAGE
REMQVED

into areas of particular reputational impact, such as
through a focused session in 2015 on Pearson's US
reputational strategy

Vivienne Cox
Chairman of reputation
& responsibility committee

More detail about the committee’s responsibilities, and

the activitles it undertook ineach area of its remit, 1s

gven below For reputation & responsibility committee

meeting attendance see overview table on p78 Q)

Commuittee responsibifities

Topic Responsibliity

Activity

strategy

Pearson's reputation among
major stakeholders ncluding
gavernments, investors,
employees, customers, learners
and the education community

Reputation

Updates on reputational ‘hot topics' at each meeting

Review of US reputational strategy

Working with the aud(t commitiee to ensure that
health & safety issues are properly considered from
a reputation and respenslbility perspective

Oversight of Pearson's approach
Risk to reputationalrisk, inctuding
ensuring that clear reles have
been assigned for management

Overview of reputational risk appreach in growth and
s markets, through in country personinel and central
corporate affairs team

Regular consideration of reputationat risk dashboards

Soclal Impact initiatives including
Social Pearson s non-financlal public
cormnmitments and progress
towards them

Bl

Progress on efflcacy, including launch of ‘On the Road'
publicatlon and draft reporting framework

Introductlon to new reach and impact strategy

Commtment to UN sustainable development goals
and Integratloninto business model

Launch of Save the Children partnership

Management of the Pearson
brand to ensure that its vatue and
reputation are maintained and
enhanced Pearson's approach to
monltering and supporting the
vatlues and deslred behaviours
that form our corporate culture

Brand and
cultute

Brand tracker update

Raview of progress on employee values
and engagement

Employee participation In soctal impact aclvities

Ethical business s1andards,
Ethics fneluding Pearson’s approach io
issues relevant to its reputatlon
as aresponsible corporate citizen

:

Consideration of ethical issues 1n the wider context of
reputational risk identiflcation

Communications
strategles, policles
and plans related to
reputational issues
and the people,
processes and policlas
that are inplate to
manage them
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Shareholder engagement

Engagtng with shareholders

Pearson has an extensive programme of communication
with all of its shareholders - large and small, institutional
and private

Shareholder outreach In 2015, we continued with our
shareholder outreach programme, seeing approxitmately
790 insitutional and private investors at more than 450
differentinstitutions in Australia, Canada, Dubai, Greater
China, Continental Europe, Indla, Japar, Singapore, Scuth
Korea, Taiwan, the UK and the US

Tradmg updates There are five trading updates each
year and the chief executive and chief financial officer
present our preliminary and interim results updates
They also attend regular meetings throughout the year
withinvestors in the UK and around the world, tailored
toinvestor requiremnents, to discuss the performance
of the company, the company's strategy, our change
programme, structural changes in our markets, and
nisks and opporturities for the future

Chairman meetings The chairman meets regularly
with sigrificant shareholders to understand any i1ssues
and concerns they may have Thus 1s i accordance with
both the Code and the UK Stewardship Code The non-
executive directors meet informally with shareholders
both before and after the AGM and respond to
shareholder queries and requests as necessary The
chairman ensures that the board Is kept informed of
principal investors' and advisers' views on strategy,
and corporate governance

Visit pearson com

Consultations During the year we also consulted

with aur major shareholders and with shareholder
representative bodies on our directors’ remuneration
report, and the significant minonty vote against the
2073 annual remuneration report at the 2014 AGM
Read about Remuneration on p94 [+

Private investors Private invastors represent over
80% of the shareholders on our register and we make
aconcerted effortto engage with them regularly
Shareholders who cannotattend the AGM are

imated to e-mail questtons to the chairman in
advance at chairman-agm@pearson com

We encourage our private shareholders to become
more informed investors and have provided awealth of
information on our website about managing Pearson
shareholdings, see www pearson com/investors/
shareholder-information htmi for further informatton,
orturnto p227 of this report We also encourage all
shareholders, who have not already done so, to register
their e-mail addresses through our website and with our
registrar Tiis enables them to receive e-mail alertswhen
trading updates and other important announcements
are added to our website See additional Shareholder
information on p227 €@

> Investor relations information

»Company annauncements and shareholder
presentations, webcasts and conference calls

> Pastannouncements and presentations
> Histarical financial performance

>Share price data

>Calendar of events

>Information about our businesses
and their websites

s Corporate responsibility
policres and activities

IMAGE REMOVED
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Share dealing

Due to 1ts continued popularity we again pravided
shareholders with smaller holdings the opportunity to

use our registrar’s low-cost share dealing service, giving

them the chance to add to or reduce their stake in
Pearson at significantly reduced dealing rates, orto
donate shares to charitywith ease This service proved
very popular with shareholders, and consequently we
intend to offer it again at a future date

We believeitts important that our employees have a
shared interest in the direction and achuevernents of
Pearson and are pleased to say that a large number
of our employees are shareholders in the company

Annual General Meeting

Board visitto India

Our AGM, on 29 Apnil 2016, is an opportunity for
all shareholders to meet the board and to hear
presentations about Pearson's businesses andresults

Engaging with all stakeholders

We post all company announcerments on our website,
Www pearson com, as soon as they are released, and
key shareholder presentations are made accessible
viawebcast or conference call Ourwebsite contams a
dedicated investor refations section with an extensive
archive of past announcements and presentations,
historical financial performance, share price dataand a
calendar of events It alsoincludesinformation about
all of our bustnesses, links to their websites and details
of our corporate responsibility polictes and actwities
Learn more about our approach to corporate
responsibility in the Socialimpact section on p553 > ]

IMAGE REMOVED

in October 2015, the board visited New Delh,
India, for a three-day meeting focused on our four
most important Growth markets - Brazil, China,
Ind:ia and South Africa

In each of these countries, Pearson's presence has
grown markedly in the last few years and in each of
them, to varying degrees, Pearson 1s operating In

a challenging economic chimate, whilst continuing
to chart a path to the next phase of sustainable
growth These are important markets to Pearson’s
long-term future, where the fundamental demand
for good quality education and training, leading to
ajob and a better life, remain strong

Overview of growth markets Prowniding context for the meeting,
Pearson's President. Growth and SVP finance, Growth led an
overview of performance and strategy across the four main
Growth markets followang which the business leaders of each

of Brazil, China and South Africa gave a more in depth review of
the opportunities and challenges in those countries considering
the macro-economic conditions and demaographics particular to
each territory

Focus on india Non executive director Harish Manwanl set the
scene for the focus on Indla, and the board then took a closer look
at Pearson s operations through a sessionwiththe head of our
india business, learmng about the huge potential in India and the
demand for better, more job relevant educalicn The board also
spent time with Pearson's India leadership team and keytalent and
heard fram a range of partners, policymakers and key influencers

Learning in action The board visited Jaypee public school which
provided an opportunity to see first-hand the impact of Pearson's
school managementimprovement framework, to view the
MyPedia intagrated jearning tool Inactionand learn ahout our
health & safety and safeguarding Inttiatives The board also spent
time at a Pearson learrung centre, learning about Pearson's work
to translate education and training into employment, and engaged
with representatives of Avantl Learning Centres and Zaya, \wo
Initiatives funded by the Pearson Affardable Learning Fund

Learn more about our Growth markets onp29 320
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Report on directors’ remuneration

Part1 Letter from the chairman of the remuner ation comimittee

Chairman of the
remuneration committee
Ellzabeth Corley

IMAGE
REMOVED

Current Members

Tim Score, Vivienne Cox,
Elizabeth Corley, josh Lews
and Sidney Taurel

“It has been a tough year for Pearson
and our remuneration outcomes
have reflected this, 2015 brought
challenging market conditions and
significant changes. As we continue
into 2016 we will be considering our
remuneration policy proposals for
2017 in this new environment and
context for the business.”

In this remuneration section

Part1 Letter from the chalrman pas ©
Part 2 Summary of remuneration policy p7©
Part 3 Annualremuneration report p101

Terms of reference

The committee's full charter and terms of
reference are available on the Governance
page of the company’s website at

WWW pearson com/governance

IMAGE REMOVED

See p114 for alignment of pay with Total Shareholder Return °

Dear shareholder

On behalf of the board, | am pleased to present the
report on directors' remuneration for 2015 Thisismy
first report as chairman of Pearson's remuneration
committee, having succeeded S Dawvid Arculus at the
Annual General Meeting (AGM) in April 2015 The
opportunity to learn about and study the history, policies
and procedures of remuneration at Pearson, with the
support of fellow committee members, has been
invaluable, as has the feedback and engagement with
key shareholders My board colleagues and | are aware
of the importance and sensitivity among investors and
the public more generaily, of remuneration topics and
we feel our responsibilities keenly

As outlined in our strategic report, 2015 was a year of
change and challenge for Pearson with conunued market
headwinds and the in-year disposals of PowerSchool, the
Financial Times Group and our stake in The Economist
while we have been performing well competitively and
gained market share across many areas of our business,
year end results were lower than projected at the start of
the year This was largely driven by the persisting cyclical
and poiicy-refated turbulence in our major educatron
markets While this 1s expected to abate over the next
two years, we saw a reductionin our annual operating
profit for 2015 of approximately £230m from its peak

Despite the challenges encountered, we remain focused
on executing the business strategy, transforming
Pearson to be the standout company in education
globally and developing our long-term growth
opportunities The 2015 divestments were animportant
partofthese ams We are confident that education
remains an attractive investment opportunity with

IMAGE REMOVED
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the growth potential to enable us both to serve more
students around the world, and to deliver goad,
sustanable returns to our shareholders

We do not intend to make any remuneration policy
rewssions ahead of the 2017 AGM However, we keep the
effectiveness of our current remuneration programimes
under review and, partly i hght of recent trading
conditions and the specific strategic goals for 2016,

we have cancluded that some changes are warranted
These are detailed in this report and, for those yet to

be finahsed, we are engaging with ourkey investors

What happened in 2015

Remuneration for executive directors s closely tied to
bustness performance with a tugh proportton of total
remuneration delivered through vanable pay designed
to reward achievement of short and long-term strategic
objectives As a result of the performance challenges
noted in this report, the outcomes under these schemes
were as follows

>Annual incentives paid to executives for 2015 were zero,
reftacting below-threshold performance in a tough
trading environment

»Long-term incentives vesting in 2015 did not pay out
This 15 the third consecutive year of nil pay-out, reflecting
helow-threshold performance against the company’s
three-year targets for earnings per share growth, return
oninvested capital and relative total shareholder return

Given the environment within which the leadership team
1s expected to guide Pearson through a very significant
period of change, without recerving any bonus or long-
term incentive payments, the committee agreed for 2016
incentive and retention arrangements for selected key
employees, which will vest, or not, in 2017 No executive
directors parucipate in these incentives

Future measures of performance against pay

We expect our business to stabihise in 2017 and return
to growth in 2018 Our business plan until then focuses
on operational execution, tight cost management

and a sharper, more focused strategy The focus of
restructuring 1s not only to reduce costs but also to
make the company faster, leaner and more agile

We are creating a single global product organisation,
integrating our school, cinical and professional
assessment operations in North America and are scaling
back our exposure to large, direct delivery operations
We are also making productivity improvements across
all our enabling functions such as Technology, HR and
Finance and we plan to rationahse our property portfofio
and consolidate major agreements to drive greater

cost efficiency

Committee responsibiibes

1 Determine and review policy Determine and regularly
review the remuneration policy for the executlve directors,
the presidents and other members of the Pearsen executive
who report directly to the CED (exetutive management)

This policy includes base salary, annual and fong-term
incentives, pension arrangements, any other benefits

and termination of employment

2 Review and approve implementation Regularly review
the implementation and operation of the remuneration
policy for executive management and approve the
individual remuneration andbenefits packages of the
executive directors

3 Approve performance related plans Approve the design
of, and determine targets for, any performance-related

pay plans operated by the company and approve the total
payments to be made under such plans

4 Review long term plans Review the design of the
company’s long-term Incentive and ether share plans
for approval by the board and shareholders

5 Settermination arrangements Advise and decide on
general and specific arrangements in connection wath
the termination of employment of executive directors

6 Reviewtargets Review and approve corporate goals and
objectives relevant to CEOremunerationand evaluate the
CEQ's performance inlight of those goalsand objectives

7 Determine chairman’s remuneration Delegated
responsibility for determining the remuneratfon and
benefits package of the chairman of the board

8 Shareholder engagement Ensure the company maintains
an appropriate level of engagement with Its shareholders
and shareholder representative bodies in relation to the
remuneration policy and its implementation

9 Appoint remuneration consultants Appotnt and

set the terms of engagement for any remuneration
consultants who advise the committee and monitor

the cost of such advice

in these circumstances, we intend to desigh our incentive
plans for 2016 to ensure that our executive and other
employees are motivated and incentivised to achieve
ourimportant aims over the shortterin, while sustaning
astrategic focus onlonger-term goals The plantargets
are still to be finalised but the current thinking suggests

For the Annual Incentive Plan {AIP)

»The 2016 sales and cash metncs and weightings remain

unchanged froam 2015 However, to align the AIP with
the speafic restructunng achievements required in
2016, as noted in the tncome statement measure In our
guidance to investors, Operating Profitafter the cost of
restructuring will be added to the metncs witha 30%
welghting To accommuodate this change, the weighting
for earnings per share (EPS) would also be 30%(down
from 60% weight for 2015}
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Part 1. Letter from the chairman of the remuneration committee continued

> For 2016, the range of normal rewarded performance
would bewider than in previous years - and, in
consequence, both the threshold performance and
the on-target funding are set to be lower thanin 2015

For the Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

>Targets for the 2016 LTIP awards are planned to be set
following the April remuneration committee meeting,
having allowed key shareholders the opportunity to
consider our plans on how to account for the revised
growth expectations explained in our January 2016
trading update, and inline with policy

*The targets will be fully disclosed inthe 2016 reporton
directors’ remuneration

» The targets and weightings wiil continue to be based on
EPS (one-half), ROIC (one-third) and TSR (one-sixth) with
on-target levels planned to be in line with the delivery
ofthe market gutdance operating profit of £800 miliion
n2018

Looking forward to 2016

The committee has reviewed the base salary levels for
executive directors in light of 2015 business performance
and concluded thatit would not be appropnate to award
asalaryincrease for 2016

In preparation for the policy vote in 2017, we expect to
conduct a thorough review of our remuneration policy

Principles of remuneration policy

1n 2016 to test and ensure its effectiveness and
appropriateness far the company, which finds itself
In a new operating environment and context to that
prevathng in 2014 We are commutted to engagement
with our shareholders duning this review and wilk
welcome comments and feedback

The operation of the current LTIP will be considered as
partof the palicy review, w parallel with a periodic review
of the remuneration committee’s terms of reference

Our new policy - changed or not - and any newor
renewed plans will be putto shareholders for approval

at the 2017 AGM For information on our antiapated
changes to remuneration for 2016 see page 116

My meetings with shareholders in 2015 have been
helpful in understanding perspectives and | look forward
to continuing the dialogue in 2016 and beyond

We are confident that our response to the changes and
challenges described here will make Pearson asimpler,
focused and stronger company and that we will position
the company to achieve a sustained period of growth

IMAGE REMOVED

gElizabeth Corley
Chairman of remuneration committee

4 March 2016

The purpose of the remunerabtion policy 1s to support the company's strategy to dehiver sustained performanceand
create long-termvalue in the interests of all stakeholders Our remuneration policy principles are highlighted in the
panel below and a summary of our directors’ remuneration policy report, approved by shareholders at the 2014 AGM,

1s provided on pages 97 and 98

We continue o operate executive remuneration in ine with the approved policy and do not anticipate seeking
shareholder approval for our policy again until required to do 56 at the 2017 AGM Seetable on page 98

Sustainability and Pay for performance Alignment
affordability
g » Robustand transparent » Pay mix focuses on *Designed to reflect
ase »Link to pay candiuons Annual _variablepay Annual shareholder value
salary across the Group incentives » Funded through results tncentives creation
+Strong rationale »Aligned {uily with KPIs
forincreases EPS operating profit,

s Funded through
Annual results
incentives yStronghnk to

performance

» Malus and clawback

»Strong hink to
performance

+ Malus and clawback

Long-term
incentives

sales and operating
cashflow

»Malus and clawback

» Paymix focuses on

Long-term variahle pay

+Designed to reflect
shareholder value
creation

»2-year holding
post-vesting

Long-term
incentives

incentives

»Aligned with strategy
through KPls EPS ROIC
and TSR

» Malus and clawback

+ Funded throughresults

»CEO 30086
CFO 200%

»Prarson
executive 100%

Shareholding
guldelines
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

Part2 Summary of 1emuneration policy

Intreduction to summary of remuneration policy

The company’s policy on directors' remuneration

was approved by shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting on 25 April 2014 We 1ssued an RNS statement
of further information on the remuneration palicy on
9 Aprit 2014, to clanfy the use of the committee's
discretion over certain elements of remuneration in
exceptional circumstances

To help shareholders understand the context of
remuneration practice reported inthe annual
remuneration report that follows, and specifically the
lirits applied to directors’ remuneration, we have
included below some key points and a summary of
pertinent secttons of the remuneration policy for
Information only For further detail, please refer to the
full remuneration policy and the clarfication statement
on the Governance page of the company’s website at
WWWw pearsaon comlgovernance

Scope of policy
The policy applies to executive directors, the chairman
and non-executive directors

Reference ts also made to the remuneration policy for
other members of the Pearson executive (currently nine
in number) who are not directors but who fall within the
commuttee’s remit

Duration of policy

The policy took effect on 25 Apnt 2014 and 15 expected
to remain in force until the next binding vote on our
remuneration policy, which is planned for the 2017 AGM

Use of discretion

The committee has avoided, where possible, including
general discretions in the policy table However,
exceptional or genuinely unforeseen arcumstances
may arise in the future and in those circumstances it
may be in shareholders’ interests for Pearson to putin
place remuneration arrangements that are outside the
terms of the policy [f this happens, the committee will
be permitted to implement remuneratton arrangements
that it considers appropriate in the circumstances n
these circumstances, Pearson would consult in advance
with major shareholders before ¢ does so and would
explain the exercise of this discretian in the following
year's directors’ remuneration report

As clanfied in the RNS statement of further information
an the remuneration policy on 9 Apnl 2014, this
discrettionwould only be used in the very narrow
circumstances articiiated in the policy - thatis, In
exceptional or genumnely unfareseen arcumstances
The comrmittee considers that these drcumstances
would arise highly infrequently, if at all, in the ifettme
of the policy The committee would regard reliance

on this discretion as a matter of utmost seriousness
and, inrelation to our stated obhgation to consult in
advance with major shareholders, would not proceed
unless there was clear consensus infavouramong
those consulted Further, the commuttee would ensure
that the value of the remuneration arrangement putin
place in rehance on this discretionwould fall within the
normal limit (as stated inthe policy)for the element of
remuneration to which the arrangement relates

As part of the approved policy, the committee also has
discretion to award base salary increases, allowances
and benefits, and long-term incentive plan awards

in excess of the normal maximum limits to current

or new directors As clarified in the RNS statement,

this discretron will only be exercised inexceptional
arcumstances other than inthe case of increasesin the
cost of benefits that are outside Pearson’s control and
changes inbenefit providers Agan, Pearson would
consultwith major shareholders before exercising any
such discretion and such exercise would be fimited by
reference to the safeguards described above, including
only proceeding where there was clear consensus in
favour among those consulted In these circumstances,
the commuttee would ensure that the maximum value of
the remuneration arrangement putin place in rehance
on this discretion did not exceed amargin of 25% over
the normal maximum hmit for the elementin question
(as stated in the policy)

Legacy airangements

Given the long-term nature of someof Pearson's
remuneration structures - Including obligations
under service contracts, incentive plans and pension
arrangements - a number of pre-existing obligations
remained in place at the time that the new policy
became effective, Including obligations that are
‘grandfathered’ by virtue of being in force at 27 June
2012 Pearson's policy s to honour pre-existing
obligations, commitments or other entitlements that
were entered into before the effecuve date of this policy
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Part 2 Summary of remuneration policy continued

Surmmary of remuneration policy

For more information please refe5 to the full remuneration policy on the Governance page of the company’s website at

WWWw pearson com/governance ﬂ

Element of Purpose and
remuneration link to strategy

Performance conditions

Normailimit

Exceptional limit as clarified in
RNS statement of 9 April 2014

Helps to recruit reward
Base salary andrezain Reflects
competitive market tevel,

role, skills, experience
and individual
contribution

Performance of boththe
company and the Individual
are taken into account when
determining an appropriate
level of base salary increase
eachyear, ifany

Base salaryincreases
are net ordinarlly mere
than 10% per annum

Up to 25% over normal limitin
speclficindividual slituations
including internal promotions
and material changesto the
business or the role

Help to recruit and
retain Reflectthelocal
competitive market

Aflowances
and henefits

None

Total valuenot
ordinarily in excess of
15% of base salary in
any year

Up to 25% over normal limitin
speclfic individual situatlons
including changes In individual
drcurnstances such as health
status and changes intherole
such asrelocatlon Inexcess of
25% over normal limitin the
case of Increases in the eost

of benefits that are outside of
Pearson's control and changes
In benefit providers

Help to recruitand
retain Recogniselong
term commitment

Retlrement
benefits

None

As setoutinapproved
remuneration pollcy

None

Motivate achievemnent

of annual strateglc

goals Focus on key
financial metrics Reward
indwidual contribution

Annuat
incentives

The committee has the
discretion to select the
performance measures,
targets and relative welghtings
fromyear toyear Funded by
Pearson global annual financlal
rasults, normally related to the
performance againsttargets
for Pearson s adjusted earnings
per share {or operating profit),
sales, and operating cash flow
Individual annual incentive
pay-outs also take into account
Individuat performance against
personal objectives

Overalllimit 200%

of base salary 2015
max|mum opportunity
15 180% forthe chief
executive and no more
than 170% for other
executive directors
and members of the
Pearson executive

None

Help torecrult, reward
and retain Drive long-
term earnings, share
price growth andvalue
creation and align
interests of executives
and shareholders
Encouragelong

term shareholding
and commitment (o
company

Long-term
incentives

Link management's
iong term reward and
wealth to corporate
performanceina
flexible way

The committee will determine
the performance measures,
welghtings and targets
governing an award of
restricted shares prior to
grantto ensure continuing
allgnment with strategy and
that the targets are sufficlently
stretching Awards vest subject
to the foliowing performance
conditions one halfon
earnings per share growth,
one third on return oninvested
capltal {ROIC) one-sixthon
relative total shareholder
return (TSR} Performance
tested over three years

Maxtmurmn face

value of 400% of
basesalary Other
than in exceptional
clrcumstances on
recrultment, ltis the
company’'s normal
pollcy nat to award
restricted shares to
executive directors
and othermembers of
the Pearstn execubive
without performance
conditions

Up to 25% over normal lImitin
exceptional circumstances, for
example, for retention purposes
orto reflect particular business
sltuations The discretionto
award restricted shares without
performance conditions to
executive directors will not

be used other thanwhereitls
appropriate o compensate a
new director on alike for ke’
basis for incentives foregone

at a previous employer

See Total single figure remuneration chart on page 105 (]
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Non-executive directors and chairman

Pay and performance scenario analysis

Non-executrve director remuneration has been designed
to attract and retain hugh calibre individuals, with
appropriate experience or industry relevant skills, by
offenng market competitive fee levels

The structure of non-executtve directors' fees
with effect frarm 1 May 2014115 as follows

The remuneration policy approved by shareholders
1n 2074 required a scenano chartin the format set out
below for 2014 remuneration Although not required,
the company has updated the scenario charts below
so as to apply to 2016 remuneration

Consistent with its policy, the committee places
considerable emphasis on the performance-linked

Director Fee | Yand|
elements, 1 e annual and long-term incentives
Non-executive director £70,000 &
Chalrmanship of audit committee £27,500 The chart overteaf shows what each director could
Chalrmanship of remuneration committee £22.000 expect to receve in 2016 under different performance
scenarios, based onthe following definitions of
Chasrmanship of reputation & f
responsibility commuttee £10,000 pertormance
Membership of audit committee £15,000 performance Efements of remuneration
Membership of remuneration commitiee £10,000 scenario and assumptions
2016 base salary, allowances, benefits, and
:::: n::g;mf c:;rr:?:t;::n & £5.000 Maximum retirement benefits at the same percentage
P ¥ ! : of base salary as in 2015, maximum Individual
Senlorindependentdtrector £22,000 annual incentive as per policy; maximum vaiue

The total fees payable to the non-executive directors
{excluding the Chairman) are subject to the imit set out
tn the articles of association of the company (currently
£750,000) and are increased by ordinary resolution from
umetotime

The chatrman’s fees remaln unchanged at £500,000
peryear

For more information on non-executive directors’
remuneration, please refer to the full remuneration
policy on the Governance page of the company’s website
atwww pearson com/governance

of 2015 long-term incentive award

2016 base salary, allowances, benefits, and
retirement benefits atthe same percentage
of base salary as In 2015, target individual
annual incentive as per poficy; targetvaiue
of 2015 long term incentive award (Willis
Towers Watson's Independent assessment
of the expected value of the award fe the
net present value taking Into account all the

Target

J !

condltions)
Mini 2016 base salary allowances, benefits, and
Inimum retiremnent benefits atthe same percentage
of base salary as in 2015, no annual or lang

term incentives

Note The value of long-term incentives does not Lake nto account dividend awards that
are payable on the release of restricted shames nor any changes in share price

On this basis, the relative weighting of fixed and
performance-related remuneration and the absolute
size of the remuneration packages for the chief executive
and the chief financial officer (as represented by the
current incumbent} are set out onthe next page

We will continue to review the mix of fixed and
performance-linked remuneration on an annual bas:s,
consistent with our overafl policy
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Part 2. Summary of Remuneration polhicy continued

IMAGE REMOVED

Further information on remuneration policy

IMAGE REMOVED

Forfurther information on the following aspects

of the remuneration policy, please refer to the full
remuneration policy and the RNS statement of further
information on the remuneration policy of 9 Apnil 2014
onthe Governance page of the company's website at
wWww pearson com/governance

»Selection of performance measures and target setting

» Legacy arrangements under the annual benus share
matching plan

» Rermuneration pohcy for other employees
»Service contracts and termination provisions

» Recrutment policy

» Employment conditions elsewhere in the company
» Executive directors’ non-executive directorships

» Sharehoider views

In 2016, we intend to conduct a review of our
remuneration policy to put to shareholders
for our next policy vote in 2017
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

Part 3 Annual temuneration report

This report camprises a number of sections

The remuneration committee

Movements in directors’

and rts actvities p102103 @ interests in share options” pt11 @
Votng outcome at 2015 Annual Payments to former directors” ping
General Meeting P40 Interests of directors and
Single figure of total remuneration and value of shareholdings* p112Q
prior year comparison p10sQ Executive directors’
Annual incentive* p106 @ non-executive directorships pl13Q
Lang-term incentves” p1o7 @ Historical performance
ratton
Retirement benefits® p1os @ and remuneratio i
1
Remuneration paid to the chatrman Comparative information psQ
and non-executive directors® p108 @ Information on changes
uneration for -117
Movements In directors’ remtne 2016 pl16 ©
interests in share awards” [s3hie] +]

Where required under current regulations the tables marked * have been subject to audit

Annual remuneration report

Remuneration compltance

The remuneration committee presents the annual
remuneration report, which will be put to sharehoiders,
along with the annual statement, as an advisory (non-
binding) vote at the Annuat General Meeting to be held

on 29 April 2016

Strategic ahgnment of pay

This report was compiled In accordance with Schedule 8
of the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups
{Accounts and Reports) (Amendment) Regulations

2013 and was approved by the board of directors on

4March2016

The commuttee believes that the company has comphed
with the provisions regarding remuneration matters
contamed within the UK Corporate Governance Code

Financial KPI Incentive Non-finrancial KP1 Incentive
cobjectives stheme objectives scheme
Drive revenue Sales AlP Reduce GHG AlP (aspartoia
emissions scorecard used
growth our carbon {0 determine
footprint the individual
discretionary
Delver I‘;ﬁ:l:d]us'fd AlPZLTIP element of the
BS payout)
sustainable
Returnon LTIP
returns invested capital
Total shareholder LTIp Strategic KPi Incentive
return objectives scheme
Transform Revenue share AlP
Operaling AP to dhgital
Manage our
cash fi and services
cash position ow
effectively
Grow preseice Revenue share AlP
incmerging

markets
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Part 3 Annual remuneration report contimued

The remuneration committee in 2015

Rote Name Title
Charman  Elizabeth Corley Independent
(from 24 April 2015} non-executive directors

David Arculus
(to 24 April 2015)

Members Vivienne Cox

JoshLewls

Tim Score
(from 2 October 2015)

Ken Hydon
{to 24 April 2015)

Ehizabeth Corley
(to 24 April 2015)

GlenMareno Chafrman ofthe board

internal  John Fatlon Chlef executive
advisers

Coram Willlams Chief financial officer

{from 1 August 2015}
Robin Freestone

Chief financial officer

{to 1 August 2015)

Melinda Wolfe Chief hurman resources
officer

Stuart Nolan SVP, reward

Stephen Jones Company secretary

External  Willis Towers Watson
advisars

See remuneration comrmittee activitres in 2015
onpl103Q

Sidney Taurel joined the commuttee as a mermber
on tus appointment as Chairman of the Board on
1 january 2016

Internal advisers provided matenal assistanceto the
committee during the year They attended meetings of
the cormmuttee, although none of them were involvedn
any decisions relating to his or her own remuneration

To ensure that the commuttee recetves independent
advice, Willis Towers Watson supplies survey data and
advises on market trends, long-term mcentives and
other general remuneration matters Wilks Towers
Watson was selected and appointed by the committee
through a farmal tendering process Willis Towars
Watson also advised the company on health and
welfare benefits in the US and provided consulting
advice directly to certain Pearson operating companies
Willis Towers Watson is a member of the Remuneration
Consultants’ Group, the body that oversees the Code of
Conductin relation to executive remuneration consulung
inthe UK

During the year, Willis Towers Watson was paid fees for
advice to the committee, which were charged cna time
spentbasis, of £151,254 As part of its annual review of its
performance and effectiveness, the commuttee remains
satisfied that Willis Towers Watson's adwice was objective
and independent and that Willis Towers Watsan's
proviston of other services in no way tompromises

its independence

Committee performance

Annually, the committee reviews its own performance,
constitution, and charter and terms of reference to
ensure IL1s operating at maximum effectiveness and
recommends any changes it considers necessary to the
board for approval

The committee participated in a survey to review its
performance and effectiveness in July 2015, looking at
areas such as the clanty of roles and responsibilities,
the compositian of the committee, the use of time,
the quahty and timehiness of meeting matenials, the
opportunity for discussion and debate, dialogue

with management and shareholders and access to
independent advice

The committee concluded that it is operating effectively
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Meetings, activrites and decisions in 2015

The remuneration commuttee met four times during 2015 The key topics were as follows

and business plans

onthe current view of
likety Pearson financial
performance

Implementation

Reviewed and approved
the 2014 annual
incentive pay-out and
2015 remuneration
package for John Fallon

Reviewed and approved
2014 annual incentive

Approved nll pay-out
under 2012 long-term
incentive plan

Nated Willls Towers Noted updateto
Market Watsan's overview of the remuneration aspects
current remuneration of the UK Corporate
environment and Governance Code
2014/15 market data and principles of
remuneration of the
investment Association
Noted management's Noted and reviewed
Performance overvlew of prior the status of the
year and year to outstanding long-term
date performance ' incentive awards based

Reviewed and approved
2015 long-term incentive

Considered umeline
and principles for
determining the basis
of Robin Freestone’s
exit arrangements

Noted 2015 long-term
incentive awards for

Noted remuneration
package for anew
appointmenttothe
Pearson executive

Considered matter of
former CEO's double

considered shareholder

engagement strategy

plan pay-cuts awards forthe Pearson  seniorleaders and taxation in the US and

Approved il pay-out of executive managers below UK and related Issues

2012 annual bonus share Pearsan executive

matching awards and

release of shares

Noted the activity of the  Noted company's use Reviewed the Reviewed the
Governance standingcommitteeof  ofequityforemployee  commilttee’s committee's charter

the board inrelation share plans performance and terms of reference

to the operation of the

company’s equity-based

reward programmes

Reviewed and approved  Rewiewed and approved  Noted guidance notes on
Policy 2014 directors’ 2015 Individualannual  treatment of leavers and

remuneration report incentive opportunities  exercise of discretion

Reviewed and approved for the Pearson Considered approachto

increases in base salaries executive 2015 long-term Incentlve

for2015forthe Pearson  Rewiewed 2015 awards for senior

axecutive long-term incentive leaders and managers

Reviewed and approved performance conditions  below the Pearson

2015 Pearson annual for the Pearson executive

incentive plan targets executive

MNoted shareholder Reviewed 2015 Annual Moted template Noted feedback from
Iisclosure and feedbackon 2014 General Meeting season, and outline of 2015 Committee Chairman’s
engagement directors' remuneration  sharehoidervotingand  reporton directors’ meetings with key

report engagementstrategy remuneration and shareholders
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Part3 Annua! remuneration report continued

Voting at 2015 Annuai General Meeting

Voting on remuneration policy at 2014 AGM

The following table summanses the details of vates cast
nrespect of the resolutions on the report an directors’
remuneration at the 2015 Annual General Meeting

IMAGE REMOVED

Asn previous years and as required by law, detals
of the voting on all reselutions at the 2016 Annual
General Meeting will be announced via the RNS
and posted on the Pearson website following the
Annual General Meeting

IMAGE REMOVED
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Single total figure of remuneration and prior year comparison

Total aggregate emoluments for executive and non-executive directors were £3 299 in 2015 These emoluments are
included within the total employee benefit expense in note 5 to the financial statements (page 155)

Executrve directors

The remuneration received by executive directors In respect of the financial years ended 31 December 2015 and
31 December 2014 1s set out below Figures for Coram Williams and Robin Freestone are based an their period of

employment - see note on page 106

Executive director remuneration

John Falion Caram Williams Robin Freestone Total
£000s 2015 2004 2015 2004 2015 2014 2015 2014
| Base salary > 776 761 258 - 17 553 1,451 1,314
l Allowances and benefits > 62 83 0 - 13 15 75 98
Travel 28 50 0 - 11t 12 39 62
Healthcare 2 2 0 - 2 2 4 4
Risk 32 31 0 - o 1 32 32
{ Annual incentives > 0 692 0 - 0 365 0 1057
Percentage of maximum 0% 51% 0% - 0% 39% - -
Percentage of target 0% 91% 0% - 0% 78% - -
Percentage of salary 0% 91% 0% - 0% 66% - -
[ Long-term Incentives > 54 74 - - 4 63 95 137
Long-term incentive plan 0 0 - - 0 0 0 0
Annual bonus share-matching plan 0 0 - - 0 0 0 0
Dwvidend equivalents 46 74 - - 38 63 84 137
Worldwlde Save For Shares 8 0 - - 3 0 1 0
| Retirement benefits > 3N 285 18 - 126 166 515 451
Defined contribution pian 0 0 0 - 18 23 18 23
Defined benefit accrual 169 87 18 - - 0 187 87
Allowances inheu of benefits 202 198 0 - 108 143 310 341
| Total remuneration > 1,263 1,895 276 - 597 1,162 2,136 3,057

See summary of remuneration policy on page 98 -]
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Part 3 Annual remuneration 1eport continued

Notes to single figure table

Single total figure of remuneration In accordance

with the regulations, we show a single total figure of
remuneration, which includes retirement benefits and
long-term incentives in additton to the other elements of
remuneration that have been shown in previous reports

Coram Williams and Robin Freestone Figures relate to
full period of employment, for Coram commencing 1 july
2015, and for Robin ending 30 September 2015 Note that
Coram became an executive director and Robin stepped
down as an executive director on 1 August 2015

Base salary in accordance with policy, the committee
considerad a report from the chief executive and

chief human resources officer on general pay trends
inthe market and the level of pay increases across

the company as awhole For 2015, the company had
reiterated its starting principles that base compensation
provides the appropriate rate of remuneration for the
job, taking into account relevant recruitment markets,

Executive directors’ annual incentive payments in 2015

bustness sectors and geographic regions and that

total remuneration should reward both short and
long-term results, delivering competitive rewards for
target performance, but higher rewards for exceptional
company performance Forthe US and UK, the budget
guideline Issued for adjustments to base pay for 2015
was 2% Localinflation rates and market conditions were
taken into accountin particular markets

Allowances and benefits Travel benefits comprise
company car, car allowance and private use of adriver
Health benefits comprise healthcare, health assessment
and gym subsidy Risk benefits compnise additional ife
cover and long-term disability insurance In addition to
the above benefits and allowances, executive directors
may also participate :1n company benefit or policy
arrangements that have no taxable value

Annual incentive For more detail, see table below Annual
incentives for the directors are funded by Pearson glabat
annual finanaal results and pay-outs take into account
indiidual performance against personal cbjectives

For 2015, annual ncentives were funded by Pearson global annual financial results based on the performance
measures set out below Indnidual pay-outs take into account performance against personal objectives Actual
performance against the financal targets for 2015, and the respective AIP pool funding level, were as follows

Actual funding
Threshold Target Maximum performance In2015
Measures Weighting for 2015 for 2015 for 2015 in2015 (% oftarget) Weighting ratio
Group EPS (p) 60% 70 4 790 817 698 0%
Group sales (Em) 20% 5,046 5312 5578 5,083 0%
Operating cash flow (Em) 20% 680 765 850 435 0%
Total 100% 0% IMAGE
Target AIP Finalpay out REMOVED
Group Pro rating as%  Actual%of fn2015
Measures funding factor  ofsalary targetin2015 {000s)
John Fallon 0% 10 100% 0% £0
Coram Wiiliams 0% 05 85% 0% £0 @ GroupEPS(p)
® Group sales(£m}
Robin Freestone 0% 075 85% 0% £0 o Operating cashflow (Em)
Total £0

Note 1 Although Lhe threshold for the Group sales element was reached in 2015, the comeruttes has exerised s discretion 16 reduce the bonus

to i due to poor overall underlylng performance

Nate 2 Actual performance provided like for iike with targets, based on plan exchange rates for 2015 2nd constant portfolio, consistentwith

priarycars

Note 3 Pro rated due 1o partyesr loyed { full period emptoyed rather than pened as a director)
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Long-term incentives The single figure of remuneration
for 2015 includes all long-term incentive awards that
were subject to & performance condition where the
performance perlod ended, or was substantally (but

not fully) completed, at 31 December 2015, and awards
where the performance condition has been satisfied

but where the release of shares 1s subject to a further
holding pericd The same methodology has been applied
for the singfe figure of remuneration for 2014

In 2015, the performance conditions for the 2013
Long-Term Incentive Plan {LTIP) and 2013 Annual Bonus
Share-Matching Plan{ABSMP) were not met The
execubive directors both held vested shares under the
2010 LTIP that were released on 5 March 2015 at the end
of the two-year holding period and these shares were
part of the single figure of remuneration for 2013 as
reported 1n the 2012 report on directors’ remuneration
However, the dividend equivalent shares that were
awarded in respect of these shares and released on

5 March 2015 have been included in the single figure

of remuneration for 2015, as below

Long-term incentive plan vesting

Worldwide Save For Shares All share options that
become exercisable during a year are included in the
single figure of total remuneration for thatyear The
value incduded in the single figure of total remuneration
15 the number of options multiplred by the difference
between the discounted option price and the market
value on the earliest exercise date Share optionswhich
became exercisable in 2015 are included inthe single
figure of total remuneration for 2015 based on the share
price onAugust 1, 2015 0f 1,203 Op. See page 111 for
details of share options vesting inthe year

Date of Dateof Numberof Value Shareprice
Director award release shares £00¢ onrelease Notes
Johin Fallon - 5Maris 3,191 46 1,444 Op Dividend shares relating to final portion of 2010
award vesting
3Mar10 SMari15 13,752 199 1,444 Op 25% of 2010 award pay-out subject to
continued empioyment released
16,943 245
Robin - 5Mar1s 2,659 38 1,444 Op Divrdend shares relating to final portion of 2010
Freestone award vesting
3Mar10 SMaris 11,460 165 1,444 0p 25% of 2010 award pay-out subject to
continued employment released
14,119 203
Total 31,062 448
Notes

Dividend equivalent shares only Indudedin single figure table. The underlying 25% of the 2010 Award having been disclosed in the 2012 single flgure table.
Shares vested on 3 March 2015 but were reieased on 5 March together with related dividend shares per RNS announcement.
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Part 3 Annual remuneration report continued

Executive directors’ retirement benefits and entitlements

Details of the directors’ pension entitlements and penston related benefits during the year are as follows

Other
pension
Valueof coststothe Other
defined company  allowances Accrued
beneflt over over the inheuof Total annua! Normal penslonat
the period perlod pension  vatue in 2015 retirement 31 Dec15
Diractor EQOQ £000 EQDO E0GO age £000
john Fallon 169 - 202 n 62 905
Coram Wilkams 18 - - 18 62 257
Robin Freestone - 18 108 126 62 -
Plans Mote 1 The accrued pension at 31 December 201515 the deferred pension to which
JohnFallon- Pearson Growp Pension Plan Actrualrate of mum of penslnnable salary the memberwnuid be entliled on ceasing pensionable sence on 31 December 2015
perannum (n addition, he rec bie and P PP L ForJohn Fallon and CoramWilllems, k relates tothe pension payable from the UK Ptan.

Coram Williams - Pearson Group Penslon Plan Accruat sate of 1/60th of pensionable
salary per annumwith continuous service with.s service gap in accordante with
earfier commitments given to him about the arrangements that would apply
should he rejoln Pearson in the UK having moved from Pearson to Penguln US

and subsequently Penguin Random House

Robin Freestone -Money Purchase 2003 section of the Pearson Group Pension Plan
tn addition, ha received a taxabie and non pensionable cash supplement

John, G d Robin's p henefits are subject to the notionsl eamings cap.

Chairman and non-executive director remuneration

Robin Freestone gid notaccrue defined benefits

Note 2 Value of defined benefit over the perlod comiprises the DBinputvalue, less
inflation, less individual contribution

Note 3 Other pension coststothe corpany over the period comprises contributions to
defined contnibution arrangements for UX benefits

Note & Other allowances inkeu of pension represents thecash allowances paid inlieu
ofthe previous FURBS arrangements

Note 5 Total annual valus s the sum of the previous three columns.

The remuneration paid to the charrman and non-executive directors inrespect of the financial years ended

31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014 15 as follows

2015 2014
Salary/ Salary/

Director basic Committee Committee Taxable basic Committee Commitiee Taxable

000s fee chairmanship membership SID benefits  Totat fee chairmanship membership 5ID benefits  Total
Glen Moreno 500 - - - 500 500 - - - - 500
Dawid Arculus 22 7 5 - 35 68 21 14 2 105
Eflizabeth
Corley 70 15 3 - 89 a7 - 4 - 1 52
Vivienne Cox 70 10 25 22 132 68 7 22 6 124
Ken Hydon 22 9 3 - Ll 68 27 8 - 8 M
Josh Lewis 70 - 10 - 12 92 68 - 8 - 9 85
Linda Lorimer 70 - 20 - 97 68 - 17 - 8 93
Harish
Manwam 70 - 5 - 80 68 - 4 - 7 79
Tim Score 70 19 7 - 97 - - - - - -
Total 964 60 78 22 39 1,163 955 55 77 21 41 1,149
Note Taxable rafer o ravel, acc jon and Incurred whdle attending board meetings during 2015 thatwere paldor reimbursed by the company

which are deemed by HMRC to be taxable wthe UK. The amounts in the libl! above Include the grossed-up cost of UK tax to be palkd by the company on behalf of the directors,
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Long-term Incentives

The status of outstanding awards under the long-term incentive plan (LTIP} and the legacy annual bonus share
matching plan (ABSMP) and performance aganst the performance conditions as at 31 December 2015 are described

n the table below

For each executive director, details of awards under the LTIP and ABSMP that were awarded, vested, released,
lapsed or held during 2015 are summarised In the adjacent table Notes to this table and the following table are

provided overleaf

Status of outstanding awards under the long-term incentive plan and annual bonus share matching planin 2015

Long-term incentive plan (LTIP)

Share price % of
Date of ondate Vesting Performance Performance Pay outat Pay outat Actual award
award ofaward date measures Weighting period threshold maximum performance vested Status
1May  1,3370p 1May RelativaTSR LI 1jan2015  25%atmedian  100% atupper - = Quistanding
2015 2018 to 31 Dec quartiie subjectto
2017 performance
ROIC 1/3 2017 25% forROIC  100%for ROIC
of 6 5% of 75%
EPS growth 2 207 25% for EPS 100% for EPS
compared growthof6 0% growthof 12 0%
to 2014
tMay 1,1020p 1May Relative TSR 1/6 2014102017  30%atmedian  100% atupper - -~ Dutstanding
2014 2017 quartile subjectto
ROIC 3 2016 30%forROIC  100% for ROIC performance
of 6 5% of 7 5%
EPS growth 172 2016 30% for £PS 100% for EPS
compared growthof6 0% prowthof12 0%
to 2012
1May 11830p 1May RelativeTSR 1/3 2013102016 30%atmedian  100% at upper 17th Nil Estimatedto
2013 2016 quartile percentle lapsein 2016
ROIC 3 2015 o%for ROIC  100% for ROIC 58% NIl Will lapse In
of 8 5% of 10 5% 2016
EPS growth 13 205 30% for £PS 100% for EPS -5 2% NIl Willlapse In
compared growthof6 0% growthof12 0% 2016
to 2012
Annual Banus Share Matching Plan (ABSMP)
Share price % of
Dateaf andate Vesting Performance Performance Pay outat Pay-autat Acttal award
award ofaward date  measures Weighting period threshold maximum performance vested Status
15May  1,2060p 15May Real 2012 to 2015 50% of matching 100% of -6 9% NIl Performance
2013 2016 compound award for EPS  matching award condition
annual EPS growthof30%  for EPS growth notmet Wil
growth of 50% lapse in 2016

$S3UISNG JNO)

suewopad Ing

wedwi [eRos.ing ‘

BIUBUIBADG

SYUAWMES [BRUBUL ’




110  Pearson plcAnnual report and accounts 2015

Part 3. Annual remuneration report contimued

Movements in directors’ interests in share awards dunng 2015

Number Dividends
of shares awarded Number of
Date Vesting asat and sharesasat
Plan of award date  1)an 2015 Awarded Released released Lapsed 31Dec2015 Status
John Falion
LTIP 1 May 1 May 0 230,000 - - 230,000 Outstanding subject to
2015 2018 performance
1 May 1 May 274 000 - - - 274,000 Cutstanding subject to
2014 2017 performance
1dtay  1May 250,000 - - 250000 b Expected to lapse 1n 2016
2013 2016
3Mar 3 Mar 13752 - 13752 3,191 - o Released 5 Mar 2015
2010 2013 {balancing 75% of vested
shares released in 2013)
ABSMP 15May 15 May 6,083 - - 6,083 0 Witllapse in 2016
2013 2016
[Total > 543,835 230,000 13,752 3191 256,083 504 000
Coram Williams
[LTip 1Aug 1Aug 0 129,000 - - 128,000 Outstanding subject to
| 2015 2018 performance
Total b 0 129,000 0 o 125,600
Robin Freestone
Lhe 1May 1 May 162,000 - - - 162,000 Outstanding subject to
2014 M7 performance
{also see page 112)
tMay  tMay 150,000 - -~ 150,000 ) Expectedto lapse in 2016
2013 206 {also see page 112)
IMar  3Mar 11,460 - 11,460 2,659 - ¢ Released 5 Mar 2015
2019 2013 {balancing 75% of vested
shares released In 2013)
|Total > 323,460 1] 11,460 2,659 150,000 162,000

Nate 1 For all awards, Pearson’s reported financial results for the relevant period
were used 1o measure performance ahd no discretion has been exercised

Mote2 vVested awards ger subject to performance conditions
Released means where shares have been transferred to partidpants Hefd means
where awards have vested bul shares are held pending release on the refevant
anniversary of the award date Ouistanding means awards that have been granted
but are stilf subyect to tive ach of perfi e congdrtl Drvidends refers.
to dmdend equivalent shares that have been added without performance conditions.
tovested shares under the LTIPand reteased iImmediatety on awarg,

Note 3 No variations to terms and condlbons of plan interests were made dunng
theyear

Note 4 TSR1s measured relative to the constituents of the FTSE World Mediaindex over
athree year penod

Note 5 In retation to the LTIP award made on 1 May 2014, potential vesting is 50% of
maximum for attainment of ROIC of T9%.

Note 6 For the LTIP award made on 1 May 2013 and due tovest on 1 May 2016 we
have estimated the cut turn of the relatve TSR performance condition based on
performanceas at 26 February 2016 atnll tactual refative TSR performance is
different on the date of vesting, we will set thisoutinthe annual remuneration report
for 2016

Note 7 The single figure of cemuneration for 2015 includes alt awards that were subject
to a performance condition where the performance perniod-ended orwas substantally
{but not fully) completed at31 December 2015 and awards where the performance
condison has been savsfied but where the release of shares is subject to a further
holding peried The same methodology has been applled for eariler periads and the
single figure for earlier reporong penodshas been restated where necessary

Note 8 The value of shares included in the singfe figure of remunerationis

the number of shiares multipired by the share price onrelkease

Nate 9 Coram s 2015 awarg was mate on his appoiniment to the bpard on 1 August,
2015 andwill vest threeyears from this date on 1 Augus1 2018 subgectto the same
performance conditions and holding periads as for other executives

Note 10 The value of the LTIP awards In 2015 for the executive directors is shown
below based on the relevant share price on the date of award alse shown

Value for threshold

Vesting Number facevalue performance Share price at
Director Date of award date of shares Facevalue (%ofbasesalary} (% of2014salary) date of award
Jjohn Fallen 1 May 2015 1 May 2018 230,000 £3,075,100 394% 99% 13370p
Coram Williams 1Aug 2015 1Aug 2018 129,000  £1,551,870 301% 75% 1,203 Cp
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Movements in directors’ interests 1n share options during 2015 g
o
John Falton and Robin Freestone also hold options under the Worldwide Save For Shares plan as follows a
3
Number of :.a-;
shares under Narmal
option held earliest Value in 2015
Date of asat Option exercise Expiry single figure
Director grant 31 Dec2015 price date date £
John Fallon 7 May 2010 - 805 6p 1Aug1s 1Feb16 7,670
30 Apr 2014 1,109 811 2p 1Aug17 1Feb 18 0
Robin Freestone 4May 2012 - 509 Op 1 Aug 15 1Feb 16 2,911
30Apr2014 1,109 811 2p 1Aug 17 1feb18 0 o
Note 1 The share opuon awards made in 2010 10 John Fallon oy respect of 1 330 shares Note 4 All share options that become exercisable duringa year are wcludzd n the G
and 2012 to Robin Freestone In respect of 990 shares vested and became exercisable single figure of total remuneration for that year The value Included inthe single figure 'i
in the yesr and were exercised on 3 August 2015 of total remuneratlonis the number of options diythe differente b Q
. o cond the discounted opti jce and the marketvatus onthe carliestexercise date Sh 3
':’"2 terms and of share options were made diing npemmmw:uab?:a;ne':::isablemo"osa:e hch)dedh::!:eslr;xl:ﬂgureal ot [
the year remuneralion for 2015 based onihe share price on 1 August 2015 of 1,203 Op. a
Note 3 Acquisition of shares under the Woridwide Save For Shares plan is not subject
toaperformance candition * ::::laré;r:: yr:::‘l::sp;l;; :;f:-'o;l:::;‘:erznﬁwas 736 0p per share and the range
Payments to former directors Robin held LTIP awards granted in 2013 and 2014 and,
i in February 2016, the remuneration committee set out
It 1s the committee’s intention to disclose any payments
aclear process and engaged with key shareholders
to past directors, including any refease of share-based
to consider whether those awards should be o
awards post-departure 5
preserved The remuneration committee considered W
The number of shares retained from the number of the drcumstances of Robin's service and the facts g8
shares originally awarded takes into account lapses due surrounding his departure, taking account of the 3
to performance, releases prior to ceasing to be a director following factors that we nermally consider whenever B
and pro-rating for service in the performance penod a deasion to treat any person within the LTIP as a
{where applied) good leaver
Former directors Will Ethridge and john Maktnson, who rthe different types of leaver,
retained the balancing 25% of their 2010 LTIP awards rthe crcumstances at the ime the award was originally
(which vested in 2013) when they stepped down from made
the board in 2013, recerved arelease of shares under ' o
these awards, together with associated dividend shares,  *the indwidual’s performance, and g
during 2015 Details of the vested awards released in rthe circumstances in which the individual left 3
2015 were reported 1n the 2012 and 2013 reportson employment, ﬁ
directors’ remuneration, details of the dividend shar
ectors ed ares After carefut consideration of these factors and
released in 2015 are Will Ethridge {3,191 shares) and Jchn
consultation with key shareholders, the remuneration
Makinson (2,659 shares)
committee noted that
\2,311'3"5 Lz?kgj-teml incegtl\lre awtardsl tive pl » Robun 1s leaving to take up several non-executive director
! geretained along-term incentive plan appointments and so Is ceasing full-time employment,
award made on 1 May 2013, subject to performance
As disclosed elsewhere in this report, this award 1s »normal conditions applied at date of grant for any award
expected to lapse in 2016 under the LTIP and no award was made in 2015 {simularly, %‘
he did not recelve a base salary Increase in 2015), 2
Robin Freestone [
Rabin Freestone received no payment for lass of »Robin carrted out ail duties expected of tum during his a
office when he stepped down from the board with period of notice and In the preceding years prior to his g
effect from 1 August 2015 and left employment on leaving He gave good service to the Pearson Board for g

30September 2015

nrne years, and

»Robin did not leave to take up employmentinan
executive capacity but rather as a non-executive
board member
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The remuneration committee also took into account Marjone Scardino
the effective and smooth handover of his role to in the 2014 report, we made shareholders aware of a
Coram Wilhams payrol! processing error during the years 2007 to 2010,

as a resuit of which taxes deducted from Marjone

The remuneration commuttee dete
erationca e determined that Robin Scarding’s compensation were incorrectly allocated by

would be treated as a good leaver, so that outstanding Pearson among tax authorities n the UK and the US
LTIP awards would be preserved on a time pro-rated
basis, would receive no special treatment and remain This resulted in her being subject to temporary double
sub e'c tto all of the apolicable performance tests taxation The commuttee has concluded that Pearson

) PP P would reimburse (on an after-tax basis) certain costs
Robinwill therefore remain eligible to recewve up to incurred by Marjorie Scardino in relation to this double
116,667 {78%) of the shares awarded cn 1 May 2013 and taxation error As aresult,a payment of £27,842 has

72,000 ({4496} of the shares awarded on 1 May 2014, both been made to herto conclude this matter

of which will vest, subject to performance, 1n 2016 and

2017 respectively The 2013 award s expected to lapse

1n 2016 due to not meeting the performance targets There were no payments for loss of office made
to or agreed for executive directorsn 2015

Payments for loss of office

Robin will be treated as a retiree in respect of his
outstanding WWSFS opttons granted in 2014

Directors' interests in shares and value of shareholdings

Directors’ interests
The share interests of the directors and their connected persons are as follows
Total
number of
ordinaryand
, Crdinary Conditional conditional
shares shares shares Current Currentvalue Guidetine Guidetine
Director at210ec15  ar3iDec15  23t310ec15S  shareholding (% salary) (%salary) met
Charman
Glen Moreno 210,000 - - sea NoteB - - -
Sidney Taure} sea Note B - - 50,000 - - -
Executive directors
John Falton 293,056 0 293,056 293,056 327% 300% Yes
Coram Willlams 10 0 10 5,010 8% 200% n/a
Non-executive directors
Ehzabeth Cortey 1,267 - - 1,267 - - -
Vivienne Cox 2,938 - - 2,938 - - -
Josh Lews 7,740 - - 7,740 - - -
Linda Lonmer 2,675 - - 2,675 - - -
Harish Manwani 2,571 - - 2,571 - - -
TimScore 849 - - 849 - - -
Lincotn Wallen see Note 8 - - - - - -
Note 1 Conditional shanes means shares which have vested but remain beld subject Note 50n 29 February 2016 CoramWilllams purchased 5 000 shareswhichare
to centinuing employment for a pre-defined holding period Inciuded under current shareholding In the table above and shown in the chart

overleaf On2 March 2016 Sidney Taurel purchased $0 000 shares which are also

Note 2 The current value of the executive direclors current shareholdings is based
shown inthe table above

on the tosing marketvalue of Pearsen chares of 870.50p on 1 March 2016 against

base salaries at 31 December 2015 The shareholding guldelnes do notapply ta the Note & Ordinary shares donol mchude any shares vested bul held pending release
charrman and non-executtve directors. under a restncted share plan

Note 3Q¢dinary shares Include both ordinaty sharet lsted on the London Stock Nate 7 As anew appointes the guldelinesare not yet appficable Infull for

Exchange and American Depositary Receipts (ADRs} isted on the New\’nak smck CoramwWillams

Exchange. The figures include both shares and ADRs acquired by indh { Note 8 Sidney Taurel andtincoin Wallen were appointed as directors on 1 January 2016.
part of thex own after tax annual benus inPearsonshares und:r lh:annualbonus Glen Morena (et Pearson on 31 December 2015 and as such we have not shown 2
share marching plan. currentshareholding figure inthe table above

Note 4 The market price on 31 December 2015 was 736 Op per share and the range
during the year was 635 0p 1o 1,508 0p.
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Sharehoiding guidelines

Executive directors are expectedto bulld upa
substantial shareholding in the company inline with the
pohcy of encouraging widespread employee ownership
and to align further the interests of executives and
sharehalders With effect from 2014, target holding s
300% of salary for the chief executive and 200% of
salary for the other executive directors

Shares that count towards these guidelines include

any shares held unencumbered by the executive, their
spouse and/or dependent children plus any shares
vested but held pending release under a restricted share
plan Executive directors have five years from the date
of appointment to reach the guideline

With effect from 2014, these guidelines were extended
to include all members of the Pearson executive at 100%
of salary

The shareholding guidelines do not apply to the
charrman and non-executive directors However, a
mintmum of 25% of the basic non-executive directors’
fee s paid in Pearson shares that the non-executive
directors have committed to retain for the period

of thewr directorships

Dilution and use of equity

We can use exasting shares bought inthe market,
treasury shares or newly-issued shares to satisfy
awards under the company’s vanous share plans

For restricted stock awards under the long-term
Incentive plan and matching share awards under the
annual bonus share matching plan, we would normally
expect to use existing shares

There are hrmits on the amount of new-issue equity we
canuse In any rolling ten-year perod, no more than 10%
of Pearson equity will be 1ssued, or be capable of being
1ssued, under all Pearson’s share plans, and na mare
than 5% of Pearson equity will be issued, or be capable
of being Issued, under executive or discretionary plans

At 31 December 2015, stock awards to be satisfied by
new-1ssue equity grantedn the last ten years under afl
Pearson share plans amounted to 1 6% of the company’s
issued share capital No stock awards granted in the last
ten years under executive or discretionary share plans
will be satsfied by new-issue equity

In addition, for existing shares, no more than 5% of
Pearson equity may be held in trust atany time Against
this limit, shares held in trust at 31 Decemnber 2015
amounted to 0 8% of the company'sissued share capital

The headroormn available for all Pearson plans, executive
or discretionary plans and shares held in trust s as
follows*

Headroom 2015 2014 2013
All Pearson plans 84% 83% 84%
Executive or

discretionary plans 50% 50% 50%

Shares held in trust 42% 41% 39%

Executive directors’ non-executwe directorships

Although the policy permits executive directors to serve
as non-executive directors elsewhere with the board’s
agreement, none of the executive directors held an
external directorship during 2015
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Part 3. Annual remuneration report continucd

Historical performance and remuneration

Total shareholder return performance

We set out below Pearson's total shareholder return
(TSR) performance relative to the FTSE All-Share index
on an annual basis over the seven-year pentod 2008 to
2015 This comparison has been chosen because the
FTSE All-Share represents the broad market index within
which Pearson Shares are traded TSR 1s the measure

of the returns that a company has provided for its
shareholders, reflecting share price rmovements and
assuming renvestment of dividends gource DataSiream

In accordance with the reporting regulations, this section
also presents Pearson’s TSR performance alongside

the smgle figure of total remuneration for the CEQ over
the last seven years and asummary of the variable

pay outcomes refative to the prevailing maxmum

atthe time Thetable below summarises the total
remuneration for the CEQ over the last seven years, and
the outcomes of annual and long-term incentive plans as
a proportion of maximum

WMAGE REMOVED

CEO remuneration Marjorie Scardino John Fallan
Total remuneration
(singte figure, £000s) 6,370 8466 8,340 5330 1727 1895 _1_2_63~

Annual incentive — incurmbent

(% of maximum) 913% 921% 757% 242% 343% 505% Nil

Long-term tncentive — incumbent

(% of maximum) 800% 975% 683% 367% Nil NIl Nil

Annualincentive is the actual annusl incentive received by the incumbent as a
percentage of maximurn opportunity

Long-termincentive is the pay-cut of performancerelated restricted shares under
thelong-term incentrve plan where the year shown 15 the finad year of the performance
period for the purposes of calculating the single tota) figura of remuneration.

‘Total remuneration John Fallan John Fallen’s total remuneration opporiunity is lower
thanthatofthe p umbent. Variabic pay eutsunder th | and long-term
incentive plans reflect performance for the relevant periods
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Comparative information

The followtng Informatton s intended to provide
additional context regarding the total remuneration
for executive directors

Relatwve percentage change in remuneration for CEO
The following table sets out the change between 2014
and 2015 in three elements of remuneration for the CEQ,
g comparison ta the average for all employees

While the committee considers the increase in base pay
for the CEQ refative to the broader employee popufation,
benefits are driven by local practices and eligibility 1s
determined by levet and indiwadual circumstances

which do not lend themselves to comparison

Change in CEO remuneration 2014/15

Base salary Allowances and benefits
Q, [4)

© +2% O -25%

Annual incentives Total

® -100% Q -33%

Change in employee remuneration 2014/15

Base salary Allowances and benefits
0, o,

Q® 3% ® +12%

Annual incentives Total

© -38% @ No change

Note 1 The figures for all employees reflact average sali and average emp
numbers eachyear Annuatincentives include atl plans, including sales incentives

Nate 2 Theincrease inaltowances and annual incentives for John Fallon ks attributabte
respectively to falthe first full-year of reporting of his private use of a drver basedon
thebenefit In-kind charge for the 2014/2015 tax year and {bjthe year or-year Increase
infus pay outunder the Pearsan annual incentwe plan

Relative importance of pay spend

The committee considers directors' remuneration in the
context of the company's allocation and disbursement of
resources to different stakeholders

In particular, we chose operating profit because this s

a measure of our ability to reinvest in the company We
include dividends because these constitute an important
element of our return to shareholders

Change
All figures in £ millions 2015 2014 £m %
Operating profit 723 722 1 0%
Dividends 423 397 26 7%
Total wages
and salanes 1,507 1,607 -100 -6%

Mate 1 Operating profitis as set out i the financisl statements

Mote 2 Wages and salaries Inchude continuing operations only and Include directors
2014 Is restated on the same basis Average employee numbers for continuing
operations fof 2015 were 37 265 (2014 38 654} Furtherdetalls are setout in

note 5 ts the financial statements oh page 155
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Information on changes te remuneration for 2016

Executive directors’ base salares

We have undertaken a regular periodic review of base
salarnes for 2016, taking into account general economic
and market conditions, the level of increases made
across the company as a whole, the remuneration of
executivesin similar positions in comparable companies
and indmvidual performance

As aresuit of this review, the 2016 base salanies for the
CEO and CFO are unchanged as follows

John Coram
£000s Fallon Wiliams
Base salary at
31 December 2015 £7803 £5150

Change 0% O%

£780.3 £515.0

Base salary at 1 April 2016

Annual incentive

Thekey design principtes underlying the company’s
approach to annual incentives for 2016 are the same
as for 2015, namely

» Full akignment of annual incentives with the global

business and education strategy to reinforce a'one
Pearson’ focus - the size of the pverall annual incentive
pay-outwill continue to be linked to overali Pearson
performance

» A clear, transparent, coherent, consistent, organisation-

wide approach to iIncentives and performance
rmanagementwith a common incentive framework
for all business units and enabling functions

It1s antictpated that the 2016 sales and cash metrics
and weightings remain unchanged from 2015
However, to align the AIP with the specific restructuning
achievements required in 2016, as noted inthe income
statement measure 1n our guidance to investors,
operabing profit after the cost of restructuring

would be added to the metrics with a 30% weighting
To accommodate this change, the weighting for EPS
would also be 30% (down from 60% weight for 2015)

The Pearson financial targets are set each year as part
of the normal operating plan process The CEQ and
CFO have recommended the overall Pearson incentive
funding metrics including performance measures,
targets and weightings} to the commuttee for approval
inthe normal way For 2016, the range of normal
rewarded performance 1s expected to be wider than
in previous years ~ and, In consequence, both the
threshold performance and the on-target funding

are setto be lower than in 2015

The board considers the performance targets for
2016 to be commercially sensttive Details of all
performance measures, weightings and targets will
be disciosed in the annual remuneration report for
2016 unless the committee determines thatthey
remain commercially sensitive

There has been no change in Individual annual ncentive
opportunities for the executive directors and the
Pearson executive

Annual incentive pay-outs are deterrmined according
to a combination of Pearson-wide performance and
individual goals The sum of the CEQ's and the Pearson
executives’ ‘on-target’ annual incentive constitutes the
incentive pool for this group which flexes up or down
based on overalt Pearson performance ndveduaf
performance is assessed agamnst goals set at the start
of theyear indivmdual pay-outs up to individual
maximum opportunities and within the total pool are
recommended by the CEO (or by the chairman in the
case of the CEO humself) for review and, In the case of
the executive directors, for approval by the commuttee

Special incentive and retention arrangernents

The committee agreed for 2016 tncentive and retention
arrangements for selected key employees, which will
vest, or not, N 2017 No executive directors participate
inthese Incentives
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Long-term incentives

The committee will continue to operate the jong-term
incentive plan for the executive directors and other
members of the Pearson executive inine with the
arrangements outlined i the 2013 report on directors’
remuneration

+The weighting of the performance metrics will remain
half on earnings per share, one-third anreturn on
invested capital and one-sixth on relative total
shareholder return However, the EPS targetis planned
to be absolute rather than a growth target, and aligned
with our external guldance to the market in January 2016

»Performance will be tested over three years and 75% of
the vested shares wilt be released at that point However,
there s a mandatory restriction on participants’ ability
to dispose of the 75% of the vested shares (other than
to meet personaltax liabiwes)for a further two years
Furthermore, participants' rights to the release of the
remaining 25% of the vested shares are subject to
continued employment over the same period

1 At the time of writing, the committee has yet to approve
the 2016 long-term incentive awards and the associated
performance targets for the executive directors and
other members of the Pearson executive These are
expected to be determined at the April meeting prior to
the anticipated May grant We expect to set targets for
the 2016 awards that are consistent with the company’s
market guidance over the period to 2018

We will set the level of individual awards consistent with
those seen inrecent years and within the policy
max)mum taking Into account

»The face value of individual awards at the bme of grant,
»assuming that performance targets are metm fulj
*Individual roles and responsibilities

> Company and individual performance

» Market practice for comparable companies and market
assessments of total remuneration from our
independent advisers

Full details of indwvidual awards for the executive
directors and the performance targets for 2016 will be
set outin the annual remuneration report for 2016

Appointment of chawrman

Our new chairman, Mr Sidney Taurel, has agreed to

lead our board for the same package that the outgoing
chairman recetved, that s a flat fee of £500,000 per year
He will not particpate in any form of Pearson incentive
arrangement He becamethe chairman effective
1January 2016

Chairman and non-executive directors

The fee for the chairman and fees for the non-executive
directors remainunchanged for 2016 Full details will be
set out In the annual remuneration report and included
in the single figure of total remuneration for 2016

Howaever, we intend to review these fees in hne with our
remuneration policy in late 2016 in ttime for our 2017
policy vote

The directors' remuneration report has been
approved by the board on 4 March 2016 and signed
on its behalf by

IMAGE REMOVED

Ehzabeth Corley
Chairman of the remuneration comrmittee
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Additional disclosures
Report of the directors

Pages 70 to 123 of this document compnise the directors’
report for the year ended 31 December 2015

QOther information that is required by the Companies
Act 2006 (the Act) to be included in the directors’ report,
and which s incorporated by reference, can belocated
as follows

I

Share capital

Details of share 1ssues are given innote 27 to the
accounts on page 200 The company has asingle class
of shares which is divided into ordinary shares of 25p
each The ordinary sharesare in registered form As at
31 December 2015, 821,068,560 ordinary shares were
n1ssue Atthe AGM held on 24 April 2015, the company

Summary disclosures index See more
was authorised, subject to certain conditions, to acquire

Dwidend recommendation p1t up t0 82,027,776 ordinary shares by market purchase
Financial instruments and Shareholders will be asked to renew this authority at
financial risk management note 19 the AGM on 29 April 2016
important events since year end p37 Information provided to the company pursuant to
Future development of the business p06-07 the Financial Conduct Authonty’s Disclosure and

Transparency Rules (DTR) is published on a Regulatory
Research and developmentactivities ps3 Information Service and on the company's website
Employment of disabled persons p62

As at 31 December 2015, the company had been notfied
Employee involvement ps9 under DTR 5 of the following holders of significant voting
Greenhouse gas emissions p64 rights inits shares

With the exception of the dividend waiver described
on page 122, there is no information to be disclosed
n accordance with Listing Rule S 8 4

Going concern

Number  Percentage

ofvoting  asatdateof

rights  notfication

BlackRock, Inc 42,201,515 513%
Schroders plc 42,151,560 513%

The directors have made an assessment of the
company’s ability to continue as a gomng concernand
consider it appropniate to adopt the going concern
basis of accountng

Viabihty statement

As set out on page 40 the board has also reviewed the
prospects of Pearson over the three year period to
December 2018 taking account of the company's
strategic plans, a‘severe but plausible’ downside case
and further stress testing based on the principal risks
setout on pages 41-45

Based on the resuits of these procedures, and
considering the company's strong balance sheet
fallowing the sale of the FT group, the directors have

a reasonable expectation that Pearsonwill be able to
continue in operation and meet its habilities as they fall
due over the three year period ending December 2018
This assumes a reasonable level of ongoing access to
capital either via Issuing commercial paper or drawing
onour revolving credit facility (see note 18 on p178)

Between 31 December 2015 and 2 March 2016, being
the latest practicable date before the publication of
this report, the company did not recerve any further
notrfications under DTRS

Annual General Meeting

The notice convening the AGM, to be held at 12 noon
an Friday, 29 April 2016 atIET London, 2 Savoy Place,
London WC2R 0BL, 1s contained inaarcularto
shareholders to be dated 23 March 2016

Registered auditors

tn accardance with section 489 of the Act, a
resolfution proposing the reappointment of
PrnicewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC) as auditors to
the company will be proposed atthe AGM, at afeve!
of remuneration to be agreed by the directors
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Auditors’ independence

tnline with best practice, our relationship with PwC

15 governed by our external auditars policy, which s
reviewed and approved annually by the audit committee
The policy establishes procedures to ensure the audstors
independence is not compromised, as well as defining
thase non-audit services that PwC may or may not
provide to Pearson

These allowable services are in accordance with relevant
UK and US legislation The audit committee approves

all audit and nen-audit services provided by PwC

Certain categonies of allowable non-audit services have
been pre-approved by the audit committee subject to
the authonties below

*Pre-approved non-audit services can be authorlsed by
the chief financtal officer up to £100,000 per project,
subject to a cumulative himut of £500,000 per annum

» Acquisition or disposat transactions and due diligence
up to £100,000 per project may be performed by our
external auditors, in light of the need for confidentiality
Any project/transaction generating fees in excess
of £100,000 must be specifically approved by the
audit committee

*Tax compiiance and related actmties up to the greater of
£1,000,000 per annum or 50% of the external audit fee

> For forward-looking tax advisory services we use the
most appropriate adviser, usually after a tender process
Where we decide to use our independent auditors,
authonty, up to £100,000 per project subjecttoa
cumulative kit of £500,000 per annum, has been
delegated by the audt committee to management

Services provided by Pw(C above these limits and all
other allowable non-audit services, rrespective of value,
must be approved by the audit committee Where
appropriate, serviceswill be tendered prior to a decision
betng made as to whether to award work to the auditors

The audit comrmittee raceives regular reports
summarising the amount of fees paid to the auditors
During 2015, Pearson spent considerabiy more on
non-audtt fees with PwC compared to 2014, dueto costs
relating to carve-out audits for businesses disposed

For 2015, non-audit fees represented 569 of external
audit fees {(37%1n 2014)

For all non-audit work 1n 2015, PwC were selected only
after consideration that they were best able to provide
the services we required at a reasanable fee and
within the terms of our external auditers policy

To assist in ensuring that independence and objectivity
Is maintained, for forward-lookingtax advisory and due
dibgence work PwC assign a different partner from the
one leading the external audit

Sigruficant non-audit work performed by PwC during
2015 included

» Audit-related work in refation to potential and actual
corporate finance transactions

»Tax comphance services related to aroutine audit by
the US Internal Revenue Service

»Tax advisory work on a number of UK, US and
international tax matters

* Assurance services on a corporate bond issued in
May 2015

»Consulting services related to the establishment of an
auditable efficacy framework

*Audit of IT general controls mandated by contractual
commutments

Afull statement of the fees for audit and non-audit
services is provided in note 4 to the accounts on
page 154

Fatr, balanced and understandable reporting

As required by the Code, we have established
arrangements to ensure that all information we
reportto investors and regulatorsis fair, balanced
and understandable A process andtimetable for the
production and approval of this year's report was
agreed by the board at 1ts meeting in December 2015
The fulf board then had opportunityto review and
comment on the report as it progressed

Representatives from financial reporting, corporate
affatrs, company secretanal, legal and internal audit and
cormnphance are involved in the preparation and review
of the annual report to ensure a cohesive and balanced
approach and, as wath all of our financial reporting, our
disclosure commuttee conducts athorough venfication
of narrative and financial statements

The audit committea s alsg avallable to advise the board
on certain aspects of thereport, to enable the directors
to fulfil their responsibility in this regard

The directors consider that the annual report and
accounts, taken as a whole, I1s fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary
for shareholders to assess the company's position and
performance, business model and strategy
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Report of the Directors continued

The directors also confirm that, for each director in office
at the date of thus report

> Sofar as the director is aware, there 1s no relevant
audit informatton of which the company's auditors
are unaware

>They have taken all the steps that they ought to have
taken as directors in order to make themselves aware
of any relevant auditinformation and to estabbsh that
the company’s auditors are aware of thatinformation

Directors in office

The following directors were in office during the year and
up untll sigming of the financial statements

GRMoreno S) Lewis
tepped down 31 December 2015
(S eppe: oWn ecember ] LK Lorimer
Fall
) Fallon H Manwani
RAD Freestons
(stepped down 1 August2015) T5core
TDG Arculus S Taurel
{stepped down 24 April 2015) {appointed 1 January 2016)
EPLCorley Lwallen
{appomted 1 January 2016}
Vv Cox
cwilliams
KJ Hydon {appointed 1 August 2015}

{stepped down 24 April 2015}

The directors’ report has been approved by the board on
4March 2016 and signed on its behalf by

IMAGE REMOVED

Stephen Jones
Company secretary

Statement of directors’ responsibnlities

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual
reportin accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year Under thatlaw

the directors have prepared the Group and parent
company financial statements 1n accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union Under company law
the directors must not approve the finanaal statements
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the company and the Group
and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period

In preparing these financial statements, the directors
arerequired to

»Select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently

> Make jJudgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent

»>State whether applicable |FRSs as adopted by the
European Union have been followed, subjectto any
matenal departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements

> Prapare the financial statements on a going concern
basis, unless it Is Inappropnate to presume that the
company will continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficlent to show and
explain the company’s transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy atany time the financal position of
the company and the Group and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements and the report on directors
rernuneration comply with the Actand, as regards

the Group finanaal statements, Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation They are alsc responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the company and the Group and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other rregulanities

The directors are responstble for the maintenance and
integrity of the company'swebsite Legislationinthe
UK governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in
other jurisdichons

Each of the directors, whose names and functions
are isted on p72-73 confirms that, to the best of
their knowledge

> The Group financial statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Urion, give a true and fair view of the assets,
liabilities, financial position and profit of the Group

» The strategic report contained i the annual report
includes a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the
Group, together with a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties that it faces

This respensibility statement has been approved by
the board on 4 March 2016 and stgned on its behalf by

IMAGE REMOVED

Coram Williams
Chief financial officer
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Additional shareholder information

Additicnal mformation for shareholders

Set out below s other statutory and regulatory
information that Pearson s required to disclose in
Its directors' report in comphance withDTR72 6

Amendment to articles of association

Any amendments to the articles of association of the
company{the Articles) may be made in accordance with
the provisions of the Act by way of a special resolution

Rights attaching to shares

The nghts attaching to the ordinary shares are defined
inthe Articles A shareholderwhose name appears on
the company’s register of members can choose whether
histher shares are evidenced by share certificates

(1e incertificated form) or held electronically (1 e
uncertificated form) in CREST {the electromic settlement
system inthe UK)

Subject to any restrnctions below, shareholders may
attend any general meeting of the company and,

on a show of hands, every sharehoider (or tus/her
representative) who is present at a generat meeting
has ane vote on each resolution, and on a poll, every
shareholder (whether an individual er a corporation)
presentn person or by proxy shall have one vote

for every 25 pence of nominal share capital held
Aresolution put to the vote at a general meeting1s
decided on a show of hands uniess before, or cn the
declaration of the result of, avote on a show of hands,
a pallis demanded A poll can be demanded by

the chairman of the meeting, or by at feast three
shareholders (or their representatives) presentin person
and having the right ta vote, or by any shareholders

{or their representatives) present in person having at
least 10% of the total voting rights of all shareholders,
or by any shareholders (or thetr representatives)
present in person holding ordinary shares onwhich an
aggregate sum has been pald up of at least 10% of the
total sum paid up on all ordinary shares Atthisyear's
AGM voting will again be conducted on a poll, consistent
with best practice

Shareholders can declare afinal dividend by passing

an ordinary resolution but the amount of the dividend
cannot exceed the amount recommended by the board
The board can pay interim dividends on any dass of
shares of the ameounts and on the dates and for the
peniods theydecide In all cases the distributable profits
of the company must be sufficient to justify the payment
of the relevantdividend

The board may, if authorised by an ordinary resolution of
the shareholders, offer any shareholder the night to elect
to receive new ordinary shares, whichwill be credited as
fully paid, instead of their cash dividend

Any dividend which has not been clalmed for 12 years
after it became due for payment will be forfeited and
will then beleng to the company, unless the directors
decide otherwise

If the company s wound up, the iquidator can, with
the sanction of a special resolution passed by the
shareholders, dvide among the shareholders all or
any part of the assets of the company and he/she can
value assets and determine how the division shall be
carried out as between the shareholders or different
classes of shareholders The liquidator can alseo, with
the same sanction, transfer the whole or any part of
the assets to trustees upon such trusts for the benefit
ofthe shareholders

Voting at general meetings

Any form of proxy sent by the shareholders to the
company in relaion to any general meeting must be
dehvered to the company (via its registrars), whether in
written or electronic form, not less than 48 hours before
the tme appointed for holding the meeting or adjourned
meeting at which the person named in the appointment
proposes tovote

The board may decide that a shareholder is not entitied
to attend or vote either personally or by proxyata
general meeting or to exercise any other right conferred
by being a shareholderif he/she or any personwith an
interest in shares has been sent a notice under section
793 of the Act {which confers upon public companies the
power to require information with respect to interestsin
their voting shares) and he/she or any interested person
failed to supply the company with theinformation
requested within 14 days after delivery of that notice
The board may also decide, where the retevant
shareholding comprises at least 6 25% of the nominal
value of the issued shares of that class, that no dividend
1s payable in respect of those default shares and that no
transfer of any default shares shall be registered
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Addittonal shareholder information continued

Pearson operates an employee benefit trust to hold
shares, pending employees becoming entitled to them
under the company's empioyee share pfans There were
6,704,505 shares held as at 31 December 2015 The trust
has anindependent trustee which has fult discretion In
relation to the voting of such shares A dividend wariver
operates on the shares held in the trust

Pearson also operates two nominee shareholding
arrangements which hold shares on behalf of
employees There were 2,871,174 shares heldinthe
Sharestore account and 309,841 shares held inthe
Global Norminee account as at 31 December 2015

The beneficial owners of shares held in Sharestore

are mnvited to submit voting instructions online at
www shareview co uk and Global Norminee participants
are invited to submuit voting instructions by e-mail to
nominee@eqguinit com If no instructions are given by
the beneficial owner by the date specified, the trustees
holding these shares will not exercise the voting nghts

Transfer of shares

The board may refuse to register a transfer of a
certificated share which is not fully paid, provided that
the refusal does not prevent dealings in shares in the
company from taking place on an open and proper basis
The board may also refuse to register a transferof a
certificated share unless (@) the instrument of transferis
lodged, duly stamped (if stampable), at the registered
office of the company or any other place decided by the
board, and i1s accompanied by the certificate forthe
share to which it relates and such other evidence as the
board may reasonably require to show the nght of the
transferor to make the transfer, {i) it 1s in respect of anly
one dass of shares, and () 1tis in favour of notmore
than fourtransferees

Transfers of uncertificated shares must be carried out
using CREST and the board can refuse to register a
transfer of an uncertificated share in accordance with
the regulations governing the operation of CREST

Variation of rights

If at any trme the capital of the company is divided inte
different classes of shares, the special rights attaching
to any class may be varied or revoked either

(1) with the written consent of the holders of at least 75%
in nominal value of the tssued shares of the relevant
classor

{ywith the sanction of a special resolution passed at a
separate general meeting of the holders of the shares
ofthe relevant class

Without prejudice to any special rights previously
conferred on the holders of any existing shares or class
of shares, any share may be issued with such preferred,
deferred, or other speclal rights, or such restrictions,
whether in regard to dividend, voting, return of capital
or otherwise as the company may from time to time by
ordinary resolution determine

Appointment and replacement cf directors

The Articles contain the following provistons in refation
to directors

Directors shall be noless than two in number

Directors may be appointed by the company by ordinary
resolution or bythe board Adirector appointed by the
board shall hold office only until the next AGM and shall
then be eligible for reappointment, but shall not be taken
Into account in determining the directors orthe number
of directors who are to retire by rotation at that meeting
The board may from time to time appoint one or more
directors to hold executive office with the company for
such pernod (subject to the provisions of the Act) and
upon such terms as the board may decide and may
revoke or terminate any appointment so made
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The Articles provide that, at every AGM of the company,
at least one-third of the directors shall retire by rotation
{or, If their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to one-third) The first directors toretire by
rotation shall be those who wish to retire and not offer
themselves for re-election Any further directors so

to retire shall be those of the other directors subjectto
retirement by rotation who have been longest in office
since they were last re-elected but, as between persons
who became or were last re-glected on the same day,
those to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among
themselves) be determined by lot Inaddition, any
director who would not otherwtse be required to retire
shall retire by rotation at the third AGM after they were
last re-elected

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Articles, the board
has resolved that afl directors should offer themselves
for re-election annually, in accordance with the Code

The company may by ordinary resolution remove any
director before the expiration of his/her term of office
In addition, the board may terrinate an agreement or
arrangement with any director for the provision of has/
her services to the company

Powers of the directors

Subject to the company’s Articles, the Actand any
directions given by special resolution, the business of
the companywill be managed by the board who may
exercise all the powers of the company, including
powers relating to the 1ssue and/or buying back of
shares by the company (subject to any statutory
restrictions or restnctions :mposed by shareholders
in general meeting)

Significant agreements

The following significant agreements contain provisions
entithing the counterparties to exercse termination

or other rights in the event of a change of control of

the company

Under the $1,750,000,000 revolving credit facility
agreement dated August 2014 which matures in August
2020 between, amongst others, the company, Barclays
Bank pic (Agent}and the banks and financial institutions
named therein as lenders (the Facility}, any such bank
may, upon a change of control of the company, require
its outstanding advances, together with accrued interest
and any other amounts payable In respect of such
Facility, and its commitments, to be cancelled, each
within 60 days of notification to the banks by the Agent
For these purposes, a‘change of control’ occurs if the
company becomes a subsidiary of any other company
orone or more persons acting either individually or in
concert, obtamns control (as defined in section 1124 of
the Corporation Tax Act 2010) of the company

Shares acquired throughthe cormnpany's employee share
plansrank pan passuwith shares inissue and have no
specialrights For legal and practical reasons, the rules
of these plans set out the consequences of a change of
cantrol of the company
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Additional disclosures
Report of the directors

Pages 70 to 123 of this document comprise the directors’
report for the year ended 31 December 2015

Other informatton thatis required by the Compantes
Act 2006 (the Act) to be included in the directors’ report,
and which s incorporated by reference, can be located
as follows

summary disclosures index Seemore
Dividend recommendation p11
Financial instruments and

financial risk management note 19
Important events since year end p37
Future development of the business p06-07
Research and development activities p53
Employment of disabled persons ps2
Employee involvement p59
Greenhouse gas emissions pe4

With the exception of the dvidend wawver described
on page 122, there is no information to be disclosed
i accordance with Listing Rule 9 8 4

Going concern

The directors have made an assessment of the
company's ability to cantinue as agolng concernand
consider it appropriate to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting

Viability statement

As set out on page 40 the board has also reviewed the
prospects of Pearson over the three year period to
December 2018 taking account of the company’s
strategic plans, a ‘severe but plausible’ downside case
and further stress testing based on the principal nsks
setouton pages 41-45

Based on the results of these procedures, and
considering the company’s strong balance sheet
following the sale of the FT group, the directors have
areasonable expectation that Pearson will be able to
continue in operation and meet its habihties as they fall
due over the three year period ending December 2018
This assumes a reasonable level of ongoing access to
capital either via Issuing commercial paper or drawing
on our revolving credit faciltty (see note 18 on p178)

Share capital

Details of shareissues are given in note 27 tothe
accounts on page 200 The company has a single class
of shares which s divided into ordinary shares of 25p
each The ordmaryshares are in registered form Asat
31 December 2015, 821,068,560 ordinary shares were
nissue Atthe AGM heid on 24 Apri 2015, the company
was authorised, subject to certain conditions, to acquire
up to 82,027,776 ordinary shares by market purchase
Shareholders will be asked to renew this authonty at
the AGM on 29 Aprit 2016

Information provided to the company pursuant ta

the Financlal Conduct Authority's Disclosure and
Transparency Rules {DTR} 1s published on a Regulatory
Information Service and on the company’s website

As at 31 December 2015, the company had been notfied
under DTR 5 of the following holders of significant voting
rights inits shares

Number  Percentage

ofvoting  asatdate of

nghts  notlfication

BlackRock, Inc 42,201,515 513%
Schroders pic 42,151,560 513%

Between 31 December 2015 and 2 March 2016, being
the latest practicable date before the publication of
this report, the company did not receive any further
natifications under DTR 5

Annual General Meeting

The notice convening the AGM, to be held at 12 noon
on Friday, 29 Aprll 2016 at IET London, 2 Savoy Place,
London WC2R 0BL, is contained In a circular to
shareholders to be dated 23 March 2016

Registered audstors

In accordance with section 489 of the Act, a
resolution preposing the reappontment of
PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP {PwC) as auditors to
the company willbe proposed at the AGM, at a level
of remunerationto be agreed by the directors
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Auditors’independence

In ine with best pracuce, our relationshipwith PwC

is governed by our external auditors policy, which s
reviewed and approved annually by the audit commuttee
The policy establishes procedures to ensure the auditors
independence 1s not compromised, as well as defining
those non-audit services that PwC may or may not
provide to Pearson

These allowable services are in accordance with relevant
UK and US legislation The audit committee approves

alt audit and non-audit services provided by PwC

Certain categories of allowabie non-audit services have
been pre-approved by the audit committee subject to
the authorities below

*Pre-approved non-audit services can be authorised by
the chieffinancial officer up to £100,000 per praoject,
subject to a cumulative lirmit of £500,000 per annum

»Acquisttion or disposal transactions and due diligence
up to £100,000 per project may be performed by our
external auditors, in hight of the need for confidentiality
Any project/transaction generating fees in excess
of £100,000 must be spedifically approved by the
auditcommittee

*Tax compliance and related activities up to the greater of
£1,000,000 per annum or 50% of the external audit fee

3 For forward-locking tax adwvisory services we use the
most appropiiate adviser, usually after a tender process
Where we decide to use our independent auditors,
authonty, up to £100,000 per project subjectto a
cumulative imit of £500,000 per annum, has been
delegated by the audit committee to management

Services provided by PwC above these hmits and al!
other allowable non-audit services, irespective of value,
rust be approved by the audit committee Where
appropriate, services will be tendered prior to a decision
being made as to whether to award work to the auditors

The audit committee recewves regular reports
summarising the amount of fees paid to the auditors
During 2015, Pearson spent considerably more on
non-audit fees with PwC compared to 2014, due to costs
refating to carve-cut audits for businesses disposed

For 2015, non-audit fees represented 56% of external
audit fees {37%1n 2014)

For all non-audit work in 2015, PwC were selected only
after consideration that they were best able to provide
the services we required at areasonable fee and
within the terms of our externai auditors policy

To assist in ensunng that independence and objectivity
s maintained, for forward-looking tax advisory and due
diligence work PwC assign a different partner from the
one leading the external audit

Significant non-audit work performed by PwC during
2015 included

» Audit-related work 1n relation to potenttal and actual
corporate finance transactions

> Tax compliance services related to aroutine audit by
the Us Internal Revenue Service

»Tax advisory work on a number of UK, US and
international tax matters

 Assurance services on a cerporate bond issued in
May 2015

»Consulting services related to the establishment of an
auditable efficacy framework

» Audit of IT general controls mandated by contractuat
commitments

A full statement of the fees for audit and non-audit
services s provided in note 4 to the accounts on
page 154

Fair, balanced and understandabfe reporting

As required by the Code, we have established
arrangements to ensure that atl information we
report to investors and regulators s far, balanced
and understandable A process and tmetable forthe
production and approval of this year's report was
agreed by the board at its meeting in December 2015
The full board then had opportunity to review and
comment on the report as It progressed

Representatives from financial reporting, corporate
affairs, company secretanal, legal and internal audit and
compliance are involved in the preparation and review
of the annual report to ensure a cohesive and balanced
appreach and, as with all of our financial reporting, our
disclosure committee conducts athorough venfication
of narrative and financial statements

The audit committee is also available to advise the board
on certain aspects of the report, to enable the directors
to fulfil their responsibiity in this regard

The directors consider that the annual report and
accounts, taken as awhole, is fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary
for shareholders to assess the company’s posttion and
performance, business model and strategy
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Report of the Directors continued

The directors also confirm that, for each directorin office
at the date of this report

>So far as the director (s aware, there 1s no relevant
audit nformation of which the company's auditars
are unaware

» They have taken ali the steps that they ought to have
taken as directors in order to make themsetves aware
of any relevant audit Informatton and to establish that
the company's auditors are aware of that information

Directors in office

The following directors were in office during the year and
up until signing of the financial statements

G RMoareno S}Lewis
dd

{stepped down 31 Decemnber 20115) LK Lorimer

)JFalion H Manwani

RAD Freestone Ts

{stepped down 1 AUBUSt2015) core

TD GArculus STauret

{stepped down 24 Aprii 2015) {appolnted 1 january 2016)
L Wallen

P L Corle

£ 4 {appointed 1 January 2016)

VCox
CWilliams

K| Hydon {appointed 1 August 2015)

(stepped down 24 April 2015)

The directors’ report has been approved by the board on
4March 2016 and signed on its behalf by

IMAGE REMOVED
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Statement of directors’ resporsibilitie

Stephen Jones
Company secretary

The directors are responsible fo)*qu;?‘ng the annual
reportin accordance with applicabi and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare fi nanacal
statements for each finanaal year Under that law

the directors have prepared the Group and parent
company financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union Under company law
the directors must not approve the financial staternents
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the company and the Group
and of the profit or loss of the Group for that period

In prepanng these financial statements, the directors
arerequired to

»Select suitable accounting policies and then apply
themn consistently

» Make Judgements and accounting estimates thatare
reasonable and prudent

»State whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the
European Unicn have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explainedin the
financial statements

> Prepare the financial statements on a going concern
basis, unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company wiil continue 1n business

The directors are respensible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the company’s transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financiat position of
the company and the Group and enable them to ensure
thatthe financial statements and the report on directors’
remuneration comply with the Act and, as regards

the Group financal statements, Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation Theyare also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the company and the Group and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and otherirregulanties

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and
integnity of the company’s website Legislation in the

UK governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ fromlegislation in
other junisdictons

Each of the directors, whose names and funcoons
are listed on p72-73 confirms that, tothe best of
thetr knowledge

»The Grougp financal statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with FRSs asadopted by the
European Union, give a true and fair view of the assets,
liabilittes, financial position and profit of the Group

>The strategic repertcontained in the annual report
includes a fair review of the developmentand
performance of the business and the position of the
Group, together with a description of the prinapal
risks and uncertainties thatit faces

This responsibility statement has been approved by
the board on 4 March 2016 and signed on its behaif by

IMAGE REMOVED

Coram Williams
Chief finanoal officer
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Additional shareholder information

Additional information for shareholders

Set out below Is other statutory and regufatory
information that Pearsons required to disclose In
its directors' reportin comphance withDTR7 2 6

Amendment to articles of association

Any amendments to the articles of association of the
company{the Artictes) may be made in accordance with
the provistons of the Act by way of a special resolution

Rights attaching to shares

The rights attaching to the ordinary shares are defined
inthe Articles A shareholder whose name appears on
the company's register of members can choose whether
his/her shares are evidenced by share certificates

{ & incertificated form) or held electronically (1 e
uncertificated form)in CREST {the electronic settiement
system in the UK)

Subject to any restnictions below, shareholders may
attend any general meeting of the company and,

on a show of hands, every shareholder (or his/her
representative} who is present at a general meeting
has one vote on each resolution, and ena poll, every
shareholder (whether an individual or a corporation)
present in person or by proxy shall have one vote

for every 25 pence of neminal share capital held
Aresolution put to the vote at a general meeting is
decided on ashow of hands unless before, or on the
declaration of the result of, a vote on a show of hands,
apollisdemanded A poll can be demanded by

the chawrman of the meeting, or by at least three
shareholders (or their representatives) present in person
and having the nght to vote, or by any shareholders

(or their representatives) present in person having at
least 10% of the total voting nights of all shareholders,
or by any sharehaolders (or their representatives)
present in person holding ordinary shares onwhich an
aggregate sum has been paid up of atleast 10% of the
total sum pard up on all ordinaryshares Atthisyear's
AGM votng will again be conducted on a poll, consistent
with best practice

Shareholders can declare afinal dividend by passing

an ordinary resolution but the amount of the dividend
cannot exceed the amount recommended by the board
The board can pay interim dividends on any class of
shares of the amounts and on the dates and for the
periods they decide In all cases the distnibutable profits
of the company must be sufficient to justify the payment
of the relevant divtdend

The board may, if authorised by an ordinary resolution of
the shareholders, offer any shareholder the night to elect
to recerve new ardinary shares, which will be credited as
fuily paid, instead of their cash dividend

Any dwvidend which has not been claimed for 12 years
after it became due for payment will be forferted and

willthen belong to the company, unless the directors

decide otherwise

If the company 1swound up, the liquidator can, with
the sanction of a special resolution passed by the
shareholders, divide among the shareholders all or
any part of the assets of the company and he/she can
value assets and determ:ne how the division shall be
carried out as between the shareholders or different
classes of shareholders The liquidator can also, with
the same sanction, transfer the whole or any part of
the assets to trustees upon such trusts for the benefit
ofthe shareholders

Voting at general meetings

Any form of proxy sent by the shareholdersto the
company in relation to any general meeting must be
delivered to the company (via its registrars), whether in
written or electronic form, not less than 48 hours before
the time appointed for holding the meeting or adjourned
meeting at which the person named in the appointment
proposes to vote

The board may decide that a shareholder is not entitied
to attend or vote either personally or by proxy ata
general meeting or to exercise any other right conferred
by betng a shareholder fhe/she or ary person with an
interestin shares has been sent anotice under section
793 of the Act (which confers upon public companies the
power to require informabion with respect to interestsn
theirvoting shares) and he/she or any Interested person
falled to supply the company with the information
requested within 14 days after delivery of that notice
The board may also decide, where the relevant
shareholding comprises at least 0 25% of the nominal
value of the 1ssued shares of that class, that no dvidend
1s payable in respect of those default shares and that no
transfer of any default shares shall be registered
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Additional shareholder information continued

Pearson operates an employee benefit trust to hold
shares, pending employees beccming entitied to them
under the company's employee share plans There were
6,704,505 shares heid as at 31 December 2015 The trust
has anindependent trustee which has full discretion in
relation to the voting of such shares A dividend waiver
operates on the shares held in the trust

Pearson also operates two nominee shareholding
arrangements which hold shares on behalf of
employees There were 2,871,174 shares held in the
Sharestore account and 309,841 shares heid inthe
Global Nominee account as at 31 December 2015

The beneficial owners of shares held in Sharestore

are tnvited to subrmit voting Instructions online at
www shareview co uk and Global Nominee participants
are (nvited to submit voting instructions by & mailto
nominee@equiniti com If no instructions are given by
the beneficial owner by the date speafied, the trustees
holding these shares will not exercise the voting rights

Transfer of shares

The board may refuse to register a transfer of a
certificated share which s not fully paid, provided that
the refusal does not prevent dealings in sharesn the
company from taking place on an open and proper basis
The board may also refuse to register a transfer of a
certificated share unless (1) the instrument of transfer s
lodged, duly stamped (if stampabile), at the registered
office of the company or any other place decided by the
board, and 1s accompamed by the certficate for the
share to which it relates and such other evidence as the
board may reasonably require to show the right of the
transferor to make the transfer; (u) it is in respect of only
one dass of shares, and (1) it1s in favour of not more
than four transferees

Transfers of uncertificated shares must be carried out
using CREST and the board can refuse to register a
transfer of an uncertificated share in accordance with
the regulations governing the operation of CREST

Variation of nghts

If at any time the capital of the company 1s dvided into
different classes of shares, the special rights attaching
to any class may be varied or revoked either

{1) with the written consent of the holders of atfeast 75%
in norminal value of the issued shares of the relevant
classor

() with the sanction of a special resolution passed at a
separate general meeting of the holders of the shares
ofthe relevant dlass

without prejudice to any special rights previousty
conferred on the holders of any existing shares or class
of shares, any share may be 1ssued with such preferred,
deferred, or other speclal rights, or such restrictions,
whether in regard to dividend, voting, return of capital
or otherwise as the company may from time to tirne by
ordinary resolution determine

Appointment and replacement of directors

The Articles contain the following provisions in refation |
to directors :

Directors shall be no less than two in number

Directors may be appointed by the compariy by ordinary
resolution or by the board A director appointed by the
board shall hold office only until the next AGM and shall
then be ehgible for reappointment, but shall not be taken
into account in determining the directors or the number
of directors who are to retire by rotation at that meeting
The board may from time to ttme appaoint one or more
directors to hold executive office with the company for
such period (subject to the provisions of the Act) and
upon such terms as the board may decide and may
revoke or terminate any appointment so made
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The Articles provide that, at every AGM of the company,
at least one-third of the directors shall retire by rotation
{or, If their number 1s not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to one-third) The first directors to retire by
rotation shall be those who wish to retire and not offer
themselves for re-election Any further directors so

to retire shall be those of the other directors subject to
retirement by rotation who have been longest in office
since they were last re-elected but, as between persons
who became or were last re-elected on the same day,
those to retire shall {unless they otherwise agree among
themselves) be determined bylot Inaddition, any
director who would not otherwise be required to retire
shall retire by rotauon at the third AGM after they were
last re-efected

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Articles, the board
has resolved that all directors should offer themselves
for re-election annually, in accordance with the Code

The company may by ordinary resolution remove any
director before the expiration of his/her term of office
In addition, the board mayterminate an agreement or
arrangementwith any director for the provision of his/
her services to the company

Powers of the directors

Subjectto the company’s Articles, the Act and any
directions given by special resolution, the business of
the company will be managed by the board who may
exercise all the powers of the company, including
powers relating to the i1ssue and/or buying back of
shares by the company (subject to any statutory
restrictions or restnctions imposed by shareholders
in general meeting)

Significant agreements

The following significant agreements contain provisions
entithng the counterparties to exercise termination

or other rights Inthe event of a change of control of

the company

Under the $1,750,000,G00 revolving credit facility
agreement dated August 2014 which matures 1n August
2020 between, amongst others, the company, Barclays
Bank plc{Agent} and the banks and financial institutions
named therein as lenders {the Faclity), any such bank
may, upon a change of control of the company, require
its outstanding advances, together with accrued interest
and any other amounts payable inrespect of stich
Facility, and 1ts commitments, to be cancelled, each
within 60 days of notification to the banks by the Agent
For these purposes, a ‘change of control’ occurs ifthe
company becomes a subsidhary of any other company
or one or more persons acting either individually orin
concert, obtains control (as definedin secticn 1124 of
the Corporatlion Tax Act 2010) of the campany

Shares acquired through the company’s empioyee share
plans rank pan passuwith shares inissue and have no
special nights Forlegal and practical reasons, the rules
of these plans set out the consequences of a change of
control of the company
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Independent auditors’ report to the members

of Pearson plc

Report on the financial statements

Qur opimon
Inour apinion

> Pearson plc's consolidated financal statements and
company financlal statements (the 'financial
statements’) give a true and fair view of the state of the
Group's and of the company's affairs as at 31 December
2015 and of the Group's profit and the Group's and the
company’s cash flows for the year then ended,

>The consolidated financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with international
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the European Union,

»The campany financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union and as applied in accordance with the
provisions of the Compantes Act 2006, and

»The financfal statements have been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006 and, as regards the consohdated financial
statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

Separate opirion in relation to IFRSs asissued by
the IASB

As explained in note 1 to the financial statements, the
Group, In addition to applying IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union, has also applied IFRSs as 1ssued by
the international Accounting Standards Board (IASB)

Our audit approach Overview

In our opimon, the consclidated financial statements
comply with IFRSs as 1ssued by the IASB

What we have audited
The financial statements, included within the annual
report and accounts (the ‘annual report’), comprise

> The consolidated and company balance sheets as at
31 December 2015,

s The consolidated income statement and consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year then
ended,

»The consolidated and company cash flow statements
and statements of changes in equity for the year then
ended, and

>The notes to the financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory mformation

Certan required disclosures have been presented
elsewhere in the annual report, rather thanin the
notes to the financal statements These are cross-
referenced from the financial statements and are
identified as audited

The financial reporting framework that has been
appiied in the preparation of the financtal statements
1s apphcable law and {FRSs as adopted by the
European Union and, as regards the company
financial statements, as applhed i accordance

with the prowisions of the Companies Act 2006

IMAGE REMOVED

sQOverall Group materiality £27m, which represents 4% of
adjusted profit before tax as disclosed in note 8 to the finandal
statements Referto page 130 for further details

>We conducted wark in five key territonies US, UK, Brazil, China
and South Africa In addition we obtamed an audit spinion on
the financial information reported by the associate Penguin
Random House {(PRH)

»The territortes where we conducted audit procedures,
together with work performed at corparate functions, shared
service centres and consolidated Group level, accounted for
approximately 8% of the Group's revenue, 104% of the
Group's loss profitbefore tax, and 76% of the Group's adjusted
profit before tax

> We focused on
- Revenue recognition including risk of fraud
— Carrying value of goodwili and intangible assets
= Major transactions
— Provision for uncertain tax liabthties
— Returns provisions
- Recoverablihty of pre-publication assets




Section § Financial statements 127

The scope of our aud:it and our areas of focus

We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing {UK and lreland}
(ISAs (UK & Ireland))

We designed our audit by determining materiality and
assessing the risks of material misstatement in the
consolidated and company financial statements In
partcular, we looked at where management made
subjective jJudgements, for example tn respect of
sigrificant accounting estimates that nvolved making
assumptions and considering future events that are
inherently uncertain As in all of our audits we also
addressed the risk of management override of internal
controls, iIncluding evaluating whether there was
evldence of bias by management that represented

a rnisk of material misstatement due to fraud

Area of focus

The risks of matenal misstatement that had the
greatest effect on our audit, Including the allocation

of our resources and effort, areidentified as areas

of focus In the table below We have also set out how
we tailored our audit to address these specific areas

n order to provide an opinion on the consolidated

and company financial statements as a whole Any
comments we make on the results of our procedures
should be read In this context Foreach area of focus
below, to the extent relevant, we evaluated the design
and tested the operating effectiveness of key internal
controls over financial reporting setin ptace by
management, ncluding testing the operation of IT
systems from which financial information i1s generated
Each of the areas of focus below are also referred to 1n
the audit committee report on pages 86 and 87 and in
the accounting policies on pages 140 and 147 This is not
a camplete list of all nsks identified by our audit

How our audit addressed the area of focus

Revenua recognition including risk of fraud

Refer to note 1 to the consolidated financial statements

There are two types of complex contracts that require significant

Judgements and estimates, which could be subject to elther

acoidental errors or deiiberate fraud

¥ Multiple element arrangements such as the sale of physical
textbooks accompanied by digital content or supplementary
workbooks, where revenue is recognised for each element as
if twere an ndnadual contractual arrangement requinng the
estimation of its relative falr value, and

» Certain fong-term contracts that span year end, whererevenue
is recognised using estimated percentage of completion based
on costs These Include contracts to design, develop and deliver
1esting and accreditation and contracts to secure students and
support the onfine dellvery of thewr teaching

These complex contracts generate material deferred revenue and

accrued income balances and are areas where misstatements in

the underlying assumptions or estimation calculations could have

amatenal effect on the financlal statements

In addition there are materlal shipments towards the period end

frommajor distribution locations giving rise to the potentlal risk of

acut-cfferror

Where books are sotd together with workbooks delivered later or
companion digital materials available online we assessed the basis
for allocation of the purchase price betweep each element and then
tested the detalled calcutations supporting these revenue deferrals
We found the revenue deferrals to be based on reasonable estimates
of the relative falr value of each element and the methods used to
calculate the deferrals properly calculated and consistently applied
for a selection of the larger, more judgemental and more recent
long term contracts covering bath testing activiies and online
delivery of teaching, we read the contracts and assessed the
accounting methodologies being apphed to calculate the proportion
of revenue being racognised We also tested costsincurred to date
and management's estimates of forecast costs and revenues by
reference ta histoncal experience and current contract status,
induding examining correspondence where contracts are
experlendng disputes.

Our testing showed that revenuerecognition practices are in
accordance with Group policies and related accounting standards
with appropriate methods for calculating the revenue recognised
See our work performed over the returns provisions which includes
our work over the risk of cut-off
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Pearson plc continued

Areaoffocus

How our audit addressed the area of focus

Carrylng values of goodwill and Intangible assets

Refer to note 11 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group has £4 134m of goodwill and £1,030m of otherintangible
assets meluding software, acquired customer lists, contracts and
relationships, acquired trademarks and brands and acquired
publlshing rights at 31 December 2015

During the year, the Group recognised an £826m goodwill
impairment charge across six aggregated cash generating units
{CGUs) North America (£282m) Brazll (£269m) China (£181m), South
Africa (£48m), Other Growth (£9m), and Core (E37m} in addition
performance in speclfic businesses also resulted in a £23m
ntangibles impairment charge The total impairment charge frem
these Items I3 EB49m

The carrying values of goodwill and Intangible assets are dependent
on future cash flows of the underlying CGUs and there s risk that
ifthese cash flows do not meet management's expectations the
assets will be impalired This riskIncreases in perlods when the
Group's trading performance and projections do not meet prior
expectations, such asin 2015

The impairment reviews performed by management contain a
number of stgnificant judgements and estimates ncluding CGL
rdentification, operating profit forecasts, cash conversion, perpetuity
growth rates anddiscount rates Changes Inthese assumpuons
canresult inmaterially differentimpairment charges or avajlable
headroom

We obtarned management’s goadwill impairment model and tested
and agreed the reasonableness of key assumptians, including CGU
identification, operating profit forecasts, perpetuity growthrates
and discount rates We tested the mathematical integrity of the
farecasts and carrying values in management's impalrment

medel and confirmed that management s estimate of each CGU's
recoverable amount s appropriately based on the higher of fair
value {ess cost of disposal and value-In use

We agreed the forecast cash flows to board-approved budgets

and market communications, assessed how these budgets are
complled and understood key judgements and estimates within
thern, including short term growth rates, cost altecations and the
Inclusion of restructuring costs and benefits in a fair value less cost
of disposal model

we compared shortand long-tarm growth rates, including cash
conversation, to historical trends and expectat:ons Wealso
cansidered the accuracy of prior period forecasts

We used valuations speciallsts to assess the perpetuity growth

rate and discount rate for each CGU by comparlson to third party
informatian, past performance, the Group's cost of capital and
relevant nsk faetors

We performed our own sensitivity anafyses to understand the
impact of reasonable changes in the key assumptions We agree with
management's decision to provide additlonat disclosures in note 1%
of the financiai statements given that reasonably possible changes
inthe assumptions coutd materially impact the impairment charges
or availabie headroom

We checked for additlonal Impalrment triggers by reading board
minutes holding regular drscussions with Group and focal
management, and examining the perfermance of recently acquired
businesses to identify underperforming operations We drd not
identify any further Impalrments

As a result of our work, we determined that the Impairment charge
recogrised in 2015 was reasonably cafculated and recorded at
materially appropnate exchange rates For those CGUswhere
management determined that no impalrment charge was required
and that no additional sensutwity disclosures should be grven, we
consider these judgements to be weli supported by reasonable
assumptions that would require significant downside changes
befere an rmpairment charge was necessary

Major transactions

Refer to note 31 to the consolidated financial statements

injuly 2015 Pearson completed the sale of PowerSchool to Vista
Equity Partners for cash conslderation of £222m, resulting in a net
pre-tax impact of £30mwithin continuing operations {after related
write downs of £70m)

In October 2015 Pearson completed the first tranche of the sale

of Its 50% stake in The Econormst Group to Exer S p A and to

The Econemist Group itself for cash consideration of £377m and
remeasurement of the retained 11% investment of £52m, resulting
n a pre-tax gatn on disposal of £473m preseniedn discontinued
aperatiens The Group's rernaining 11% mvestrent does not
constitute significant influence so s being held as an available for
sale investment atfair value unti! the second tranche campletes
InNovemnber 2015 Pearson completed the sale of the Financiai Times
Group (FT} to Nikkel Inc for cash eonsideration of £858m, resufting
inapre tax gain on disposal of E711m presented in discontinued
operations

These amounts are highly material and include jJudgementsin areas
such as the write downs related to PowerSchool and the retained
Investmentin The Economist Group

We obtained the sales documents and related contracts and agreed
the elements of the gain calculations ta them

We agreed the cash consideration to bank staterments, any retained
Investrmentor assets to the contracts and verified the underfying
carrying value before disposal to financial records We agreed the
remeasurement of the retained investment of the Economist to

fair value imptied by the contract we reperformed the calculations
for mathematical accuracy, considered the appropriateness of

the disposal costs and related write downs and vouched them

to supporting evidence We assessed the presentation of each
disposed business (as continulng or discontinued) by reference to
its size and nature We also considered the related tax judgements
and recoverability of linked pre publication assets

Nematerial misstatements were Identified by our testing We were
satisfied that the presentation of each gain and the related write
downs was supportable and we found that appropriate disclosures
were inciuded In the annuai report
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Area of focus

How our audit addressed the area of focus

Provision for uncertain tax liabllitles

Refer to notes 7 and 13 to the consolidated financial statements
The Group Is subject to several tax regimes due to the geographical
diversity of lisbusinesses

Management is required to exercise significant judgementin
determining the appropriate amount to provide Inrespect of
potential tax exposures and uncertain tax provisions The most
significant of these refate to U5 tax

Changes in assumptions about the views that might be taken by tax
authoritles can materlally Impact the level of provisions recorded
in the flnancial statements and there are significant Judgements In
estimating the amount of any provision required

We engaged with our tax experts and obtained an understanding of
the Group's tax strategy to identify tax risks relating to business and
legislative developments To assess the adequacy of the Group's tax
pravisions we first recalculated the valuation of tax provislons and
determined whether the treatments adopted were In line with the
Group’s 1ax policies and had been applied consistently

We then evaluated the key underlying assumptions particularlyin
the US and In territories with new cross-barder tax structures in
doing this we considered the status of recentand current tax
authority audits and enquirles, the outturn of previous claims,
judgemental positions taken intax returns and current year
estimates inciuding those anising from signtficant disposals, and
developments In the tax #anvironment We also evaluated the
conslstency of management's approach to estabfishing or changing
provision estimates

We were satisfled that management’s provislon estimates for
ungertain tax positions were conslsteni with our own assessment
of the related risks and correspondence with the relevant tax
authoritles

Returns provisions

Refer to note 22 to the consolldated financial statements

There are material, judgemental provisions for anticipated book
returns on the balance sheet as at 31 December 2015, particularlyin
US Higher Educatlon

As the Group transitions from print to digital the raturns profile will
change with a corresponding impact onreturns provisions

we performed testing over returns provisions in a number of
lacations, including US Higher Education

We tested the calculation of the provisions, assessing Judgements
for reasonableness agafnst historical experience and the Impact
onreturns of the engolng buslness transiticn from print to digital
We also performed detalled testing of shipment and returns
provisioning This included checking cut-off at year end and
evaluating whether any changes in shipping velumes around year
end might increase the nsk of returns Memisstatements were
identified

We evaluated changes I estimates to checkthey were not Indicators
of management blas. We found the estimates used by management
In the determination of the returns provisions to agpropriately
reflectboth past experience and changes inthe business

Recoverability of pre-publication assets

Refer to note 20 to the consolldated financial statements

The Graup has £841m of pre publication assets at 31 December
2015 Pre-pubhcation assets represent direct costs incurredinthe
development of education platforms programmes and titles priorto
thew public release

The PowerSchoot disposal caused management to assess the
carrying value of a serles of pre publication and platform
mvestments and consequently record a wrlte down of £70m
Judgementis required to assess the recoverabllity of the carrylng
value of these assets, this is further complicated by the transition to
digital as the Group Invests In new, less proven, inter linked digital
content and platforms

We first assessed the appropriateness of capitalisation policles and
then selected a sample of costs deferred to the balance sheet as
pre publication assets to test their magnitude and appropriateness
for capltalisation

We then assessed the amortisation profiles of pre-publication
assets agalnst cash flows to test that the existing amortisation
profiles remained apprapnate in light of thetransition towards
digital products

We chalienged the carrying value of certain pre publication assets
where products are yet to be launched areless proven, or where
sales are lower than eniginally anticipated We assessed forecast
cash flows agalnsthistorical experience and obtained supporting
evidence for management's explanations We comparedshortand
long-term growth rates to historical trends and expectations

we thallenged thelife of the assets compared to similar Pearsen
products and found the Graup's polities to be appropriate and
consistently apphed While the carrying valueof some assets
depends on conslderable future sales growth everall we considered
the year end carnyng values to be reasonable

$59UISNG INY

@uewuopadang

Vedun pr3og ing

dUeUIBADD)

SIS [RIDURYY



130 Pearson pic Annual repert and accounts 2015

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Pearson ple continued

How we tailored our audit scope

We tailored our audit scope to ensure that we
performed enough work to be able to give anopinion
on the financial statements as a whole, taking into
account the geographic structure of the Group, the
accounting processes and controls, and the industry
inwhich the Group operates

The Group 1s organised into three reportable segments,
being North America, Core and Growth, plus the
assoclate investment n associate Penguin Random
House Each segment comprises a number of

reporting units The consolidated financial statements
comprise these reporting units plus the Group’s
centralised functions

in estabiishing the overall approach to the Group audit,
we determined the type of work that needed to be
performed at the reporting units by us, as the Group
engagement team, or component auditors within PwC
UK and from other PWC network firms operating under
our instruction Where the work was performed by
component auditors, we determined the level of
involvement we needed to have in the auditwork at
those reporting units to be able to conclude whether
sufficient appropriate audit evidence had been
obtained as a basts for our opinien on the consolidated
financial statements as a whole

Duning the year members of the Group engagement
team visited each of the US, Brazshan, Chinese and
South African component audit teams, held a planning
meeting attended by partners from the Group
engagement team and our UK and US compaonent
teams, and had regular dialogue with component
teams throughout the year

Wedentified two reporting units in the Us and UK

that required an audit of their complete financial
information due to their financial significance, plus a
further 13 reporting units in the US, UK, Braz!l, China
and South Africa that required either an auditor
specified procedures on certain transacttons and
balances We also obtained an audt opimon from PwC
Germany on the financial Information of the associate
Penguin Random House The Group consofidation,
finanoal statement disclosures and corporate functions
were audited by the Group engagement team This
included our work over dervative financial instruments,
hedge accounting, goodwill and intangible assets
imparment reviews, htigation, pensicns and share-
based payments

The reporung units where we performed auditwork,
together with work performed at corporate functions,
shared service centres and consolidated Group level,
accounted for approximately 68% of the Group's
revenue, 104% of the Group's loss before tax and 76%
of the Group's adjusted profit before tax This provided
the evidence we needed for our opinion on the
consoiidated financial statements taken as a whole

Matenality The scope of our audit was influenced by our
apphication of matenality We set certain quantitative
thresholds for materiality These, together with
qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the
scope of our audit and the nature, timing and extent

of our audit procedures on the individual financial
statement line items and disclosures and in evaluating
the effect of misstatermnents, both individually and on
the financial statements as a whole

Based on our professional judgement, we determined
materiality for the financial statements as awhole
as follows

Overall Group £27m (2014 26m}
matenality

How we 4% of adjusted profit before tax of £677m
deterrined it

Rationale for  Note 8 of the financlal statements explains

benchmark that the Group's principal measure of

applied performance 1s adjusted operatng profit
{£723m), which excludes one-off gains
and losses and acquired intangible asset
amortisation n orderto presentresults from
operating activities on a consistent basts
From adjusted operating profit we deducted
net finance costs of £46m {see note 8)
because these mainly reflect recurring
finance charges To the resulting adjusted
profit before tax we then applied 4%
(rather than the usual 5%) as our materiality
calculation was based on an adjusted
measure

Component For each component in our auditscope, we

matenahty allocated a matertality that is less than our
overall Group materiality The range of
materiality allocated across components was
between £3m and £24m




Section 5 Financlal stataments 131

We agreed with the audit committee that we would
report to them misstatements identified during our
audit above £2m (2014 £2m) as well as misstatements
below that amount that, in our view, warranted
reporting for qualitative reasons

Going concern Under the Listing Rules we are required
to review the directors’ statement, set out on page 118,
in relation to going concern We have nothing to report
having performed our review

Under 15As (UK & [reland) we are required to report

to you if we have anything matenal to add or to draw
attention to in relation to the directors' statement
aboutwhether they considered it appropriate to adopt
the gaing concern basts in preparing the financial
statements We have nothing matersal to add or to
draw attention to

Other required reporting

As noted in the directors’ statement, the directors have
concluded thatitis appropriate to adopt the going
concern basisin preparing the financial statements
The golng concern basis presumes that the Group
and company have adequate resources to remain In
operation, and that the directors intend them to do
s, for at least one year from the date the financial
statements were signed As part of our audit we have
concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern
basis 1s appropriate However, because not all future
evants or conditicns can be predicted, these
statements are not a guarantee as to the Group's and
company's ability to continue as agong concern

Consistency of other information
Companies Act 2006 opimions

In our opinion

»>Theinformatton given in the strategic report and the report of the directors for the financtal year for which the
financial statements are prepared 15 consistent with the financial statements, and

»The information given in the Governance Report set out on pages 69 to 93 with respect to internal control and
risk management systems and about share capital structures Is consistent with the financial statements

ISAs {UK & Ireland) reporting

Under iSAs (UK & Ireland) we are required to report to you if, in our opinion

> Information in the annual reportis

- matenrially tnconsistent with the information in the audited financial statements,

We have no
exceptions toreport

- apparently matenially incorrect based on, or matenially inconsistent with, our knowledge
of the Group and company acquired in the course of performing our audit, or

- otherwise misleading

3 The explanation given by the directors on page 119, in accordance with provision C 11
of the UX Corporate Governance Code {the 'Code’), as to why the annual report does not

We haveno
exceptions to report

include a statement that they consider the annual report taken as a whole to be farr,
balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for members to
assess the Group’s and company’s position and performance, business model and strategy
1s materlally tnconsistent with our knowledge of the Group and company acquired in the

course of performing our audit

»The section of the annual report on pages 82 to 87, as required by prowision C 3 8ofthe
Code, describing the work of the audit committee does not appropnately address matters

communicated by us to the audit committee

We have no
exceptlons toreport
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Pearson plc continued

The directors’ assessment of the prospects of the Group and of the principal nsks that would threaten

the solvency or hquidity of the Group

Under ISAs (UK & Ireland) we are required to report to you if we have anything material to add or to draw attention

tomnretation to

>The directors’ cenfirmation on pages 40 and 118 of the annuat report, in accordance with
proviston C 2 1 of the Code, that they have carried out a robust assessment of the principal
nisks facing the Group, including those that would threaten its business model, future

performance, solvency or liguidity

We have nothing
materialto add or to
draw attention 1o

»The disclosures in the annual report that describe those nisks and explain how they are

being rnanaged or mitigated

We have nothing
material to add or to
draw attention to

»The directors’ explanatton on pages 40 and 118 of the annual report, In accordance with
provision C 2 2 of the Code, as tc how they have assessed the prospects of the Group, over
what pertod they have done so and why they consider that pertod to be appropriate, and

We have nothing
material to add or to
draw attention to

their statement as to whether they have a reasonable expectaton that the Group wll be
able to continue 1n operation and meet its habilities as they fall due over the penod of their
assessment, including any related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary

quahfications or assumptions

Underthe Listing Rules we are required to review the
directors’ statement that they have carried out a robust
assessment of the principal nsks facing the Group and
the directors’ statement in relation to the longer-term
viability of the Group Qur review was substantially less
in scope than an audit and only consisted of making
Inguiries and censidering the directors’ process
supporting their statements, checking that the
statements are in algnmentwith the relevant
provisions of the Code, and considering whether the
statements are consistent with the knowledge acquired
by us in the course of performing our audit We have
nothing to report having performed our review

Adequacy of accounting records and information
and explanations received

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are requiredto
report to you ¢, iInour opinion

»We have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audit, or

> Adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
company, or returns adequate for our aucht have not
been received from branches not visited by us, or

» The company financial statements and the part of the
directors’ remuneration report to be audited are notin
agreementwith the accounting records and returns

We have no exceptions to report ansing fram this
responstbihty

Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration report - Companies Act 2006
opinion in our opinion, the part of the directors’
remuneration report to be audited has been properly
prepared in accordance with the Compares Act 2006

Other Companies Act 2006 reporting Under the
Companies Act 2006 we arerequired to reporttoyou
if, in our opinion, certaln disclosures of directors'
remuneratton specified by law are not made We have
no exceptions to report anising from this responsibility

Corporate governance statement

Under the Compames Act 2006 we are required to
report to you if, in our opinion, a corporate governance
statement has not been prepared by the company

We have no exceptions toreportansing from this
responsibility

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the
part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating
to ten further provisions of the Code We have nothing
to report having performed our review
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Responsibilities for the financial statements
and the audit

Qurresponsibihittes and those of the directors

As explained more fully in the statement of directors’
responsibilities set out on page 120, the directors

are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a
true and fair view

Qur responsibiiity s to audit and express an opinion on
the financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and 1SAs (UK & Ireland) Those standards require us
to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical
Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared
for and only for the company’s members as abody In
accardance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006 and for no ather purpase Wedo not, ingiving
these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom this
reportis shown or into whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent inwriting

What an audit of financial statements involves

An audit nvolves obtaining evidence about the
amounts and disclosures inthe financial statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from matenial
musstatement, whether caused by fraud or error
This includes an assessment of

*Whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the
Group's and the company’s carcumstances and have
been consistently applied and adequately disclosed,

> The reasonableness of sigmificant accounting estitmates
made by the directors, and

*The overall presentation of the financial statements

We primarily focus our work in these areas by assessing
the directors’ judgements against avallable evidence,
formung our own judgements, and evaluating the
disctosures inthe financial statements

We test and examine information, using sampling and
other auditing techniques, to the extent we constder
necessary to provide a reasonable basis for us to draw
conclusions We cbtain audit evidence through testing
the effectiveness of controls, substantive procedures or
a combination of both

In addition, we read atl the financial and non-financial
information in the Annual report to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements
and to identify any information thatis apparently
materially incorrect based on, or matenally inconsistent
with, the knowledge acquired by us tn the course of
performing the audit Ifwe become aware of any
apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies

v&conside the jmplications for our report
A A
Stuart Newma LA

{Sentar Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

4 March 2016
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Consolidated income statement

Year ended 31 December 2015

2014

All figures in € mitlions Notes 2015 restated
Sales 2 4,468 4,540
Cost of goods sold 4 (1,981} {2,021}
Gross profit ' 2,487 2,519
Operating expenses 4 (2,094) {2,125)
Impairment of intangible assets 11 (849) 7n
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 12 52 N
Operating (loss)/profit 2 (404) 348
Finance costs (100) (140)
Frnance income 6 ra 47
{Loss)/profit before tax (433) 255
Income tax 7 81 (56}
{Loss)/profit for the year from continuing operations {352) 199
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 3 1175 271
Profit for the year 823 470
Attributable to

Equity holders of the company 823 471
Non-controfling interest - 1)
Earnings per share for profit from continuing and discontinued operations

attributable to equity holders of the company dunng the year

(expressed in pence per share)

- basic 8 101 2p S81p
~diluted 101 2p 58 Op
{Loss)/earrungs per share for (loss)/profit from continuing operations

attributable to equity holders of the company during the year

(expressed in pence per share}

- basic {43 3)p 247p
- diluted (43 3)p 24 6p
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Year ended 31 December 2015

Altfigures in £ millions Notes 2015 2014
Profit for the year 823 470
ttems that may be reclassified to the income statement

Net exchange differences on translation of foreign operations - Group (85) 150
Net exchange differences on translation of foreign operations - assoclates 16 25
Currency translation adjustment disposed - Group (10) (2)
Attributable tax 7 S (6)
ltems that are not reclassified to the iIncome statement

Rerneasurement of retirement benefit obligations - Group 25 110 23
Remeasurement of retirement benefit obligations - assoclates 8 (15}
Attributable tax 7 24 (1)
Other comprehensive income for the year 20 174
Total comprehensive income for the year 843 644
Attributable to

Equity holders of the company 845 645
Non-controlling interest (2) ()
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Consolidated balance sheet

As at 31 December 2015

All figures in £ millions Notes 2015 2014
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 10 320 334
Intangible assets n 5,164 6,310
Investments In joint ventures and associates 12 1,103 1,118
Deferred income tax assets 13 276 295
Financial assets - derivative financial instruments 16 78 90
Retirement benefit assets 25 337 190
Other financial assets 15 143 54
Trade and other recevables 22 115 82
7,536 8,473
Current assets
Intangible assets - pre-publication 20 841 820
Inventories 21 1 224
Trade and other recewvables 22 1,284 1,310
Ftnancial assets - derivative financial instruments 16 32 24
Frnancal assets - marketable securities 14 28 16
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding overdrafts) 17 1,703 530
4,099 2,924
Total assets 11,635 11,397
hiabthties
Non-current habilities
Financial habilities - barrowings 18 (2,048) {1,883)
Financal liabilities - dervative financral Instruments 16 {136) (73)
Deferred income tax liabilittes 13 {560} (714)
Retirement benefit obligations 25 (139) (163)
Provisions for other habilities and charges 23 (71 82)
Other habilities 24 {356} {310)
(3,310) (3,225)
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As at 31 December 2015

Section 5 Financial statements

137

Alifigures in Emillions Notes 2015 2ma
Currenthabilities
Trade and other liabilities 24 {1,390) (1,6017)
Financial habilities - barrowings 18 (282} (342)
Financial hiabilittes - denvative financial instruments 16 29) n
Current iIncome tax liabilities {164) (150)
Prowvisions for other habilities and charges 23 (42} (53)
(1,907) (2,187)
Total hiabilities (5,217) (5.412)
Net assets 6,418 5,985
Equity
Share capital 27 205 205
Share premium 27 2,590 2,579
Treasury shares 28 (72) {(75)
Transfation raserve 7N 70
Retained earnings 3,698 3,200
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the company 6.414 5979
Non-controlling interest 4 6
6,418 5,985

Total equity

These financtal statements have been approved for issue by the board of directors on 4 March 2616 and signed on its

behalfby

Coram Willams
Chief financial officer
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Year ended 31 December 2015

Equity attributable to equity holders of the campany

Share Share  Treasury Translatton Retamned contr;:ll.lanng- Total
Allfigures In £ milhans capital  premium shares reserve  earnings Total interest equity
At1January 2015 205 2,579 (75} 70 3,200 5,979 6 5,985
Profit for the year - - - - 223 823 - 823
Other comprehensive income - - - 77} 99 22 {2) 20
Total comprehensive income - - - rn 922 845 2) 843
Equity-settled transactions - - - - 26 26 - 26
Tax on equity-settled transactions - - - - {1) m - {1)
tssue of ordinary shares under
share option schemes - " - - - " - 11
Purchase of treasury shares - - (23) - - (23) - (23)
Release of treasury shares - - 26 - (26) - - -
Changes in non-controlling interest - - - - - - - -
Dividends - - - - (423)  (423) - (423)
At 31 December 2015 205 2,590 (72) {7} 3,698 6,414 4 6,418
Equrty attributable to eguity holders of the company Non
Al figuresin Emillions cz';;la:I prefrgz: Trg:f;:g Trar:zl:;lrzz I:::ii]r:‘egg Total :or:{t&u;lllr;gt egzltta;
At1)anuary 2014 205 2,568 (98) (103) 3,128 5,700 ) 5,706
Profit for the year - - - - an 47 (1) 470
QOther comprehensive Income - - - 73 1 174 - 174
Total cornprehensive ncome - - - 173 472 645 {1) 644
Equity-settled transactions - - - - 32 32 - 32
Tax on equity-settled transactions - - - - {3 $3 7 s
Issue of ordinary shares under
share option schemes - 1 - - - 11 - 1
purchase of treasury shares - - (9 - - 9 - 9)
Release of treasury shares - - 32 - (32) - - -
Changes in non-controlling interest - - - - - - 2 2
Dividends - - - - (397) (397) )] {398)
At 31 December 2014 205 2,579 {75 70 3,200 5,979 6 5,985

The translation reserve mcludes exchange differences arsing from the translation of the net investment n foreign
operations and of borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments Changes
in non-controling interest in 2014 relate to the disposal of a non-controlling interest in a Chinese business
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Consolidated cash flow statement

Year ended 31 December 2015

139

Allfigures in £ millions Notes 2015 2014
Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash generated from operations 32 518 704
interest paid (75) (86)
Tax paid (232) (163)
Net ¢cash generated from operating activities 21 455
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired 30 (9) (448}
Acquisition of joint ventures and associates an (12}
Purchase of investments (7) (3)
Purchase of property, plantand equipment (86) 75)
Purchase of intangible assets (161) (107)
Disposal of subsidianes, net of cash disposed 31 1,030 327
Proceeds from sale of associates 379 39
Proceeds from sale of investments 13 9
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 32 2 9
Proceeds from sale of intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of liquid resources 17 12
Loans repatd byf{advanced to) related parties 7 (10}
Loans advanced - (2)
Investment in hlquid resources 29} (22)
Interest receved 24 13
Dividends received from joint ventures and assacrates 162 120
Net cashreceived from/{used in) investing activities 1,332 (148)
Cash flows from financing activities
Praceeds from issue of ordinary shares 27 1 "
Purchase of treasury shares 28 (23) {9)
Proceeds fram borrowings 372 404
Repayment of borrowings (300) (538)
Finance Jease pnincipal payments (1 {4)
Dividends paid to company's shareholders 9 (423) (397)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest - (1)
Net cash used in financing activities (364) (534}
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (19) (2)
Netincreasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivatents 1,160 (229)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 511 740
1,671 511

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 17

The consohidated cash flow statement includes discontinued operations (see note 3)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

General information

Pearson plc{the company), its subsidiaries and
associates (together the Group) are internationat
businesses covering educational courseware,
assessments and services, and consumer publishing
through its associate interest in Penguin Random
House

The company 1s a public limited company incorporated
and domiciled in England The address of its registered
office 1s 80 Strand, London WC2R ORL

The company has its primary listing on the London
Stock Exchange and 1s also histed on the New York
Stock Exchange

These consohdated financial statements were
approved for issue by the board of directors on
4 March 2016

1 Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
areset out below

a Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the going concern basis and in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
and JFRS Interpretations Committee interpretations
as adopted by the European Union (EU) and with

those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to
companies reporting under IFRS Inrespect ofthe
accounting standards applicabie to the Group there

15 no difference between EU-adopted and |ASB-
adopted IFRS -

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention as
maodhfied by the revaluation of financial assets and
habilities (including denvative financial instruments)
to fair value through profit or loss

The pnior year financial statements have been
restated to reflect the classification of FT Group
as adiscontinued operaton

1 interpretations and amendments to published
standards effective 2015 The following amendments
and interpretations were adopted in 2015

r»Amendments to I1AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits Defined
Benefit Plans - Employee Contributions’

» Amendments to IFRS 2 ‘'Share based Payment
Definition of vesting conditions’

> Amendmenits to IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations
Accounting for contingent consideration i a business
combination and scope exemnptions for joint ventures'

»Amendments to IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments
Aggregation of operating segments and reconciliation
of segment assets to entity’s assets’

s Amendments to |AS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures
Key management personnel’

» Amendments to IFRS 12 Fair Value Measurement
Short term receivables and payables’

The adoption of these new pronouncements from
1 January 2015 does not have a material impacton
the consclidated financial statements

2 Standards, interpretations and amendments

to published standards that are nat yet effective
The Group has not early adopted the following new
pronouncements that are not yet effective

IFRS 9 ‘Finanacial Instruments’, effective for annual
reperting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
The new standard details the requirements for the
classification, measurement and recagnition of financial
assets and labiitrles The Group 1s yet to assess the fult
impact of IFR59

IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers),
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2018 The new standard speaifies
how and when an entity will recognise revenue, and
requires more detailed disclosure Adoption ofthe
new standard s likely to have an wmpact on the Group

and management s currently assessing the impact ™'~

IFRS 16 ‘Leases, effective for annual reporting pertods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019, The new standard
details the requirements for the classification,
measurement and recognition of lease arrangements
Adoption of the new standard is likely to have an impact
on the Group and management 1s currently assessing
the impact

inJune 2015 the |ASE 1ssued an exposure draft
ED/2015/5 'Remeasurement on a Plan Amendment,
Curtaidiment or Settlement/Avalability of a Refund fram
aDefined Benefit Plan (Proposed Amendments to IAS
19 and IFRIC 14} Management are currently evaluating
these proposals and although the proposals have not
yet been finalised, it should be noted that the current
draft, if adopted, may restrict the Group’s ability to
recognise a pension asset In respect of pension
surpluses In its UK defined benefit pension plan
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1 Acceunting policies continued

a Basis of preparation continued

In addition, the current draft may require certamn
elements of committed minemum funding
contributions to be recognised as a liability on
the balance sheet

2 Cntical accounting assumptions and judgements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with IFRS requrres the use of certain critical accounting
assumptions It also requires management to exercise
its jJudgementn the process of applying the Group’s
accountmng policies The areas requining a higher
degree of judgement or complexuty, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significantto the
consaolidated financtal statements, are discussed In
the relevant accounting policies under the following
headings and in the notes to the accounts where
appropriate

Consolidation Business combnations -classification
of iInvestments

Conscolidation Business combmnations - determination
of fair values

Intangible assets Goodwill

intangible assets Pre-publication assets

Taxation

Revenue recognition

Employee benefits Pensions

b Consolidation

1 Business combinations The acquisition method
of accounting 1s used to account for business
combinations

The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary s the fair value of the assets transferred, the
lrabilities Incurred and the equity interest issued by the
Group The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liabihity resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement Acquisition related costs
are expensed as incurred in the operating expenses |ine
of the income statement

Identifiable assets and contingent assets acquired and
identfiable habilities and contingent llabilities assumed
in a business combination are measured initially at ther
fair values at the acquisition date The determination

of far values bften requires significant judgements

and the use of estimates, and, for material acquisttions,
the fair value of the acquired intangibte assets 1s
determined by an independent valuer The excess of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition

date far value of any previous equity interestin the
acqutree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill

See note 1e(1) for the accounting policy on goodwill
If this 1s less than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired, in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recogrised directly in
the income statement

On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
either at fair value or at the non-centrolling interest's
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets

Management exercises judgementin determining the
classification of its iInvestments n its businesses, in line
with the following

2 Subsidiaries Subsidiaries are entities over which the
Group has control The Group controls an entity when
the Group 1s exposed to, or has rights to, varable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group They
are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases

3 Transactions with non-controling interests
Transactions with non-controlhng interests that do

not result inloss of control are accounted for as equity
transactrons, that s, as transactions with the owners in
their capacity as owners Any surplus or deficit ansing
from disposals to a non-controllinginterestis recorded
inequity For purchases from a non-controlling interest,
the difference between canstderation paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of the
subsidiary ss recorded in equity

4 Joint ventures and associates Joint ventures are
entities in which the Group holds an interest on a long-
term basis and has nghts to the net assets through
contractually agreed sharing of control Associates are
entities over which the Group has significant influence
but not the power to control the financral and operating
policies, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting nghts Investments
Injointventures and associates are accounted forby
the equity method and are irutially recogrised at the
fawr value of consideration transferred

The Group’s share of its joint ventures' and assocates'
post-acquisition profits oriossesisrecognised in the
income statement and its share of post-acquisition
movements in reservesis recogmsed in reserves
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Noles 1o the consolidated financial statements continued

1 Accounting policies continued

b Consolidation continued

The Group's share of its joint ventures’ and associates'’
results 1s recognised as a component of operating profit
as these operattons form part of the core publishing
business of the Group and are an integral part of
existing whotly-owned businesses The cumutative
post-acquisition movernents are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the nvestrnent When the Group's
share of losses in a joint venture or associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the joint venture or associate,
the Group does not recognise further losses unless the
Group has incurred obligations or made payments on
behaif of the joint venture or assoclate

& Contribution of a subsidiary to an associate or joint
venture The gain or loss resulting from the contribution
or sale of a subsidiary to an associate or a joint venture
1s recognised in full Where such transactions do not
involve cash consideration, significant judgements and
estimates are used in determining the fair values of the
consideration recerved

c Foreign currency translation

1 Functional and presentation currency ltems included
in the finanaat statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates
(the *functional currency’) The consolidated financial
statements are presented in sterling, which 1s the
company's functional and presentation currency

2 Transactions and balances Foreign currency
transactions are translated inte the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of

the transactions Foreign exchange gans and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year end exchange rates of
monetary assets and hiabilities denominated In foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement,
except when deferred in equity as qualifying net
investment hedges

3 Group companies The results and financial position
of all Group companies that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are transiated
Into the presentation currency as follows

1} Assets and habilities are translated at the clesing rate
at the date of the balance sheet

1) Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates

ui) All resulting exchange differences are recogrised as
aseparate component of equity

On consolidation, exchange differences ansing from
the translation of the netinvestment in farergn entities,
and of borrowings and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are taken
to shareholders’ equity The Group treats specificinter-
company loan balances, which are notintended to be
repaid in the foreseeable future, as part of its net
investment When a foreign operation 1s sold, such
exchange differences are recogrnised in the income
statement as part of the gain or loss on sale

The principal overseas currency for the Group isthe
US dollar The average rate for the year against steriing
was $1 53{(2014 $1 65)and the year end rate was $1 47
(2014 $1 56)

d Property, plantand equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
costless deprecation Cost includes the original
purchase price of the asset and the costs attrnibutable to
bringing the asset to 1ts working condition for intended
use Landis notdepreciated Depreciation on other
assets 15 calculated using the straight-hne method to
allocate their cost less their residual values over their
estimated useful ives as follows

Buildings (freehold)  20-50 years
Buildings (leasehold) over the penod of the lease

Plantand equipment 3-10years

The assets’ residual values and useful hves are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date

The carrying value of an asset 1s written down to its
recoverable amount if the carrying value of the asset
1s greater than its estimated recoverable amount

e Intangible assets

1 Goodwill For the acquirsition of subsidiaries made on
or after 1 January 2010, goodwil! represents the excess
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-cantrolling interest In the acquiree and the
acquisition date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquiree over the fair vajue of the
identifiable net assets acquired For the acquisition of
subsidiaries made from the date of transition to IFRS to
31 Decemnber 2009, goodwill represents the excess of
the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the
Group's share of the net identifiable assets acquired
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiartes s included in
intangible assets Goodwill on acquisition of associates
and joint ventures represents the excess of the cost of
an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share
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1 Accounting polictes continued

e intangible assets continued

of the net identifiable assets acquired Goodwill on
acquisitions of associates and joint ventures Is included
In investments 1n associates and joint ventures

Goodwillis tested at least annually for impairment and
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses
Arimpairment loss ts recognised to the extent that

the carrying value of goodwill exceeds the recaverable
amount The recoverable amount s the higher of fair
value less costs of disposal and value inuse These
calculations require the use of estimates and significant
management judgement A description of the key
assumptions and sensitivities 1s inclided in note 11
Goodwill 1s aliocated to aggregated cash-generating
units for the purpose of impairment testing The
allocation is made to those aggregated cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose

Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold

IFRS 3 'Business Combinations’ has not been applied
retrospectively to business combinations before the
date of transltion to tFRS

2 Acquired software Software separately acquired for
internal use s capitalised at cost Software acquired

In matertal business cambinations is capitalised at its
fair value as determined by an independent valuer
Acquired software 15 amortised on a straight-ine basis
over its estimated useful hfe of between three and
eight years

3 Internally developed software Internal and external
costs incurred duning the preliminary stage of
developing computer software for internal use are
expensed as incurred Internal and external costs
incurred to develop computer software for Internal
use during the application development stage are
capitalised If the Group expects economic benefits
from the development Capitalisation i the application
development stage begins once the Group can reliably
measure the expenditure attributable to the software
development and has demonstrated its intention to
complete and use the software Internalty developed
software 1s amortised on a straight-line basis over s
estimated useful life of between three and eight years

4 Acquired intangibie assets Acquired intangible assets
include custamer lists, contracts and relationships,
trademarks and brands, publishing nghts, content,
technology and software rights These assets are

capitalised on acquisition at cost and included in
intangible assets intangible assets acquired in material
business combinations are capitalised at their fair value
as deterrmined by an independent valuer Intangible
assets are amortised over their estimated useful lives
of between two and 20 years, usingan amortsation
method that reflects the pattern of their consumption

5 Pre-publication assets Pre-publication assets
represent direct costs incurred in the development

of educational programmes and utles prior to thetr
publication These costsarerecognised as current
intangible assets where the title will generate probable
future economic benefits and costs can be measured
reltably Pre-publication assets are amortised upon
publication of the title over estimated economic Hives
of five years or less, being an estimate of the expected
operating ife cycle of the title, witha higher proportion
of the amortisation taken tn the earlier years

The investment in pre-publication assets has been
disclosed as part of cash generated from operations
inthe cash flow statement (see note 32)

The assessment of the recoverability of pre-publication
assets and the determination of the amortisation
profile \Involve a sigruficant degree of judgement based
on histortcal trends and management estimation of
future potential sales Anincorrectamortisation profile
could result in excess amounts being carned forward
as intangible assets thatwould otherwise have been
written off to the Income statement in an earlier period

Reviews are performed regularly to estimate
recoverability of pre-publication assets The carrying
amount of pre-publication assets is set outin note 20

f Other financial assets

Other financial assets, designated as available for sate
investments, are non-denvative financial assets
measured at estimated fair value Changes in the fair
value are recorded In equity In the fair value reserve

On the subsequent disposai of the asset, the net fair
value gains or losses are taken to the Income statement

g Inventaories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value Costisdetermined using the firstin
first out (FIFQ) method The costoffinished goods

and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads Netrealisable vaiue is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, fess estimated
costs necessary to make the sale Provisions are made
for slow mowving and obsolete stock
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

1 Accounting policles continued

h Royalty advances

Advances of royalties to authors are included within
trade and other recelvables when the advance 1s patd
less any prowvision required to adjust the advance to

Its net reahsable value The realisable value of royalty
advances relies on a degree of management judgement
in determining the profitability of indnadual author
contracts Ifthe estimated realisable value of author
contracts Is overstated, this wilt have an adverse effect
on operating profits as these excess amounts wilibe
written off

The recoverability of royalty advancesis based upon an
annual detalled management review of the age of the
advance, the future sales projections for new authors
and prior sales history of repeat authors

The royalty advance is expensed at the contracted
or effective royalty rate as the related revenues are
earned Royalty advances which will be consumed
within one year are held in current assets Royalty
advances which will be consurned after one year are
held in non-current assets

1 Cash and cash equvalents

Cash and cash equivalentsn the cash flow statement
include cash in hand, deposits held on call with banks,
other short-term highly hquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts Bank overdrafts are ncluded i borrowings
in current {iabilities in the balance sheet

Short-term deposits and marketable secunittes with
matunities of greater than three months do not qualify
as cash and cash equivalents Movements on these
financial instruments are classified as cash fiows from
finanaing activities in the cash fiow statementwhere
these amounts are used to offset the borrowings of
the Group or as cash flows from investing activities
where these amounts are held to generate an
investment return

J. Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity

incremental costs directly attnibutable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown In equityasa
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds

Where any Group company purchases the company's
equity share capital {treasury shares) the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental
costs, net of Income taxes, (s deducted from equity
attnbutable to the company’s equity holders until the

shares are cancelled, reissued or disposed of Where
such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any
consideration received, net of any directly attributable
transaction costs and the retated income tax effects, s
included in equity attributable to the company's equity
holders

k Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, which
1s proceeds recerved net of transaction costs incurred
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost
with any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value being
recognised in the ncome statement over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method
Accrued interest is included as part of borrowings
Where a debtinstrument s in a fair value hedging
relationshitp, an adjustment 1s made to Its Carrying
value in the income statement to reflect the hedged
risk Intereston borrowingsis expensed intheincome
statement as incurred

| Derivative financial instruments

Dervatwes are recognised at fair value and remeasured
ateach balance sheet date The fair value of derivatives
1s determined by using market data and the use of
established estimation techruques such as discounted
cash flow and option valuation models The Group
designates certain of the derivative instruments within
its portfolio to be hedges of the fair value of its bonds
{farr value hedges}or hedges of netinvestments in
forergn operations {net investment hedges)

Changes in the fair value of denvatives that are
designated and qualify as fair value hedges are
recorded in the Income statement, togetherwith
any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or
liability that are attributable to the hedged nisk

The effective portion of changes in the fair value

of derivatives that are designated and qualify as

net Investment hedges are recognised in other .
comprehensive ncome Gains and losses accumulated
in equity are included in the Income statement when
the corresponding foreign operation is disposed of
Gains or losses relating to the ineffective portron are
recognised immediately in finance income or finance
costs in the income statement

Certain denwatives do not qualify or are not designated
as hedging nstruments Such denvatives are classified
atfairvatue and any movement in their fair value s
recognised immediately in finance income or finance
costs fn the income statement
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1 Accounting pohicies continued

m Taxation

Currenttax is recognised on the amounts expected to
be paid or recovered under the tax rates and laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date

Deferred income tax 1s provided, using the iabihity
method, ontemporary differences arising between

the tax bases of assets and habilities and their carrying
amounts Deferred income tax s determined using tax
rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred tax asset s realised or
the deferred income tax Habllity 1s settled

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it1s probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utiised

Deferred income tax is provided In respect of the
undistributed earnings of subsidiaries other than
where it1s intended that those undistributed earnings
will not be rermtted in the foreseeable future

Current and deferred tax are recogmsed in the
income statement, except when the tax relates to
items charged or credited directly to equity or other
comprehenstve income, In which case the taxis also
recognised in equity ar other comprehensive income

The Group is subject to (ncome taxes I NUMerous
Junsdictions Significant judgementis required in
determining the estimates in relation to the worldwide
provisian for iIncome taxes There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ulumate
tax determination is uncertain dunng the ordinary
course of business The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audst 1ssues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were mitially recorded, such differences
will impact the tncome tax and deferred tax provisions
in the perlod in which such determination i1s made

Deferred tax assets and lilabilities require management
Judgement in determiming the amounts to be
recognised In particular, significant judgement)s used
when assessing the extent to which deferred tax assets
should be recognised with cansideration given to the
timing and level of future taxable Income together with
any future tax planning strategies

n, Employee benefits

1 Penstons The retirement benefit asset and obligation
recognised in the balance sheet represents the net of
the presentvajue of the defined benefit obhgation and
the fair value of plan assets at the balance sheet date
The defined benefit obligation 15 calculated annually by
independent actuaries using the projected unit credit
method The present value of the defined benefit
obligation 1s determined by discounting estimated
future cash flows using yields onhigh quality corparate
bonds which have terms to maturity approximating the
terms of the related hability

When the calculation results in apotential asset, the
recognition of that asset s limited to the asset celling -
that s the present value of any economic benefits
avatlable in the form of refunds from the planora
reduction in future contributions Management uses
judgement to determine the level of refunds avaifable
from the plan in recognising an asset

The determination of the pension cost and defined
benefit obligation of the Group's defined benefit
pension schernes depends on the selection of certain
assumptions, which include the discount rate, inflation
rate, salary growth and longewvity

Actuarial gains and losses arising from expernence
adjustments and changes in actuaral assumptions are
charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive
income in the period in which theyarise

The service cost, representing benefits accruing over
the year, 1s included in the Income statement as an
operating cost Netinterest s calculated by applying
the discount rate to the net defined benefit obligation
ands presented as finance costs or finance income

Obhgations for contributions to defined contnbution
pension plans are recogrised as an operating expense
inthe income statement as incurred

2 Other post-retsrement obligations The expected
costs of post-rettrement medical and hfe assurance
benefits are accrued ever the penod of employment,
using a similar accounting methodology as for
defined benefit pension abligations The habilities
and costs relating to significant other post-retirement
obligations are assessed annually by independent
quahfied actuaries
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

1 Accounting policles continued

n Employee benefits continued

3 Share-based payments The fair value of options or
shares granted under the Group’s share and option
plans s recognised as an employee expense after
taking Into account the Group's best estimate of the
number of awards expected to vest Falrvalueis
measured at the date of grant and s spread over the
vesting pertod of the option or share The fairvalue of
the options granted is measured using an option model
thatis most appropriate to the award The farr value
of shares awarded 1s measured using the share price
at the date of grant unless anather method ismore
appropriate Any proceeds receved are credited to
share capital and share premium when the options
are exercised

o Provisions

Provislons are recognised if the Group has apresent
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it1s more hkely than not that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation
and the amount can be reliably estimated Provisions
are discounted to present value where the effect

Is material

The Group recognises a provision for deferred
consideration at falr value Where this s contingent
on future performance or a future event, judgement
I1s exercised i establishing the fair value

The Group recagnises a provision for onerous lease
contracts when the expected benefits to be derved
from a contract are less than the unavoidable costs
of meeting the obiigations under the contract

The provision 1s based on the present value of future
payments for surplus leased properties under non-
cancellable operating leases, net of estimated sub-
leasing income

p Revenue recognition

The Group's revenue streams are courseware,
assessments and services Courseware includes
curriculum matenals provided in book form and/or
via access to digital content Assessments includes
test development, processing and scoring services
provided to governments, educationalinstitutions,
corporations and professional bodies Services includes
the operation of schools, colleges and universities,
including sisternas in Brazil and English language
teaching centres around the world as well as the
provision of online learning services in partnership
with universities and other academicinstitutions

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services
net of sales taxes, rebates and discounts, and after
eliminating sales withun the Group

Revenue from the sale of books Is recognised when title
passes A provision for anticipated returns 1s made
based primarily on hustorical returnrates If these
estimates do not reftect actual returns in future periads
then revenues could be understated or overstated for
aparticular period

Revenue from the sale of off-the-shelf software s
recognised on delivery or on installation of the software
where that s a condition of the contract [n certain
crrcumstances, where installation 1s complex, revenue
1s recognised when the customer has completed their
acceptance procedures Where software 1s provided
under a term hcence, revenue is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the pertod of the license

Revenue from the provision of services to academic
institutions, such as programme development, student
acquisition, education technotogy and student support
services, is recognised as performance occurs

Revenue from multi-year contractual arrangements,
such as contracts to pracess qualifying tests for
individual professions and government departments,
is recognised as performance occurs The assumptions,
nsks, and uncertainties inherent to long-term contract
accounting can affect the amounts and timing of
revenue and related expenses reported Certain of
these arrangements, either as a resuit of a single
service spanning more than one reporting period or
where the contract requires the provision of a number
of services that together constitute a single project, are
treated as long-term contracts with revenue recognised
on a percentage of completion basis Percentage of
completion s calcutated on a cost basis using the
proportion of the total estimated costs incurred to date
Losses on contracts are recognesed in the period in
which the loss first becomes foreseeable Contract
losses are determined to be the amount by which
estimated total costs of the contract exceed the
estimated total revenues that will be generated

Where a contractual arrangement consists of two or
more separate elements that can be provided to
customers either on a stand-alone basis oras an
optional extra, such as the provision of supplementary
rmatenals or online access with textbooks and multiple
deliverabies within testing or service contracts, revenue
1s recognised for each element as if it were an individual
contractual arrangement
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1. Accounting policies continued

p Revenue recognition continued

On certamn contracts, where the Group acts asagent,
anly comrrussions and fees recewvable for services
rendered are recognised asrevenue Any third-party
costsIncurred on behalf of the principai that are
rechargeable under the contractual arrangement
are not Included in revenue

Income from recharges of freight and other activittes
which are incidental to the normal revenue generating
activittes 1s ncluded in other income

Circulation and advertising revenue s recognised
when the newspaper or other publication 1s published
Subscription revenue s recogmised on a straight-line
basls over the life of the subscription

q Leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the
Group has substantially all the nisks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases Finance
leases are capitalised at the commencement of the
lease at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property and the present vaiue of the mmnimum

lease payments Each lease payment s allocated
between the hability and finance charges to achieve
aconstant rate on the finance bafance outstanding
The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included 1n financal habilities -
borrowings The interest element of the finance cost
15 charged to the incorne statement over the lease
period te produce a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability for each period
The property, plant and equipment acquired under
finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the
useful life of the asset or the lease term

Leases where a stignificant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retatned by the lessor are
classified as operating leases by the lessee Payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives
recewed from the lessor) are charged to the income
statement on a straight-hine basis over the period of
the lease

r Dividends

Dividends are recorded in the Group's financial
statements in the period in which they are approved
by the company’s shareholders

s Discontinued operations

Adiscontinued aperationis a component of the Group's

busiess that represents a separate major line of
business or geographical area of aperations that has
been disposed of or meets the critera to be ciassified
as held for sale

Discontinued operations are presented in the income
statement as a separate line and are shown net of tax

t Assets and hiabilities held for safe
Assets and habilities are classified as held for sale and
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value

less costs to seil If it 1s highly probable that the carrying

amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use No

depreciation 1s charged in respect of non-current assets

classified as held for sale Amounts relating to non-
current assets and labilines held for sale are classified
as discontinued operations in the income statement
where appropriate

u Trade receivables

Trade receivables are stated at fair value after provision
for bad and doubtful debts and anticipated future sales

returns (see also note 1p)

2 Segment information

The primary segments for management and reporting

are geographies as outlined below In addition, the
Group separately discloses the resuits from the
Penguin Randem House (PRH) associate

The chief operating decision-maker ts the Pearson
Executive

Continuing operations

North America School, Higher Education and
Professional businesses In US and Canada

Growth School, Higher Education and Professional

businesses in emerging marketswhich are investment
priorities, including Brazil, China, India and South Africa

Core School, Higher Education and Professicnal
businesses 1n more mature markets Including UK,
Austraha and ltaly

The results of the FT Group segment (to 30 November
2015) and Mergermarket (to 4 February 2014) are
shown as discontinued in the reievant periods
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

2 Segmentinformation continued

For more detall on the services and products included i each business segment refer to the strategic report

2015
North Discantinued

all figures in £ millions Notes  America Core Growth PRH Corporate  operations Group
Continuing operations
Sales 2,940 836 692 - - - 4,468
Adjusted operating profit/{loss) 480 114 (12) 90 - - 672
Intangible charges (386) (79 {583} 41 - - {1,089
Other net gains and losses 19 {5) - (M - - 13
Operating (loss)/profit 113 30 (595) 48 - - {404)
Flnance costs (100)
Finance income 71
Loss before tax {433)
Income tax 7 81
Loss for the year from
continuing operations {352)
Segment assets 6,399 1,573 719 - 1,84t - 10,532
jointventures 12 1 - 3 - - - 4
Assoclates 12 - 6 - 1,093 - - 1,099
Totaf assets 6,400 1,579 722 1,093 1841 - 11,635
Othersegment items
Share of results of joint ventures
and associates 12 (9 - (3) 64 - 16 63
Capital expenditure 10,11 85 33 110 - - 15 243
Pre-pubfication investment 20 218 63 66 - - - 347
Depreciation 10 42 9 18 - - 6 75
Amaortisation 11,20 338 95 169 - - 15 557
Impairment 1 282 37 530 - - - 849
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2 Segment information continued

2014
restated
North Discontinued

Alkfigures in £ miflions Notes  America Core Growth PRH Corporate  operations Group
Continuing eperations
Sales 2,906 910 724 - - - 4,540
Adjusted operating profit 444 122 32 69 - - 667
intangible charges (108) 2n {132) (54) - - (315)
Acgquisition costs (2) 4] 3) - - - (6}
Other net gatns and losses 2 - - - - - 2
Operating profit/{loss) 336 100 {103) 15 - - 348
Finance costs (140)
Finance income 6 a7
Prafit before tax 255
Income tax 7 (56)
Profit for the year from
continuing operations 199
Segment assets 6,580 1,426 1,394 - 660 219 10,279
Jomntventures 12 1 - 3 - - 9 13
Assoclates 12 1 8 - 1,095 - 1 1,105
Total assets 6582 1434 1,397 1,095 660 229 M,397
Other segment items
Share of results of jointventures
and assoclates 12 - 1 3 35 - 20 51
Caputal expenditure 10,11 97 32 49 - - 16 194
Pre-pubhication investment 20 209 77 72 - - - 358
Depreciation 10 1 10 16 - - 7 74
Amortisation 1,20 306 99 121 - - 16 542
Impawrment n - - 77 - - - 77

For further information on adjusted measures above, see note 8

There were no matertal inter-segment sales in aither 2014 or 2015

Included in other net gains and losses within continuing operations in 2015 in the North America segment s the
profit on disposal of PowerSchool of £30m, net of small losses on ather Investments Inthe Coresegment the foss

on disposal relates to adjustments to prior year disposals

Included in other net gains and losses 1N contirnuing operations In 2014 are gans on the sale of joint venture mnterests
i Safan Books Oniine and CourseSmart (E40m) and a loss on disposal of an investment in Nook Media (£38m)

Both operating profit and adjusted operating profitin 2015 are stated after the following restructunng charges
North America £24m (2014 £37m), Core £ri (2014 £21m), Growth £11m, (2014 £6my), Pengwin Random House

£12m (2014 £19m)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

2 Segment nformation continued

Corporate costs are allocated to business segments including discontinued operations on an appropnate basis
depending on the nature of the cost, therefore the segment result 1s equal to the Group operating profit Segment
assets consist of property, plant and equipment, Intangible assets, Inventories, receivables, deferred taxation and
other financial assets and exclude cash and cash equivalents and dervative assets Corporate assets comprise cash
and cash equivalents, marketabte secunities and derwvative financiat instruments Capital expenditure comprises
additions to property, plant and equipment and software {see notes 10 and 11) !

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets acquired through business combination were £1m (2014
£263m} (see note 30)

The following tabtes analyse the Group's revenue streams Courseware includes curnculum materials providedn
boaok form and/or via access to digital content Assessments includes test development, processing and scoring
services provided to governments, educational institutions, corporations and professtonal bodies Services includes
the operation of schools, calleges and universities, Including sistemas th Brazil and English language teaching centres
around the world as well as the provision of online learning services in partnership with universities and other
academic instituttons School Systemns includes PowerSchool and Family Education Network, both of which were
disposed during 2015

2015
Nerth
All figures In £ mithons America Core Growth Group
Courseware
School Courseware 406 186 104 696
Higher Education Courseware 1,207 96 55 1,358
Enghsh Courseware 22 84 79 185
1,635 366 238 2,239
Assessments
School and Higher Education Assessments 420 301 15 736
Chinical Assessments 126 32 - 158
Professional Certification 269 82 36 387
815 415 51 1,281
Services
School Services 209 1 47 257
Higher Education Services 223 26 70 319
English Services 18 28 286 332
Schooi Systems 40 - - 40
490 55 403 948

Total 2,940 836 692 4,468
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o

2 Segment informatian continued 5

o

2014 g

restated S

A

North
All figures i £ millions America Core Growth Group
Courseware

School Courseware 38% 214 120 723
Higher Education Courseware 1179 114 66 1,359
English Courseware 22 92 75 189

1,590 420 261 2271 2

o

1)

g

Assessments 3

7]

School and Higher Education Assessments 416 312 14 742 7
Clinical Assessments 115 34 - 149
Professional Certification 228 93 19 340
759 439 33 1,231

Services e

School Services 253 - 56 309 g“

Higher Education Services 215 22 90 327 ;:'

English Services 20 29 284 333 E
School Systems 69 - - 69
557 | 430 1038
Total 2,906 910 724 4,540
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Notes to the consohidated financial statements continued

2 segmentinfermation continued
The Group operates in the following main geographic areas

Sales Non current assets

2014
All figures in £ mithons 2015 restated 2015 2014
Continuing operations
UK 421 444 991 1,056
Other European countries 246 281 121 180
us 2,800 2,762 5,000 5,243
Canada 107 109 235 288
Asta Pacific 590 565 21 416
Other countries 304 379 144 661
Total continuing 4,468 4,540 6,702 7.844
Discontinued operations
UK 134 170 - -
Other European countries 64 66 - -
us 72 68 - -
Canada 2 1 - -
Asta Pacific 35 34 - -
Other countries 5 4 - -
Total discontinued 312 343 - -
Total 4,780 4,883 6,702 7,844

Sales are aflocated based on the country inwhich the customer is located This does not differ materially from the

location where the order s received The geographical split of non-currentassets 1s based on the subsidtary's
country of domicile Thisis not matenally different to the location of the assets Non-current assets comprise
property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, investments in foint ventures and associates and trade and

other receivables
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3 Discontinued operations E‘
Discontinued operations relate to FT Group, Penguin and Mergermarket An analysis of the results and cash flows of S'
discontinued operations Is as follows g
2014
2015 restated
All figures in £ milllons FT Group Total Penguin Mergermarket FT Group “Total
Sales 312 312 - 9 334 343
QOperating profit 48 48 - 2 50 52
Finance Income - - - - - - F
Profit before tax 48 48 - 2 50 52 E
Income tax (8) (B} - (1) {7) (8) §
Profit after tax 40 40 - 1 43 a4 3
Profit on disposal of Penguin - - 29 - - 29 *
Profit on disposal of The Economist 473 473 - - - -
Profit on disposal of Financial Times 711 71 - - - -
Attrtbutable tax expense 49) (49) - - - -
Profit on disposal of Mergermarket - - - 244 - 244
Attributable tax expense - - - (46) - {46) S
Profit for the year from g
discentinued operations 1,175 1175 29 199 a3 n 5
Operating cash flows 3 3 - 2 24 2% B
Irnvesting cash flows 3 3 - - {5 ©
Finanang cash flows - - - - - -
Total cash flows 34 34 - 2 19 21
4 Operating expenses
2014 O
Allfigures in £millions 2015 restated %
By function g
Cost of goads sold 1,981 2021 B
Operating expenses
Distribution costs 80 84
Seliing, marketing and product development costs 895 931
Administrative and other expenses 1,195 1,168
Restructuring costs 35 64
Other net gains and losses (13} Q
Other income (98) (1200 &
Total net operating expenses 2,094 2,125 E—‘
impairment of intangible assets 849 77 %
Total 4924 4223 3
o

Included tn other income Is service fee Income from Penguin Random House of £16m (2014 £41m) Included in

administrative and other expenses are research and efficacy costs of £33m (2014 £22m} in addition {o the

restructuring costs shown above there were restructuring costs in Pengum Random House of £12m (2014 £15m)
and in discontinued operations of £ni1 {2014 £1m)
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Notes Lo the consolidated financial statements continued

4 Operating expenses continued

2014
All figures in £ millions Notes 2015 restated
By nature

Royalties expensed 249 242
Other product costs 566 620
Employee benefit expense S 1,742 1,832
Contract labour 182 183
Employee related expense 127 136
Promotional costs 163 149
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 10 69 67
Amortisation of intangible assets - pre-publication 20 281 292
Amortisation of intangble assets - software n 61 51
Armortisation ofintangible assets - other 1 199 184
Impairment of Intangible assets 1 849 77
Property and facilities 219 204
Technology and communications 153 123
Professional and outsourced services 262 253
Other general and adrmunistrative costs 132 Al
Capnalised costs (219) (195)
Acquisition costs - 6
Cther net gains and losses {13) (2}
Otherincome (98) {120)
Total 4,924 4,223
During the year the Group obtained the following services from the Group’s auditors

All figures in Emillions 2015 2014
The audit of parent company and consolidated financial statements 4 5
The audit of the company’s subsidiaries 2 2
Total audit fees 6 7
Other assurance services 2 1
Other non-audit services 1 -
Tota! other services 3 1
Tax compliance services 1 1
Tax advisory services - -
Total tax services 1 1
Total non-audit services 4

Total 10 9
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4 Operating expenses continued

Reconcihiation between audit and non-audit service fees 1s shown below

AliNgures in £ milhons 2015 2014
Group audit fees including fees for attestation under section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 6 7
Nan-audit fees 4 2
Total 10 9

Fees for attestation under section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act are allocated between fees payable for the aud:its
of consolidated and subsidiary accounts

Included In non-audit fees are amounts related to carve out audits for disposals of £1m

5 Employee information

2014
All figures In £ millions Notes 2015 restated
Employee benefit expense
Wages and salanes (Including termination benefits and restructuring costs) 1,507 1,607
Social secunty costs 124 122
Share-based payment costs 26 26 32
Retirement benefits - defined contnbution plans 25 66 61
Retirement benefits — defined benefit plans 25 19 21
Qther post-rettrement benefits 25 - {11)
Total 1,742 1,832

The detatls of the emoluments of the directors of Pearson plc are shown in the report on directors' remuneration

2014
Average number emptlayed 2015 , restated
Employee numbers
North America 19,951 20,927
Core 5,936 6139
Growth 11,114 11,406
Qther 264 182
Continueng aperations 37,265 38,654

The employee benefit expense relating to discontinued operations was £132m (2014 £151m) and the average
number employed was 2,282 (2014 2,295}
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Noles to the consolidated financial statements continued

& Netfinance costs

2014
All figuresin £mililons Notes 2015 restated
Interest payable (61) (81}
Net foreign exchange losses (36} {53)
Derivatives not in hedging relationships (3) (6}
Finance costs {100) {140}
Interest recetvable 15 17
Net finance income inrespect of retirement benefits 25 4 1
Net foreign exchange gains 43 17
Denvatives notin hedging relationships 9 12
Finance income Al 47
Net finance costs (29) (83)
Analysed as,
Net interest payable reflected in adjusted earnings (46) (64)
Other net finance incorne/(costs) 17 (29)
Total net finance costs (29) (93)

Included I interest receivable 1s £1m (2014 £1m) of interest recewvable from refated parties There was anet

movement of £nil on fair vaiue hedges in 2015 (2014 £nil), comprising a gain of £22m (2014 loss of £27m) on the
underlying bonds, offset by aloss of £22m {2014 gain of £27m) on the related denvative finanaal instruments

For furtherinformation on adjusted measures above, see note 8
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7 Income tax

2014
All figures In £ mijllons Notes 2015 restated
Current tax
Charge in respect of current year {155) (96)
Adjustments in respect of prior years 42 320
Total current tax charge (113) (66)
Deferred tax
Inrespect of temporary differences 185
Other adjustments in respect of prior years g
Total deferred tax credit 13 194 10
Total tax credit/{charge) 81 {56)

The adjustments In respect of prior years in both 2015 and 2014 mainiy relate to changes In estimates ansing from
uncertain tax positions following agreement of historical tax positions

The tax on the Group’s (loss)/profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would anse using the UX tax

rate as follows

2014
Allfigures in Emililons 2015 restated
{Loss)/profit before tax (433) 255
Tax calculated at UK rate (2015 20 25%, 2014 21 5%) 88 (55}
Effect of overseas tax rates 52 (10}
joint venture and associate Income reported net of tax 10 7
Net expense not subject to tax (66) (§1)]
Gains and losses on sale of businesses not subject to tax (32) -
Unutihsed tax losses (22} (19)
Adjustments in respect of prior years 51 32
Total tax credit/(charge) g1 {56)
UK (25) -
QOverseas 106 {56)
Total tax credit/{charge) a1 (56)
18 7% 22 0%

Taxrate reflected in earnings
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

7 Income tax continued

The tax rate reflected in adjusted earnings is calculated as follows

2014
Ali figuresin £ millions 2015 restated
(Loss)/profit before tax (433) 255
Adjustments
Other net gains and losses (13) (2)
Acquisitton Costs - 6
Intangible charges 1,089 315
Other net finance (Income)fcasts an 29
Adjusted profit before tax - continuing operations 626 603
Adjusted profit before tax - discontinued operations 51 55
Total adjusted profit before tax 677 658
Total tax credit/{charge) 81 (56)
Adjustments.
Tax charge on other net gains and losses 40 1
Tax benefiton acquisition costs - {n
Tax benefit on intangible charges (257) {(72)
Tax charge/(benefit} on other net finance costs 7 {5)
Tax amortisation benefit on goodwill and intangibles 33 24
Adjusted income tax charge - continuing operations (26) {109}
Adusted income tax charge - discontnued operatlons 9 (%)
Total adjusted income tax charge (105) (11a)
Tax rate reflected in adjusted earnings 15 5% 17 9%
For further information on adjusted measures above, see note 8
The tax {charge)benefit recogrised in other comprehensive income is as follows
All figures in Emilhons 2015 2014
Net exchange differences on translation of foreign operaticns 5 (6)
Remeasurement of retirement benefit obhgations {(24) (1)
(19) (7)

Ataxcharge of £1m {2014 tax charge £3m) relating to share-based payments has been recognised directly in equity
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8 Earnings per share

Basic

Basic earmings per share is calculated by dvading the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, exduding ordinary shares purchased by

the company and held as treasury shares

Diiuted

Diluted earntngs per share s calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares to take

account of all dilutive potential ordiary shares and adjusting the profit attributabte, if applicable, to account for

any tax consequences that mught arise from conversion of those shares

2014
All figures tn £ milions Notes 2015 restated
(Loss)/profit for the year from continuing operations (352) 199
Non-controlling interest - 1
Earnings from continuing operations (352) 200
Profit for the year fram discontinued operations 3 1175 271
Earnungs 823 471
Weighted average number of shares (millions) 8133 8109
Effect of dilutive share options (milhons) - 10
Weighted average number of shares (millions) for diluted earnings 8133 8119
Earnings per share from continwing and discontinued operations

Basic 101.2p 581p
Diluted 101 2p 58 Op
{Loss)/earnings per share from continuing operations

Basic {43 3)p 24 7p
Diluted {43 3)p 24 6p
Earnings per share from discontinued operations

Basic 144 5p 334p
Dituted 144.5p 334p
Adjusted

In order to show results from operating activities on a consistent basis, an adjusted earnings per share 1s presented
The company's defirution of adjusted earmings per share may not be comparable to other similarly titled measures

reported by other companies

Adjusted earnings includes the results from continuing and discontinued operations The follewing items are

excluded from adjusted earnings

Other net gains and losses represent profits and losses on the acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries, joint

ventures, associates and other financial assets that are included within continuing or discontinued operations but

which distort the performance of the Group

Amortisation and impairment of acquired intangibles, acquisition costs and movernents in contingent acqursition
consideration are also excluded from adjusted earnings as these items are not considered to be fully reflective of the

underlying performance of the Group
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8 Earnings per share continued

Other net finance income/costs include finance costs in respect of retirement benefits, finance costs of deferred
consideration and foreign exchange and other gains and lasses Finance costs relating to retirement benefits are
excluded as the consolidated income statement presentation under IAS 19 does not reflect the econormic substance
of the underlying assets and liabilities Finance costs of put options and deferred consideration are excluded as they
relate to future earn outs and similar payments cn acquisitions and do not reflect cashexpended Foreign exchange
and other gains and losses are excluded as they represent short-term fluctuations in market value and are subjectto
significantvolatility Other gains and losses may not be realised in due course as 1t1s normally the intention to hold
the related instruments to matunty Other net finance costs of Group companies are sncluded in finance costs or
finance income as appropriate Other net finance costs of joint ventures and associates are included withim the share
of results of joint ventures and associates within operating profit

Tax on the above items Is excluded from adjusted earnings Where relevant the Group also excludes the benefit from
recognising previously unrecognised pre-acquisition and capital losses The tax benefit from tax deductible goodwill
and intangibles is added to the adjusted income tax charge as this benefit more accurately aligns the adjusted tax
charge with the expected rate of cash tax payments

Non-controlling Interest for the above ttems is excluded from adjusted earnings The following tables reconciie
statutory earnings to adjusted earnings

2015
GOther net
Statutory Other net finance Tax Adjusted
mcome Discontinued  gains and Acquisition Intangible  income/ amortisation Income
Allfiguresin £ milons statement operatlons losses costs  charges casts benefit statement
Operating {(loss)/profit (404} 51 (13) - 1,089 - - 723
Net finance costs (29) - - - - {17} - {46)
(Loss)/profit before tax (433} 51 (13) - 1,089 a7 - 677
Income tax 81 [€))] 40 - (257) 7 33 (105)
{Loss)/profit for the year from
continung operations (352) 42 27 - 832 {10) 33 572
Profit for the year from
discontinued operations 1,175 (42) (1135) - 2 - - -
Profit for the year 823 - (1,108) - 834 {10) 33 572
Non-controlling interest - - - - - - - -
Earrungs 823 - {1108) - 834 {10} 33 572
Wesghted average number
of shares (millions) 8133 8133
Wesghted average number
of shares (milhons) for
diluted earnings 8133 8133
Earmings per share (basic) 101 2p 70 3p

Earnings per share {diluted) 101 2p 70 3p
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8 Earnings per share continued

2014
restated
Other net
Statutery Other net finance Tax  Adjusted
income Disconunued  gainsand Acquisition  intangible  income/ amortisation Incorne
Allfigurestn Emilliens statetnent  operations losses €0s515 charges costs benefit statement
Operating profit 348 55 2) 6 315 - - 722
Net finance costs (933 - - - - 29 - (64)
Profit before tax 255 55 {2} 6 315 29 - 658
Income tax (56) {9 1 m (72) (5) 24 (118)
Profit for the year from
continuing operations 199 46 4] 5 243 24 24 540
Profit for the year from
discontinued operations 2N (46) (227} - 2 - - -
Profit for the year 470 - {228) 5 245 24 24 840
Non-controlling interest 1 - - - - - - 1
Earnings arn - (228) 5 245 24 24 541
Weighted average number
of shares (miliions) 8109 8109
Welghted average number
of shares (mullions) for
diluted earnigs 8119 8119
Earntngs per share (basic) 581p 66 7p
Earnings per share (difuted) 58 0p 66 6p
9 Dividends
All figures In £ millions 2015 204
Finat paid inrespect of prior year 34 Op (2014 32 Op) 277 259
Interim paid in respect of current year 18 Op (2014 17 0p) 146 138
423 397

The directors are proposing a final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31 Decemnber 2015 of 34 Op per
share whichwill absorb an estimated £277m of shareholders’ funds It wili be paid on 6 May 2016 to shareholders

who are on the register of members on 8 April 2016 These finanaial statements do not reflect this drvidend
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

10 Property, plant and equipment

Assetsin

tandand Ptantand course of
Allfiguresn £ milllons buildings equipment construetion Total
Cost
At 1 January 2014 375 568 32 975
Exchange differences 1 17 - 28
Additions 10 58 19 87
Disposals {9) {46) {2) (57)
Acguisition through business combination - 2 - 2
Disposal through business disposal - (W) - [4)]
Reclassifications 1 3 4 -
Transfer to software - - {16) {16)
At 31 December 2014 388 601 29 1,018
Exchange differences 8 10 1 19
Additions 15 42 25 82
Disposals (20) {86) - (106)
Acquisition through business combtnation - - - -
Disposal through business disposal {48} (76) - (124)
Reclassifications ‘ 16 17 {33) -

At 31 December 2015 359 508 22 889
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o
10 Property, plant and equipment continued 5
o
AssetsIn 5
Land and Plantand course of z
All figures in £ millions butldings  equipment construction Total 7
Depreciation
At 1 January 2014 (210) 423) - (633)
Exchange differences (7} (15) - (22)
Charge for the year (23} (51) - (74)
Disposals 9 36 - a5
At 3t December 2014 (231) {(453) - (684) S
Exchange differences (5) (12) - 07 .i
[=]
Charge for the year (22) (53) - {75) é
Disposals 18 82 - 100 3
Disposal through business disposal 48 59 - 107
At 31 December 2015 (192) {377) - {569)
Carrying amounts
At1january 2014 165 145 32 342
At 31 December 2014 157 148 29 334 @
At 31 December 2015 167 13 22 30 ¢
&
Depreciation expense of £19m (2014 £16m) has been included in the income statement in cost of goods sold and §
£50m {2614 £51m) in operating expenses In2015£6m{2014 £7m) relates to discontinued operations A
The Group leases certam equipment under a number of finance lease agreements The net carrying amount of
leased plant and equipment included within property, plant and equipment was £8m (2014 £13mj)
)
H
3
3
m
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11 Intangible assets

Acquired
customer lists

Acquired

Acquired

Other

contractsand trademmarks publishing  Intangibles

Total

Altfigures In £ millions Goodwill  Software relationships andbrands rights  acquired

Cost -
At1january 2014 4,665 469 855 237 198 398 6,823
Exchange differences 198 17 34 5 - 14 268
Imparrment (67) - - - - - (67)
Additions - internal development - 54 - - - - 54
Additions - purchased - 53 - - - - 53
Disposals - {7) - - - - )
Acquisition through bustness

combination 238 - 5 69 - 186 498
Disposal through business disposal (5) (5 - {3 N - (14}
Transfer from PPE - 16 - - - - 16
At 31 December 2014 5,030 597 894 308 197 598 7.624
Exchange differences 105 17 25 {17} {7) (40) 83
Impairment {826) - - - - - (826)
Additions - internal development - 125 - - - - 125
Additions - purchased - 36 - - - - 36
Disposais - (18) - 4 (10} (29) 61)
Acquisition through business

combination - - - - - 1 1
Disposal through business disposal (175} (138) (59) {6) - {21) (399}
At 31 December 2015 4,134 619 860 281 180 509 6,583
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11 Intangible assets continued

Acquired

customer lists,

Acquired
cantracts and trademarks

Acquired

Other

puplishing intangtbles

All figures \n £ milllons Goodwill  Software relationships andbrands rights  acquired Total
Amortisation

At 1 January 2014 - {316) {249) (93) (148) {216} (1,022}
Exchange differences - {13) (11) 3) - (12) {39)
Impairment - - (6) 2) - (2) (10}
Charge for the year - (63) (83) {25) (12) (67) (250)
Disposals - 5 - - - - 5
Disposal through business disposal - 1 - 1 - - 2
At 31 December 2014 - (386) (349} (122) (160) (297) {1.314)
Exchange differences - (t4) ® 1 6 (6) 21
Impairment - - (13) (1) {9) - {23}
Charge for the year - (74) (99) (40) {10) (53) (276)
Disposals 18 - 4 10 29 61
Disposal through business disposal - 99 39 3 - 13 154
At 31 December 2015 - (357) (430} (155) {163) {314y (1,419
Carrying amounts

At 1january 2014 4,666 153 606 144 S0 182 5,801
At31December 2014 5,030 n 545 186 37 301 6,310
At 31 December 2015 4,134 262 430 126 17 195 5,164

Goodwill

The goodwill carrying value of £4,134m relates to acquisitions completed after 1 January 1998 Prior to

1january 1998 alf goodw:il was written off to reserves on the date of acquisiaon For acquisitions completed
between 1 January 1998 and 31 December 2002 no value was ascribed to intangibles other than goodwill and the
goodwill on each acquisition was amortised over a period of up to 20 years On adoption of IFRSon 1 January 2003,
the Group chose not to restate the goodwill balance and at that date the bafance was frozen (i e amortisation
ceased) If goodwill had been restated then a sigruficant value waoutd have been ascribed to other ntangible assets,
whichwould be subject to amortisation, and the carrying value of goodwill would be sigruficantly fower For
acquisitions completed after 1 january 2003 value has been ascribed to other intangible assetswhich are amortised

Otherintangible assets
Qther intangibles acquired include content, technology and software rights

Intangible assets are valued separately for each acquisition and the primary method of valuationused is the
discounted cash flow method The majority of acquired intangibles are amortised using an amortisation profile
based on the projected cash flows underlying the acquisiion date valuation of the intangible asset, which generally
results in a larger proportion of amortisation being recognised in the early years of the asset’s Iife The Group keeps
the expected pattern of consumption under review

Amortisation of £13m {2014 £12m)is included in the iIncome statement 1n cost of goods sold and £247m (2014
£223m)inoperating expenses In 2015, £16m {2014 £15m) of amortisation refates to discontinued operations
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11 Intangible assets continued

The range of useful economic hves for each major class of ntangible asset (excluding goodwill and software)

is shown below

Class of Intangible asset

2015

Usefuleconomic life

Acquired customer lists, contracts and relationships 3-20years
Acquired trademarks and brands 2-20Q years
Acquired publishing rights 5-20years
Other intangibles acquired 2-20years
The expected amortisation profile of acquired intangible assets 1s shown below

2015

Oneto Six to More than

All filguresn £ millions fiveyears tenyears ten years Total
Class of intangible asset
Acquired customer lists, contracts and relationships 268 122 40 430
Acquired trademarks and brands 56 47 23 126
Acquired publishing rights 15 2 - 17
Other intangibles acquired 146 43 6 195

Impairment tests for cash-generating units (CGUs) containing goodwill
Impairment tests have been carried out where appropnate as described below

Following a recrganisation of the business effective 1 January 2014 goodwiliwas allocated to CGUs, or an
aggregation of CGUs, where goodwill could not be reasonably allocated to indmvidual business units Impatrrment
reviews were conducted on these CGUs The carrying value of the goodwillin each of the CGUSs, after the impact

of impairments, 1s summarnsed below

Ali figures in Emillions 2015 2014
North America 3,155 3,422
Core 635 618
Growth (includes Brazil, China, India and South Afnca} - 612
Pearson VUE 344 327
Ftnanclal Times Group - 51
Total 4134 5,030

The recoverable amount of each aggregated cash generating unit {CGU} 1s based on fair value less costs of disposal
orvalue in use calcutations as appropnate Goodwill is tested at least annually for impairment Other than goodwiil
there are no intangible assets with indefinite hves The goodwaill i1s generally denominated in the currency of the
relevant cash flows and therefore the impairment review is not materially sensitive to exchange rate fluctuations
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11 Intangible assets continued

Impairment tests for cash-generating umts containing goodwill continued

Following significant economic and market deterioration in the Group’s operations In emerging markets and ongoing
cyclical and policy-related pressures in the Group’s mature market operations, management’s expectations of future
returns were revised down In the course of 2015 It was determined during the impairment review that the fair

value less costs of disposal of the Growth, North Amernica and Core CGUs noionger supported the carrying value

of the goodwill An impairment of £507m was booked in respect of the Group's Growth operations, representing
impairments of £269m in the Brazil CGU, £181m in the China CGU, £48m in the South Africa CGU and £9m inthe
Other Growth CGU, thereby bringing the carrying value of goodwlll tn those CGUs down to £nil Impairments of

£10m and £13m were also booked in respect of other acquired intangibles in the South Africa and Other Growth
CGUs respectvely, bringing their carrying value down to £nil Impairments of £282m and £37m were also booked in
respect of the North America and Core CGUs respectively, bringing the carrying value of the goodwill inthose CGUs
down to fair value less costs of disposal Fair value less costs of disposal was determined using post-tax discount
rates of 17 4% for Brazil, 11 6% for China, 13 6% for South Africa, 12 8% for Other Growth, 8 6% for North America

and 8 7% for Core Following the above impairments, the recoverable amounts of the Growth, North America and
Core CGUs are £350rm, £4,750m and £926m respectively

Key assumptions

For the purpose of estimating the fair value less costs of disposal of the CGUs, management hasused an tncome
approach based on present value techniques The calculattons use cash flow projections based onfinancial budgets
approved by managermnent covering a five-year pertad, management's best estimate about future developments and
market assumptions The fair value less costs of disposal measurement is categorised as Level 3 on the fair value
higrarchy The key assumptions used by management in the fair value less costs of disposal calculations were

Discount rates The discount rate s based on the risk-free rate for government bonds, adjusted for arisk premium
to reflect the increased risk in Investing in equities The risk premium adjustment is assessed for each specific CGU
The average post-tax discount rates range from 7 2% to 17 4% Discount rates are lower for those businesses
which operate in more mature markets with low inflation and higher for those operating in emerging markets

with higher inflation

Perpetuity growth rates A perpetuity growth rate of 2 0% (2014 2 0%) was used for cash flows subsequentto the
approved budget pericd for CGUs operating in mature markets This perpetuity growth rate is aconservative rate
and s considered to be iower than the long-term historical growth rates of the underlying terntories in which the
CGU operates and the long-term growth rate prospects of the sectors in which the CGU operates CGU growth rates
between 5 0% and 8 5% were used for cash flows subsequentto the approved budget period for CGUs operating in
emerging markets with high inflation These growth rates are also below the long-term historical growthratesin
these markets

The key assumptions used by management in setting the financial budgets for the initial five-year period were
as follows

Forecast sales growth rates Forecast sales growth rates are based on past experience adjusted for the strategic
direction and near-term investment priorittes within each CGU Key factors include USA and UK college enrolment
rates, assessment growth rates, the success of new product launches, growth rates and econemic conditions in
emerging markets and the rate of growth in new services businesses The five-year sales forecasts use average
nominal growth rates between 1 1% and 1 6% for mature markets and between 0 1% and 5 6% for emerging markets
with high inflation

Operating profits Operating profits are forecast based on historical experience of operating margins, adjusted for
the impact of changes to product costs and cost saving initiatives, including the impact of the global restructuring
programme planned in 2016

Cash conversion Cash conversian is the ratic of operating cash flow to operating profit Management forecasts cash
conversion rates based on historical experience, adjusted for the Impact of productinvestment priorities and the
shift to digital and service based business
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11 Intangible assets continued

Sensitivities

The Group’s impairment review is sensitive to a change in assumptions used, most notably the discountrates and
the perpetuity growth rates As the carrymngvalue of goodwill Inthe Growth market CGUs has been written down to
£nil, the value of other intanglble assets in Brazil and China is sensitive to any increase in discount rates or reduction
in perpetuity growth rates In the North America and Core CGUs goodwill has been wnitten downto fairvalue less
costs of disposal and any further increase in discount rates or reduction in perpetuity growth rates would give rise to
further (mpairment A0 1% ncrease in discount rates would cause the fairvalue less costs of disposat of the Brazil,
China, North America and Core CGUs to reduce by £3m, £5m, £120m and £25m respectively A0 1% reductionin
perpetuity growth rates would cause the fair value less costs of disposal of the Brazil, China, North America and Core
CGUs ta reduce by £2m, £5m, £100m and £21m respectively A CGUs which have been written down to fair value
tess costs of disposal are highly sensitive to any reductrons in short-term cash flows, whether driven by lower sales
growth, fower operating profits or lower cash conversion A 5% reductionintotal annual operating profits, spread
evenly across all CGUs, would give rise te animpairment of £29m in the Growth CGUs, £241m:n the North America
CGU and £62min the Core (GU

2014 1impairment tests

fn 2014 following detertoration in the market conditions for the Group's online tutoring business based In indla, it
was determined in the course of the impairment review that the value in use of the india CGU no longer supported
the carrying value of the goodwill in that CGU An impairment of £67rm was booked, thereby bringing the carrying
value of goodwill in the India CGU down to £nil Animpairment of £10m was also booked in respect of other acquired
intangibtes in that CGU, bringing therr carrying value to £nil The India CGU incorporates all the Group's trading
operatrons in India A pre-tax discount rate of 13 6% was used to determine the value i use of the india CGU

No previous assessment had been made of the value n use of that CGU as the Group's India operations, prior

to the 1 january 2014 reorganisation, were previously part of a larger Emergimg Markets aggregated CGU

12 Investments in joint ventures and assoclates

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows

All figures i £milifons 2015 2014

Associates 1,099 1,105

Jowntventures 4 i3

Total 1,103 1118

The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows

Allfigures in £ milhans 2015 2014
Assoclates 72 54

Jointventures (4) 3)
Total 68 51

Included within the 2015 results are discantinued operations consisting of £17m profit from associates (2014 £21m
profit) and £1m loss from joint ventures (2014 £1m loss) For further information on discontinued operations and the
profit on sale of assoctates and joint ventures, see notes 3 and 31
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o
12 Investmentsin joint ventures and associates continued <
or
fnvestment in assotiates %
On 16 October 2015, the Group sold 39% of its 50% stake in The Economist {see note 31 for further informatiory} a
As at 3t Decernber 2015, the Group holds an 11% stake in The Economist which has been classified as an‘Other
financial asset’ (see note 15}
The Group has the following material associates
Principal
placeof  Ownership Nature of Measurement
business interest  relatonship method
Penguin Random House Ltd UK/Global 47% See below Equity 8
Penguin Random House LLC us 47% See below Equity '§
o
On 1 July 2013 Penguin Random House was formed, upon the comptetion of an agreement between Pearson and §
Bertelsmann to merge thelr respective trade publishing companies, Penguin and Random House, with the parent ﬁ
companies owning 47% and 53% of the combined bustness respectively The shareholder agreement includes
protection rights for Pearson as the minority shareholder, mcluding nghts to dvidends Management considers
ownership percentage, board composition and the additional protective nights, and exercises judgement to
determine that Pearson has significant influence over Penguin Random House and Bertelsmann has the powerto
direct the relevant activities and therefore control Penguin Random House does not have a quoted market price
The summarised financialinformation of the material associates is detalled below o
0
201§ 2014 §
Penguln Penguin =
Random The Random The %
All figures in £ millions House Economist House Economilst 3
Assets
Current assets 1,354 - 1,355 110
Non-current assets 1,244 - 1,429 166
Liabilities
Current habilities (1,.034) - (113} (190) o
o
Non-current habilities {358) - (424) (86) §
Net assets 1,206 - 1.247 - g
m
Sales 2,453 276 2,416 320
Profit from continuing operations 136 - 74 -
Profit from discontinued operations - 34 - 42
Other comprehenstve Income/(expense) 51 - 42 (20)
Total comprehensive income 187 34 116 2 3
8
&
Dwidends recelved from associate 142 20 95 21 §
m
3
The information above reflects the amounts presented in the financial statements of the associates, adjusted for ©
I

fair value and similar adjustments Amounts presented for The Economustcover the penod up until the date of the
partial disposal The tax on Penguin Random House LLC 1s settled by the partners For the purposes of dlear and
consistent presentation, the tax has been shown In the associate line items in the consolidated income statement
and consolidated balance sheet, recording the Group's share of profit after tax consistently for the Penguin Random
Houise associates
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12 Investments in Joint ventures and assoclates continued

Investment In associates continued

Arecenctliation of the summarised financialinfermation to the carrying value of the material associatesis

shown below

2015 2014
Penguln Penguin
Random The Random The
Allflguresin £ millions House Econamist House Etonomist
Opening net assets 1,247 - 1,232 16
Exchange differences (1) - m -
Profit for the period 136 34 74 42
Other comprehensive iIncome/{expense} 51 - 42 (20}
Dividends, net of tax paid (229) {40) (100} 42)
Additions 2 - - -
Distribution from associate in excess of carrying value - - - 4
Reversal of distribution from assoctate in excess of carrying value - (3) - -
Disposal - 9 - -
Closing net assets 1,206 - 1,247 -
Share of netassets 567 - 586 -
Goodwill 526 - 509 -
Carrying value of associate 1,093 - 1,095 -
Information on other individually immatenat associates 1s detailed below
Allfiguresin £ millions 2015 2014
Loss from continuing operations 9 {2)
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive expense {9) (2}

Transactions with matertal associates

The Group has loans to Penguin Random House which are unsecured and interest 1s calculated based on market
rates The amount outstanding at 31 December 2015 was £47m (2014 £54m) The loans are provided under a
working capital facility and fluctuate during the year The loan outstanding at 31 December 2015 was repard In its

entirety i January 2016

The Group also has a current asset receivable of £27m (2014 £41m) from Penguin Random House arising from the

provision of services Included in other income {note 4) 1s £16m (2014 £41m) of service fees
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12 Investments in joint ventures and associates continued g
Investment n joint ventures g
information on joint ventures, all of which are individually immaterial, is detailed below 2
Alfigures in £ millions 2015 2014

Loss from continuing operations (3) (3)

tLoss from discontinued operations {1} -
Other comprehensive income - -

Total comprehensive expense 4 (3} S
13 Deferred income tax 'r-%
All figures tn £ millions 2015 2014 %
Deferred income tax assets 276 295 §
Deferred income tax habiiities (560) (714) ®
Net deferred income tax (284) (419}
Substantially ail of the deferred income tax assets are expected to be recovered after more thanone year

Deferred iIncome tax assets and habilites may be offset when there is a legally enforceable nght to offset current o
mncome tax assets against currentincome tax labihities and when the deferred income taxes relateto the same e
fiscal authority At31 December 2015 the Group has unrecogrised deferredincome tax assets of £ni! {2014 £4m) Q
inrespect of UK losses, £11m (2014 £14m)n respect of US losses and approximately £70m (2014 £44m)inrespect g
of losses inother territortes The US 1osses relate to state taxes and therefore have expiry periods of between five =)
and 20 years g
The recognition of the deferred income tax assets 1s supported by management’s forecasts of the future profitability "
ofthe relevant business units

The movement on the net deferred income tax account 1s as foliows

Allfigures in £ millions Notes 2015 2014

At beginning of year {419) (362) g’
Exchange differences {26) {22} é
Income staterment benefit 7 196 10 5
Disposal through business disposat 1 (m

Tax charge to other comprehensive income or equity (36) {18)
Transfer to current tax - {26}
Atend of year {284) 419)

included in the Income statement above for 2015 1s a £2m benefit (2014 £nil) relating to discontinued operations
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13 Deferred income tax continued

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the year s as follows

Retrement
Trading Returns benefit
All figures in Emillions losses provislons  obligations Other Total
Deferred iIncome tax assets
At1january 2014 15 39 42 154 250
Exchange differences 2 4 5 12
Acquisitton through business combtnation 2 - - - 2
Income statement benefit 10 3 7 35 55
Tax benefit/(charge) to other comprehensive
Income or equity - - 10 7 3
Transfer to currenttax - - - {26) (26}
Disposai through business disposal - - (1 - (M
At 31 December 2014 28 44 62 161 295
Exchange differences 5 3 4 9 21
Income statement charge (14) (4) (3) {15) (36}
Tax charge to other comprehensive income or equity - - {4) - {4)
At 31 December 2015 19 43 59 155 276
Other deferred income tax assets include temporary differences on goodwill, deferred income, share-based
payments, inventory and other provisions
Goorfwill and
Allfigures in £ millions intanglbles Other Total
Deferred income tax habilities
At 1January 2014 {584) (28) (612)
Exchange differences {303) [&2)] (34)
Acquesition through business combination (2) - 2)
Income statement benefit/{charge) 18 (63) {45)
Tax charge to other comprehensive iIncome or equity - 21} 2n
At 31 December 2014 (598) (116) (714)
Exchange differences 41) {5) an
Income statement benefit 180 52 232
Disposal through business disposal 1 - 1
Tax charge to other comprehensive iIncome or equity - {32} (32)
At 31 December 2015 (458} (102} {560)

Other deferred income tax habihties include temporary differences in respect of depreciation and royalty advances




Section 5 Financial statements

173

14 Classification of financial instruments

The accounting classification of each class of the Group's finanaial assets and finanaalhiabilitres, together with their
carrying values and market values, 1s as follows

- 2015
Fairvatue Amortised cost
Derivatives

Avallable ‘:feeh'i“ feo‘r" L:'e;r'xadtg:; Other tLoansand Other car:;l;agl m;-roltt:ti
All figuresin Emilliens Notes  forsale trading relationships Habilities recelvables liabllities value vajue
Investments in listed securities 15 - - - - - - - -
Investments in unhsted
securities 15 143 - - - - ~ 143 143
Cash and cash equivalents 17 - - - - 1,703 - 1,703 1,703
Marketable securiiies 28 - - - - - 28 28
Denvative financal instruments 16 - 29 81 - - - 110 110
Trade receivables 22 - - - - 963 - 963 963
Total financial assets 17 29 81 - 2,666 - 2947 2947
Derwvative financial instruments 16 - (36) (129) - - - {165) (165)
Trade payables 24 - - - - - (319 (379 (319
Bankloans and overdrafts 18 - - - - - (38) (38) (38)
Borrowings due withinoneyear 18 - - - - - (244) (244) (244)
Borrowings due after more than
one year 18 - - - - - {2,048) (2,048} {2,009)
Total finanaal habilities - (36) (129) - - (2,049) (2,814) (2,775)
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14 Classification of financial instruments continued

2014
Farvalue Amartised cast
Derlvatlves
deemed Derivatives Total Tatal
Avallable heldfor  inhedging Other  Loansand Other carrying market
All figurasin £ mitkons Notes forsale trading relationships  habllitles  receivables labiiities value value
{nvestments in histed securines 15 9 - - - - - g 9
Investments in unlisted
securities 15 45 - - - - - 45 45
Cash and cash equivalents 17 - - - - 530 - 530 530
Marketable securities 16 - - - - - 16 16
Derwvative financial instruments 16 - 6 108 - - - 114 14
Trade receivables 22 - - - - 989 - 989 989
Total financial assets 70 6 108 - 1,519 - 1703 1,703
Dertvative financial Instruments 16 - {33) 41 - - - M) (79
Trade payabies 24 - - - - - (329) (329 (329
Banklcans and overdrafts 18 - - - - - (42) {42) (42)
Borrowings due within one year 18 - - - - - (305) (305) {(319)
Borrowings due after more than
one year 18 - - - - - (1,878) (1,878) (1,888)
Total financial labiites - {33) (a1} - - {2,554) (2,628) (2,652)

Certain of the Group's derivative financial instruments are classified as held for trading either as they do not meet
the hedge accounting critena speafied in 1AS39 ‘Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement’ or as the
Group has chosen not to seek hedge accounting for these instruments None of these dervatives are held for
speculative trading purposes Transactions in derivauve financial instruments are only undertaken to manage risks
arising from underlying business activity, in accordance with the Group's treasury policy as described In note 19

The Group designates certain qualifying derivative financlal instruments as hedges of the fair value of its bonds
(fair value hedges) Changes in the fair value of these denvative financial instruments are recorded in the mcome
statement, together with any change in the far value of the hedged hability attnbutable to the hedged nisk

The Group also designates certain of its borrowings and derwative finandial instruments as hedges of its
investments in foreign operations {net investment hedges) Movements in the fair value of these financial

instruments (to the extent they are effective} are recognised in other comprehensive income

None of the Group’s financia assets or habilines are designated at fair value through the income statement upon

initial recognition

More detall an the Group's accounting for financial instruments 1s included m the Group's accounting policies
The Group's approach to managing risks in relation to financial instruments 15 described in note 19
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o
15 Other financial assets =
o
All Agures in £ millions 2015 2014 g
At beginming of year 54 94 2
Exchange differences 3 6
Acquisiion of Investments , 101 12
Disposal of investrments (15) {58)
At end of year 143 54
Other financial assets comprise listed securities of £ni} {2014 £9m) and unlisted securities of £143m (2014 £45my) o
Acquisition of investments tncludes the remaining 11% stake In The Economist, see note 31 for further information E
16 Denvative financal instruments §
2
The Group's approach to the management of financial risks 1s set out in note 19 The Group's outstanding derivative §
financiat Instruments are as follows ®
2015 2014
Gress Gross
notional notional
Allfigures in £ milllons amounts Assets Liabilitles amounts Assets Liabilitles
Interest rate derivatives —
in a farr value hedge relationship 1,952 70 (10) 1,607 84 (5) g
Interestrate derivatives - §
not In 2 hedge relationship 848 - 6) 673 - N %
Cross-currency rate derivatives - E
in a hedge relationship 1,879 10 ms) 889 24 (36) ~
Cross-currency rate derivatives -
notin a hedge relationship 120 30 {30) 451 6 (26)
Total 4,799 110 {165) 3,620 14 {74)
Analysed as expiring, e
<
inless than one year 324 32 29 200 24 m 35
a
Later than one year and not later 3
than five years 1,255 44 4) 1.386 67 3
Later than five years 3,220 34 (132) 2,034 23 (65)
Total 4,799 10 (165) 3,620 14 (74)
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16 Dernvative financial instruments continued

The carrying value of the above derivative financial instruments equals their fair value Fair values are determined
by using market data and the use of established esttmation techniques such as discounted cash flow and option
valuation models

At the end of 2015, the currency spiit of the mark-to-market values of rate derivatives, including the exchange of

principal on cross-currency rate derivatives, was US dollar £(317)m, sterling £102m, euro £759m and Brazthan real
£nit(2014 US dollar £(607)m, sterling £214m, euro £430m and Brazihan real £4m)

The fixed interest rates on outstanding rate derivative contracts at the end of 2015 range from 110% to 14 48%
(2014 110% to 14 48%) and the floating rates are based on LIBOR in US dollar, euro and steriing

The Group’s portfalio of rate derivatives is diversified by maturity, counterparty and type Natural offsets between
transactions within the portfolio and the designation of certain derivatives as hedges significantly reduce the risk
of Income statement volatifity The sensitivity of the portfolio to changes in market rates is set out in note 19

Dervative financial assets and iabiities subject to offsetting arrangements are as follows

2015 2014

Net Net

Gross Gross derivative Gross Gross derlvative

derivative dervative assets/ derivative derivative assets/

Alt figures in £ millions assets liabilicles liabilltles assets liabllitles liabllitles

Counterparties in an asset position 50 (22) 28 94 (28) 66
Counterparties in & hability position 60 (143) (83) 20 {46) (26}

Total as presented tn the balance sheet 110 (165) (55) 114 (74) 40

All of the Group’s derivative financial instruments are subject to enforceable netting arrangements with indimdual
counterparttes, allowing net settlement in the event of default of either party Offsetarrangementsin respectof
cash balances are shown in note 17

Counterparty exposure from all derivatives is managed, together with that from deposits and bank account
balances, within credit imits that reflect published credit ratings and by reference to other market measures (e g
market prices for credit default swaps) to ensure that there s no significant nsk to any one counterparty No single
dervative transaction had a market value (positive or negative) at the balance sheet date that exceeded 3% of the
Group's consohdated total equuty

tn accordance with IAS 39 ‘Finanaal Instruments Recognition and Measurement’ the Group has reviewed all of its
material contracts for embedded dervatives that are required to be separately accounted for :f they do not meet
certain requirements, and has concluded that there are no material embedded dervatives
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17 Cash and cash equwvalents {excluding averdrafts)

Allfigures in £ miltions 2015 2014
Cash at bank and in hand 627 483
Short-term bank deposits 1,076 a7

1,703 530

Short-term bank deposits are invested with banks and earn interest at the prevailing short-term deposit rates

Atthe end of 2015 the currency spht of cash and cash equivalents was US dollar 23% {2014 18%), sterhng 57%
(2014 13%), euro 2%{2014 3%), renrninbi 8% (2014 28%) and other 109 (2014 38%)

Cash and cash equivalents have fair values that approximate to their carrying value due to their short-term nature
Cash and cash equivalents include the following far the purpose of the cash flow statement

Allfigures in £ millions M5 2014

Cash and cash equivalents - continumg operations 1,703 530

Bank overdrafts - continuing operations (32} (19)
1,671 Yl

The Group has the following cash pooling arrangements in US dollars, sterling, euro and canadian doilars where
both the company and the bank have a legal night of offset

2015 2014

Offset Offset Net offset Offset Offset Net offset

All figures in £ miflions asset habllity asset asset llability asset

US doliars 446 (442) 4 267 (266) 1

Sterfing 250 (289) 1 430 427) 3

Euro 5 (3) 2 9 8) 1

Canadian doflars 36 (0 26 10 - 10
Total for continuing operations as

presented in the balance sheet 33 15

Offset arrangements in respect of denvatives are shown in note 16
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18 Financial labilities - berrowings

The Group's current and non-current borrowings are as follows

All figuresin £ milliens 2015 24
Non-current

4 0% US dollar notes 2016 {(nominal amount $350m) - 231
6 25% Glohal doflar bonds 2018 {(norminai amount $550m) 403 390
4 625% US dollar notes 2018 (norminal amount $300m) 218 210
1 875% Euro notes 2021 {nominal amount €500m) 386 408
3 75% US dollar notes 2022 (nomnal amount $500m) 342 319
3 25% US dollar notes 2023 (nominal amount $500my) 336 315
1 375% Euro notes 2025 (nominal amount €500m) 359 -
Bank loans and overdrafts - 5
Finance lease liabilities 4 5

2,048 1,883

Current

Due within cne year or en-demand

6 0% Sterling bonds 2015 (neminal amount £300m) - 300

4 0% US dollar notes 2016 (nominal amount $350m) 240 -

Bank loans and overdrafts 38 37

Finance lease liabiities 4 5
282 342

Total borrowings 2,330 2,225

Included m the non-current barrowings abave is £15m of accrued interest {2014 £13m) tncluded in the current
borrowings above 1s £1m of accrued mterest (2014 £1m)

The maturity of the Group’s non-current borrowing 1s as follows

Allfigures i £ millions 2015 2014
Between one and two years 3 239
Between two and five years 622 602
Qver fiveyears 1,423 1,042

2,048 1,883
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18 Financial habilrties - borrowings continued g
The carrying amounts and market values of borrowings are as follows %
7
2015 014
Effective Carrying Market Effective Carrying Markert
Allfigures In £ millions interestrate value value  interestrate value value
Bank loans and overdrafts n/a 38 38 n/a 42 42
6 0% Sterling bonds 2015 - - - 6 27% 300 314
4 0% US dollar notes 2016 4 26% 240 240 4 26% 231 233
6 25% Global dollar bonds 2018 6 46% 403 405 6 46% 350 397 o
4 625% US dollar notes 2018 4 69% 218 213 4 69% 210 205 ':'f_%;
1875% Euro notes 2021 204% 386 380 2 04% 408 407 §
3 75% US dollar notes 2022 394% 342 335 394% 319 327 %
3 25% US dollar notes 2023 3 36% 336 322 3 36% 315 314
1 375% Euro notes 2025 144% 359 350 n/a - -
Ftnance lease habilities n/a 8 8 n/a 10 10
2,330 2,27 2,225 2,249
The market values stated above are based on clean market prices at the year end or, where these are not avatable, E
onthe quoted market prices of comparable debt 1ssued by other companies The effective interest rates above relate §
to the underlying debt instruments &
The carrying amounts of the Group's borrowings are denominated i the following currencies ‘g
Allfigures in £ millions 2015 204
US dollar 1,563 1.491
Sterling 1 303
Eura 759 408
Other 7 23 Y
2,330 2,225 §
a
]
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18 Financral habtlities - borrowings continued

The Group has the following undrawn capacity on its commuitted borrowing facilipes as at 31 December

Al figures in £ millions 205 2014

Floating rate

- expiring within one year - -

- expiring beyond one year 1,187 1,122
1,187 1122

In addition to the above facilities, there are a number of shortterm facilities that are utdised in the normal course
of business

All of the Group's borrowings are unsecured In respect of finance lease obligations, the rights to the leased asset
revert to the lessor in the event of defauit

The maturity of the Group's finance lease obligations 1s as follows

All figures in £ millions 2015 4
Ftnance lease habilities - minimum lease payments
Not later than one year 5
Later than one year and not later than two years 3 3
Later than two years and not fater than three years 1
Later than three years and not later than four years - 1
Later than four years and not later than five years - -
Later than five years - -
Future finance charges on finance leases - -
Present value of finance lease liabilities 8 10
The present value of finance lease habilities is as follows
All figures in £ millions 2015 2014
Nok later than one year 4 5
Later than one year and not later than five years 4 5
Later than five years - -
8 i0

The carrying amounts of the Group’s lease obligations approximate thetr fairvalue
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19 Financial nsk management

The Group's approach to the management of financial nsks together with sensitivity analyses of its financtal
Instrumenis I1s set out below

Treasury pohicy

The Group holds financial instruments for two prinaipal purpoeses to finance Its operations and to manage the
interest rate and currency risks arising from its operations and its sources of finance The Group finances its
operations by a mixture of cash flows from operations, short-term borrowings from banks and commeraal paper
markets, and ionger-term loans from banks and capital markets The Group borrows prncipally in US dollars, euros
and sterling, at both floating and fixed rates of interest, using dervative financial instruments (‘derivatives'), where
appropriate, to generate the desired currency profile and interest rate basis The denvatives used for this purpose
are principally rate swaps, rate caps and collars, currency rate swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts

The main risks ansing from the Group's financial instruments are interest rate risk, hquidity and refinancing risk,
counterparty risk and foreign currency nsk These risks are managed by the chief financia officer under policies
approved by the board, which are summarised in thrs note Al the key treasury policies remained unchanged
throughout the year, except for revisions to the Group's bank counterparty risk imits and danfications i respect
of the Group's approach to comphance with laws and regulations

The audit commuttee receives regular reports on the Group's treasury activities, policies and procedures
The treasury department 1s not a profit centre and its actvities are subject to regular internal audit

Liquidiity and refinancng nsk management

The Group’s objective is to secure continuity of funding at a reasonable cost To do this It seeks to arrange committed
funding for a variety of maturities from a diversity of sources The Group's policy objective 1s to maintain the
weighted average maturity of its core gross borrowings {treating short-term advances as having the final maturity of
the facilities available to refinance them} to be between three and ten years Atthe end of 2015 the average maturity
of gross borrowings was5 1 years (2014 47 years) of which bonds represented 98% (2014 97%) of these borrowings

The Group belteves that ready access to different funding markets also helps to reduce its kquidity nisk, and that
published credit ratings and published financial policies improve such access Atthe year end, the long-term ratings
were Baaj from Moody's and BBB+ from Standard & Poor’s, and the short-term ratings were P2 and A2 respectively
All of the Group’s credst ratings remamned unchanged duning the year, although in October 2015, Standard & Poor’s
changed the outlook on their long-term rating from *Stable’ to ‘Negative’ In February 2016, Moody's changed
Pearson's long-term rating from Baa1 (negative) to Baa2 (stable) In March 2016, Standard & Poor's changed
Pearson’s long-term rating from BBB+ (Negative} to BBB (Stable) The short-term ratings from Moody's and Standard
& Poor'sremain unchanged atPZand A2 The Group's policy Is to strive to maintain a rating of Baal/BBB+ over the
long term The Group also uses a range of ratios to monitor and manage its finances internally These include interest
cover, net debt to cperating profit and cash flow to debt measures The Group also maintains undrawn committed
borrowing facilities Atthe end of 2015 the committed facilities amounted to $1,750m (£1,187m) and their weighted
average maturity was 4 6 years

Interest rate risk management

The Group's exposure to interest rate fluctuations on Its borrowings 1s managed by borrowing on a fixed rate basis
and by entering into rate swaps, rate caps and forward rate agreements The Group also armns to avoid undue
exposure to a single interest rate setting Reflecting this objective, the Group has predomunantly swapped its fixed
rate hond issues to floating rate at their launch This creates a group of denvatives, under which the Group s a
receiver of fixed rates and a payer of floating rates

The Group's policy objective has continued to be to set a target propertion of its forecast borrowings (taken at the
year end, with cash netted againstfloating rate debt and before certain adjustments for 1AS 39 to be hedged (i e
fixed or capped at the year end) over the next four years, subject to a maximum of 65% and a mmimum that starts at
40% and falis by 10% ateach year end At the end of 2015 the fixed to floating hedging ratio, on the above basis, was
approximately 90% 10% The higher than policy ratio s a result of hugher cash balances due to divestments in 2015
Qur policy 1s to not close out contracts where we anticipate reverung to compliance with the policy over the longer
term Asimultaneous 1% change on 1 January 2016 in the Group's vanable interest rates in US dollar and sterfing,
taking mnto account forecast seasonal debt, would have a £6m effect on profit before tax
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t9 Financtal risk management continued

interest rate nsk management continued

The policy described above creates a further group of derivatives, under which the Group 1s a payer of fixed rates
and a recever of floating rates The Group's accounting objective in relation to 1ts use of interest rate derivatives is
to minimise the impact on the income statement of changes in the mark-to-market value of its derivative portfolto
asawhale Ituses duration calculations to estimate the sensitivity of the derivatives to movements in market
rates The Group also identifies which dervatives are eligible for fair value hedge accounting (which reduces the
income statement impact of changes in the market value of a dervative) The Group then balances the total
portfalio between hedge-accounted and pooled segments, so that the expected movement on the pooled
segment 1S mimmal

Financial counterparty nsk management

Counterparty credit limits, which take published eredit rating and cther factors into account, are set to caver the
Group’s total aggregate exposure to a sthgle financial institution The imits applicable to published credit ratings
bands are approved by the chief financial officer within guidelines approved by the board Exposures and limits
applicable to each financial Institution are reviewed on a regular basis

Foreign currency risk management

Although the Group s based in the UK, it has its most sigruficant investrentn overseas cperations The most
sigruficant currency fer the Group is the US dollar The Group's policy on routine transactional conversions between
currencies {for example, the collection of receivabies, and the settiement of payables or interest} remainsthat these
should be transacted atthe refevant spot exchange rate The majonty of the Group's operations are domesticwithin
their country of operation No unrermitted profits are hedged with foreign exchange contracts, as the company
judges it inappropriate to hedge non cash flowtranslational exposure with cash flow instruments However, the
Group does seek to create a natural hedge of this exposure through its policy of aligning approxmately the currency
compaosition of Its core net borrowings (after the impact of cross-currency rate derivatives) with its forecast
operating profit before depreciation and amortisation This policy aims te soften the impact of changes in foreign
exchange rates on consolidated interest cover and earnings The policy above applies only to currencies thataccount
for more than 15% of Group operating profitbefore depreaation and amortisation, which currently s onlythe US
dollar The Group still borrows smalf amounts m other currencies, typically for seasonal working capital needs The
Group policy does not require existing currency debt to be terminated to match declines in that currency’s share of
Group aperating profit before deprectation and amortisation In addition, currencres that account for less than 15%
of Group operating profit before depreciation and amortisation can be included in the above hedging process at the
request of the chief financial officer

Included within year end net deb, the net borrowings/(cash) in the hedging currencies above (taking into account
the effect of cross-currency swaps)were US dollar £1,345m and sterling £(385)m

Use of currency debt and currency derivatives
The Group uses both currency denominated debt and derivative instruments to implement the above policy

Its intention Is that gains/losses on the dervatives and debt offset the losses/gains on the foreign currency assets
and income Each quarter the value of hedging mstruments is monitored against the assets in the refevant
currency and, where practical, a decision is made whether to treat the debt or derivative as a netinvestment
hedge (permitting foreign exchange movements on it to be taken to reserves) for the purposes of IAS 39
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19 Financial risk management continued

Analysis of Group debt, including the impact of derivatives
The following tables analyse the Group's sources of funding and the impact of derivatives on the Group's
debt instruments

The Group's net debt position Is set out below

All figures in £mullions 2015 204
Cash and cash eguivalents 1,703 530
Marketable securities 28 16
Dertvative financial instruments (55) 40
Bank loans, overdrafts and foan notes (38) (42)
Bonds (2,284) {2,173)
Finance lease liabilities (8) (10}
Net debt {654) (1,639)

The sphit of net debt between fixed and floating rate, stated after the impact of rate derivatives, is as follows

Allfigures in £ millions 2015 2014
Fixed rate 577 597
Floating rate 77 1,042
Total 654 1,639

Gross borrowings, after the impact of cross-currency rate derivatives, analysed by currency are as follows

Alifigures in £ millicns 2015 2014
us dallar 2,308 2,099
Sterling 1 104
QOther 21 22
Total 2,330 2,225

As at 31 December 2015 the exposure of the borrowings of the Group to interest rate changes when the barrowings
re-price 1s as follows

Less than One to More than
All figures in £ millions one year five years fiveyears Tatal
Re-pricing profile of borrowings 282 625 1,423 2,330
Effect of rate dervatives 1,449 (33) (1,416} -
Total 1,731 592 7 2,330
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19 Financial risk ranagement continued

The matunty of contracted cash flows associated with the Group's financial habilities s as follows

2015
Allfiguresin £ milllons usb GBP Other Totat
Not later than one year 470 58 73 601
Later than one year and not later than five years 705 - - 705
Later than five years 1,578 - - 1,578
Total 2753 58 73 . 2,884
Analysed as
Bonds 1,745 - 829 2,574
Rate dernvatives - inflows {335) (858) (919} (2,112}
Rate derivatives ~ outflows 1,155 858 90 2,103
Trade payables , 188 58 73 319
Total 2753 58 73 2,884

2014
Alifigures in £ rillions usp GBP Other Total
Not later than one year 398 160 99 657
Later than one year and not later than five years 877 - - 877
Later than five years 1126 - - 1,126
Total 2,401 160 99 2,660
Analysed as
Bonds 171 318 433 2,468
Rate derwatives - inflows {379) (656) (537} (1.572)
Rate denvatives - outflows 893 444 98 1.435
Trade payables 176 54 99 329
Total 2,401 160 99 2,660

Allcash flow projections shown above are on an undiscounted basis Any cash flows based on afloating rate are
calculated using interest rates as set at the date of the last rate reset Wherethis 1s not possible, floating rates are
based on interest rates prevailing at 31 December in the refevant year All derivative amounts are shown gross,
although the Group net settles these amounts wherever possible

Any amounts drawn under revolving credit faciities and commeraal paper are assumed to mature at the maturity
date of the relevant facility, with interest caiculated as payable in each calendar year upto and including the date of

maturnity of the facility
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19 Financial isk management continued

financal instruments - farr value measurement

The following table provides an analysis of those financial instruments that are measured subseqguently to mitial
recognition at fair value, grouped into levels 1to 3, based on the degree to which the fair value 1s observable

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices tn active markets for identical

assets or habtlities,

Level 2 far value measurements are those derived from inputs, other than quoted prices included within fevel 3,
that are observable for the asset or hability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly {derved from prices), and

Leve! 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation technigues that include inputs for the asset or

liability that are not based on observable market data {unobservable inputs)
2015 2014
All figures In £ millions Level1 lLevel2 Level3 Total Level 3 Level2 Leveil Total
Financiaf assets at fair value
Derwative financial assets - 110 - 110 - 114 - 114
Marketable securrties - 28 - 28 - 16 - 16
Available for sale financial assets
Investments in listed securities - - - - - 9 - 9
Investments tn unlisted securities - - 143 143 - - 45 45
Financial habihities at fair value
Derwative financial habilities - (165} - (165) - {(74) - {74)
Total - 27) 143 116 - 65 45 110
The following table analyses the movements in level 3 fair value measurements
2015 2014
{nvestments Investments
inunhsted in unlisted
Altfiguresin £ méillions securities securities
At beginning of year 45 94
Exchange differences 3 6
Additions 101 3
fair value movements - -
Disposals (6) (58)
Atend of year 143 45

The fair value of the 11% stake in The Economist 1s valued by referance to the disposal transaction terms The far
value of the remaining investments in unisted securities 1s determined by reference to the financial performance

of the underlying asset and amounts realised on the sale of similar assets
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19 Financial nsk management continued

Financial instrurments - sensitivity analysis
As at 31 December 2015 the sensitivity of the carrying value of the Group's financial instruments to fluctuations
InInterest rates and exchange rates 1s as follows

Impactof 1% Impactof1% Impactof10% impactof 10%

Carrying increasein  decreasein strengtheming weakeningin
All figures (n £ millions value Interestrates Interestrates insterling sterling
Investments in listed secunties - - - - -
Investments in unlisted securities 143 - - 4 5
Cash and cash equivalents 1,703 - - (67} 82
Marketable securittes 28 - - - -
Derwvative financial instruments (55) {93) 99 14 (18)
Bonds (2,284) 97 {103) 208 (254)
Other borrowings {46) - - 5 (&)
Other net finanaal assets 644 - - {57) 68
Total financial instruments 133 4 4 99 (123)

The table shows the sensitivities of the fair values of each class of financial nstrurnents to an 1solated change in
either interest rates or foreign exchange rates The class ‘Other net financial assets’ comprises trade recevables
less trade payables

The sensttivities of dervative instrumenits are calculated using established estimation techniques such as
discounted cash flow and option valuation models Where modelling an interest rate decrease of 1% led to negative
interest rates, these points on the yield curve were adjusted to 0% A large proportion of the movements shown
apove would impact equity rather than the income statement, due to the {ocation and functional currency of the
entities in which they arise and the avalability of net investment hedge treatment The changes in valuations are
estimates of the impact of changes in market vartables and are not a prediction of future events or anticipated gains
or josses
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20 Intangible assets - Pre-publicatien S
All figures i £ millions 2015 2014 g
3
Cost a
At beginning of year 2138 1,933
Exchange differences 66 80
Additions 347 358
Disposal through business disposal (90} -
Disposals (260) (234)
Acquisition through business combination - 1 g
Atend of year 2,201 2,138 g
Amortisation 3
At beginning of year (1,318) {1,216} %
Exchange differences (47) (60}
Charge for theyear {281) {292)
Disposal through business disposal 26 -
Disposals 260 234
Transfer to receivables - B £
At end of year (1,360) 1,318) %
&
Carrying amounts '§"
Atend ofyear 84t 820 g
Included n the above are pre-publication assets amounting to £580m (2014 £546m)which wili be realised in more
than oneyear
Amortisation ts included in the iIncome statement in cost of goods sold There was no amortisation within
discontinued operattons in either year
Disposal through business disposal amounts relate to the disposal of PowerSchool, see note 31 for further %‘—
information 3
21 Inventortes %

Allfigures in £ millions 2015 04
Raw materials 8 9
Work in progress 8 10
Finished goods 195 205

21 224

The cost of inventortes relating to continuing operations recogrised as an expense and included inthe income
statement in cost of goods sold amounted to £331m (2014 £379m) In 2015, £33m (2014 £38m)of inventory
provisions was charged In the income statement None of the inventory 1s pledged as security
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22 Trade and other recevables

Allfigures in £ millions 2015 2014
Current

Trade recewvables 938 963
Royalty advances 20 18
Prepayments and accrued income 118 107
Other receivables 208 222

1,284 1,310

Non-current

Trade recevables 25 26
Royalty advances 13 8
Prepayments and accrued income 43 30
Other recelvables 34 18

15 82

Trade receivables are stated at fair value, net of prowisions for bad and doubtful debts and anticipated future sales
returns The movements on the provision for bad and doubtful debts are as follows

Alifiguresin £ millions 2015 2014
At beginning of year (73) {58)
Exchange differences 3 -
Income statement movements (31} (21)
tUtilised 32 17
Acquisition through business combination - an
Disposal through business disposal 5 -
Atend of year (64) (73)

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade recevables are imited due to the Group’s large number of
customers, who are nternationally dispersed

The ageing of the Group’s trade recervables s as follows

All figures in Emillions 2015 204
within due date 754 869
Up to three months past due date 253 203
Three to six maonths past due date 58 40
Six to nine months pastdue date 19 15
Nine to 12 months past due date 13 15
More than 12 months past due date 16 1
Total trade recevables 1,113 1,153
Less proviston for sales returns (150) (164)
Net trade recevables 963 989

The Group reviews its bad debt provision at least twice a year following a detailed review of recewvable balances and
histortcal payment profiles Management believes all the remaining recesvable balances are fully recoverable
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23 Provistons for other abiities and charges 8
Deferred Disposals Legal g
Allfigures In £ millions consideration Property andclosures and other Total §
At 1january 2015 57 7 20 51 135 @
Exchange differences 3 - - (4) M
Charged to incorne statement - - - 12 12
Released to income statement {1} - - 4) (5}
Disposal through business disposat - (1} - {1) (2)
Utlised (6) - - (20) (26) 3
At 31 December 2015 53 6 20 34 13 5
B
Analysis of provistons g
3
2015 a
Ceferred Disposals Legal
Allfigures i £ milhons censideration Property andclosures and other Tetal
Current 5 3 15 19 42
Non-current 48 3 5 15 n
53 6 20 34 13 5
2014 £
&
Current 7 4 20 22 53 a
Non-current 50 - 29 8z é"
57 7 20 51 135 A
Deferred consideration pnimaniy relates to the formation of a venture in a North America business in 2011
Disposals and closures include labilities related to the disposal of Penguin Legal and other includes legal daims,
contract disputes and potential contract losses
g
3
=]
(H]

SJUBLLAETS Jejoueuly




190  Pearson plc Annual report and accounts 2615

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

24 Trade and other liabilities

All figures in £ millions 2015 2014
Trade payables 318 329
Social security and other taxes 22 21
Accruals an S01
Deferred income 766 801
Interest payable 19 28
Other habilities 249 231
1,746 191

Less non-currentportion
Accruals 20 22
Deferred income 262 201
Interest payable - 19
Other liabilities 74 a8
356 310
Current portion 1,390 1,601

The carrying value of the Group's trade and other liabilities approximates s far value

The deferred income balance comprises princtpally multi-year obiigations to deliver workboaks to adoption
custamers in school businesses, advance payments (n assessment, testing and training businesses, subscription
income n schoot and college businesses, and obligations to deliver digital contentin future periods

25 Retirement benefit and other post-retirement obligations

Background
The Group operates a number of defined benefit and defined contnbution retirement plans throughout the world

The targest plan 1s the Pearson Group Penslon Plan (UK Group pian}in the UK, which is sectionalised to provide both
defined benefit and defined contribution pension benefits The defined benefit section was closed to new members
from 1 November 2006 The defined contribution section, opened in 2003, 1s open to new and existing employees
Finally, there 1s a separate section within the UK Group plan set up for auto-enrolment The defined benefit section
of the UK Group plan s a final salary pension plan which provides benefits to members in the form of a guaranteed
level of pension payable for ife The level of benefits depends on the length of service and final pensionable pay
The UK Group plan Is funded with benefit payments from trustee administered funds The UK Group planis
admurustered in accardance with the Trust Deed and Rules in the interests of its beneficiaries by Pearson Group
Penston Trustee Limited

At 31 Becember 2015 the UK Group pian has approximately 25,000 members, analysed in the following table

All figuresin % Active Deferred  Pensioners Total
Defined benefit 1 27 34 62
Defined contnbution 14 24 - 38

Total 15 51 34 100
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25 Retirement benefit and other post-retirement obligations contnued E"
o

Background continued B

The other major defined benefit plans are based inthe US These are also final salary pension plans which provide 7

benefits to members In the form of a guaranteed pension payable for life, with the level of benefits dependent on °

length of service and final pensionable pay The majority of the US plans are funded

The Group also has several post-retirement medical benefit plans (PRMBs), principally in the US PRMBs are

unfunded but are accounted for and valued similarly to defined benefit penston plans

The defined benefit schemes expose the Group to actuarial risks, such as life expectancy, inflaton risks, and

investment risk including asset volatiity and changes in bond ytelds The Group 1s not exposed to any unusual,

entity specific or plan specificrisks o

Assumptions 'g

The principal assumptions used for the UK Group plan and the US PRMB are shown below Weighted average o

assumptions have been shown for the other plans, which primanly relate te US penston plans 3
3

2018 2014
UK Group Other UK Group Other

Allfiguresin% plan plans PRMB plan plans PRMB

Inflation 31 25 25 30 25 25

Rate used to discount plan liabilities 37 40 40 36 37 37

Expected rate of increase In salaries 36 30 30 35 39 40 =]

Expected rate of increase for pensions in g

payment and deferred pensions 19t0510 - - 19t0505 - - 2
3

Initial rate of Increase in healthcare rate - - 70 - - 70 3B
~

Ultimate rate of Increase in heaithcare rate - - 50 - - 50

The UK discount rate 1s based on corporate bond yields adjusted to reflect the duration of hiabilities The US discount

rate is set by reference to a US bond portfolio matching modef

The inflation rate for the UK Group plan of 3 1% reflects the RPI rate In line with changes to legislation in 2010, certain

benefits have been calculated with reference to CPl as the inflabionary measure and in these instances arate of 2 1% Py

has been used S

The expected rate of increase in safaries has been set at 3 6% for 2015 with a short-term assumption of 2 0% for §
B

threeyears

For the UK plan, the mortality base table assumptions have been derived from the SAPS ‘all pensioners’ tables for

males and the SAPS ‘normal health pensioners’ tables for ferales, adjusted to reflect the observed experience of the
plan, with CMI mode! improvement factors A1 5% long-term rate improvement on the CMI model s applied for both

males and females

For the US plans, the mortahty table (RP - 2014} and 2014 Improvement scale (MP - 2014)with no adjustments have
been adopted from 2014, reflecting the mortafity assumption most prevalent in the US
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25 Retirement benefit and other post-retirement obligations continued

Assumptions continued
Using the above tables, the remaining average life expectancy In years of a pensioner retinng at age 65 onthe
balance sheet date for the UK Group plan and US plansis as follows

LK us
Allfiguresin years 2015 2014 2015 2ma
Male 235 244 212 216
Female 256 245 232 238

The remaining average life expectancy in years of a pensioner retiring at age 65, 20 years after the balance sheet
date, for the UK and US Group plans 15 as follows

UK us
Allfigures in years 2015 2014 2015 2014
Male 255 %6 229 233
Female 278 264 249 255

Although the Group anticipates that plan surpluses will be utilised during the life of the plan to address member
benefits, the Group recognises its pension surplus in full in respect of the UK Group plan on the basisthatitis
management’s jJudgement that there are no substantive restrictions on the return of residuai plan assetsin the
event of a winding up of the plan after all member obligations have been met

Finanaal statement information
The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows

2015
Cefined
UK Group benefit Defined

All figures in £ millions plan other Sub-total contributron PRMAE Total
Current service cost 20 2 22 74 - 96
Curtatlments 3) - 3) - - 3)
Administration expenses 5 - 5 - - 5
Total operating expense 22 2 24 74 - 98
Interest on plan assets {98) {5) (103) - - {103)
Interest on plan tiabilities 50 7 97 - 2 29
Net finance {income)/expense (8) 2 (6) - 2 4)
Netincome statement charge 14 4 18 74 2 94
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25 Retirernent benefit and other post-retirement abligations continued 8
financial statement infermation continued g
2014 é
Defined
UK Group benefit Deftred
All figures In £ milions plan other Sub-total  contribution PRMB Total
Current service cost 20 2 22 69 2 93
Curtaiiments (5) - {5) - (13} {18)
Administration expenses 4 - 4 - - 4
Total operating expense 19 2 21 69 (11} 78 o
Interest on plan assets (103) (N (110) - - (10 ‘é
Interast on plan liabilities 98 8 106 - 3 108 g
B
Net finance (income)/expense (5) 1 @ - 3 m 3
Net income statement charge/(income) 14 3 17 69 (8} 78
Included within the 2015 results are discontinued operations consisting of a £5m charge (2014 £nil) refating to
defined benefit schemes and a £8m charge (2014 £8m charge) relating to defined contribution schemes
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as foliows
2015 2014 g
Other Other Other Other a
UKGroup  funded unfunded UKGroup  funded unfunded g
Allfigures in £ millions plan plans plans Total plan plans plans Total _g
Fair vaiue of plan assets 2,803 135 - 2938 2714 164 - 2878 4
Present vatue of defined
benefit obligation (2,466) (157) (18) (2.641) (2524) (196) (23) {2,743)
Net penston asset/{liability) 337 (22) {18) 297 190 (32) (23} 135
Other post-retirement medical
benefit obhigation (76) B8y} L
Other pension accruals (23) (27) 5
Net retirement benefit asset 198 27 g
Analysed as "’
Retirement benefit assets 337 190
Retirement benefit obligations {139) (163)
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25 Retrement benefit and other post-retirement obligations continued

Financial statement information continued

The following gains/{losses) have been recogrmised in other comprehensive income

All figures in £ millions 2015 2014
Amounts recognised for defined benefit plans 104 36
Amounts recognised for post-retirernent medical benefit plans 6 13}
Total recognised in year 110 23
The fair value of plan assets comprises the following
2015 2014
Other Other
UK Group funded UK Group funded
AH figures in % plan plans Total plan plans Total
Equities 12 2 14 26 2 28
Bonds 8 2 10 42 3 45
Property 9 - 9 9 - 9
Qualifying investment fund 50 - 50 - - -
Other 17 - 17 17 1 18

The plan assets do not include any of the Group's own financial Instruments, or any property occupled by the Group

The table below further disaggregates the UK Group plan assets into additional categories and those assets which

have a quoted market price In an active market and those that do not

2015 2014
Quoted No quoted Quoted No guoted
All figures in % marketprice marketprice marketprice market price
UK equities - 1 5 1
Non-UK equities 11 2 20 2
Fixed-interest securities 6 - 19 -
Index-linked secunties - 26 -
Property - 9 - 9
Qualifying investment fund 50 - - -
Other - 17 - 18
Total 71 29 70 30
The liquidity profite of the UK Group plan assets is as follows
All flguresin% 2015 2014
Liguid - call <1 month 73 72
Less liquid - call 1-3 months 2 2
25 26

Liquid - cali >3 months
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25 Retirement benefit and other post-retirement obhgations continued

Financial statement information continued
Changes in the values of plan assets and liabilities of the retirement benefit plans are as follows

2015 2014
UK Group Other UK Group Qther

Allfigures in £ millions plan plans Total plan plans Total
Fair value of plan assets
Opening fair value of plan assets 2,714 164 2,878 2,353 156 2,508
Exchange differences - 2 2 - 4 4
Interest on plan assets 98 S 103 103 7 110
Return on plans assets excluding interest (8) (4) {12) 286 9 295
Contributions by employer 72 5 77 62 4 66
Contributions by employee 2 - 2 2 - 2
Benefits paid (95) (17 (112) (92} {16) (108)
Transfer 20 (20) - - - -
Closing fair value of plan assets 2,803 135 2,938 2,714 164 2,878
Presentvalue of defined
benefit obligation
Opening defined benefit obligation (2,524) (219) (2,743) (2,267) (191} (2,458)
Exchange differences - 3 {3) - (5} {5}
Current service cost {20) (2) (22) {20) (2) (22)
Adrnimistration expenses {5) - {5) {4) - {4)
Curtaiiments 3 - 3 S - 5
Interest cost (90) (7) {97) (98) (8) (106)
Actuanal gains/(losses) - experience 107 2 109 " (6] 10
Actuarial gains/{losses) - demographuc (33} 1 {32) - (8} {8)
Actuanal gains/{losses) - financial 33 6 39 (241) (20 (261)
Contributions by employee (2) - {2) 2) - {2)
Transfer (30) 30 - - - -
Benefits paid 95 17 12 92 16 108
Closing defined benefit obligation (2,466) (175) (2,641) (2.524) (219) (2,743)

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 17 1 years for the UK and 8 7 years for the US
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25 Retirement benefitand other post-retirement obligations continued

Financial statement mformation continued
Changes in the value of the US PRMB are as follows

All figures in £millions 2015 2014
Opening defined benefit obligation {81) {77}
Exchange differences (3 4
Current service cost - {2)
Curtailments - 13
interest cost 2) 3
Actuanal galns/{losses) - experience 2 -
Actuarial gains/{losses) - demographic 2 7
Actuarnial gains/({losses) - flnancial 2 (6)
Benefits paid 4 5
(76} (81

Closing defined benefit obhgation

Fundmng
The UK Group plan is self-administered with the plan's assets being held independently of the Group in trust

The trustee of the plan 1s required to act in the bestinterest of the plan’s beneficiaries The most recent triennial
actuarial valuation for funding purposes was completed as at 1 January 2015 and this valuation revealed atechnical
provisions funding shortfall of £27m which was elminated by contributiens paid during 2015

As a consequence of the disposal of the FT Group, an agreement has been made between Pearson and the Plan
Trustee to accelerate the funding of the plan so that it becomes fully funded on a ‘self-sufficiency’ basis in the near
future Thisis a much higher level of funding than techmical provisions As a result the plan expects to be able to
provide benefits (In accordance with the plan rules) with a very low level of reliance on future funding from Pearson
A commitment has also been made to maintain that leve! of funding in futureyears in addition to a substantial
company contribution following the Penguin Randem House merger (ta be paid before July 2017), an upfront
contribution wiil be made to the plan following the disposal of the FT Group This Is expected to be approximately
£90m and there will be further annual contnbutions to elminate any remairung shortfall in the seif-sufficency
funding

At 31 December 2015, assets of the plan are dvided into two elements matching assets, which are assets that
produce cash flows that can be expected to match the cash flows for a proportion of the membership, and include
a Liability Driven investment mandate (UK Bonds, interest rate/inflaton swaps and other denvative instruments),
inflation-linked property and infrastructure, and return seeking assets, which are assets invested with a longesr-term
horizon to generate the returns needed to provide the remaining expected cash flows for the beneficiaries, and
include equities, property and afternative asset classes During the fourth quarter of 2015 the pian’s long-term
investment strategy was updated to an allocation of 84 2% Matching Assets and 15 8% Return Seeking Assets as

at 31 December 2015

Regular contributions to the plan in respect of the defined benefit sections are estimated to be £8m for 2016

The Group expects to contribute $10m n 2016 and $10m 1n 2017 to 1ts US defined benefit pension plans
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25 Retirement benefit and other post-retirement obligations continued

Sensitivities
The effect of a one percentage point Increase and decrease in the discount rate on the defined benefit obligation and

the total pension expense is as follows

2015
Allfigurasin £ millions 1%increase 1% decrease
Effect.
{Decrease)/increase in defined benefit obligation - UK Group plan (372) 495
(Decrease)/increase in defined benefit abligation - US plan (16) 19
The effect of members iving one year more or one year less on the defined benefit obligation is as follows
2015
1year 1 year
Allfigures in £ millions fncrease decrease
Effect
Increasef{decrease) in defined benefit obligation - UK Group plan 100 (96)
Increasef(decrease) in defined benefit obligation - US plan 7 (7)
The effect of a half percentage point increase and decrease inthe inflation rate 1s as follows
2015
0 5% G 5%
All figures in Emillilons increase decrease
Effect
Increase/(decrease} in defined benefit obligation - UX Group plan 113 (103)

Increasef{decrease) in defined benefit obligation - US plan - -

The above sensHivity analyses are based on a change tn an assumption while holding al! other assumptions constant,
although in practice this is unhkely to occur and changes in some assumptions may be correlated When calculating
these sensitivities the same method has been applied to calculate the defined benefit obligation as has been applied
when calculating the liabiity recognised in the balance sheet This methodology is the same as prior periods

26 Share-based payments

The Group recognised the following charges in the income statement in respect of its equity-settled share-based
payment plans

All figures in £ millions 2015 2014

Pearson plans 26 32

Share-based payment charges inciuded In discontinued operations amounted to £3m (2014 £3m} The Group
operates the following equity-settled employee option and share plans

Worldwide Save for Shares Plan Since 1994, the Group has operated a Save-As-You-Earn plan for UK employees

in 1998, the Group introduced a Worldwide Save for Shares Plan Under these plans, employees can save a portion
of ther monthly salary over penods of three or five years At the end of this period, the employee has the option to
purchase ordinary shares with the accumulated funds at a purchase price equal to 80% of the market price prevailing
atthe time of the commencement of the employee’s participation in the plan Options thatare not exerased within
six months of the end of the savings period lapse unconditionally
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26 Share-based payments continued

Employee Stock Purchase Plan In 2000, the Group established an Employee Stock Purchase Plan which aliows all
employees in the US to save a portion of their monthly salary over six-month pertods Atthe end of the period, the
employee has the option to purchase ADRs with their accumulated funds ata purchase price equal to 85% of the
lower of the market price prevailing at the beginning or end of the period

Long-Term Incentive Plan This plan was first ntroduced in 2001, renewed in 2006 and again in 2011 The plan
consists of restricted shares The vesting of restricted shares is normally dependent on contiNWNg service over a
three to five-year period, and in the case of senior management upon the satisfaction of corporate performance
targets over a three-year period These targets may be based on market and/or non-market performance critera
Restricted shares awarded to semor management in May 2014 and May 2015 vest dependent on relative total
shareholder return, return on invested capital and earnings per share growth Restricted shares awarded to senior
management in November 2014 vest dependent on earnings per share growth Other restricted shares awarded in
2014 and 2015 vest depending on continuing service over a three-year period

The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options granted under the Group’s plans are as follows

2015 2014

Weighted Weighted

average average

Number of exercise Numberof exerclse

share optfons price share options price

000s E 000s £

Qutstanding at beginning of year 3,507 848 2,792 873
Granted during the year 1,024 1149 1,985 811
Exercised during the year (578) 878 (727) 824
Forfeited durmng the year (696) 9.12 (538) 876
Expired during the year N 885 (5 743
Outstanding at end of year 3,250 924 3,507 848
Options exercisable at end of year 128 2889 43 824

Options were exercised regularly throughout the year The weighted average share price during the year was

£11 86 (2014 £11 41) Early exercises anising from redundancy, retirement or death are treated as an acceleration
of vesting and the Group therefore recognises in the income statement the ameunt that otherwise would have
been recognised for services received over the rermainder of the original vesting period

The options outstanding at the end of the year have weighted average remaining contractual lives and exercise
prices as follows

2015 2014

Weighted Weighted

average average

Numbercf centractual Numberof  contractual

Range of exercise prices share optlons life shareaptions life
000s Years 000s Years

0-5 - - - -
5-10 2,381 208 3,507 268
>10 889 326 - -
3,250 2 40 3,507 268

In 2015 and 20714 options were granted under the Worldwide Save for Shares Plan The welghted average estimated
fair value for the options granted was calculated using a Black-Scholes option pricing model
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26 Share-based payments continued

The weighted average estimated fair values and the inputsinto the Black-Scholes model are as follows

2015 2014

Welghted vveighted

average average

Fair value £199 £2 41
Weighted average share price £13 37 £1109
Weighted average exercise price £11 49 £811
Expected volatility 23 00% 2127%
Expected life 37years 3 9years
Risk-free rate 090% 13%
Expected dividend yleld 4 44% 4 33%
Forfeiture rate 32% 34%

The expected volatility s based on the historical volatility of the company's share price over the previous three to

seven years depending on the vesting term of the options

The following shares were granted under restricted share arrangements

2M5 2014

Weighted Welghted

Numberof average fair Numberof  averagefalr

shares value shares value

000s £ 000s £

Long-Term Incentive Plan 1,942 12 27 5,875 1144

The fair value of shares granted under the Long-Term Incentive Plan that vest unconditionatly is determined using

the share price at the date of grant The number of shares expected to vestis adjusted, based on historical

experience, to account for potential forfeitures Restricted shares granted under the Annual Bonus Share Matching
Plan are valued using the share price at the date of grant Participants under both plans are entitled to dvidends

during the vesting period and therefore the share price is not discounted

Restricted shares with a market performance condition were valued by an independent actuary using a Monte Carlo
model Restricted shares with a non-market performance condition were fair valued based on the share price at the
date of grant Neon-market performance conditions are taken into consideration by adjusting the number of shares

expected to vest based on the most likely outcome of the relevant performance critena
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27 Share capital and share premium

Number of Qrdinary Share

shares shares premlum

000s £m £m

At 1 January 2014 818,580 205 2.568
Issue of ordinary shares - share option schemes 1,303 - "
At 31 December 2014 819,883 205 2,579
issue of ordinary shares - share option schemes 1185 - "
Ar31December 2015 821,068 205 2.590

The ordinary shares have a par value of 25p per share (2014 25p per share) Allissued shares are fully paid All shares
have the same rights

The Group manages its capitai to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debtand eqLity balance

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt (see note 18), cash and cash equivalents {see note 17) and equity
attributable to equity holders of the parent, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained earnings

The Group reviews its capital structure on a regular basts and wiil balance its overall capital structure through
payments of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt in fine
with the financal nsk policies outhned in note 19

28 Treasury shares

Pearson plc
Number of
shares
000s Em
At1January 2014 9,282 98
Purchase of treasury shares 907 9
Retease of treasury shares {2,997) (32)
At31 December 2014 7192 75
Purchase of treasury shares 1,987 23
Release of treasury shares (2,474) {26)
At31 December 2015 6,705 72

The Group holds Pearsan plc shares In trust ta satisfy its cbligations under its restricted share plans {see note 26)
These shares, representing 0 8% (2014 0 9%) of called-up share capital, are treated as treasury shares for accounting
purposes and have a par value of 25p per share

The nominal value of Pearson plc treasury shares amounts to £1 7m (2014 £1 8m)

At 31 December 2015 the market value of Pearson plc treasury shares was £49 3m (2014 £85 6m)
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29 Other comprehensive income r_c:"
2015 E:
Attributable to equity holders E
of the company w
Non
Translatlon Retained controliing
Al flgures In £ miltions reserve earnings Total interest Total
Items that may be reclassified to the income statement
Net exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations - Group {83) - (83) (2) (85)
Net exchange differences on translation of foreign po
operations - associate 16 - 16 ~ 16 <
°
Currency translation adjustment disposed - subsidiaries {10} - (10) - (10) 5
Attributable tax - 5 5 - 5 3
=
Items that are not reclassified to the income statement a
Remeasurement of retirement benefit obhgations - Group - 110 110 - 110
Remeasurement of retirement benefit oblgations - associate - 8 8 - 8
Attributable tax - (24) (24) - (24)
Other comprehensive expense for the year (77 99 22 (2) 20
o
g
(Y
2
2014 &
Attributable to equity holders .g
ofthe company @
Non- -
Translation Retained controlling
All figuresin £ mithons reserve earnings Total Interast Total
{tems that may be reclassified to the income statement
Net exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations - Group 150 - 150 - 150
Net exchange differences on translation of foreign o
operations - associate 25 - 25 - 25 g
Currency translation adjustment disposed - subsidianes (2) - {2 - 2) §
[1]
Attributable tax - {6) {6) - {6)
Items that are not reclassified to the income statement
Remeasurement of retirement benefit cbligations - Group - 23 23 - 23
Remeasurement of retirement benefit cbligattons - assoctate - {15) (15} - (15)
Attributable tax - ) U - ()
Other comprehensive expense for the year 173 1 174 - t74
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30 Business combinations

There were no significant acquisitions 1h 2015 On 11 February 2014, the Group acquired 100% of Grupo Muity, the
leading adult Enghish language training company 1n Brazil Fairvalues for the assets and habilities arising from the

Grupo Mults acquisition and other smaller acquisitions completed in the year are set out below

Fairvalues for the assets and habilities arising from acquisitons completed in the year are as follows

2015 204

Total Total
All figures In £ millions Notes fair value fair value
Praperty, plant and equipment 10 - 2
Intangible assets 1} 1 260
Intangible assets - pre-publication 20 - 1
Inveniories - 4
Trade and other receivables - 36
Cash and cash equivalents {excluding overdrafts) - 3
Financial habifities - borrowings - (49)
Provisions for other habtlities and charges 23 - (14)
Trade and other liabilittes - (24)
Current income tax liabtlities - (20)
Net assets acquired at fair value 1 199
Goodwli 1 - 238
Total 1 437
Satisfied by
Cash (n (437}
Total consideration (1) (437)

The goodwill arising on these acquisitions results from cost and revenue synergles and from assets and benefits that

cannot be separately recognised

There 1s no goadwill arlsing on 2015 acquisitions Goodwill of £240m arising on 2014 acquisitions is expected to be

deductible for tax purposes

Intangible assets acquired In 2014 have the following usefut economic lives customer lists, contracts and
relationships four years, trademarks and brands 20 years, and other acquired intangibles 12 years

All figures tn £ millions 2015 2014

Cash flow on acquisitions

Cash - current year acquisitions (1) {437)
Deferred payments for prior year acquisitions and other items {6) (5)
Cash and cash equivaients acquired - 3

Acquisition costs and other acquisition habuities pard (2) [C)]
Net cash outflow (9) {448)
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31 Disposals including business closures

2015 2014
Allfigures In £ millions FTGroup PowerSchool  Other Total Mergermarket Penguln  Other Total
Disposal of subsidiaries
Property, plant and equipment (15) 2) - 17) {2) - (1) 3)
Intangible assets (46) 19 5 (70 (12 - - (12)
Investments in Joint ventures
and associates 8) - - 8) - - - -
Intangible assets - pre-publication - (64) - (64) - - - -
Inventories (1) - - 1 - - - -
Trade and other receivables (72) 16) {3} (91) (23) - (2) (25)
Cash and cash equivalents
(exciuding overdrafts} (29} - 4 (33 (9} - (1) (30}
Net deferred iIncome tax
(assets)/labilities 2) - 3 1 1 - - 1
Retirement benefit obligations 7 - - 7 - - - -
Provisions for other liabilities
and charges 2 - - 2 4 - - 4
Trade and other liabihties 109 35 6 150 69 - 12 81
Current income tax liabilities 1 - - 1 6 - - 6
Non-controlltng interest - - - - - - 2) (2}
Attributable goodwill (50) (119) B’y (175) {156) - {1 {157
Cumulative transiation adjustment 4 6 10 2 - 2
Net assets disposed (100 {(179) (9) (288) (130) - 5 (135
Cash received 858 222 9 1,089 375 - - 375
Deferred proceeds - - - - - - 6 6
Costs 47) {13) (9) {69) {N 29 (2) 26
Gain/({loss) on disposal rall 30 @ 732 244 29 (1 272
All figures in £millions 2015 am4
Cash flow from disposals
Cash ~current year disposals 1,089 375
Cash and cash equivalents disposed (33) (30)
Costs and other disposal habilities paid {26) (18}
Net cash inflow 1,030 327

Included in the gain on sale of PowerSchool 1s the write down of related software assets of £70m The write down
of the software assets reflects the reduced market opportunity for software which was to be integrated with
PowerSchool and the recognition that adoption of such software 1n US schools ts now uniikely to occur at the rate

ariginally envisaged

Disposal of associates

On 16 October 2015, the Group sold 38% of its 50% stake in The Econornist resuiting in a gain on disposal of £473m
The gain compnises proceeds of £377m, gain on revaluation of remaming 11% investment to fair value of £52m and

habilities disposed of £4m
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Notes to the consohidated financial statements continued

32 Cash generated from operations

Allfigures in Emillions

Notes

2015

2014

Profit 823 470
Adjustments for

Income tax (24) 110
Depreciation 10 75 74
Amortisation and impatrment of acquired intangthles and gocdwill IL 1,051 264
Amortsation of software 11 74 683
Net finance costs 29 93
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 12 (68) (51
Profit on disposal of subsidiaries, assoclates, investments and fixed assets (1,194) (272)
Acquisitton costs - 6
Net foreign exchange adjustment from transactions 22 27
Share-based payment costs 26 26 32
Pre-publication {57) {52}
Inventories 10 6
Trade and other recewvables (99) {€9)
Trade and other liabilities (80) 72
Retirement benefit obligations {57) (58)
Provisions for other liabillties and charges (13} an
Net cash generated from operations 518 704
Dinidends from joint ventures and assoclates 162 120
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {86) (75)
Purchase of intangible assets (161} (107)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 2 9
Proceeds from sale of intangible assets 1 2
Finance lease pnincipal payments {1) 4)
Operating cash flow 435 649
Operating tax paid (129) (163)
Net operating finance costs pard {51) {73)
Operating free cash flow 255 43
Non operating tax paid (103} -
Free cash flow 152 413
Didends pard (including to non-controlling interests) (423) (398)
Net movement of funds from operations (271) 15
Acquisitions and disposals 1,395 {137)
Loans repaid/(advanced) (including to related parties) 7 (12}
Purchase of treasury shares 28 (23) (9)
New equity L "
Other movements on financial instruments (1) 15
Net movement of funds 1,18 (117}
Exchange movements on net debt (133) (143)
Total movement in net debt 985 {260)
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32 Cash generated from operations conunued

Net cash generated from operations i1s translated at an exchange rate approximating the rate at the date of cash
flow The difference between this rate and the average rate used to translate profit gives rise to a currency
adjustment in the reconcibation between net profit and net cash generated from operations This adjustment
reflects the timing difference between recognition of profit and the related cash receipts or payments

Operating cash flow, operating free cash flow and total free cash flow are non-GAAP measures and have been
disclosed as they are part of Pearson’s corporate and operating measures

In the cash flow statement, proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment comprise

Al figuresin £ millions 2015 2014
Netbook amount 6 12
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment )] 3
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 2 9

33 Contingenctres

There are contingent Group liabilities that arise in the normal course of business in respect of ndemnities,

warrantles and guarantees in relation to foermer subsidlaries and in respect of guarantees in relation to subsidiaries,
jointventures and associates in addition there are contingent liabilities of the Group i respect of legal claims,
contract disputes, royalties, copyright fees, permisstons and other rights None of these claims are expected to result
In a matertal gain or loss to the Group

34 Commitments

Atthe balance sheet date there were no commitments for capital expenditure contracted for but not yetincurred

The Group leases various offices and warehouses under non-cancellable operating lease agreements The leases
have varying terms and renewal nghts The Group alsoleases various piant and equipment under operating lease
agreements, also with varying terms Lease expenditure charged te the income statement was £156m (2014 £157m})

The future aggregate minimum lease payments in respect of operating leases are as follows

All figures in £ millions 2015 2014
Not later than one year 164 161
Later than one year and not later than two years 146 150
Later than twa years and not later than three years 143 126
Later than three years and not later than four years 130 122
Later than four years and not later than five years 123 15
Later than five years 685 701

139 1,375
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

35 Related party transactions

Jomnt ventures and associates
Amounts advanced to Joint ventures and assoniates during the year and at the balance sheet date are setoutin
note 12 Apart from transactions with the Group's joint ventures and associates, there were no other matenal

related party transactions

Key management personnel
Key management personnel are deemed to be the members of the Pearson Executive (see page 7) Itisthis

committee which had responsibility for planning, directing and controfiing the activities of the Group in 2015
Key management personnel compensations disclosed below

Allfiguresin £milllons 2015 2014
Short-term employee benefits 7 10
Retirement henefits 1 1
Share-based payment costs 1 2

9 13

Total

There were no other matenial related party transactions No guarantees have been provided to related parties

36 Events after the balance sheet date

injanuary 2016, Pearson announced that it was embarking on a restructuring programme to simplify the business,
reduce costs and position the company for growth in its major markets The majority of the programme 15 expected
to be complete by mid-vear 2016 and will involve implementation costs 1n 2016 of approximately £320m
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37 Accounts and audst exemptions

The Pearson plc subsidiary companies histed below are exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
relating to the audit of indivtdual accounts by virtue of section 479A

Company number Company number
Aldwych Finance Limited 04720439 Pearson Education Lirited 00872828
ASET Limited 04231636 Pearson Funding Four plc 07970304
ASET Group Limited 03964551 Pearson Funding One plc 02911143
ASET Management Limited 03139404 Pearson Funding Two plc 07210654
Blue Wharf Limited 04344573 Pearson Hernemann Limited 03099304
Burmeda Investments Limited 03060487 Pearson in Practice ATA Limited 07679091
Edexcel Limited 04496750 Pearson in Practice Holdings Limited 06337129
Education Development Internationalplc 03914767 Pearson in Practice Skills Based
Embankment Finance Limited 04460625  Learning Limited 03755464
EQL Assessment Limited 05224778 Pearson in Practice Technology Limited 03786989
GreenWharf Linuted 07005228 Pearson International Finance Limited 02496206
lcodeon Limited 05068195 Pearson Loan Finance No 2 Unltmited 05632021
Longman Group (Overseas Holdtngs) Pearson Loan Finance No 3 Limited 05052661
Lrmuted 00690236 Pearson Loan Finance No 4 Limited 02635107
Midlands Educational Technology Limited 01448842 Pearson Loan Finance Unlimited 05144467
Pearson Affordable Learning Fund Liruted 08038068 Pearson Management Services Limited 00096263
Pearson Amsterdam Finance Limited 03041245 Pearson Overseas Holdings Limited 00145205
Pearson Australia Finance Unlimited 05578463 Pearson PRH Holdings Limited 08561316
Pearson Books Limited 02512075 Pearson Services Limited 01341060
Pearson Brazil Finance Ltd 08848874 Pearson Shared Services Limited 04623186
Pearson Canada Finance Uniimited 055784N Testchange Limited 02496240
Pearson Dollar Ftnance plc 05111013 The Coaching Space Limited 05333023
Pearson Dollar Finance Two plc 06507766 TQ Catalis Limited 07307943
Pearson Education Holdings Limited 00210859 TQ Clapham Lirmted 07307925
Pearson Education Investments Limited 08444933 TQ Global Limited 07802458
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Company balance sheet

Asat 31 December 2015

All figures in £ milllons Nates 2015 204
Assets
Non-current assets
tnvestments n subsidiaries 2 7,744 8,740
Amounts due from subsidiarles 3,953 27
Financial assets - derivative financial iInstruments & 78 84
Other financial assets 7 92 -
11,867 8,851
Current assets
Amounts due from subsicianes 446 5,220
Amounts due from related parties 47 54
Current income tax assets - 28
Financial assets ~ dernvative financial instruments 6 3 24
Cash and cash equivalents {excluding overdrafts) 4 1,168 13
Other assets - 2
1,664 5,341
Total assets 13,531 14,192
Liabilities
Non-current habilities
Amounts due to subsidiares (3,760) (2,346)
Financial habthties - borrowings ) (218) (210
Financal habtlities - derivative financial instruments 6 {136) {73)

(4.114) (2,629)

Current habilities

Amounts due to subsidarnies (1,431) {4.414)
Current income tax hablities {108} -
Financial habilities ~ borrowings 5 {580) (629)
Financal habilities - derivative finanaal instruments 6 {29) (1
Other habilitles (12) {(2)
(2.160) (5.046)
Total habilities (6,274) (7.675)
Net assets 7,257 6,517
Equity
Share capital 8 205 205
Share premium 8 2,590 2,579
Treasury shares 9 (27} 1
Special reserve 447 447
Retained earnings 4,042 3,285
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the company 7,257 6,517

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the hoard of directors on 4 March 2016 and signed cnits
behalf by

Coram Withams
Chief financial officer

ﬁﬁd




Company statement of changes in equity

Year ended 31 December 2015
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Equity attnbutable to equity holders of the company 9
5
Share Share Treasury Special Retained g
Allfigures in £ millions capital premium shares reserve earnings Totat g
At 1january 2015 205 2,579 1 447 3,285 6,517 @
Profit for the year - - - - 1,206 1,206
Issue of ordinary shares under
share option schemes* - n - - - 1
Purchase of treasury shares - - (23 - - (23)
Contributton refund to subsidiaries - - (31) - - (31)
Release of treasury shares - - 26 - (26) - 9
Dividends - - - - (423) (423) i
At 31 December 2015 205 2,590 (27} 447 4,042 7,257 §
3
Equity attributable to equity holders of the company
Share Share Treasury Special Retalned
Allfigures In £mullions capltal premium shares reserve earnings Total
At 1 January 2014 205 2,568 22 447 2,447 5,645
Profit for the year - - - - 1,267 1,267 o
Issue of ordinary shares under §|
share option schemes* - 1 - - - 11 g
Purchase of treasury shares - - (9 - - 9 3
Release of treasury shares - - 32 - 32) - 8
Dwvidends - - - - (397) {397)
At 31 December 2014 205 2,579 1 447 3,285 6,517
The special reserve represents the cumulative effect of cancellation of the company's share premium account
included within retained earnings s an amount of £162m {2014 £131m) relating to profit on intra-Group disposals o
thatis not distributable g
* Fult details of the share-based payment plans are discfosed in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements %
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Company cash flow statement

Year ended 31 December 2015

All figuresin £ millons Notes 2015 2074
Cash flows from operating activities

Net profit 1,208 1,267
Adjustments for,

Incorme tax (154) 9
Net finance costs 68 24
impairment charges 736 -
Profiton disposals {279) -
Amounts due to subsidiaries (909) (1,058)
Net cash generated from operations 668 224
Interest paid (56} {73)
Tax received 289 6
Net cash generated from operating activities 901 157
Cash flows from investing activities

Disposal of subsidianes, net of cash disposed 747 -
Loans repaid by/(advanced to) related parties 7 {10)
Interest received il 15
Net cash receved frominvesting activities 765 5
Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 8 1 M
Net purchase of treasury shares (53) {9)
Proceeds from/(repayment of) borrowings 17 {250)
Dividends paid to company's shareholders {423) (397)
Net cash used in financing activities (448) (645)
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (14) {15)
Netincrease/{decrease} in cash and cash equivalents 1,204 {498}
Cash and cash equivalents at beginrming of year (616} (118)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 4 588 {616)
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Company balance sheet

Asat31 December 2015

Allfiguresin £ millions Notes 2015 2014

Assets

Non-current assets

Investments in subsidiares 2 7,744 8,740

Amaunts due from subsidiaries 3,953 27

Finanaial assets - denivative financial instruments 6 78 84

Other financial assets 7 92 -
11,867 8,851

Current assets

Amounts due from subsidianes 446 5,220

Amounts due from related parties 47 54

Currentincome tax assets - 28

Financial assets - derivative financial Instruments 6 3 24

Cash and cash equivalents (exciuding averdrafts) 4 1168 13

Other assets - 2

1,664 5,341

Total assets 13,531 14,192

Liabilittes

Non-current iabilities

Amounts due to subsidianes {3,.760) (2,346)

Financia! liabilibes - borrowings 5 {218) (210)

Financial labilities - derivative financial instruments 6 {136) (73)

(4114) (2,629)

Currentliahilities

Amounts due to subsidiartes (1.431) 4.414)
Current income tax habiities (108) -
Financial liabilities - borrowings 5 (580) (629)
Financial liabilibes - derivative financal instruments 6 (29) {1}
Other habtlities (12) (2)
{2,160) (5,046)
Total habilities (6,274) {7,675)
Net assets 1,257 6,517
Equity
Share capital 8 205 205
Share premium 8 2,590 2,579
Treasury shares 9 (27) 1
Special reserve 447 447
Retained earnings 4,042 3,285
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the company 7,257 6,517

These financial statements have been approved for 1ssue by the board of directors on4March 2016 and signed on its
behalf by

Coram Wilhams
Chief financial officer
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Company statement of changes in equity

Year ended 31 December 2015

Equity attributable to eqiity holders of the company

Share Share Treasury Special Retained

Al figuresin £ millions capltal premium shares resarve earnings Total
At 1January 2015 205 2,579 T 447 3,285 6,517
Profit for the year - - - - 1.206 1,206
issue of ordinary shares under

share option schemes* - n - - - "
Purchase of treasury shares - - (23) - - {23)
Contribution refund to subsidiaries - - 31 - - (31
Release of treasury shares - - 26 - {26) -
Dividends - - - - {423} (423)
At 31 December 2015 205 2,590 27 447 4,042 7.257

Equity attributable to equity holders of the company

Share Share Treasury Special Retalned

All figures In £ millions capital premtum shares reserve earnings Total
At 1 january 2014 205 2,568 (22) 447 2,447 5,645
Profit for the year - - - - 1,267 1,267
Issue of ordinary shares under

share option schemes* - 11 - - - "
Purchase of treasury shares - - (9 - - (%)
Release of treasury shares - - 32 - (32) -
Diidends - - - - {397} (397)
At 31 December 2014 205 2,579 1 447 3,285 6,517

The special reserve represents the cumulative effect of cancellation of the company’s share premium account

included within retained earnings 1s an amount of £162m (2014 £131m) relating to profit on intra-Group disposals
that s not distributable

*+ pull details of the share-based payment plans are disdosed in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements
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Company cash flow statement

Year ended 31 December 2015

Ali figures in £ millions Notes 2015 2014
Cash flows from operating activities

Net profit 1,206 1,267
Adjustments for

Income tax (154) {9)
Net finance costs 68 24
Impairment charges 736 -
Profit on disposais [ o o 279 -
Amounts due to subsidiaries o - ’ (909) {1,058)
Net cash generated from operations 668 224
Interest paid (56) (73)
Tax receved 289 6
Net cash generated from operating activities 9201 157
Cash flows from investing activities

Disposal of subsidianies, net of cash disposed 747 -
Loans repaid by/{advanced to) related parties 7 {10}
Interest receved " 15
Net cash receved from investing activities 765 5
Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 8 1" 11
Net purchase of treasury shares (53) 9)
Proceeds from/{repayment of) borrowings 17 (250}
Didends paid to company's shareholders 423) (397}
Net cash used In financing activities (448) {645)
Effects of exchange rate changes oncash and cash equivalents (14} (15)
Net increasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,204 {498)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 616) (118)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 4 588 (616)
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Five-year summary

Allfigures i £ millions 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Sales By geography*

North Amenca 3,008 2,906 2,940
Core 1,008 910 836
Growth 712 724 692
Continuing 4,390 4,615 4,728 4,540 4,468
Discontinued 1,472 1,497 962 343 312
Total sales 5.862 6112 5690 4,883 4,780
Sales By hine of business*

School 2,303 2,027 1,880
Higher Education 1,664 1,695 1,736
Professional 761 818 852
Conttnuing 4,390 4,615 4,728 4,540 4,468
Discontinued 1,472 1,497 962 343 312
Total sales 5,862 6112 5,690 4,883 4,780
Adjusted operaung profit By geography*

North Amenica 464 444 480
Care 103 122 114
Growth 35 32 12)
Penguin Random House 50 69 90
Continuing 751 785 652 667 672
Discontinued 187 147 84 55 51
Total adjusted operating profit 938 932 736 722 723
Adjusted operating profit: By line of business*

School 268 236 183
Higher Education 295 309 354
Professional 39 53 45
Penguin Random House - - 50 69 a0
Continuing 751 785 652 667 672
Discontinued 187 47 84 55 51
Total adjusted operating profit 938 932 736 722 723

* periods prior to 2013 have not been restated to reflect the new organisatien structure as there 1s no appropriate basis for restatement of those

periods 2011 onwards reflect the adoption pflAS 19 revised and have been restated, as appropriate Prior periods have not been restated
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Allfigures in £ millions

201

2012

2013

2014

2045 .

Operating margmn - continuing 171% 17 0% 13 8% 14 7% 15.0%

Adjusted earnings

Total adjusted operating profit 938 932 736 722 723

Net finance costs {55) {65) (72) (64} (46)
Income tax {196} (200) (97) {118) {105)
Non-controlling interest 1 (3} 4 1 -

Adjusted earnings 688 664 566 541 572

Weighted average number of shares (milhions) 8002 8043 8078 8109 813.3

Adjusted earnings per share 86 0p 82 6p 701p 66 7p 70 3p

Allflgures in £ milllons 20Mm 2012 203 2014 2018

Cash flow

Operating cash flow 983 788 588 649 435

Operating cash conversion 105% 85% 80% 90% 60%

Cperating free cash flow 772 657 324 13 255

Operating free cash flow per share 96 5p 817p 401p 509p 314p

Total free cash flow 772 657 269 413 152

Total free cash flow per share 96 5p 817p 33 3p 50 9p 187p

Net assets 5,962 5710 5,706 5,985 6,418

Netdebt 499 918 1,379 1,639 654
Return on invested capital (gross basis)

Total adjusted operating profit 938 932 736 722 723

Cash tax paid (151) 65) {(191) (163) (129)
Return 787 867 545 559 594

Average invested capital 8731 9,578 10,120 9,900 10,317

Return oninvested capital 90% 91% 5 4% 5 6% S 8%

Dividend per share 42 0p 45 0p 48 Op 510p 520p
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Corporate and operating measures

Sales - underlying and constant exchange rate movement

Underlying sales movements exclude the impact of acquisitions/disposals, movements In exchange rates and
changes in revenue recognition pohicies

All figures in E millions 2015
Underlying decrease (80)
Portfolic changes (129)
Exchange differences 137
Total sales decrease (72)
Underlying decrease (2)%
Constant exchange rate decrease (5)%

Adjusted income statement

Reconailiation of the consolidated Income statement to the adjusted numbers presented as non-GAAP measures
in the financial statements

2015
Other net
Statutory Other finance Tax  Adjusted
Income Discontinued  netgains Acquisition Intangible lncome/ amortisation income
All figures in Emilllons statement operations andlosses costs charges costs henefit statermant
Operating (loss)y/profit {404) 5 (13) - 1,089 - - 723
Net finance costs (29) - - - - (17} - (46)
(Loss)/profit before tax {433} 51 13) - 1,089 7 - 677
Income tax 81 {9 40 - (257) 7 33 (105)
{Loss)/profit for the year
from continuing operations (352) 42 27 - 832 {10) 33 572
Profit for the year from
discontinued operations 1175 42y (1135 - 2 - - -
Profit for the year 823 - {1,108) - 834 (10 33 572
Non-controliing interest - - - - - - - -
Earmings 823 - {1,108) - 834 10} 33 572
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Adjusted income statement contthued g
2014 g
=
- Gther net 3]
Statutary QOther finance Tax  Adjusted v
income Discontinued  netgains  Acquisition  intangible income/ amortlsation ncome
Allfigures in Emilflons statement  operatlons andlosses costs charges costs benefit staterment
Operating profit 398 2 (2) 6 318 - - 722
Net finance costs (93) - - - - 29 - (64)
Profit before tax 305 2 {2) 6 318 29 - 658
Income tax (63) (1 i (1} {73} (5) 24 (118) 5
Profit for the year from E
continuing operations 242 1 N 5 245 24 24 540 e
Q
Profit for the year from 3
discontinued operations 228 m (227} - - - - - 2
m
Profit for the year 470 - (228) 5 245 24 24 540
Non-controling interest 1 - - - - - - 1
Earnings 41 - (228) 5 245 24 24 541
Adjusted operating profit - underlying and constant exchange rate movement
o
Operating profit movement excluding the iImpact of acguisiions, disposals and movements in exchange rates =
w
Allfigures in £ miliions 2015 §_
Underfying decrease (12) _é_
Portfolio changes @ 3
Exchange differences 22
Total adjusted operating profit increase 1
Underlying decrease (2)%
Constant exchange rate decrease (3)%
N
Q
. &
3
3
&
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Corporate and operating measures continued

Free cash flow per share

Operating cash flow for continuing and discontinued operations before tax and finance charges, divided by the
weighted average number of shares in iIssue

All figures {n £ mullions 2015 2014
Adjusted operating profit 723 722
Cash conversion 60% 90%
Cperating cash flow 435 649
Operating tax patd (129) {163)
Net operating finance costs paid (51 {73)
Total operating free cash flow 255 413
Non operating tax paid (103) -
152 413

Total free cash flow
Weighted average number of shares in issue (mtfhons)

8133 8109
31.4p 509p
187p 508p

Operating free cash flow per share

Total free cash flow per share

Return on mnvested capttal

Invested capital

All figuresin Emillions 2015 2014
Total adjusted operating profit 723 722
Operating tax paid (129) {163)

594 559

Return
Average goodwill and other intangibles

8,715 8,557
1,602 1,343
10,317 9,900
5 8% 56%

Average net operating assets

Average invested capital
Return on invested capital

Return on invested capital 1s calculated as total adjusted operating profit less operating cash tax paid expressed asa
percentage of average mvested capital Invested capital includes the onginal unamortised goodwill and intangibles




Shareholder information

Section 5 Financal statements 227

Pearson ordinary shares are hsted on the London Stock
Exchange and onthe New York Stack Exchange in the
form of American Depositary Receipts

Corporate website

The investors' section of our corporate website

WWW pearson com/investors provides a wealth

of information for shareholders Itis also possible

to sign up to receive e-mat alerts far reports and

press releases relating to Pearson at

www pearson com/news/newsletter-subscribe html é

Shareholder Information online

Shareholder information can be found on our website
WWW pearson com/investors/
investor-information hitmi

Qur registrar, Equinity, also provides a range of
shareholder information online You can check your
holding and find practical help on transferring shares
or updating your detaiis at www shareview co uk

For more information, please contact our registrar,
Equinit,, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing,

West Sussex BN99 6DA Telephone 0371 384 2233*
or, for those sharehclders with heanng difficulties,
textphone number 0371 384 2255*

Information about the Pearson share price

The company’s share price can be found on our website
atwww pearson com |t also appears in the finanaal
columns of the national press

2015 dividends

Paymentdata Amount pershare
Intenm 11 September 2015 18 pence
Final 6May 2016 34 pence

Payment of dividends to mandated accounts

Should you elect to have your dividends paid through
BACS, this can be done directly into a bank or bulding
socrety account, with the tax voucher sent to the
shareholder's registered address Equiniti can be
contacted for information on 0371 384 2043*

Dividend remvestment plan {DRIP)

The DRIP gves shareholders the right to buy the
company’s shares on the London stock market with
their cash dwvidend For further information, please
contact Equinit: on 0371 384 2268*

indwvidual Savings Accounts (ISAs)

Equiniti offers ISAs 1n Pearson shares For more
information, please go to www shareview o uk/dealing
or call customer services on 0345 3000430*

Share dealing facihities

Equinit offers telephone and internet services for
dealing in Pearson shares Forfurther information,
please contact their telephone dealing helpline on
03456037 037* ar, for online dealing, log on to
www shareview co uk/dealing Youwill need your
shareholder reference number as shown on your
share certificate

A postal dealing service is also available through
Equiniti Please telephone 0371 384 2248* for details or
log on to www shareview co uk to download a form

ShareGift

Shareholders with smail holdings of shares, whose
value makes them uneconomic to sell, may wish

to donate them to ShareGift, the share donation
charity {registered chanty number 1052686)

Further information about ShareGift and the chanties
it has supported may be obtained from their website,
www ShareGift arg or by contacting them at ShareGsft,
PO Box 72253, London, SW1P 9LQ

Amenican Depositary Receipts (ADRs)

Pearson's ADRs are listed on the New Yark Stock
Exchange and traded under the symbof PSQ Each ADR
represents one ordinary share Forenquiries regarding
registered ADR holder accounts and dividends,

please contact Bank of New York Mellon, Shareholder
Correspondence {ADR), PO Box 30170, College Station,
TX77842-3170, telephone 1 (B66) 259 2289 {tol! free
within the US) or 001 201 680 6B25 {outside the US)
Alternatively, you may e-mail
shrrelations@cpusharecwnerservices comé

Voting nights for registered ADR holders can be
exercised through Bank of New York Melion, and for
beneficial ADR holders {and/or nominee accounts)
through your US brokerage institution Pearson wiil
file with the Securities and Exchange Commission
aForm 20-F

*Lines open 8 30am to 5 30pm Monday to Frday{excluding UK
public hokdays)
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Shareholder mformation continued

Share register fraud protecting your investment

2016 financial calendar

Pearson does not contact its shareholders directly

to provide recommendation advice and neither does

it appoint third parties to do so As required by law,

our shareholder register is availabte for public
inspection but we cannot control the use of information
cbtained by persons inspecting the register Please
treat any approaches purporting to originate from
Pearson with caution

For more information, please log on to our website at
Www pearson com/investors/
nvestor-information html

Tips on protecting your shares

» Keep any documentation that contains your
shareholder reference number in a safe place
and shred any unwanted documentation

» Inform our registrar, Equinits, premptly when you
change address

» Be aware of dividend payment dates and contact the
registrar if you do not receive your dvidend cheque or
better still, make arrangements ta have the dividend
paid directly into your bank account

» Consider holding your shares electronically in a CREST
accountwvia a nominee

Ex-chvidend date 7 Apnil
Record date 8Apnil
Last date for dividend retnvestment election 14 Apnil
Annual GeneralMeeting 29 Aprd
Payment date for dividend and share

purchase date for dividend reinvestment 6 May
Interim results the*
Payment date for interim dividend thc*

* 1o be ahnounced during 2016



Reliance on this document

The intention of this document 1s to provide
information to shareholders and s not designed to be
relied upon by any other party or for any other purpose

Forward-looking statements

Except for the histonical information contained
herein, the matters discussed in this document
include forward-looking statements In particular,

alf statements that express forecasts, expectations
and projections with respect to future matters,
including trends in resuits of operations, margins,
growth rates, overall market trends, the impact

of interest or exchange rates, the avallability of
financing, anticipated costs savings and synergles
and the execution of Pearson's strategy, are forward-
looking statements By their nature, forward-laoking
statements involve risks and uncertainties because
they relate to events and depend on crcumstances
thatwill occur in future They are based on numerous

assumptions regarding Pearson’s present and future
business strategies and the environment in which it
will operate in the future There are a number of factors
which could cause actual results and developments

to differ matenally from those expressed or implied

by these forward-looking statements, including a
number of factors outside Pearson’s control These
include international, national and local conditions,
aswell as competitton They also include other risks
detailed from time to time «n Pearson's publicly-filed
documents and you are advised te read, in particular,
the nisk factors set out In this document Any forward-
looking statements speak anly as of the date they are
made, and Pearson gives no undertaking to update
forward-looking statements to reflect any changesn
[ts expectations with regard thereto or any changes to
events, conditions or arcumstances on which any such
statementis based No reliance should be placed on
forward-looking statements
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Pearson has supported the planting of 137 square metres of new
native woodland with the Woodland Trust, helping to remove

5 48 metric tonnes of carbon dioxide generated by the productron
of this report and assoclated documents

This report has been printed on Edbaon Challenger Offsetwhich is
FSCT certified and made from 100% Elernental Chlorine Free (ECF) pulp
The mill and the printer are both certified 1o 150 14001 environmental
management system and registered to EMAS the eco management
Audit Scheme The report was printed using vegetzble based inks by

a CarbonNeutral® printer
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